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META FINANCIAL GROUP, INC.

EXPLANATORY NOTE — RESTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMA TION

For the reasons stated by the Registrant in itmRK filed on June 26, 2009, this Annual Reportramm 10-K/A for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2008, includes a restated consdlidééement of financial condition, consolidatexteshent of operations, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (loss), condelitstatement of shareholders’ equity and congelitistatement of cash flows as of and for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008. Earmiegshare, segment, and quarterly data have a¢gorbstated for all periods presented. For
more information concerning these restatementsiNs¢e 22 to the “Notes to Consolidated Financiat&nents,” which is included in Part I,
Item 8 “Consolidated Financial Statements and Sampphtary Data” of this Annual Report on Form 10-K/8ee also Part 11, Item 9A(T)
(Controls and Procedures) for a discussion ofrit@aict of the matters described in the Form 8-Kifda June 26, 2009 on the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures and internakabaover financial reporting.
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Forward-Looking Statements

Meta Financial Group, In® , (“Meta Financial” gh& Company”) and its wholly-owned subsidiaries jaBank™ (the “Bank”)and
Meta Trust Compan§ (“Meta Trust” or the “Trust Company”), may from téro time make written or oral “forward-looking &ments,”
including statements contained in its filings witle Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC")sineports to shareholders, and in other
communications by the Company, which are made gddaith by the Company pursuant to the “safe hdrpmvisions of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.

These forward-looking statements include statemaittsrespect to the Company’s beliefs, expectatji@stimates, and intentions that
are subject to significant risks and uncertainté®] are subject to change based on various fastarge of which are beyond the Company’s
control. Such statements address, among other§ltbwing subjects: future operating resultsstomer retention; loan and other product
demand; important components of the Company’s lsalaheet and income statements; growth and expamsw products and services, such
as those offered by MetaBank or Meta Payment SysteifiMPS"), a division of MetaBank; credit qualiand adequacy of reserves;
technology; and our employees. The following fegt@among others, could cause the Company’s fiahperformance to differ materially
from the expectations, estimates, and intentiopsesssed in such forward-looking statements: trength of the United States economy in
general and the strength of the local economigghich the Company conducts operations; the effefztand changes in, trade, monetary, and
fiscal policies and laws, including interest ratdigies of the Federal Reserve Board; inflatiorteiiast rate, market, and monetary fluctuations;
the timely development of and acceptance of newlyts and services offered by the Company as weik&s (including litigation) attendant
thereto and the perceived overall value of thesdymts and services by users; the risks of dealittgor utilizing third-party vendors; the
impact of changes in financial servicésivs and regulations; technological changes, irnoydut not limited to the protection of electrofiles
or databases; acquisitions; litigation risk in gahancluding but not limited to those risks invislg the MPS division; the growth of the
Company’s business as well as expenses relategtdhehanges in consumer spending and saving hahiisthe success of the Company at
managing and collecting assets of borrowers inudefa

The foregoing list of factors is not exclusive. dkibnal discussions of factors affecting the Comya business and prospects are
contained in the Company’s periodic filings witetSEC. The Company expressly disclaims any irdenbligation to update any forward-
looking statement, whether written or oral, thayrha made from time to time by or on behalf of @@mpany or its subsidiaries.

Available Information

The Company’s website address is www.metacash.ddm. Company makes available, through a link with$EC’s EDGAR
database, free of charge, its annual report on B@id, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current ipon Form 8-K, amendments to those
reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 18¢al5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 198 (‘Exchange Act”), and beneficial
ownership reports on Forms 3, 4, and 5 as sooeaa®nably practicable after electronically filings material with, or furnishing it to, the
SEC. The information found on the Company’s webisitnot incorporated by reference in this or afieoreport the Company files or
furnishes to the SEC.
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PART |
ltem 1. Description of Business
General

Meta Financial, a registered unitary savings aad leolding company, is a Delaware corporation ptfirecipal assets of which are all
the issued and outstanding shares of MetaBanldeadesavings bank. Meta Financial, on SeptemBgel 293, acquired all of the capital stock
of MetaBank in connection with its conversion frdime mutual to stock form ownership (the “ConvergjorOn September 30, 1996, Meta
Financial became a bank holding company for regajgturposes upon its acquisition of MetaBank Wassttral (“MetaBank WC”) until its
sale of MetaBank WC in March 2008, at which timetdEinancial became a unitary savings and loanifglcompany again, all as discussed
below. Unless the context otherwise requiresregfees herein to the Company include Meta FinamacidlMetaBank, and all subsidiaries on a
consolidated basis.

Since the Conversion, the Company has acquiredadirgancial institutions. On March 28, 1994, Mdtinancial acquired Brookin
Federal Bank in Brookings, South Dakota (“Brookifrgsleral”). On December 29, 1995, Meta Finan@glaed lowa Savings Bank, FSB in
Des Moines, lowa (“lowa Savings”). Brookings Faleand lowa Savings were both merged with, and operate as market areas of,
MetaBank. On September 30, 1996, Meta Financialpteted the acquisition of Central West Bancorpora‘CWB”), the holding company
for MetaBank WC, which upon the merger of CWB iMeta Financial resulted in MetaBank WC becomingead-alone commercial bank
subsidiary of Meta Financial. On March 28, 200@, Company sold MetaBank WC and reclassified fifsteformation as discontinued ba
operations in the consolidated financial statemantsthe notes thereto in the Annual Report faali007. As such, information in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K has been adjusted tiefdite the effect of discontinued bank operatianisss otherwise indicated.

MetaBank, the only direct, active full service bartksubsidiary of Meta Financial, is a communityeated financial institution
offering a variety of financial services to mees treeds of the communities it serves and a paynsentpany that provides services
nationwide. The Company provides a full rangeimdificial services. The principal business of MetaBhas historically consisted of
attracting retail deposits from the general pulhd investing those funds primarily in one- to féamily residential mortgage loans,
commercial and multi-family real estate, agricudlusperations and real estate, construction, anduwuoer and commercial business loans
primarily in MetaBank’s market areas. MetaBankisding activities have expanded in recent yeaisclade an increased emphasis on
originations of commercial and muftmily real estate loans and commercial businemsdo MetaBank also purchases loan participaticom
time to time from other financial institutions. d%$e loans typically are collateralized by commérreial estate and commercial businesses. In
2004, MetaBank created a division known as MPSckwvigsues various prepaid cards, consumer creatifupts, and sponsors ATMSs into
various debit networks and offers other paymentstiy products and services. MPS generates feee@nd low- and no-cost deposits for
MetaBank through its activities. As noted in tiMdghagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financ@idition and Results of Operations,”
which is included in Item 7 of this Annual Report Form 10-K/A, MPS is expanding and playing a gigant role in the Company’s financial
performance.

MetaBank also purchases mortgage-backed secuaitigther investments permissible under applicedgalations. Meta Financial
also owns Meta Trust, a South Dakota trust corpmratAt September 30, 2008, the Company had &stséts of $756.4 million, deposits of
$546.0 million, and shareholders’ equity of $45.iflian.
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The Company’s revenues are derived primarily frateriest on commercial and residential mortgagesioamortgage-backed
securities, fees generated through the activitiddRSS, other investments, consumer loans, agricallaperating loans, commercial business
loans, income from service charges, loan origimefées, and loan servicing fee income.

Meta Trust, established in April 2002 as a Soutkdda corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary @t&IFinancial, provides a full
range of trust services. First Midwest Financiapftal Trust, also a wholly-owned subsidiary of B€&inancial, was established in July 2001
for the purpose of issuing trust preferred sea@siti

Meta Financial, MetaBank and Meta Trust are sulifgcomprehensive regulation and supervision. “Begulation” herein.

The home office of the Company is located at 124t Edth Street, Storm Lake, lowa 50588. Its thlempe number at that address is
(712) 732-4117.

Market Areas

MetaBank has four market areas and the MPS Dividianthwest lowa (“NWI”), Brookings, Central low&(l”), and Sioux Empire
(“SE"). MetaBank's headquarters is located at E2%t Fifth Street in Storm Lake, lowa. NW!I opesaigo offices in Storm Lake, lowa.
Brookings operates one office in Brookings, Souttk@ia. Cl operates a total of six offices in lovides Moines (3), West Des Moines
(2) and Urbandale. SE operates four offices amdamministrative office in Sioux Falls, SD. MPSjieh offers prepaid cards and other
payment industry products and services nationwigerates out of Sioux Falls, South Dakota and haslaninistrative office in Omaha,
Nebraska. Se‘Meta Payment Systens  Division.”

The Company also has a non-retail service brandheimphis, Tennessee.

The Company’s primary commercial banking marketaneludes the lowa counties of Buena Vista, Dadlagd Polk, and the South
Dakota counties of Brookings, Lincoln and Minnehaha

lowa ranks sixth “most livable” state in the natidhorgan Quinto State Rankings, 2007), and hasdosporate income and franchise
taxes.

South Dakota ranks first in students per compldu¢ation Weekly, Technology Counts 2006), nintlostrivable” state in the
nation (Morgan Quitno State Rankings, 2007 andnloasorporate income tax, personal income tax, peigmroperty tax, business inventory
tax, or inheritance tax.

Storm Lake is located in lowa’s Buena Vista Cougpproximately 150 miles northwest of Des Moines 200 miles southwest of
Minneapolis. Like much of the state of lowa, Stdrake and the surrounding market area are highhedeéent upon farming and agricultural
markets. Major employers in the area include Buéista Regional Medical Center, Tyson Foods, Saa Eoods, and Buena Vista
University. The Northwest lowa market operates offeces in Storm Lake.

Brookings is located in Brookings County, South Brak approximately 50 miles north of Sioux Fallsl 290 miles west of
Minneapolis. The Bank’s market area encompasga®gimately a 30-mile radius of Brookings. Theaig generally rural, and agriculture is
a significant industry in the community. South B&kState University is the largest employer indkings. The community also has several
manufacturing companies, including 3M, Larson Mactidiring, Daktronics, Falcon Plastics,
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Twin City Fan, and Rainbow Play Systems, Inc. Bheokings market operates from an office locateddwntown Brookings.

Des Moines, lowa’s capital is located in centraldo The Des Moines market area encompasses Palktyand surrounding
counties. MetaBank’s Central lowa main officedsdted in the heart of downtown Des Moines. Thisaddale office is in a high growth area
just off I-80 at the intersection of two major streets. West Des Moines office operates near a high-traffiersection, across from a major
shopping mall. The Ingersoll office is located miee heart of Des Moines, on a major thoroughfiere, densely populated area. The High
Park facility is located in a historical distrigg@roximately five minutes north of downtown Des M@$. The Jordan Creek office is located
near Jordan Creek Town Center in West Des Moinas of the fastest growing communities in the Sthtewa and the Greater Des Moines
area. The Des Moines metro area is one of théht@e insurance centers in the world, with sixtyeseinsurance company headquarters and
over one hundred regional insurance offices. Majoployers include Principal Life Insurance Compdowa Health — Des Moines, Mercy
Hospital Medical Center, Hy-Vee Food Stores, I@ity of Des Moines, United Parcel Service, NatiotevMutual Insurance Co., Pioneer Hi
Bred International Inc., and Wells Fargo Finaneiadl Home Mortgage. Universities and colleges éndfea include Des Moines Area
Community College, Drake University, Simpson CodleBes Moines University — Osteopathic Medical €@gnBrand View College, AlIB
College of Business, and Upper lowa University.e Tinemployment rate in the Des Moines metro area3wr % as of September 2008.

Sioux Falls is located at the crossroads of Inaéest29 and 90 in southeast South Dakota, 270 solaghwest of Minneapolis. The
Sioux Falls market area encompasses Minnehahaiandlh counties. The main branch is located atilgg growth area of 5% and
Western. Other branches are located d#33 andeédota, the intersection of 12  and Elmwood, andarh Minnesota Avenue just north
of Russell Road. Major employers in the area idel&anford Health, Avera McKennan Hospital, Johnri®lb& Company, Citibank (South
Dakota) NA, and Hyvee Food Stores. Sioux Falls is home to Augus@uiege and The University of Sioux Falls. The mpéoyment rate i
Sioux Falls was 2.5% as of September 2008 (tiethonational lead with Bismarck, ND, Casper, Wid &ogan, UT).

Several of the Company’s market areas are dependengriculture-related businesses, which are esgts exogenous risk factors
such as weather conditions and commodity pricessdntly, economic conditions in the agricultuesdter of the Company’s market area are
relatively strong. Agricultural commodity priceslivgerve to offset slightly more modest yieldsstigear. The agricultural economy is
accustomed to commaodity price fluctuations anceisegally able to handle such fluctuations withaghiicant problems. Although there has
been minimal effect observed to date, an extendeidg of low commodity prices, higher input costgpoor weather conditions could result in
a reduced demand for goods and services providedjtigulture-related businesses, which could atfextother businesses in the Company’s
market area.

Lending Activities

General. Historically, the Company originated fixed-rab@e- to four-family mortgage loans. In the ea®8Q@s, the Company began
to focus on the origination of adjustable-rate mage (“ARM”) loans and short-term loans for retentin its portfolio in order to increase the
percentage of loans in its portfolio with more fueqt repricing or shorter maturities, and in somses higher yields, than fixed-rate residential
mortgage loans. The Company, however, has cortitueriginate fixed-rate residential mortgage manresponse to consumer demand,
although most such loans are generally sold is#dmendary market. See “Management’s DiscussiorAaatl/sis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations,” which is included in Iterofthis Annual Report on 10-K for further inforn@t on Asset/Liability Management.
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More recently, the Company has focused its lendrtiyities on the origination of commercial and tirtdmily real estate loans,
commercial business loans, and, to a lesser extemtmercial construction loans. The Company atsdigues to originate one-to-four family
mortgage loans, consumer loans and agriculturelbted loans. The Company originates most obds$ in its primary market area. At
September 30, 2008, the Company’s net loan pastfolialed $427.9 million, or 56.6% of the Companyl assets.

Loan applications are initially considered and appd at various levels of authority, dependingletype and amount of the loan.
The Company has a loan committee consisting obséemders and Market Presidents, and is led byCtiief Lending Officer. Loans in exce
of certain amounts require approval by at leastiveanbers of the entire loan committee, a majoffithe entire loan committee, or by the
Company’s Board of Directors, which has responisjbiibr the overall supervision of the loan portéol The Company reserves the right to
discontinue, adjust or create new lending progremmespond to its needs and to competitive factors.

At September 30, 2008, the Company'’s largest lencbiationship to a single borrower or group oétetl borrowers totaled $8.1
million. The Company had 24 other lending relasioips in excess of $3.5 million as of Septembe2B08. At September 30, 2008, two of
these loans were classified as substandard totaliag’ million.
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Loan Portfolio Composition. The following table provides information abou¢ ttomposition of the Company’s loan portfolio in
dollar amounts and in percentages (before dedwfmmoans in process, deferred fees and discamtsallowances for losses) as of the dates
indicated. Balances related to discontinued bamgtations have been eliminated for all periodseoresd.

At September 30,
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount  Percent Amount Percent
(Dollars in Thousands)

Real Estate Loan:

1-4 Family $ 56,36 13.(% $ 45,40° 12.€% $ 58,16¢ 15.2% $ 68,13¢ 15.8% $ 72,18¢ 18.2%
Commercial & Multi Family 222,65: 51.2% 169,87 47.1% 159,10° 42.2% 201,43. 46.€% 189,14 48.(%
Agricultural 30,04¢ 6.9% 16,58: 4.6% 14,09¢ 3.7% 12,77 3.C% 10,30¢ 2.€%

Total Real Estate Loans 309,05¢ 71.1% 231,86¢ 64.2% 231,37( 61.2% 282,34 65.2% 271,63¢ 68.%

Other Loans
Consumer Loans

Home Equity 21,35:¢ 4.9% 23,83 6.6% 24,55¢ 6.5% 24,14( 5.6% 21,52 5.5%
Automobile 922 0.2% 1,241 0.3% 1,70¢ 0.5% 2,13¢ 0.5% 2,51 0.6%
Other (1) 27,05¢ 6.2% 11,69( 3.2% 3,80( 1.C% 4,20¢ 1.C% 5,232 1.2%
Total Consumer Loans 49,32¢ 11.48% 36,76: 10.2% 30,067 8.C% 30,47¢ 7.C% 29,267 7.4%
Agricultural Operating 31,15:¢ 7.2% 33,14 9.2% 28,66 7.€% 23,08: 5.2% 18,99: 4.8%
Commercial Business 44 97: 10.2% 58,70¢ 16.2% 87,20: 23.1% 96,46 22.2% 74,267 18.8%
Total Other Loans 125,45 28.% 128,61 35.7% 145,93( 38.7% 150,02¢ 34.7% 122,52 31.1%
Total Loans 434,51 100.(% 360,47 100.(% 377,30( 100.(% 432,37: 100.(% 394,16 100.(%
Less:
Loans in Proces 695 254 1,77: 9,73: 7,34z
Deferred Fees and Discoul 16C 117 177 277 27C
Allowance for Losses 5,732 4,49 6,391 6,792 5,14¢
Total Loans Receivable, Net $427,92¢ $355,61: $368,95¢ $415,56¢ $381,40¢
(1) Consist generally of various typésecured and unsecured consumer loans.
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The following table shows the composition of ther@any’s loan portfolio by fixed and adjustable ratéhe dates indicated.
Balances related to discontinued bank operations haen eliminated for all periods presented.

Fixed Rate L oans
Real Estate

1-4 Family

Commercial & Multi Family

Agricultural
Total Fixed-Rate Real

Estate Loan

Consumel

Agricultural Operating

Commercial Business
Total Fixed-Rate Loans

Adjustable Rate Loan:
Real Estate
1-4 Family
Commercial & Multi Family
Agricultural
Total Adjustable Real
Estate Loan
Consume
Agricultural Operating
Commercial Busines
Total Adjustable Loans
Total Loans

Less:
Loans in Proces
Deferred Fees and Discoul
Allowance for Losses

Total Loans Receivable, Net

September 30,
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Amount Percent Amount _Percent Amount _Percent Amount _Percent Amount _Percent
(Dollars in Thousands)
$ 42,95: 9.9%$ 34,15: 9.5% $ 45,59 11.€%$ 38,92: 8.€%$ 46,33: 11.7%
171,11 39.4% 128,49! 35.6% 113,07: 29.1% 126,27" 28.1% 102,55 25.2%
20,26: 4.7% 11,61( 3.2%  8,22¢ 24% 6,341 1.7% 3,992 1.3%
234,32¢ 53.% 174,26:. 48.2% 166,89: 43.2% 171,54: 39.2% 152,88( 38.2%
42,19: 9.7% 21,47( 6.0% 21,12¢ 5.€% 17,06¢ 3.5% 14,69¢ 3.7%
16,84( 3.%9% 16,51¢ 4.6% 15,14¢ 41% 7,161 1.8%  5,31¢ 1.4%
25,22¢ 5.8% 31,38¢ 8.7% 36,70: 9.6% 35,25: 8.C% 22,55! 5.8%
318,58« 73.2% 243,63 67.€% 239,86¢ 62.6% 231,02: 52.€% 195,44. 49.1%
13,41( 3.1% 11,25( 3.1% 12,57: 3.2% 29,21; 6.5% 25,85t 6.2%
51,53 11.¢% 41,38 11.5% 46,03t 13.1% 75,15¢ 18.1% 86,58¢ 22.(%
9,784 2.3% 4,97 1.4%  5,86¢ 1.7%  6,42¢ 1.6%  6,31¢ 1.8%
74,731 17.2% 57,60¢ 16.C% 64,47¢ 18.C% 110,79¢ 26.2% 118,75! 30.1%
7,137 1.6% 15,29: 4.2%  8,93¢ 2.3% 13,41 3.C% 14,57 3.5%
14,31 3.3% 16,62« 4.6% 13,51¢ 3.8% 15,92 3.€% 13,67¢ 3.€%
19,74¢ 4.5% 27,31¢ 7.6% 50,50( 13.€% 61,21f 14.06 51,71« 13.7%
115,92¢ 26.7% 116,84( 32.4% 137,43: 37.4% 201,34¢ 47.1% 198,72( 50.£%
434,51: _100.% 360,47 _ 100.(% 377,30( _ 100.% 432,37: _100.(% 394,16.  100.(%
693 254 1,77¢ 9,73: 7,34z
16C 117 177 2717 27C
5,732 4,49: 6,391 6,79: 5,14
$427,92¢ $355,61: $368,95¢ $415,56¢ $381,40¢
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The following table illustrates the interest ragasitivity of the Company’s loan portfolio at Septger 30, 2008. Mortgages which
have adjustable or renegotiable interest ratestayan as maturing in the period during which thet@act reprices. The table reflects
management’s estimate of the effects of loan pneyeays or curtailments based on data from the Cogipéistorical experiences and other
third party sources. Balances related to discaetirbank operations have been eliminated for albge presented.

Real Estate (1) Consumer Commercial Busines:  Agricultural Operating Total
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
Due During Years Average Average Average Average Average
Ending September 30, Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate

(Dollars in Thousands)

2009 (2) $ 36,60¢ 5.7¢%$ 4,83¢ 4.38%%$16,47¢ 7.05%$ 20,27¢ 57%% 78,19t 5.9¢%
201¢-2011 39,591 6.01% 6,41 6.97% 13,641 5.858% 2,331 6.471% 61,98¢ 6.0%
2012 and following 232,85¢ 6.3(% 38,08( 5.04% 14,85( 6.55% 8,544 6.55% 294,33( 5.84%
Total $309,05¢ $49,32¢ $44,97: $ 31,15! $434,51¢

(1) Includes one-to-four family, multi family, conarcial and agricultural real estate loans.
(2) Includes demand loans, loans having no statetdnity and overdraft loans.
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One- to Four-Family Residential Mortgage Lendin@ne- to four-family residential mortgage loangarations are generated by the
Company’s marketing efforts, its present custome&edk-in customers and referrals. At September2808, the Company’s one- to four-
family residential mortgage loan portfolio total®86.4 million, or 13% of the Company’s total grésan portfolio. See “Originations,
Purchases, Sales and Servicing of Loans and Ma@tBagked Securities.At September 30, 2008, the average outstandingipghbalance ¢
a one- to four-family residential mortgage loan \approximately $71,000.

The Company offers fixed-rate and ARM loans forrbpérmanent structures and those under constru®iating the year ended
September 30, 2008, the Company originated $14libmof adjustable-rate loans and $38.1 milliorfigeéd-rate loans secured by one- to four-
family residential real estate. The Company’s dadeur-family residential mortgage originatiorre @&ecured primarily by properties located
in its primary market area and surrounding areas.

The Company originates one- to four-family resigi@mhortgage loans with terms up to a maximum of/8ars and with loan-tgalue
ratios up to 97% of the lesser of the appraisedevaf the security property or the contract prigbe Company generally requires that private
mortgage insurance be obtained in an amount seiffi¢cd reduce the Company’s exposure to at or béiev80% loan-to-value level.
Residential loans generally do not include prepayrpenalties.

The Company currently offers one, three, five, semed ten year ARM loans. These loans have a{iatglfor the stated period and,
thereafter, such loans adjust annually. Theseslganerally provide for an annual cap of up to @ [2&sis points and a lifetime cap of 600 b
points over the initial rate. As a consequencesirig an initial fixed-rate and caps, the interagts on these loans may not be as rate sensitive
as is the Company’s cost of funds. The CompanyR8/& do not permit negative amortization of print¢igad are not convertible into a fixed
rate loan. The Company’s delinquency experience on its ARM$olaas generally been similar to its experiencéxed rate residential loans.

Due to consumer demand, the Company also offeeslfiate mortgage loans with terms up to 30 yeaost @f which conform to
secondary markete., Fannie Mae, Ginnie Mae, and Freddie Mac standdrisrest rates charged on these fixed-rate lasmsompetitively
priced according to market conditions. The Compaunyently sells most, but not all, of its fixededoans with terms greater than 15 years.

In underwriting one- to four-family residential tesstate loans, the Company evaluates both thewerts ability to make monthly
payments and the value of the property securingpdnie Most properties securing real estate loaade by the Company are appraised by
independent fee appraisers approved by the BoaBireftors. The Company generally requires borrowers to otdaaiattorney’s title opinion
or title insurance, and fire and property insurafiiceluding flood insurance, if necessary) in aroamt not less than the amount of the loan.
Real estate loans originated by the Company gdpemhtain a “due on sale” clause allowing the Camypto declare the unpaid principal
balance due and payable upon the sale of the sepuoperty. The Company has not engaged in sithepresidential mortgage originations.

Commercial and Multi-Family Real Estate Lendinghe Company engages in commercial and multi-faneiél estate lending in its
primary market area and surrounding areas andirabgsed whole loan and participation interesteans from other financial institutions.
September 30, 2008, the Company’s commercial arii-family real estate loan portfolio totaled $222nillion, or 51% of the Company’s
total gross loan portfolio. The purchased loarglaan participation interests are generally setbeproperties located in the Midwest and
West. See “Originations, Purchases, Sales andcBegwf Loans and Mortgage-Backed Securities."e Qompany, in order to supplement its
loan
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portfolio and consistent with management'’s objexdito expand the Company’s commercial and multiffalman portfolio, purchased $39.8
million, $19.8 million, and $8.9 million, of sucbdns during fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respegtivAt September 30, 2008, $1.3 million, or
0.6%, of the Company’s commercial and multi-farméwl estate loans was non-performing. See “NofeRamg Assets, Other Loans of
Concern and Classified Assets.”

The Company’s commercial and multi-family real éstaan portfolio is secured primarily by apartmbuoiidings, office buildings,
and hotels. Commercial and multi-family real estatins generally have terms that do not excegeafs, have loan-to-value ratios of up to
80% of the appraised value of the security propentyl are typically secured by personal guararget®e borrowers. The Company has a
variety of rate adjustment features and other témits commercial and multi-family real estaterqgzortfolio. Commercial and multi-family
real estate loans provide for a margin over a nurobdifferent indices. In underwriting these Isathe Company currently analyzes the
financial condition of the borrower, the borroweti®dit history, and the reliability and prediciépiof the cash flow generated by the property
securing the loan. Appraisals on properties saguwommercial real estate loans originated by the@ny are performed by independent
appraisers.

At September 30, 2008, the Company'’s largest comialeand multi-family real estate loan was an $8ilion loan secured by assets
of the borrower. At September 30, 2008, the avwmgstanding principal balance of a commerciahatti-family real estate loan held by the
Company was approximately $714,000.

Multi-family and commercial real estate loans gafigmpresent a higher level of risk than loans sedby one- to four-family
residences. This greater risk is due to sevec#bfg, including the concentration of principakitimited number of loans and borrowers, the
effect of general economic conditions on incomedpoing properties and the increased difficulty wdlaating and monitoring these types of
loans. Furthermore, the repayment of loans sedwyedulti-family and commercial real estate is tgly dependent upon the successful
operation of the related real estate projecthdfd¢ash flow from the project is reduced (for exlEmib leases are not obtained or renewed, or a
bankruptcy court modifies a lease term, or a migoant is unable to fulfill its lease obligationt)e borrowers ability to repay the loan may
impaired. At September 30, 2008, MetaBank’s nddeszgial real estate loans totaled 329% of riskeblasapital.

Agricultural Lending. The Company originates loans to finance the mselof farmland, livestock, farm machinery and pongnt,
seed, fertilizer and other farm related produ&sSeptember 30, 2008, the Company had agriculteadlestate loans secured by farmland of
$30.0 million or 7% of the Company’s gross loantfmhio. At the same date, $31.2 million, or 7%tlbé Company’s gross loan portfolio,
consisted of secured loans related to agricultypalations.

Agricultural operating loans are originated at eithn adjustable or fixed rate of interest for aijp bne year term or, in the case of
livestock, upon sale. Most agricultural operatioans have terms of one year or less. Such loanéde for payments of principal and interest
at least annually or a lump sum payment upon ntgtiirihe original term is less than one year. h®aecured by agricultural machinery are
generally originated as fixed-rate loans with teohap to seven years. At September 30, 2008avtleeage outstanding principal balance of an
agricultural operating loan held by the Company $@3,000. At September 30, 2008, $121,000, or Qefdte Company’s agricultural
operating loans was non-performing.

Agricultural real estate loans are frequently ovéged with adjustable rates of interest. Generaligh loans provide for a fixed rate of
interest for the first one to five years, whichrthzalloon or adjust annually thereafter. In additisuch loans generally amortize over a period
of ten to 20 years.
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Adjustable-rate agricultural real estate loans jg@¥or a margin over the yields on the correspogdi.S. Treasury security or prime rate.
Fixed-rate agricultural real estate loans genetadlye terms up to five years. Agricultural reahtsloans are generally limited to 75% of the
value of the property securing the loan. At Septen80, 2008, $12,000, or 0.04%, of the Compangr&altural real estate portfolio was non-
performing.

Agricultural lending affords the Company the oppaity to earn yields higher than those obtainabl@we- to four-family residential
lending. Nevertheless, agricultural lending imvesh\a greater degree of risk than one- to four-famidential mortgage loans because of the
typically larger loan amount. In addition, payneah loans are dependent on the successful opemtimanagement of the farm property
securing the loan or for which an operating loauntiszed. The success of the loan may also bectdtl by many factors outside the control of
the farm borrower.

Weather presents one of the greatest risks asdnatlght, floods, or other conditions, can seveliatjt crop yields and thus impair
loan repayments and the value of the underlyintptehl. This risk can be reduced by the farméhaivariety of insurance coverages which
can help to ensure loan repayment. Governmentstipppgrams and the Company generally requireftiraters procure crop insurance
coverage. Grain and livestock prices also preseisk as prices may decline prior to sale reggltima failure to cover production costs. These
risks may be reduced by the farmer with the udetofes contracts or options to mitigate price .ridikhe Company frequently requires
borrowers to use future contracts or options taicedorice risk and help ensure loan repayment.thanaisk is the uncertainty of government
programs and other regulations. During periodswfcommodity prices, the income from governmemigpams can be a significant source of
cash to make loan payments and if these prograendisgontinued or significantly changed, cash fipablems or defaults could result.
Finally, many farms are dependent on a limited nemd$ key individuals upon whose injury or deathymasult in an inability to successfully
operate the farm.

Consumer Lending The Company offers a variety of secured consdagars, including home equity, home improvementoieuobile
boat and loans secured by savings deposits. lii@tdhe Company offers other secured and unsecconsumer loans. The Company
currently originates most of its consumer loangsprimary market area and surrounding areas. Adrapany originates consumer loans on
both a direct and indirect basis. At September2808, the Company’s consumer loan portfolio tat$49.3 million, or 11% of its total gross
loan portfolio. Of the consumer loan portfolioSeptember 30, 2008, $42.2 million were short- amermediate-term, fixed-rate loans, while
$7.1 million were adjustable-rate loans.

The largest component of the Company’s consumer poatfolio consists of home equity loans and linésredit. Substantially all of
the Company’s home equity loans and lines of craditsecured by second mortgages on principaleesas. The Company will lend amounts
which, together with all prior liens, typically mde up to 100% of the appraised value of the pitgpercuring the loan. Home equity loans
lines of credit generally have maximum terms oéfirears.

The Company primarily originates automobile loansadlirect basis, but also originates indirect endtbile loans on a very limited
basis. Direct loans are loans made when the Coyngetands credit directly to the borrower, as oggla® indirect loans, which are made
when the Company purchases loan contracts, ofterdetcount, from automobile dealers which haverdeéd credit to their customers. The
Company’s automobile loans typically are originadédixed interest rates with terms up to 60 moritnsiew and used vehicles. Loans
secured by automobiles are generally originatedifioio 80% of the N.A.D.A. book value of the autdrite securing the loan.
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Consumer loan terms vary according to the typevaihae of collateral, length of contract and creditthiness of the borrower. The
underwriting standards employed by the Compangdmsumer loans include an application, a deteriioinatf the applicant’s payment history
on other debts and an assessment of ability to enégting obligations and payments on the propdsaa. Although creditworthiness of the
applicant is a primary consideration, the undemgiprocess also includes a comparison of the wafldlee security, if any, in relation to the
proposed loan amount.

Consumer loans may entail greater credit risk thanesidential mortgage loans, particularly in ¢hse of consumer loans which are
unsecured or are secured by rapidly depreciabtgassich as automobiles or recreational equipmarguch cases, any repossessed collateral
for a defaulted consumer loan may not provide ayadte source of repayment of the outstandingbatamce as a result of the greater
likelihood of damage, loss or depreciation. Iniidd, consumer loan collections are dependenterborrowers continuing financial stabilit
and thus are more likely to be affected by advpessonal circumstances. Furthermore, the appicati various federal and state laws,
including bankruptcy and insolvency laws, may lithié amount which can be recovered on such loAhSeptember 30, 2008, $1,000, or 0%,
of the Company’s consumer loan portfolio was norfgrening.

Commercial Business LendinglThe Company also originates commercial businemss. Most of the Company’s commercial
business loans have been extended to financedadalegional businesses and include short-ternslt@finance machinery and equipment
purchases, inventory and accounts receivable. Gouiat loans also involve the extension of revajvamedit for a combination of equipment
acquisitions and working capital in expanding conmes. At September 30, 2008, $45.0 million, or 10Rte Company'’s total gross loan
portfolio, was comprised of commercial businessitoa

The maximum term for loans extended on machinedyejuipment is based on the projected useful fifgioh machinery and
equipment. Generally, the maximum term on non-gage lines of credit is one year. The loan-to-@ahtio on such loans and lines of credit
generally may not exceed 80% of the value of thiatewal securing the loan. The Company’s comna¢imiisiness lending policy includes
credit file documentation and analysis of the baeds character, capacity to repay the loan, thegjadcy of the borrower’s capital and
collateral as well as an evaluation of conditiofisaing the borrower. Analysis of the borrowepast, present and future cash flows is also an
important aspect of the Company'’s current creditlysis. Nonetheless, such loans are believedrty bagher credit risk than more traditional
investments.

The largest commercial business loan outstandiisgeptember 30, 2008 was a $3.0 million loan sechyeaksets of the borrower.
The next largest commercial business loan outstgrali September 30, 2008 was a $2.4 million loanreel by assets of the borrower. At
September 30, 2008, the average outstanding pahicgdance of a commercial business loan held eyCthmpany was approximately
$157,000.

Unlike residential mortgage loans, which generaty made on the basis of the borrower’s abilitpntike repayment from his or her
employment and other income and which are securedd property whose value tends to be more easitgrtainable, commercial business
loans typically are made on the basis of the boertsability to make repayment from the cash fldwie borrowers business. As a result, 1
availability of funds for the repayment of commaidiusiness loans may be substantially dependetiteosuccess of the business itself (wh
in turn, is likely to be dependent upon the genecalnomic environment). The Company’s commeraigifess loans are usually, but not
always, secured by business assets and persomahtess. However, the collateral securing thedoaay depreciate over time, may be
difficult to appraise and may fluctuate in valueséd on the success of the business.
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At September 30, 2008, $538,000, or 1.2%, of the@any’s commercial business loan portfolio was performing.
Originations, Purchases, Sales and Servicing of Loa and Mortgage-Backed Securities

Loans are generally originated by the Company efdoan officers. Loan applications are takerlgrocessed in the branches and
the main office of the Company. While the Companginates both adjustable-rate and fixed-rate do&a ability to originate loans is
dependent upon the relative customer demand foslaaits market. Demand is affected by the irgerate and economic environment.

The Company, from time to time, sells whole loand ban participations, generally without recourg¢.September 30, 2008, there
were no loans outstanding sold with recourse. Wbans are sold, the Company sometimes retainsepmnsibility for collecting and
remitting loan payments, making certain that retdie tax payments are made on behalf of borrowadsptherwise servicing the loans. The
servicing fee is recognized as income over thedlifthe loans. The Company services loans thatginated and sold totaling $28.7 million at
September 30, 2008, of which $18.7 million weralgol Fannie Mae and $10.0 million were sold to athe

In periods of economic uncertainty, the Companyiéits to originate large dollar volumes of loangynbe substantially reduced or
restricted, with a resultant decrease in related lorigination fees, other fee income and operaargings. In addition, the Company’s ability
to sell loans may substantially decrease as patdniyers (principally government agencies) redhe& purchasing activities.

The following table shows the loan originationsc{uding undisbursed portions of loans in procgssichases and advances on
purchased loans, and repayment activities of theg@my for the periods indicated. Balances reladetiscontinued bank operations have k
eliminated for all periods presented.
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Originations by Type
Adjustable Rate

Real Estat- 1-4 Family
-Commercial and Mul-Family
-Agricultural Real Estat

Non-Real Estat- Consume
-Commercial Busines
-Agricultural Operating

Total Adjustable Rat

Fixed Rate

Real Estate- 1-4 Family
-Commercial and Mul-Family
-Agricultural Real Estat

Non-Real Estat- Consume
-Commercial Busines
-Agricultural Operating

Total Fixed-Rate

Total Loans Originate

Purchases
Real Estat«- 1-4 Family
-Commercial and Mul-Family
- Agricultural Real Estat
Non-Real Estat- Commercial Busines
- Agricultural Operating
Total Loans
Total Mortgag-Backed Securitie
Total Purchased

Sales and Repaymen
Sales:
Real Estat«- 1-4 Family
Real Estat- Commercial and Mul-Family
Non-Real Estat- Consume
Total Loans
Mortgage-Backed Securitie
Total Sales

Repayments
Loan Principal Repaymen
Mortgage-Backed Securities Repayme
Total Principal Repayments
Total Reduction:

Increase (decrease) in other items,
Net Increase (Decrease)
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September 30,
2008 2007 2006
(Dollars in Thousands)
14,06¢ $ 585( $ 5,84¢
34,89 18,87¢ 33,30(
2,05¢ 551 56E&
183,64 1,28: 1,48(
60,50z 59,79¢ 83,83!
27,67¢ 31,18¢ 32,418
322,83¢ 117,54¢ 157,43t
38,09( 50,11« 29,20¢
107,29¢ 55,51¢ 36,94
8,97¢ 3,59¢ 7,50(C
180,21( 3,22¢ 2,29z
29,64 22,15 58,93(
39,14 22,32( 14,24¢
403,36¢ 156,92¢ 149,11¢
726,20 274,47¢ 306,55¢
1,07¢ 15€ 59¢
39,83( 19,82¢ 8,92
21F 34z —
7,561 22,32: 50,25’
6,60¢ 40C (851)
55,29( 43,04 58,92¢
102,79( 11,68: —
158,08( 54,72 58,92¢
6,152 10,69¢ 1,731
2,29¢ 3,587 —
257,11¢ — —
265,56° 14,28: 1,731
16,99( — —
282,55] 14,28: 1,731
148,81 333,28 428,19(
34,41 26,89: 37,14+
183,23: 360,17¢ 465,33¢
465,78¢ 374,45¢ 467,07.
(4,682) 26,55¢ 16,20¢
131,25¢ $ (32,979 $ (87,11))
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At September 30, 2008, approximately $38.6 million8.9%, of the Company’s gross loan portfoliosisted of purchased loans.
The Company believes that purchasing loans outsidie market area assists the Company in diversifits portfolio and may lessen the
adverse affects on the Company’s business or apesathich could result in the event of a downtarmeakening of the local economy in
which the Company conducts its primary operatiodswever, additional risks are associated with pasing loans outside of the Company’s
market area, including the lack of knowledge ofltieal market and difficulty in monitoring and iresging the property securing the loans.

At September 30, 2008, the Company’s purchased la@ne secured by properties located, as a pegepfaotal loans, as follows:
4% in lowa, 2% in Washington, 1% each in Colordéorida, and Oregon, and the remaining 1% in elextéer states.

Non-Performing Assets, Other Loans of Concern, an@lassified Assets

When a borrower fails to make a required paymerreahestate secured loans and consumer loanswiéhiays after the payment is
due, the Company generally initiates collectioncpaures by mailing a delinquency notice. The gustas contacted again, by written notice
or telephone, before the payment is 30 days pastdd again before 60 days past due. In most,c@dsi@squencies are cured promptly;
however, if a loan has been delinquent for more 8tadays, satisfactory payment arrangements neuatibered to or the Company will
initiate foreclosure or repossession.

Generally, when a loan becomes delinquent 90 daysooe or when the collection of principal or irgst becomes doubtful, the
Company will place the loan on a non-accrual status as a result, previously accrued interestmgon the loan is taken out of current
income. The loan will remain on a non-accrualustatntil the loan becomes current.

The following table sets forth the Company’s loatirtquencies by type, before allowance for loarséss by amount and by
percentage of type at September 30, 2008.

Loans Delinquent For:

30-59 Days 60-89 Days 90 Days and Over
Percent Percent Percent
of of of
42192 Amount Category Number Amount Category Number Amount Category
(Dollars in Thousands)
Real Estate

1-4 Family —%$ — — 1% 16 0% 3% 94z 13%
Commercial & Mult-Family 1 1,81 46% 1 3,78t 60% 2 1,302 17%
Agricultural Real Estat — — — 1 87 1% 1 12 0%
Consume 4 27 1% — — — 1 1 0%
Agricultural Operating — — — — — — 1 121 2%
Commercial Busines 4 2,06z 53% 2 2,38¢ 38% 6 5,11¢ 68%
Total 9 $ 3,901 10C% 5% 6,272 10C% 14 $ 7,49¢ 100%

Delinquencies 90 days and over constituted 1.7%taf gross loans and 1.0% of total assets.
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The table below sets forth the amounts and categoifinon-performing assets in the Company’s laatfgio. Loans, with some
exceptions, are typically placed on non-accrudlstahen the loan becomes 90 days or more delinguewhen the collection of principal
and/or interest becomes doubtful. For all yeaesg@nted, the Company’s troubled debt restructuimbech involved forgiving a portion of
interest or principal on any loans or making loaha rate materially less than that of market jades included in the table and were perforn
as agreed. Balances related to discontinued bastations have been eliminated for all periodsepres].

At September 30,
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in Thousands)

Non-Accruing Loans

1-4 Family $ 94z $ 24 % 22 $ — $ —
Commercial & Multi Family 1,302 — — — 39¢
Agricultural Real Estat 12 13 — — —
Consume| 1 5 — 1 59
Agricultural Operatinc — — 182 21¢ 254
Commercial Busines 53¢ 1,861 5,07¢ 2,20¢ —

Total 2,79¢ 2,12¢ 5,28( 2,420 71z

Accruing Loans Delinquen
90 Days or More

Total 4,60( — — — —
Restructured Loan:
Consume| — — — — —
Agricultural Operating 121 15C — 7 9
Commercial Busines — 15 — — 8
Total 121 16E — 7 17
Foreclosed Asset
1-4 Family — — 15 — —
Commercial & Multi Family — 22¢ 35 1,841 —
Consume| — 24 — — —
Commercial Busines — 65 — 2,86°¢ —
Total — 31¢ 50 4,70¢ —
Less: Allowance for Losse — — — — —
Total Foreclosed Assets, Net — 31€ 50 4,70¢ —
Total Non-Performing Assets $ 7,61€ $ 2,611 $ 5330 $ 7,13¢ $ 72¢
Total as a Percentage of Total Ass 0.9<% 0.36% 0.72% 0.92% 0.0%%

For the year ended September 30, 2008, gross shiesmme which would have been recorded had theagoruing loans been curre
in accordance with their original terms amountedpproximately $622,000, of which none was inclusheititerest income.

Non-Accruing Loans At September 30, 2008, the Company had $2.8amilh non-accruing loans, which constituted 0.6Rthe
Company'’s gross loan portfolio.

17




Table of Contents

Accruing Loans Delinquent 90 Days or Morét September 30, 2008, the Company had $4.6anill accruing loans delinquent 90
days or more, which constituted 1.1% of the Comfsagsoss loan portfolio.

Classified Assets.Federal regulations provide for the classificatid loans and other assets such as debt and esgaityities
considered by the Office of Thrift Supervision (f@TS”) to be of lesser quality as “substandardidtibtful” or “loss.” An asset is considered
“substandard” if it is inadequately protected by tlurrent net worth and paying capacity of thegaslior of the collateral pledged, if any.
“Substandard” assets include those characterizetlebydistinct possibility” that the savings assdimin will sustain “some loss” if the
deficiencies are not corrected. Assets classdettoubtful” have all of the weaknesses inherarthose classified “substandard,” with the
added characteristic that the weaknesses presduet ftallection or liquidation in full,” on the basbf currently existing facts, conditions, and
values, “highly questionable and improbable.” Ass#assified as “loss” are those considered “dectible” and of such minimal value that
their continuance as assets without the establishofe specific loss reserve is not warranted.

When assets are classified as either substandaalibtful, MetaBank may establish general allowarfoe loan losses in an amount
deemed prudent by management. General allowaapessent loss allowances which have been estatblisirecognize the inherent risk
associated with lending activities, but which, kelspecific allowances, have not been allocatgzhtticular problem assets. When assets are
classified as “loss,” MetaBank is required eitheestablish a specific allowance for losses equab0% of that portion of the asset so
classified or to charge-off such amount. MetaBadkgerminations as to the classification of tregsets and the amount of their valuation
allowances are subject to review by their reguiatarthorities, who may order the establishmentidfittonal general or specific loss
allowances.

On the basis of management’s review of its asaéSeptember 30, 2008, the Company had classifiethbof $15.8 million of its
assets as substandard, $88,000 as doubtful andasdoss. There were no real estate owned or @ilfeslosed assets at September 30, 2008.

Allowance for Loan LossesThe allowance for loan losses is establishedutjina provision for loan losses based on managésnent
evaluation of the risk inherent in its loan poriohnd changes in the nature and volume of its &divity, including those loans which are
being specifically monitored by management. Suaiuation, which includes a review of loans for efnfull collectibility may not be
reasonably assured, considers, among other mdttergstimated fair value of the underlying collateeconomic conditions, historical loan
loss experience and other factors that warranfgrdtion in providing for an adequate loan lossafoce.

Management closely monitors economic developmentts tegionally and nationwide, and considers tliasers when assessing the
adequacy of its allowance for loan losses. WhieeGompany has no direct exposure to sub-prime Joaasagement is concerned that
developments over the past 18 months in the subepmortgage market may have a ripple effect omeesial real estate prices. In addition,
the current recessionary environment may straitiitaacial condition of some borrowers. Managentbatefore believes that future losses in
the residential portfolio may be somewhat highanthistorical experience. Over the past six ydass, rates in the commercial and multi-
family real estate market have remained modensli@nagement recognizes that low charge-off rates inepast several years reflect the
formerly strong economic environment and are ndiciative of likely losses over a full business eyclThis observation, as well as the
aforementioned concerns regarding the economicdglam, has led management to the conclusion thatefubsses in this portfolio may be
somewhat higher than recent historical experieexeluding loan losses related to fraud by borrowés the other hand, current trends in
agricultural markets remain reasonable. Higherroouity prices as well as
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average to above average yields created positiveoseic conditions for most farmers in our market2008. Nonetheless, management still
expects that future losses in this portfolio, whietve been very low, could be higher than recestbtical experience. Management believes
that the aforementioned recession may also nedyatimgact consumers’ repayment capacities. Adddily, a sizable portion of the
Company’s consumer loan portfolio is secured bidesdial real estate, as discussed above, whiah &rea to be closely monitored by
management in view of its stated concerns.

Management believes that, based on a detailedwefi¢he loan portfolio, historic loan losses, @mnteconomic conditions, the size
the loan portfolio, and other factors, the curiemel of the allowance for loan losses at Septer80e2008 reflects an adequate allowance
against probable losses from the loan portfolithough the Company maintains its allowance fardosses at a level that it considers to be
adequate, investors and others are cautionedhbis tan be no assurance that future losses wilixueed estimated amounts, or that
additional provisions for loan losses will not legjuired in future periods. In addition, the Compamletermination of the allowance for loan
losses is subject to review by its regulatory agesjavhich can require the establishment of aduitigeneral or specific allowances.

Real estate properties acquired through foreclosreeecorded at the lower of cost or fair valifdair value at the date of foreclosure
is lower than the balance of the related loandifference will be charged#f to the allowance for loan losses at the timérafisfer. Valuatior
are periodically updated by management and, if’hee declines, a specific provision for losseswoch property is established by a charge to
operations.
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The following table sets forth an analysis of trt@®any’s allowance for loan losses.

Balance at Beginning of Peri¢

Charge Offs
1-4 Family
Agricultural Operating
Commercial & Multi Family
Consume
Commercial Busines
Total Charge Offs
Recoveries
1-4 Family
Consume!
Commercial Busines
Commercial & Multi Family
Agricultural Operating
Total Recoveries

Net Charge Offs (Recoverie
Additions Charged to Operatio
Balance at End of Period

Ratio of Net Charge Offs During the Period to A
Loans Outstanding During the Peri

Ratio of Net Charge Offs During the Period to I-
Performing Asset

September 30,
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in Thousands)
4,49 $ 6,391 $ 6,79: $ 514, % 4,66¢
) — — — ()
— (1,762 — (141) —
©) (50) (6) (13 19
(1,547) (3,809) (1,036 (3,057 —
(1,549 (5,615) (1,047) (3,21) (26)
7 — — — 2
12 3 5 33 25
38 54¢ 324 — 2
— — — 114 —
16 — — — —
73 54¢ 32¢ 147 29
(1,476 (5,066) (713) (3,069 3
2,71% 3,16¢ 311 4,71% 475
573: § 4,49 $ 6,391 $ 6,797 $ 5,14<
0.42% 1.42% 0.1&% 0.75% 0.0(%
19.6%% 194.09% 13.3¢% 42.9/% -0.41%

For more information on the Provision for Loan Lesssee “Management’s Discussion and Analysisrdrigial Condition and

Results of Operations,” which is included in Iterofthis Annual Report on Form 10-K/A.
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The distribution of the Company’s allowance fordes on loans at the dates indicated is summarizéallaws:

At September 30,

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Percent of Percent of Percent of Percent of
Loans in Loans in Percent of Loans in Loans in
Each Each Loans in Each Each
Category Category Each Category Category
of Total of Total Category of of Total of Total
Amount Loans Amount Loans Amount Total Loans Amount Loans Amount Loans

(Dollars in Thousands)

One-to-Four Family $ 98 12.9¢% $ 111 125% $ 12C 15.41% $ 93 15.7¢% $ 88 18.3(%
Commercial & Multi Family

Real Estatt 3,23¢ 51.2% 1,24¢ 47.1% 1,402 42.1% 2,24% 46.5% 2,761 47.9%
Agricultural Real Estat 94 6.91% 70 4.6(% 101 3.7% 13C 2.95% 16€ 2.62%
Consume 207 11.36% 153 10.2(% 11€ 7.91% 41€ 7.05% 373 7.4%
Agricultural Operating 1,64t 7.1&% 178 9.1%% 20% 7.6(% 454 5.34% 46€ 4.82%
Commercial Busines 148 10.3%% 2,404 16.2% 4,14C 23.1% 3,28¢ 22.31% 1,25¢ 18.8%
Unallocated 304 — 331 — 30€ — 16< — 26 —

Total $ 5,73: 100.0% $  4,49¢ 100.0% $ 6,391 100.0% $ 6,79C 100.0% $ 5,14¢ 100.0(%

Investment Activities

General. The investment policy of the Company generallpigiwvest funds among various categories of imdests and maturities
based upon the Company’s need for liquidity, to@ahthe proper balance between its desire to nieimisk and maximize yield, to provide
collateral for borrowings, and to fulfill the Commpgs asset/liability management policies. The Camps investment and mortgage-backed
securities portfolios are managed in accordance avivritten investment policy adopted by the Baafr@irectors, which is implemented by
members of the Company’s Investment Committee. bmpany is aware that, due to higher levels oteatration risk, the low- and no-cost
checking deposits generated through MPS may cagreater degree of liquidity risk than traditioeahsumer checking deposits. As a result,
the Company closely monitors balances in theseuatspand maintains a portfolio of highly liquidsass to fund potential deposit outflows.
To date, the Company has not experienced any imatelior unusual outflows related to MPS, thouglagsurance can be given that this will
continue to be the case.

As of September 30, 2008, the Company’s entirestment and mortgage-backed securities portfoliog whkassified as available for
sale. For additional information regarding the @amy’s investment and mortgage-backed securitietfofios, see Notes 1 and 4 to thédtes
to Consolidated Financial Statements,” which iduded in Part I, Item 8 “Financial Statements &upplementary Data” of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K/A.

As of September 30, 2008, investment and mortgagkdu securities with fair values of approxima®®2.1 million were pledged as
collateral for MetaBank’s FHLB advances and reveepairchase agreements. For additional informatgarding the Company’s
collateralization of borrowings, see Notes 9 anddlthe “Notes to Consolidated Financial Staterfievhjch is included in Part Il, Item 8 “
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” efAlinual Report on Form 10-K/A.

Investment Securitieslt is the Company’s general policy to purchaseegiment securities which are U.S. Government giexziand
federal agency obligations, state and local govemtrobligations, commercial paper, corporate debtisties and overnight federal funds.
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The following table sets forth the carrying valddree Company’s investment security portfolio, extthg mortgage-backed securities
and other equity securities, at the dates indicaBalances related to discontinued bank operatiane been eliminated for all periods
presented.

At September 30,
2008 2007 2006
(Dollars in Thousands)

Investment Securitie

Trust Preferred & Corporate Securities $ 18,17 $ 24,41(C $ 26,27¢
Municipal Bonds 1,53 1,55(C 95
Other — — 10¢
Subtotal 19,71: 25,96( 26,48:
FHLB Stock 8,092 4,01t 5,05¢
Total Investment Securities and FHLB Stock $ 27,80 $ 29,97 $ 31,53¢

Other Intere-Earning Assets

Interest bearing deposits in other financial ingitins and Federal Funds
Sold (2) $ 518t $ 85,11( $ 100,24:

(1) Within the trust preferred securities presentedvabthere are no securities from individual issulked exceed 10% of the Company’s
total equity. The name and the aggregate markeeaf securities of each individual issuer as ept®&mber 30, 2008 are as follows:
Key Corp Capital I, $3.3 million; Bank Boston CabiTrust IV, $4.1 million; BankAmerica Capital 11$3.7 million; PNC Capital
Trust, $4.2 million; Huntington Capital Trust [I18 million.

(2) The Company at times maintains balances in exdaasured limits at various financial institutiomeluding the Federal Home Loan
Bank of Des Moines, the Federal Reserve Bank, #met @rivate institutions. At September 30, 2008, Company had no interest
bearing deposits held at the Federal Home Loan Bafles Moines (“FHLB”). At September 30, 2008 tGiompany had $5.2
million of federal funds sold at a private institut. The Company does not believe this deposiiese significant risk of loss, but
cannot provide assurances that no loss could dgicthis institution were to become insolvent.
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The composition and maturities of the Company’estinent securities portfolio, excluding equity séms, FHLB stock and
mortgage-backed securities, are indicated in theviing table.

September 30, 2008

After 1 After 5
Year Years
1 Year or Through 5 Through After 10 Total Investment
Less Years 10 Years Years Securities
Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying Amortized Fair
Value Value Value Value Cost Value

(Dollars in Thousands)

Trust Preferred & Corporate Securit  $ — 3 — $ — 3 18,17 $ 25,79 $ 18,17
Municipal Bonds — 65€ 87¢ — 1,563¢ 1,637
Total Investment Securitie $ — 3 65¢ $ 87¢ $ 18,17: $ 27,32¢ $ 19,71;
Weighted Average Yield (1 0.0(% 3.96% 3.9% 3.31% 3.7%% 3.85%

(1) Yields on tax-exempt obligations have not beemputed on a tax-equivalent basis.

Mortgage-Backed SecuritiesThe Company’s mortgage-backed and related sexsuportfolio consists primarily of securities issu
under government-sponsored agency programs, imgutiose of Ginnie Mae, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mde Company historically has
held Collateralized Mortgage Obligations (“CMOsd} well as a limited amount of privately issued tg@age pass-through certificates. The
Ginnie Mae, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac certificatesmodified pass-through mortgaogcked securities that represent undivided inteiie
underlying pools of fixed-rate, or certain typesadfustable-rate, predominantly single-family awda lesser extent, multi-family residential
mortgages issued by these government-sponsordigzentrannie Mae and Freddie Mac generally prothéecertificate holder a guarantee of
timely payments of interest, whether or not coklelct Ginnie Mae’s guarantee to the holder is tinpalyments of principal and interest, backed
by the full faith and credit of the U.S. GovernmeRtrivately issued mortgage pass-through certécgenerally provide no guarantee as to
timely payment of interest or principal, and retiaris placed on the creditworthiness of the issubich the Company monitors on a regular
basis.

At September 30, 2008, the Company had mortgagkelagecurities with a carrying value of $176.6 imil| representing 96% of the
total portfolio, which had fixed rates of inter@std $7.5 million, representing 4% of the total fudit, which had adjustable rates of interest.

Mortgage-backed securities generally increase tiadity of the Company’s assets by virtue of theinasce or guarantees that back
them, are more liquid than individual mortgage ®and may be used to collateralize borrowings loerodbligations of the Company. At
September 30, 2008, $116.1 million or 63% of thenfany’s mortgage-backed securities were pledgeddare various obligations of the
Company.

While mortgage-backed securities carry a reduceditrisk as compared to whole loans, such seearigmain subject to the risk that
a fluctuating interest rate environment, along waither factors such as the geographic distributicthe underlying mortgage loans, may alter
the prepayment rate of such mortgage loans anéfestt Both the prepayment speed, and value, of sachbrities. The prepayment risk
associated with mortgage-backed securities is mo@dtperiodically, and prepayment
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rate assumptions adjusted as appropriate to uplta@ompany’s mortgage-backed securities accouatidgasset/liability reports.

The following table sets forth the carrying valdetee Company’s mortgage-backed securities at #tesdndicated. Balances related
to discontinued bank operations have been elimihiateall periods presented.

At September 30,
2008 2007 2006
(Dollars in Thousands)

CMO $ 4 % 4 % 6
Freddie Mac 59,47¢ 73,74¢ 88,48t¢
Fannie Mae 124,57 58,92! 56,45
Privately Issued Mortgages P-Through Certificate 63 67 73

Total $ 184,120 $ 132,74: $ 145,02

The following table sets forth the contractual misies of the Company’s mortgage-backed securéteSeptember 30, 2008. Not
considered in the preparation of the table belothiéseffect of prepayments, periodic principal sgpants and the adjustable-rate nature of
these instruments.

September 30, 2008

After 1 After 5
Year Years
Through 5 Through 10 After 10 Total Investment
1 Year or Less Years Years Years Securities
Carrying Carrying Carrying Amortized
Carrying Value Value Value Value Cost Fair Value

(Dollars in Thousands)

CMO $ — 3 — 3 — 3 4 $ 4 $ 4
Freddie Mac — 39,03: 7,69: 12,75¢ 59,55¢ 59,47¢
Fannie Mage 1 37,86¢ 13,11¢ 73,59( 124,89! 124,57
Privately Issued Mortgages Pass-
Through Certificate — — 63 — 58 63
Total Investment Securities $ 1 $ 76,90C $ 20,87: $ 86,34¢ $ 184,51' $ 184,12:
Weighted Average Yiel 4.55% 4.15% 4.6% 4.72% 4.58% 4.5&%

At September 30, 2008, the contractual maturit#&®% of all of the Company’s mortgage-backed sgearwas in excess of ten
years. The actual maturity of a mortg-backed security is typically less than its stateaturity due to scheduled principal payments and
prepayments of the underlying mortgages. Prepatgrbat are different than anticipated will affée yield to maturity. The yield is based
upon the interest income and the amortization gfggemium or discount related to the mortgage-bddeeurity. In accordance with
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP)emiums and discounts are amortized over the etdriaves of the loans, which
decrease and increase interest income, respectiVély prepayment assumptions used to determinantioetization period for premiums and
discounts can significantly affect the yield of thertgage-backed security, and these assumptiengeewed periodically to reflect actual
prepayments. Although prepayments of underlyingtgages depend on many factors, including the tfpeortgages, the coupon rate, the
of mortgages, the geographical location of the dyitey real estate collateralizing the mortgaged general levels of market interest rates, the
difference between the interest rates on the uyidgrmortgages and the prevailing mortgage intenasts generally is the most significant
determinant of the rate of prepayments. Duringogksrof falling mortgage interest rates, if the pon rate of the underlying mortgages exct
the prevailing market interest rates offered fortgage loans, refinancing generally increases andlerates the prepayment of the underlying
mortgages and the related security.
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Under such circumstances, the Company may be gubjesinvestment risk because, to the extenttttmCompany’s mortgage-backed
securities amortize or prepay faster than antieghathe Company may not be able to reinvest theegas of such repayments and prepayment:
at a comparable rate.

Sources of Funds

General. The Company'’s sources of funds are depositsptngs, amortization and repayment of loan prinkijpeerest earned on
or maturation of investment securities and shamtmvestments, and funds provided from operations.

Borrowings, including Federal Home Loan Bank (“FH)L.Bf Des Moines advances and repurchase agreemmeaisbe used at times
to compensate for seasonal reductions in depasdsposit inflows at less than projected levelsy i@ used on a longer-term basis to support
expanded lending activities, and may also be usedatch the funding of a corresponding asset.

Deposits. The Company offers a variety of deposit accobatsng a wide range of interest rates and terniee Qompany'’s deposits
consist of passbook and statement savings acconat®ey market savings accounts, NOW and regularkig accounts, deposits related to
prepaid cards that are primarily categorized askihg accounts, and certificate accounts currenathging in terms from fourteen days to 60
months. The Company solicits deposits from itenarly market area and does not currently use brakesbtain deposits. The Company relies
primarily on competitive pricing policies, adveitig and high-quality customer service to attract estain these deposits. The Company has
no brokered deposits.

The flow of deposits is influenced significantly ggneral economic conditions, changes in money ebankd prevailing interest rates,
and competition.

The variety of deposit accounts offered by the Canypand the expanding activities of MPS, has albit to be competitive in
obtaining funds and to respond with flexibility¢banges in consumer demand. The Company enddavor@nage the pricing of its deposits
in keeping with its asset/liability management anafitability objectives. Based on its experienites Company believes that its passbook
savings, money market savings accounts, NOW andaeghecking accounts are relatively stable sauodeleposits. However, the ability of
the Company to attract and maintain certificatedegfosit and the rates paid on these depositsdsasdnd will continue to be significantly
affected by market conditions.

$331.0 million of the Company’s deposit portfolgattributable to MPS. The majority of these dépagpresent un-spent funds on
prepaid debit cards and other stored value prod®&380.2 million are included with non-interesetiag checking accounts and $800,000 are
included with money market accounts on the Compma@ynsolidated Statement of Financial Conditiomn&ally, these deposits do not earn
interest. MPS originates debit card programs thincoutside sales agents and other financial inigtits. As such, these deposits carry a
somewhat higher degree of liquidity risk than ttiaial consumer products. If a major client ordcarogram were to leave the Bank, deposit
outflows would be more significant than if the bamére to lose a more traditional customer. The gamy takes this additional risk into
account when planning its investment and liquiditategies. The increase in deposits arising fiP$ has also allowed MetaBank to reduce
its reliance on higher costing certificates of dgfsoand public funds.
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The following table sets forth the savings flowsret Company during the periods indicated. Balamekated to discontinued bank

operations have been eliminated for all periodseme=d.

September 30,
2008 2007 2006
(Dollars in Thousands)

Opening Balanc $ 522,97¢ $ 538,16¢ $ 510,45¢
Deposits 42,199,49 21,679,95 11,675,00
Withdrawals (42,172,56) (21,663,21) (11,654,80)
Sale of Deposi (9,319 (39,179 —
Interest Credited 5,38t 7,23¢ 7,507
Ending Balance $ 545,97. $ 522,97¢ $ 538,16¢
Net Increase (Decrease) $ 22,99: $ (15,19) $ 27,71(
Percent Increase (Decrea 4.4(% -2.82% 5.42%

The following table sets forth the dollar amounsafings deposits in the various types of depasiggams offered by the Company

for the periods indicated. Balances related toatiinued bank operations have been eliminatedlfgeriods presented.

September 30,
2008 2007
Percent of Percent of Percent of
Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total
(Dollars in Thousands)
Transactions and Savings Depos
Non-Interest Bearing Demand Accoul $ 355,02 65.09% $ 260,09¢ 49.7% $ 186,13! 34.5%
Interest Bearing Demand Accoul 15,02¢ 2.7¢ 14,60( 2.7¢ 24,52« 4.5¢
Passbook Savings Accoul 9,394 1.72 10,26¢ 1.9¢ 28,17¢ 5.24
Money Market Accounts 43,03¢ 7.8¢ 81,29: 15.5¢ 98,69’ 18.3¢
Total Non-Certificate 422,48 77.3¢ 366,25! 70.0: 337,53« 62.72
Certificates:
Variable 77¢ 0.1< 1,08¢ 0.21 1,501 0.2¢
0.00- 1.99% 7,03¢ 1.2¢ 18 0.0C 1,37( 0.0
2.00- 3.99% 57,971 10.62 24,69¢ 4.7z 62,78t¢ 11.67
4.00- 5.99% 57,68¢ 10.57 130,91 25.0¢ 134,96t 25.0¢
6.00 - 7.99% 10 0.0C 10 0.0C 10 0.0C
Total Certificates 123,49: 22.6: 156,72: 29.97 200,63! 37.2¢
Total Deposits $ 545,97. 100.0(% $ 522,97¢ 100.0(% $ 538,16! 100.0(%
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The following table shows rate and maturity infotioa for the Company'’s certificates of deposit &8eptember 30, 2008.

Certificate accounts maturing Percent of
in gquarter ending: Variable 0.0C- 1.99% 2.0C- 3.99% 4.0C- 5.99% 6.0C- 7.99% Total Total
(Dollars in Thousands)

December 31, 200 $ 77 $ 3,744 & 12,14; $ 1167. $ — $ 27,63« 22.{%
March 31, 200¢ 27¢ 1,39¢ 8,63¢ 5,55¢ — 15,86¢ 12.¢
June 30, 200 122 1,46( 10,33¢ 8,794 — 20,71t 16.€
September 30, 20C 99 16¢€ 13,87 3,131 — 17,26 14.C
December 31, 200 12C 12¢€ 1,20¢ 5,05( — 6,50¢ 52
March 31, 201( 82 27 1,72z 10,52¢ — 12,35¢ 10.C
June 30, 201 — 102 1,91¢ 2,24¢ — 4,265 3L
September 30, 201 — 16 1,51¢ 1,66¢ — 3,19¢ 2.€
December 31, 201 — — 3,08 984 — 4,071 3:3
March 31, 201: — — 43z 97: — 1,40¢ 1.1
June 30, 201 — — 51c 68¢ — 1,19¢ 1.C
September 30, 201 — — 37¢ 1,101 10 1,48¢ 1.2

Thereafter — — 2,214 5,30¢ — 7,52( 6.1
Total $ 77¢  $ 703 $ 5797 $ 5768 $ 10 $ 123,49: 100.(%
Percent of total 0.6% 5.7% 46.5% 46.7% 0.0% 100.(%

The following table indicates the amount of the @amy’s certificates of deposit and other deposittirhe remaining until maturity
as of September 30, 2008.

Maturity
3 Months or Less After 3 to 6 Months After 6 to 12 Months After 12 Months Total
(Dollars in Thousands)

Certificates of deposit less than

$100,00C $ 21,17F % 13,10C $ 29,71« % 32,787 % 96,77¢
Certificates of deposit of $100,0

or more 6,45¢ 2,76¢ 8,26¢ 9,22( $ 26,71¢
Total certificates of depos $ 27,63 $ 15,86¢ $ 37,98: $ 42,000 $ 123,49:

At September 30, 2008, there were $1.0 millionepakits from governmental and other public entitietuded in certificates of
deposit.

Borrowings. Although deposits are the Company’s primary sewfcfunds, the Company’s policy has been to @tibnrrowings
when they are a less costly source of funds, canvasted at a positive interest rate spread, amwthe Company desires additional capacity to
fund loan demand.

The Company’s borrowings historically have consigteémarily of advances from the FHLB of Des Moingsn the security of a
blanket collateral agreement of a percentage oficumabered loans and the pledge of specific investisecurities. Such advances can be
made pursuant to several different credit progragash of which has its own interest rate and rarigeaturities. At September 30, 2008, the
Bank had $132.0 million of advances from the FHIfEDes Moines and the ability to borrow up to anrappmate additional $74.8 million. s
September 30, 2008, advances totaling $91.0 mi(licciuding $20.0 million in overnight federal fungurchased) had terms to maturity of
year or less. The remaining $41.0 million had maés ranging up to 12 yeal
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On July 16, 2001, the Company issued all of th@a®authorized shares of Company Obligated Manitia®®edeemable Preferred
Securities of First Midwest Financial Capital Trugpreferred securities of subsidiary trust) hofglsolely subordinated debt securities.
Distributions are paid semi-annually. Cumulatiastt distributions are calculated at a variable ghtee London Interbank Offered Rate
(“LIBOR”) plus 3.75%, not to exceed 12.5%. The Qany may, at one or more times, defer interest gaysnon the capital securities for up
to 10 consecutive seminnual periods, but not beyond July 25, 2031.hatdnd of any deferral period, all accumulatedwamhid distribution
will be paid. The capital securities are requitethe redeemed on July 25, 2031; however, the Coynpas a semannual option to shorten t
maturity date to a date not earlier than July ZB72 The option has not been exercised as ofdteedf this filing. The redemption price is
$1,000 per capital security plus any accrued anpaigndistributions to the date of redemption pifissdeemed prior to July 25, 2011, a
redemption premium as defined in the Indenture Agrent. Holders of the capital securities haveating rights, are unsecured and rank
junior in priority of payment to all of the Compé's indebtedness and senior to the Company’s constamk. The trust preferred securities
have been includable in the Company’s capital ¢afmns since they were issued.

From time to time, the Company has offered retplrchase agreements to its customers. Thesamwgnesetypically range from 14
days to five years in term, and typically have be#ared in minimum amounts of $100,000. The peatseof these transactions are used to
meet cash flow needs of the Company. At Septe®®e2008, the Company had $5.3 million of retgiuehase agreements outstanding.

Historically, the Company has entered into whokesapurchase agreements through nationally recedmimker-dealer firms. These
agreements are accounted for as borrowings by ohep@ny and are secured by certain of the Compamyéstment and mortgage-backed
securities. The broker-dealer takes possessitimrecdecurities during the period that the reveepairchase agreement is outstanding. The
terms of the agreements have usually ranged frdayg to six months, but on occasion longer terreegents have been entered into. At
September 30, 2008, the Company had no wholegalealease agreements outstanding.

The following table sets forth the maximum montfd-&alance and average balance of FHLB advanced, aatl reverse repurchase
agreements and Subordinated Debentures for thedsdridicated. Balances related to discontinuedt loperations have been eliminated for
all periods presented.

September 30,
2008 2007 2006
(Dollars in Thousands)

Maximum Balance

FHLB advance: $ 162,52 $ 89,30( $ 147,45(

Repurchase agreemel 51,43¢ 15,47( 19,46¢

Subordinated debentur 10,31( 10,31( 10,31(
Average Balance

FHLB advance: $ 103,76¢ $ 77,43 $ 115,10:

Retail and reverse repurchase agreerr 9,79¢ 7,86: 16,53¢

Subordinated debentur 10,31( 10,31( 10,31(
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The following table sets forth certain informatias to the Company’s FHLB advances and other bongsvat the dates indicated.
Balances related to discontinued bank operations haen eliminated for all periods presented.

September 30,
2008 2007 2006
(Dollars in Thousands)

FHLB advance: $ 132,02! $ 68,00( $ 89,30(
Repurchase agreeme 5,34¢ 224 15,17¢
Subordinated debentures 10,31( 10,31( 10,31(

Total borrowings $ 147,68. $ 78,53: $ 114,78¢
Weighted average interest rate of FHLB advat 4.28% 5.43% 4.9%
Weighted average interest rate of repurchase agrmes 3.0(% 3.31% 3.1%%
Weighted average interest rate of subordinatedrdabes 7.8% 9.0€% 9.3(%

Subsidiary Activities

The subsidiaries of the Company are MetaBank, Matat and First Midwest Financial Capital TrustMetaBank has one service
corporation subsidiary, First Services Financiahiteéd (“First Services”). At September 30, 200& het book value of MetaBank’s
investment in First Services was approximately $208. MetaBank organized First Services, its sel@ice corporation, in 1983. First
Services currently has no active operations.

Meta Payment System® Division

Meta Financial, through its subsidiary MetaBankemgbing under the divisional name Meta Paymente®yst is focused on the
electronic payments industry and offers a compldro&topen-loop” prepaid cards, consumer creditjorets and other payment industry
related products and services that are marketedrtsumers through financial institutions and ottenmercial entities. The products and
services offered by Meta Payment Systems are ggndesigned to facilitate the processing and setédnt of authorized electronic transacti
involving the movement of funds some of which wereviously deposited at MetaBank. Meta PaymenteBys offers specific product
solutions in the following areas: (i) prepaid car(i consumer credit products, and (iii) ATM sgamship. Meta Payment Systems’ products
and services generally target banks, card processat third party marketers who distribute the sard

Each segment of Meta Payment System’s businessdgsted generally below. With respect to the seys there can be a
significant amount of cross-selling and cross-zaiion of personnel and resourcesd.,a client asks Meta Payment Systems to develop
products for both prepaid and credit card needs).

Prepaid Cards Prepaid cards take the form of credit card-sjdedtics embedded with a magnetic stripe whiclodes relevant card
data (which may or may not include information abibe user and/or purchaser of such card). Whemdider of such a card attempts a
permitted transaction,
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necessary information, including the authorizaflensuch transaction, is shared between the “pafinse” or “point of sale” and authorization
systems maintaining the account of record.

The funds associated with such cards are heldafedaccounts at MetaBank representing the aggregédie of all cards issued in
connection with particular products or programstifer described below. The cards may work in aaddoop €.9.,the card will only work at
one particular merchant and will not work anywhelse), a semi-closed loog(g.,the card will only work at a specific set of memtsasuch
as a shopping mall), or open loop which functioma4sa, MasterCard, or Discover branded debit tdaatwill work wherever such cards are
accepted for payment. Most of MPS’ prepaid cardsopen-loop.

This segment of Meta Payment Systems’ businesgeaerally be divided into three categories: relbéelaards, non-reloadable
cards, and benefit/insurance cards. Governmergfii@@are another growing application for prepaidds; however, MPS has not focused on
this category to date.

Reloadable cards The most common reloadable prepaid card progeampayroll cards, whereby an employee’s paysdibaded to
the card by their employer utilizing direct deppeit General Purpose Reloadable (GPR) whereby eaedssually distributed by retailers and
can be reloaded an indefinite number of times gtqiaating retail load networks. Other examplésedoadable cards are travel cards which
are used to replace travelers checks and candedesl a predetermined number of times and tax edrdee a taxpayer’s refund, refund
anticipation loan, or preseason tax loan procesglplaced on the card. Reloadable cards are génepan loop cards that consumers can use
to obtain cash at ATMs or purchase goods and sssvitierever such cards are accepted for payment.

Non-reloadable cards Non-reloadable prepaid cards are sometimes refésrad disposable and may only be used until tleeaat
funds initially loaded to the card have been extetisThese include gift cards, rebate cards, aochgtional or incentive cards. These cards
may be closed loop or open loop but are generallyamailable to obtain cash. Under certain cond&jdhese cards may be anonymous,
whereby no customer relationship is created anddétity of the cardholder is unknown. Except dift cards, many non-reloadable card
programs are funded by a corporation as a marketipgnse rather than from consumer funds.

Benefit/insurance cards Benefit/insurance cards are traditionally useeimployers and large commercial companies (such as
property insurers) to distribute benefits to pessentitled to such funds. Possible uses of beaafits could be the distribution of money for
qualified expenses related to an employer spondteeithle spending account program (FSA) or theriiation of insurance claim proceeds to
insureds who have made a payable claim againstiating insurance policy. These cards are geneagéen loop or semi-closed loop as in the
case of an FSA card that can only be used for fipchlnedical expenses.

Consumer Credit ProductdVIPS is offering various consumer credit productduding credit cards, short term/micro loan proguct
and installment loans targeted at various consua@isss the credit spectrum. Under such progran®S§ Mpically utilizes vendors to market
and service loans, sells a significant portionhef teceivables and revenue stream to third pasitbeut recourse, and remains the owner of
consumer account relationship. MPS collects feerimefrom each account and interest income fromshigse of receivable balances.

ATM SponsorshipMeta Payment Systems sponsors financial institatioto various networks to enable them to issuevod-
branded debit cards and accept cards issued byfathacial institutions at their ATM terminals.h& division also sponsors ATM independent
sales organizations (“ISOs”) into various netwaaksl provides associated sponsorships of encryptipport organizations and third
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party processors in support of the financial ingitihs and the ATM ISO sponsorships. Sponsorshisists of the review and oversight of
entities participating in debit and credit networks certain instances, Meta Payment Systemstalsa@ertain leasehold interests in certain
ATMs which require bank ownership and registrafimancompliance with applicable state law.

While the Company believes that it has adoptectjmdiand procedures to manage and monitor theatssdant to this line of
business, and while the executives who manage ¢hgp@ny’s program have years of experience, no gtegacan be made that the Company
will not experience losses in this division.

Regulation

Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 20.. On October 3, 2008, President Bush signed intatkesAEmergency Economic Stabilization
Act of 2008 (“EESA"), giving the US Treasury authgito take certain actions to restore liquiditydastability to the U.S. banking markets.
Based upon its authority in the EESA, a numbemrofjmms to implement the EESA have been announthdse programs include the
following:

e Capital Purchase Program (“CPP"). Pursuant togtagram, the US Treasury, on behalf of the US guwent, will purchase up to
$250 billion of preferred stock, along with warrautd purchase common stock, from certain finanogtitutions, including bank
holding companies, savings and loan holding comgsaand banks or savings associations not controjledholding company. The
investment will have a dividend rate of 5% per yeatil the fifth anniversary of the US Treasurifigestment and a dividend of 9%
thereafter.

«  Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program. That progcmntains both a debt guarantee component, whenelblyDIC will guarantee
until June 30, 2012, the senior unsecured debedsby eligible financial institutions between Oatoli4, 2008 and June 30, 2009, and
an account transaction guarantee component, whéneldyDIC will insure 100% of non-interest bearteposit transaction accounts
held at eligible financial institutions, such aypent processing accounts, payroll accounts an#tingcapital accounts through
December 31, 2009. The deadline for participaitiotihis program has been extended to December(®. 2hstitutions that do not o
out before December 5, 2008, will be required tp fees related to participation in the programtiinsons that exercise their opt out
right will not be required to pay such fees. MetaB has decided to opt out of both componentsisfottogram.

e Temporary increase in deposit insurance cover&gesuant to the EESA, the FDIC temporarily raigedliasic limit on federal
deposit insurance coverage from $100,000 to $280p@0 depositor. The EESA provides that the baesposit insurance limit will
return to $100,000 after December 31, 2009.
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Given the current international, national and ragleconomic climate, it is unclear what effect phevisions of the EESA will have
with respect to the profitability and operationshoth the Company and MetaBank. In addition, ti&eddvernment, either through the US
Treasury or some other federal agency, may alsaraxvadditional programs that could materially iotgghe profitability and operations of
both the Company and MetaBank. The failure oféhgmvernmental efforts to stabilize national artdrimational markets could have a mate
effect on the Company’s business, financial coaditresults of operations or access to the credikets.

US Treasury Department Reportn March 2008, the U.S. Treasury Departmentasde a report containing short-, intermediate- and
long-term recommendations to reform and moderriiiedountry’s federal financial regulatory strueturwith respect to the banking industry,
the report recommended the elimination of the faldrift charter and conversion to the nationailbaharter, with the OTS merging with and
into the Office of the Comptroller of the Currentlye federal agency that regulates national ba@ksa longer term basis, the report also
recommended a consolidation of the current funefioegulation scheme for financial institutionsoitihree distinct regulators: a market
stability regulator (the Federal Reserve); a pruifieancial regulator (new); and a business condegtilator (new). It is unclear whether and
to what extent this proposal will be implementedha future and the impact it will have upon themgions of both the Company and
MetaBank.

USA Patriot Act of 2001.In October 2001, the USA Patriot Act of 2001 (tRatriot Act”) was enacted in response to theciest
attacks in New York, Pennsylvania and WashingtaG.Which occurred on September 11, 2001. Thed®#tct is intended to strengthen
U.S. law enforcement’s and the intelligence comniesii abilities to work cohesively to combat teison on a variety of fronts. The potential
impact of the Patriot Act on financial institutioogall kinds is significant and wide-ranging. TRatriot Act contains sweeping anti-money
laundering and financial transparency laws and sepovarious regulations, including standards foifyiag client identification at account
opening, and rules to promote cooperation amoranfiral institutions, regulators and law enforcenesttities in identifying parties that may
involved in terrorism or money laundering.

Among other provisions, the Patriot Act requiregficial institutions to have anti-money laundepnggrams in place and requires
banking regulators to consider a holding compasifactiveness in combating money laundering whéinglon certain merger or acquisition
applications.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20020n July 30, 2002, President Bush signed intotlnvSarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “SOA”). The
SOA is the most far-reaching U.S. securities ladgish enacted in many years, and includes manytaotdgse and disclosure-based
requirements. The stated goals of the SOA amed®ase corporate responsibility, to provide fdraarted penalties for accounting and aud
improprieties at publicly traded companies andrtigrt investors by improving the accuracy andatslity of corporate disclosures pursuan
the securities laws. The SOA generally applieslitcompanies, both U.S. and nahS., that file or are required to file periodipoets with the
SEC under the Exchange Act.

Pursuant to Section 302 of the SOA, Meta Finansi@hief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officare required to certify that
the Company'’s quarterly and annual reports filethwhe SEC fairly present, in all material respgtiie operations and conditions of Meta
Financial. In addition, as required by Section 40the SOA, management must make an assessmandirggthe effect of internal controls
financial reporting and the Company’s external tardimust attest to such management assessmergg@orts. The Company is considered a
smaller reporting company based on criteria esthétl by the SEC, and accordingly, beginning wiih @ainnual report for the fiscal year end
September 30, 2008, the Company is required toigeeananagement’s assessment of the effectiveneatsinfernal control over financial
reporting, which assessment is included in ltemT9A(
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below. Because the Company is a not a “large aeld filer” or “accelerated filer,” its indepemdeegistered public accounting firm is not
yet required to issue its attestation regardingdbmpan’s internal control over financial reporting.

Meta Financial has developed policies, procedunesirsternal processes to ensure compliance witls®a. It is believed, however,
that the implementation of the SOA’s complianceuisgments will result in additional expense for B&inancial.

Federal Deposit Insurance Reform Act of 200bhe Federal Deposit Insurance Reform Act of 2Q068 “FDIRA”), signed into law
on February 8, 2006, amended current laws regattmfederal deposit insurance system. PursuahetéDIRA, the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) merged the Bank aswce Fund (“BIF”) and the Savings Association hasge Fund (“SAIF”) into one
deposit insurance fund, the Deposit Insurance FtDiF"), on March 31, 2006. The new legislatiorsalabolished the prior minimum 1.25%
reserve ratio and the mandatory assessments waeatih falls below 1.25%. Under the FDIRA, thelEDat the beginning of each year, has
the flexibility to adjust the DIF’s reserve ratietveen 1.15% and 1.50% depending upon a variefgetdrs, including projected losses,
economic considerations and current assessmeast rite both 2007 and 2008, the FDIC set the dasighreserve ratio at 1.25%. (For more
information on current proposals issued by the FIdIt respect to the reserve ratio, ségahk Supervision and Regulation — Insurance of
Accounts and Regulation by the FC” below.)

Deposit insurance coverage limits were raised utideFDIRA from $100,000 to $250,000 for certaipdy of Individual Retirement
Accounts, 401(k) plans and other retirement savaug®unts (including Keough accounts and “457” glacounts, among others). Congress
included in the FDIRA, however, the authority foetFDIC to review all levels of insurance coveraffer March 31, 2010, and index such
insurance coverage to inflation. Additionally, thBIRA states that undercapitalized financial ittgtbns cannot accept employee benefit plan
deposits. (SeeRegulation — Federal Economic Stabilization Progsarabove for a discussion of the temporary increaskposit insurance
coverage.)

Certain one-time deposit premium assessment cnedits also authorized under the FDIRA. On MayZlf)7, MetaBank was
notified of its assessment credit. The assessaonedit was applied automatically to reduce depasiirance assessments beginning with the
Bank’s assessment due on June 29, 2007. The amaleotated as MetaBank’s share of the credit v&89®125.65. At September 30, 2008,
there was no credit remaining.

Financial Services Regulatory Relief Act of 2006n October 13, 2006, President Bush signedlantathe Financial Services
Regulatory Relief Act of 2006. The legislationlindes language important to all financial instibat, and the specific provisions applicable to
federal savings associations include the following:

«  providing savings and loan trust departments withgame exemption from the investment adviser avkeb-dealer regulatory
requirements to the same extent previously enjdyeolank trust departments with respect to the tmrest Advisers Act of 1940 and
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (adopted byStR€ in October, 2007);
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*  requiring the Securities and Exchange Commissiahtlh@ Federal Reserve Board, in consultation wighdther federal banking
regulators, including the Office of Thrift Supetiais, to formally resolve regulatory issues withpest to the regulation of securities
activities by banks and federal savings associatffinal rules were adopted jointly by the SEC #melFederal Reserve in September,
2007);

»  providing that a federal savings association iy @ntitizen of the state in which its home offisddcated for purposes of determining
diversity jurisdiction (a provision that previousiad been applicable to national banks only);

* increasing to $500 million the applicable asset §ix an 18-month examination cycle;

*  requiring the federal banking agencies to develspainct model privacy notice with respect to Gmastreach-Bliley privacy
provisions and mandating that a regulatory safedrave provided to financial institutions that sseh model privacy policy (final
rules were adopted by the banking agencies in Ma@b7);

« extending the powers of federal banking agenci¢ake enforcement actions against persons for aritiat occurred during their
affiliation with the financial institution regardie of whether the person remains employed by #t#ttion; and

e repealing certain requirements governing purchasadgage servicing rights found in the Home Ownésin Act.

DoD Credit Regulations Effective October 1, 2007, the US DepartmeriDefense (the “DOD”) regulations implementing certai
provisions of the John Warner National Defense Atigation Act for Fiscal Year 2007 went into effedthese regulations impose certain
restrictions on the types of provisions that maydusd in consumer credit products provided to ‘@&@d borrowers,” a term generally defined
as active duty service members and their dependdtis rules affect all “creditors,” including M&ank.

The regulations were implemented by the DOD inféorieto protect service members from predatorynlpsactices and are an atter
to balance service member protections with acaeseetlit. Importantly, for the transactions cokby the regulations, there is a new Military
Annual Percentage Rate (“MAPR”) that must be caltmd and the MAPR is capped at 36%.

It should be noted that, in the adopting regulatjghe DOD stated that it maintains the abilityssue additional rules in the future.

Privacy. MetaBank is required by statute and regulatiodisclose their privacy policies to its consunemd, on an annual basis, to
its customers. Pursuant to such privacy notitesBank’s customers may opt out of the sharindpeif tnonpublic personal information with
non-affiliated third parties. The Bank is alsougqd to appropriately safeguard its customerssgeal information.

Other Regulation The Bank is also subject to a variety of otlegutations with respect to their business operatincluding, but not
limited to, the Truth in Lending Act, the Truth 8avings Act, the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, Electronic Funds Transfer Act, the Fair
Housing Act, the Home Mortgage Disclosure Act, fagr Debt Collection Practices Act, and the Faiedir Reporting Act. As discussed
below, any change in the regulations affectingBhak’s operations is not predicable and could affiee Bank’s operations and profitability.
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General. MetaBank, a federal savings bank subsidiary efdvFinancial, a unitary savings and loan holdimgpgany, is subject to
regulation, examination and supervision by both@i& and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporétien“FDIC”). MetaBank must file
regular reports with the OTS, which regularly insiseMetaBank and its subsidiaries to evaluate twinpliance with regulatory requirements
and their safety and soundness. OTS and, dependitige transaction, other bank regulatory ageraigEspossess approval authority before
MetaBank may enter into certain transactions sgamergers with or acquisitions of other financietitutions. As discussed below,
MetaBank’s deposits are insured up to applicabiédi by the Deposit Insurance Fund (the “DIF") whis administered by the FDIC.

MetaBank is also a member of the Federal Home Baark (“FHLB”) System and is subject to certain limited regulabgrihe Boarc
of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (theB*FiR the “Board”).

Meta Financial currently has three wholly-ownedsdiaries: MetaBank, a federally chartered thrifttitution; First Midwest
Financial Capital Trust I, a statutory businessttarganized under the Delaware Business Trustakat;Meta Trust, a South Dakota
corporation that provides trust services.

Regulatory authorities have been granted extertiaaetion in connection with their supervisory amorcement activities which are
intended to strengthen the financial conditionhaf banking industry, including the imposition o$tréctions on the operation of an institution,
the classification of assets by the institutiorg &me adequacy of an institution’s allowance fardosses. Typically, these actions are
undertaken due to violations of laws or regulationsonduct of operations in an unsafe or unsouadner.

Any change in the nature of such regulation andsigbt, whether by the OTS, the FDIC, the FRB giditively by Congress, could
have a material impact on Meta Financial or MetdBamd their respective operations. The discuds@rin of the regulatory and supervisory
structure within which MetaBank operates is genanal does not purport to be exhaustive or a complescription of the laws and regulations
involved in MetaBank’s operations. The discussgqualified in its entirety by the actual laws aedulations.

Federal Regulation of MetaBankFederal law and regulation, including but notited to the Home Owners’ Loan Act and the related
regulations issued by the OTS, govern the actavivieall federal savings associations, includingdBank. For example, as discussed in
further detail below, certain lending authority federal savings associations (such as commengatesidential real property and consumer
loans) is limited to a specified percentage ofgbgociation’s capital or assets.

The OTS has extensive supervisory and regulatafyosity over the operations of savings associatiois part of this authority,
MetaBank is required to file periodic reports witle OTS and is subject to periodic examinationley®@TS, as discussed above. The last
regular examination of MetaBank was conducted ity&2008.

OTS also has extensive enforcement authority dseegulated institutions. This enforcement althancludes, among other things,
the power to compel higher reserves, the abilitggsess civil money penalties, the ability to isseese-and-desist or removal orders and the
ability to initiate injunctive actions. In generéthese enforcement actions may be initiated folations of laws and regulations and unsafe or
unsound practices. Other actions or inactions prayide the basis for enforcement action, includimgleading or untimely reports. Except
under certain circumstances, public
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disclosure of final enforcement actions by the maible regulator is required. The federal bankiggncies have adopted guidelines
establishing safety and soundness standards omsaitérs as loan underwriting and documentaticsetegguality, earnings standards, internal
controls and audit systems, interest rate risk sxpoand compensation and other employee ben€fiserally, any institution which fails to
comply with these standards must submit a compdigohen. (For further discussion, see ‘Standards for Safety and Soundnelsstein.)

In addition, the investment, lending and branctaothority of MetaBank is prescribed by federal kwd it is prohibited from
engaging in any activities not permitted by suatsla For example, a federal savings associatigen®rally permitted to branch into any state
or multiple states subject to OTS approval.

MetaBank's general permissible lending limit to drwerower is equal to the greater of $500,000 &6 1% unimpaired capital and
surplus (except for loans fully secured by certaidily marketable collateral, in which case thistlis increased to 25% of unimpaired capital
and surplus). At September 30, 2008, MetaBankiditgy limit under these restrictions was $8.3 miilli MetaBank is in compliance with this
lending limit.

Insurance of Accounts and Regulation by the FDM&taBank is a member of the DIF, which is admimestieby the FDIC. Deposits
are insured up to applicable limits by the FDIC andh insurance is backed by the full faith andlitref the United States Government. As
insurer, the FDIC imposes deposit insurance prersiand is authorized to conduct examinations oftarrdquire reporting by FDIC-insured
institutions. It also may prohibit any FDIC-insdrimstitution from engaging in any activity the KDéletermines by regulation or order to pose
a serious risk to the DIF. The FDIC also has aitthto initiate enforcement actions against anyi&insured institution after giving its
primary federal regulator the opportunity to takelsaction, and may terminate the deposit insur#ricdetermines that the institution has
engaged in unsafe or unsound practices or is imaafe or unsound condition.

Pursuant to a rule adopted by the Board of Dirsobéthe FDIC in November 2006, beginning in 200, FDIC places each insured
institution into one of four risk categories. Gaiey placement is a two-step process based upeafgijal ratios (the capital assignment group),
and (ii) other relevant information (the supervisgroup assignment). Capital group assignmentsniade quarterly and include the following
designations: well capitalized, adequately capi¢éaliand undercapitalized. Supervisory group asgégs are divided as follows: (X) group A
(financially sound institutions); (Y) group B (initsitions that demonstrate weakness); and (Z) g@ipstitutions that pose a substantial
possibility of loss to the DIF unless correctivéi@t is taken).

The schedule of DIF assessment rates has beeedewigfective January 1, 2007, there are four celegories. Premiums for 2008
range from 5 cents per $100 of assessable dejffusiiastitutions deemed to be in the lowest rigkegory) to 43 cents per $100 assessable
deposits (for institutions deemed to be in the afghisk category). Deposit insurance rates magdjested by the FDIC uniformly from one
guarter to the next although no single adjustmantexceed three basis pointdt September 30, 2008, MetaBank’s risk categorjgassent
required a payment of six cents per $100 of asbksdaposits.

Notably, the FDIC has the authority to increaseiiance assessments. Pursuant to this authori@ctober 7, 2008, the Board of
Directors of the FDIC released for comment a ptarestore the DIF reserve ratio to 1.15% by thea®2D13 (the reserve ratio was estimated
to be at 1.01% of insured deposits as of June @@8,2and the FDIC expects that it may continueetdide). Pursuant to this plan, the FDIC
would put in place an across-the-board increagehafsis points (annualized) per $100 of
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assessable deposits beginning January 1, 200&ddition, beginning in the second quarter of 2@b@&nges to the deposit insurance system
would be made such that the increased assessmeulis be required of riskier institutions.¢., those with a significant level of brokered
deposits or those that relied significantly on seddiabilities). Certain institutions, howeveguid see a reduction in their premiums, such as
those that hold long-term unsecured deMetaBank would not be materially affected by thpstential changes.

DIF-insured institutions pay a Financing Corporat{tFICO”") assessment in order to fund the inteesbonds issued to resolve thrift
failures in the 1980s. For the fourth quarter @&, the FICO assessment was equal to 1.10 basits por each $100 in domestic deposits.
These assessments will continue until the bondsmaé 2019.

Under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act (“FDIARe tFDIC may terminate deposit insurance upon arfqthat the institution has
engaged in unsafe or unsound practices, is in aaferr unsound condition to continue operationsas violated any applicable law,
regulation, rule, order or condition imposed by BiRC or the OTS. Management of the Bank doeknotv of any practice, condition or
violation that might lead to termination of depasgurance.

AssessmentsAs a federal savings bank, MetaBank is requiogghy assessments to the OTS to fund its opegatiBaid semi-
annually, these assessments are based upon tigtimsts total assets, including consolidated sdibsies, as reported in the Bank’s latest
quarterly financial report, its general financiahdition and the complexity of the Bank’s portfolio

Regulatory Capital Requirementd=ederally insured financial institutions, sushMetaBank, are required to maintain a minimum
level of regulatory capital. These capital requiests mandate that an institution maintain at [#esfollowing ratios: (1) a core (or Tier 1)
capital to adjusted total assets ratio of 4% (wltigh be reduced to 3% for highly rated institut)p®) a Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets
ratio of 4%; and (3) a risk-based capital to riséighted assets ratio of 8%. Core (Tier 1) capstalefined as common stockholders’ equity
(including retained earnings), certain noncumutafierpetual preferred stock and related surplusrandrity investments in equity accounts
consolidated subsidiaries, less intangibles otfen tertain mortgage servicing rights and credi celationships. Supplementary capital is
currently defined to include cumulative preferréack, long-term perpetual preferred stock, mandatonvertible securities, subordinated debt
and intermediate preferred stock, the allowancédan and lease losses limited to a maximum of%.85risk-weighted assets and up to 45%
of unrealized gains on available-for-sale equityusities with readily determinable fair market vedu Overall, the amount of supplementary
capital included as part of total capital cannatezd 100% of core capital.

Generally, in meeting the tangible, leverage aski-biased capital standards, federal savings asiemsianust deduct investments in
and loans to subsidiaries engaged in activitigwiasipal that are not permissible for a natiorahk. If a subsidiarg activities are permitted
a national bank that subsidiary’s assets are giyemmsolidated with those of the parent’s onreelfor-line basis.

Capital requirements in excess of the standard®dbtabove may be imposed on individual instdns on a case-bgase basis upor
determination that the association’s capital léser may become inadequate in light of the paldicaircumstances. The OTS and the FDIC
are generally permitted to take enforcement acigainst a savings bank that fails to meet its ahp@uirements. Such action may include
restrictions on operations and banking activitiee,imposition of a capital directive, a cease-dadist order, civil money penalties, or more
stringent measures such as the appointment of seogator or receiver or a forced merger with anoitietitution.
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As of September 30, 2008, MetaBank exceeded &k oégulatory capital requirements with core, fhtegand riskbased capital ratis
of 7.35%, 7.35% and 10.89% respectively, and wagdated as “well-capitalized” under federal guites. See Note 15 of the “Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements,” which is ineldich Part II, Item 8 “Financial Statements and@Bementary Data” of this Form 10-K/A.

Prompt Corrective Action Federal banking regulators are authorized andemcertain circumstances, required to take cedetions
against banks that fail to meet their capital regqients. Effective December 19, 1992, the fedmaking agencies were given additional
enforcement authority with respect to undercagi¢alidepository institutions. Under the regulatj@rsinstitution is deemed to be (a) “well
capitalized” if it has total risk-based capitalldf.0% or more, has a Tier 1 risk-based capitab m@iti6.0% or more, has a Tier 1 leverage capital
ratio of 5.0% or more and is not subject to anyeomt final capital directive to meet and maintaispecific capital level for any capital
measure; (b) “adequately capitalized” if it has@lrisk-based capital ratio of 8.0% or more, arTi risk-based capital ratio of 4.0% or more
and a Tier 1 leverage capital ratio of 4.0% or n(Br8% under certain circumstances) and does net the definition of well capitalized;

(c) “undercapitalized” if it has a total risk-baseabital ratio that is less than 8.0%, a tier k-based capital ratio that is less than 4.0% or a

1 leverage capital ratio that is less than 4.0%%sunder certain circumstances); (d) “significanthdercapitalized” if it has a total risk-based
capital ratio that is less than 6.0%, a Tier 1-bslsed capital ratio that is less than 3.0% orea Tieverage capital ratio that is less than 3.0%;
and (e) “critically undercapitalized” if it has atio of tangible equity to total assets that isada or less than 2.0%. In certain situations, a
federal banking agency may reclassify a well céipéd institution as adequately capitalized and memyuire an adequately capitalized or
undercapitalized institution to comply with superiy actions as if the institution were in the nlexter category.

The federal banking agencies are generally requidréake action to restrict the activities of amdercapitalized,” “significantly
undercapitalized” or “critically undercapitalizeddnk. Any such bank must submit a capital restumgilan that is guaranteed by the parent
holding company. Until such plan is approved, &ynmot increase its assets, acquire another itistittestablish a branch or engage in any
activities, and generally may not make capitalriistions. The banking regulators are authorizepose additional restrictions, discussed
below, that are applicable to significantly undgitalized institutions.

Any institution that fails to comply with its capltplan or is “significantly undercapitalizedig| Tier 1 riskbased or core capital rati
of less than 3% or a risk-based capital ratio s nan 6%) must be made subject to one or maaddifional specified actions and operating
restrictions mandated by FDICIA. These actions r@strictions include requiring the issuance ofitilolal voting securities; limitations on
asset growth; mandated asset reduction; changesniar management; divestiture, merger or acqoisitf the association; restrictions on
executive compensation; and any other action th& @8ems appropriate. An institution that beconceitically undercapitalized” is subject to
further mandatory restrictions on its activitiesaidition to those applicable to significantly uragpitalized associations. In addition, the
appropriate banking regulator must appoint a resejer conservator with the FDIC’s concurrence)dorinstitution, with certain limited
exceptions, within 90 days after it becomes criyjcandercapitalized. Any undercapitalized indibn is also subject to other possible
enforcement actions, including the appointment fciver or conservator. The appropriate regulatalso generally authorized to reclassify
an institution into a lower capital category angh@se restrictions applicable to such categorydfitistitution is engaged in unsafe or unsound
practices or is in an unsafe or unsound condition.

Institutions must file a capital restoration plaithithe OTS within 45 days of the date it receige®tice from the OTS that it is
“undercapitalized,” “significantly undercapitaliz&ar “critically
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undercapitalized.” Compliance with a capital reation plan must be guaranteed by a parent holdingpany. In addition, the OTS is
permitted to take any one of a number of discretiprsupervisory actions, including but not limitedhe issuance of a capital directive and
replacement of senior executive officers and dinect

Though not expected, the imposition of any of thesasures on MetaBank may have a substantial adefext on it and on the
Company’s operations and profitability. Meta Fioiahshareholders do not have preemptive rights dnedefore, if Meta Financial is directed
by the OTS or the FDIC to issue additional shaféSanmon Stock, such issuance may result in theidil in shareholders’ percentage of
ownership of Meta Financial.

Branching by Federal Savings AssociationGenerally, subject to OTS approval, federalsgsibanks like MetaBank are able to
branch nationwide without state law interferen@ammunity Reinvestment Act performance is asse$srtever, and could be the basis for
the denial of branching (or other) applicationsmiited to the OTS by a federal savings bank.

Standards for Safety and Soundnedhe federal banking agencies have adoptethteeagency Guidelines Establishing Standards
for Safety and Soundne. The guidelines establish certain safety and doess standards for all depository institutionke ©perational and
managerial standards in the guidelines relatedddhowing: (1) internal controls and informatiggstems; (2) internal audit systems; (3) loan
documentation; (4) credit underwriting; (5) intareste exposure; (6) asset growth; (7) compensati@s and benefits; (8) asset quality; and
(9) earnings. Again, rather than providing spedifiles, the guidelines set forth basic compliasmesiderations and guidance with respect to a
depository institution. Failure to meet the staddan the guidelines, however, could result irguest by the OTS to MetaBank to provide a
written compliance plan to demonstrate its efftstsome into compliance with such guidelines.

Limitations on Dividends and Other Capital Distrilns. The OTS imposes various restrictions on savagg®ciations with respect
to their ability to make distributions of capitalhich include dividends, stock redemptions or repases, cash-out mergers and other
transactions charged to the capital account. Th® &lso prohibits a savings association from deweor paying any dividends or from
repurchasing any of its stock if, as a resultsughsaction, the regulatory capital of the assommtiould be reduced below the amount required
to be maintained for the liquidation account esshigld in connection with MetaBank’s mutual to steckversion.

Savings institutions such as MetaBank may makepaatalistribution without the approval of the OT@8pvided they notify the OTS
30 days before they declare the capital distrilutind they meet the following requirements: (i)éawegulatory rating in one of two top
examination categories; (ii) are not of supervisawgicern, and will remain adequately or well-cdjziéal, as found in the OTS prompt
corrective action regulations, following the propddistribution; and (iii) the distribution doestrxceed their net income for the calendar
yea-to-date plus retained net income for the previmuscalendar years (less any dividends previoualgl)p If a savings institution does not
meet the above state requirements, it must obtén gpproval of the OTS before declaring any psgzbdistributions.

The OTS has the authority, however, to prohibit@psed capital distribution that would otherwisepermitted by regulation if it
determines that such distribution would be an umsafunsound activity. MetaBank is also subjeaddain restrictions on dividends as a re
of its conversion from the mutual form of ownerstguch restrictions are not expected to interfeath the dividend policies of the Bank.

39




Table of Contents

Qualified Thrift Lender Test All savings associations, including MetaBanle egquired to meet a qualified thrift lender (“Q7lt&st
to avoid certain restrictions on their operatiofi$iis test requires a savings association to haleast 65% of its portfolio assets (as defined by
regulation) in qualified thrift investments (prinigresidential mortgages and related investmentduding certain mortgagbacked securitie
on a monthly average for nine out of every 12 mesmih a rolling basis or meet the requirements fdoraestic building and loan association
under the Internal Revenue Code. Under eitherttestrequired assets primarily consist of residéhbusing related to loans and investme
At September 30, 2008, MetaBank met the test amdyal has since its effectiveness.

Any savings association that fails to meet the @34t must convert to a national bank charter, gritegualifies as a QTL within one
year and thereafter remains a QTL, or limits it& m@vestments and activities to those permissibtehbth a savings association and a nati
bank. In addition, the association is subjectatiamal bank limits for payment of dividends andrrhing authority. If such association has
requalified or converted to a national bank witthiree years after the failure, it must divest mldstments and cease all activities not
permissible for a national bank.

Community Reinvestment Actnder the Community Reinvestment Act (“CRA”") eey FDIC4insured institution has a continuing ¢
affirmative obligation consistent with safe and sdianking practices to help meet the credit neéds entire community, including low- and
moderate-income neighborhoods. The CRA does nabksh specific lending requirements or prograorsihancial institutions nor does it
limit an institution’s discretion to develop thegs of products and services that it believes esé duited to a particular community. The CRA
requires the OTS, in connection with the examimatibMetaBank, to assess the institution’s recdmheeting the credit needs of its
community and to take such record into accountsievaluation of certain applications, such as egereor the establishment of a branch by
institution. An unsatisfactory rating may be ussdhe basis for the denial of such an applicatddetaBank was examined for CRA
compliance in October 2008 and received a satisfacating.

Interstate Banking and Branching.he FRB may approve an application of an adequatitalized and adequately managed bank
holding company to acquire control of, or acquit@asubstantially all of the assets of, a bantaled in a state other than such holding
company’s home state, without regard to whethetrdiesaction is prohibited by the laws of any stdtegeneral, the FRB may not approve the
acquisition of a bank that has not been in exigdacthe minimum time period (not exceeding fiveays) specified by the statutory law of the
host state or if the applicant (and its depositosfitution affiliates) controls or would controlare than 10% of the insured deposits in the
United States or 30% or more of the deposits irtdhget bank’s home state or in any state in witiehtarget bank maintains a branch. lowa
has adopted a five year minimum existence requinéeme

The federal banking agencies are also generallyoaiaed to approve interstate merger transactiatisowt regard to whether such
transaction is prohibited by the law of any stdtgterstate acquisitions of branches or the esthivient of a new branch is permitted only if the
law of the state in which the branch is locatedper such acquisitions. Interstate mergers anddracquisitions are also subject to the
nationwide and statewide insured deposit conceéotramounts described above. lowa permits interdteanching only by merger.

Transactions with Affiliates.MetaBank must comply with Sections 23A and 23Bhef Federal Reserve Act relative to transactions
with “affiliates,” generally defined to mean anyngpany that controls or is under common control whi institution (as such, Meta Financial
is an affiliate of
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MetaBank for these purposes). Transactions betaaénstitution or its subsidiaries and its affiis are required to be on terms as favorak
MetaBank as terms prevailing at the time for tratisas with nonaffiliates. In addition, certaintbese transactions, such as loans to an
affiliate, are restricted to a percentage of tistifutions’ capital €.g.,the aggregate amount of covered transactions wighiradividual affiliate

is limited to 10% of the capital and surplus of thgtitution; the aggregate amount of covered @atisns with all affiliates is limited to 20% of
the institution’s capital and surplus). In additi@ savings and loan holding company may not terahy affiliate engaged in activities not
permissible for a savings and loan holding compargcquire the securities of most affiliates. THES has the discretion to treat subsidiaries
of savings institutions as affiliates on a casezhge basis.

On April 1, 2003, the Federal Reserve’s Regulatnwvhich comprehensively amends sections 23A alldf3he Federal Reserve
Act, became effective. The Federal Reserve ActRegllation W are applicable to MetaBank. The Regn unifies and updates staff
interpretations issued over the years, incorpoisggsral new interpretive proposals (such as tifghahen transactions with an unrelated third
party will be attributed to an affiliate) and adslkes new issues arising as a result of the expasudge of non-banking activities engaged in by
banks and bank holding companies in recent yeatsathorized for financial holding companies untther Financial Services Modernization
Act of 1999.

Certain transactions with directors, officers ontrolling persons are also subject to conflictrdérest regulations. These conflict of
interest regulations and other statutes also impeEsections on loans to such persons and thkite interests. Among other things, such
loans must be made on terms substantially the sanf@r loans to unaffiliated individuals and must areate an abnormal risk of repayment or
other unfavorable features for the Bank.

Federal Home Loan Bank SystenMetaBank is a member of the FHLB of Des Moire of 12 regional FHLBs that administers the
home financing credit function of savings associaithat is subject to supervision and regulatpthke Federal Housing Finance Agency. All
advances from the FHLB are required to be fullyused by sufficient collateral as determined byFh#.B. In addition, all longerm advance
must be used for residential home financing.

As members of the FHLB System, MetaBank is requioggurchase and maintain activity-based capitadksin the FHLB of Des
Moines in the amount of 4.45% to support outstag@idvances and mortgage loans. At September 88, #te Bank had in the aggregate
$8.1million in FHLB stock, which was in complianegth this requirement. For the fiscal year endegt8mber 30, 2008, dividends paid by
the FHLB of Des Moines to MetaBank totaled $254,000

Under federal law, the FHLBs are required to prevignds for the resolution of troubled savings aegdmns and to contribute to low-
and moderately priced housing programs througtctioans or interest subsidies on advances tardetedmmunity investment and low- and
moderaténcome housing projects. These contributions ledfected adversely the level of FHLB dividends padl could continue to do sc
the future. These contributions could also havadrerse effect on the value of FHLB stock in tieife. A reduction in value of the Bank’s
FHLB stock may result in a corresponding reductiothe Banks capital. In addition, the federal agency thgutates the FHLBs has requir
each FHLB to register its stock with the SEC, whidl increase the costs of each FHLB and may hather effects that are not possible to
predict at this time.

Federal Securities Law.The common stock of Meta Financial is registexiti the SEC under the Exchange Act, as amendegta M
Financial is subject to the information, proxy siétion, insider trading restrictions and otheguigements under the Exchange Act.
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Meta Financial's stock held by persons who ardiaffis (generally officers, directors and principtckholders) of the Company may
not be resold without registration unless solddocadance with certain resale restrictions. If #€inancial meets specified current public
information requirements, each affiliate of the @amy, subject to certain requirements, will be ablsell, in the public market, without
registration, a limited number of shares in angé&month period.

Holding Company Supervision & Regulation

Meta Financial is a unitary savings and loan hadiompany within the meaning of the Home Ownersihéct. (Meta Financial
deregistered as a bank holding company once it tiatghthe sale of MetaBank WC in the spring of 2D08s such, it is registered with the
Office of Thrift Supervision and is subject to Ofe&gjulations, examinations, supervision, reporteguirements and regulations concerning
corporate governance and activities. The OTS reguiayment of a semi-annual assessment whichdesla $3,000 base assessment with an
additional assessment based upon the holding coyigoask or complexity, organizational form and dition.

Pursuant to federal law, a savings and loan holdargpany may not, directly or indirectly: (i) acrricontrol of a savings institution
without prior OTS approval; (ii) through one or rasubsidiaries, acquire more than 5% of the vatbogk of another savings institution, or
holding company, without the prior written approeéthe OTS; (iii) acquire through merger, consatidn or purchase of assets of another
savings institution (or holding company thereofjheut prior OTS approval, or (iv) acquire contrblam uninsured institution. When
considering applications made by holding compatues the OTS must consider the financial and nganial resources and future prospects of
the company and institution(s) involved, the effefcthe potential acquisition on the DIF, the comeace and needs of the community and
competitive issues.

Failure to Meet QTL Testlf a banking subsidiary of a savings and loan mgdiompany fails to meet the QTL test, the holding
company must register with the FRB as a bank hgldompany within one year of the savings institudailure to comply.

Acquisition of Control Under the Change in Bank Control Act, a notiaestrbe submitted to the OTS if any person (defioed
include both individuals and corporate entitiesyayup of persons acting in concert seeks to aequaintrol of a savings and loan holding
company or its depository institution subsidiadn acquisition of control can occur upon the acigjois of 10% or more of the voting stock of
a savings and loan holding company or savingstutitn subsidiary or as otherwise defined by theSOThis presumption of control at the
10% level of ownership of voting securities canrélyutted with a submission to the OTS prior todbequisition of stock or the occurrence of
any other circumstance giving rise to such presiampt

Pursuant to the CIBC Act, the OTS has 60 days tiwerfiling of a complete notice to act, taking immnsideration certain factors,
including the effect the acquisition could havetioa depositors or the public, the competitive affexf the acquisition and the financial and
managerial resources of the acquirer. Any compukagmed to be in “control” would then be subjeatetgulation as a savings and loan holding
company and subject to registration with the OT& thie agency’s registration, examination and regria

Federal and State Taxation

Federal Taxation. Meta Financial and its subsidiaries file consatiétl federal income tax returns on a fiscal yeaishasing the
accrual method of accounting. In addition to thgular income tax, corporations, including savibgsks such as MetaBank, generally are
subject to a minimum tax. An
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alternative minimum tax is imposed at a minimumrabe of 20% on alternative minimum taxable incomkich is the sum of a corporation’s
regular taxable income (with certain adjustmenis) ax preference items, less any available exemptrhe alternative minimum tax is
imposed to the extent it exceeds the corporatimygslar income tax and net operating losses caebiffo more than 90% of alternative
minimum taxable income.

To the extent earnings appropriated to a savingk’sdad debt reserves and deducted for federahiiectax purposes exceed the
allowable amount of such reserves computed un@éeexperience method and to the extent of the basigplemental reserves for losses on
loans (“Excess”), such Excess may not, without egl/éax consequences, be utilized for the paynfecdash dividends or other distributions to
a shareholder (including distributions on redemptitissolution or liquidation) or for any other pose (except to absorb bad debt losses). As
of September 30, 2008, MetaBank’s Excess for tapqses totaled approximately $6.7 million.

Meta Financial and its consolidated subsidiarieehet been audited by the IRS within the pastytars. In the opinion of
management, any examination of still open retuimdyding returns of subsidiaries and predecessbrmer entities merged into, Meta
Financial) would not result in a deficiency whiabutd have a material adverse effect on the finarcadition of Meta Financial and its
subsidiaries.

lowa Taxation. MetaBank files lowa franchise tax returns. Mgtaancial and First Services Financial, a subsydidiMetaBank file
a consolidated lowa corporation tax return on eafiyear-end basis.

lowa imposes a franchise tax on the taxable incohmeutual and stock savings banks and commercigtdaThe tax rate is 5%,
which may effectively be increased, in individuakes, by application of a minimum tax provisioraxdble income under the franchise tax is
generally similar to taxable income under the fatleorporate income tax, except that, under thalfranchise tax, no deduction is allowed
lowa franchise tax payments and taxable incomeiited interest on state and municipal obligatidngerest on U.S. obligations is taxable
under the lowa franchise tax and under the fedenglorate income tax. The taxable income for Ién@achise tax purposes is apportioned to
lowa through the use of a one-factor formula cdimgisof gross receipts only.

Taxable income under the lowa corporate incomastgenerally similar to taxable income under thegefal corporate income tax,
except that, under the lowa tax, no deductionlaedd for lowa income tax payments; interest fraatesand municipal obligations is included
in income; interest from U.S. obligations is exaddrom income; and 50% of federal corporate inctemgpayments are deductible from
income. The lowa corporate income tax rates réroym 6% to 12% and may be effectively increasedndividual cases, by application of a
minimum tax provision.

South Dakota Taxation.MetaBank and Meta Trust Company file a consodideéBouth Dakota franchise tax return due to their
operations in Sioux Falls and Brookings. The Sddkota franchise tax is imposed on depositonyititgins and trust companies. Meta
Financial and MetaBank’s subsidiaries are therefimtesubject to the South Dakota franchise tax.

South Dakota imposes a franchise tax on the taxabtene of depository institutions and trust comipamt the rate of 6%. Taxable
income under the franchise tax is generally simdalaxable income under the federal corporatenmetax, except that, under the South Da
franchise tax, no deduction is allowed for stat®ine and franchise taxes, income from municipabatibns exempt from federal taxes are
included in the franchise taxable income, and tieeeededuction allowed for federal income taxes@ed for the fiscal year. The taxable
income for South Dakota franchise tax
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purposes is apportioned to South Dakota througlusleeof a three-factor formula consisting of tategileal and personal property, payroll and
gross receipts.

Delaware Taxation. As a Delaware holding company, Meta Financiaxempted from Delaware corporate income tax bredsirec
to file an annual report with and pay an annualtfethe State of Delaware. Meta Financial is alsbject to an annual franchise tax impose
the State of Delaware.

Competition

The Company’s retail banking operation faces strmorgpetition, both in originating real estate atttko loans and in attracting
deposits. Competition in originating real estagenis comes primarily from commercial banks, saviryiks, credit unions, captive finance
companies, insurance companies, and mortgage lsamlaking loans secured by real estate locatecei€tmpanys market area. Commerc
banks and credit unions provide vigorous competitioconsumer lending. The Company competes fdragtate and other loans principally
on the basis of the quality of services it provitieborrowers, interest rates and loan fees itggmrand the types of loans it originates.

The Company'’s retail banking operation attractsogdép through its retail banking offices, primarfilpm the communities in which
those retail banking offices are located; therefooenpetition for those deposits is principallynfr@ther commercial banks, savings banks,
credit unions and brokerage offices located insdo®me communities. The Company competes for thegsesits by offering a variety of deposit
accounts at competitive rates, convenient businesss, and convenient branch locations with intambh deposit and withdrawal privileges at
each.

The Company’s retail banking operation serves Buéiata, Dallas and Polk counties in lowa and Brogki, Lincoln and Minnehaha
counties in South Dakota. There are twenty-twomential banks, four savings banks other than Met&Band two credit unions which
compete for deposits and loans in MetaBank’s pymmaarket area in northwest lowa and eight commekbaaks, one savings bank other than
MetaBank, and one credit union which compete f@odés and loans in MetaBank’s market area in Birggegk South Dakota. The Bank
competes for deposits and loans with numerous ¢ishimstitutions located throughout the metrogasiitmarket areas of Des Moines, lowa and
Sioux Falls, South Dakota.

The Company’s payment systems division serves mestonationally and faces competition from largeetercial banks and
specialty providers of electronic payments procesand servicing, including prepaid, debit, andlitreard issuers, ACH processors, and A
network sponsors. Many of these national plays¥saggressive competitors, leveraging relationsaimseconomies of scale the Company is
still developing.

Employees

At September 30, 2008, the Company and its subigdiad a total of 398 employees, including 8-fiare employees. The
Company’s employees are not represented by angatiok bargaining group. Management considermsnitployee relations to be good.

Executive Officers of the Company Who Are Not Diretors

The following information as to the business exgece during the past five years is supplied witipeet to the executive officers of
the Company who do not serve on the Company’s Bofard
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Directors. There are no arrangements or understgathetween such persons named and any persaswsaptito which such officers were
selected.

On June 27, 2005, Mr. Troy Moore Il was named Eiee Vice President and Chief Operating Officethe Company and
MetaBank. Additionally, Mr. Moore became a membkthe Executive Committees of both the Company MetaBank. Previously,
Mr. Moore, age 40, had been the president of ther@elowa Market of MetaBank, a position he hatttgnce 1998. He joined MetaBank in
1997 as a Vice President in the Central lowa Matdet Moore received a Bachelor of Business Adnifaitson degree from lowa State
University, Ames, lowa. Mr. Moore is the son-iwlaf James S. Haahr, the Company’s Chairman oBtieed, and the brother-in-law of J.
Tyler Haahr, the Company’s President and Chief Httee Officer.

On April 23, 2007, Mr. Scott Galit, age 38, was rahitxecutive Vice President of Meta Payments Systedditionally, Mr. Galit
serves on the MetaBank Executive Committee. Mtit @eeviously served as Senior Vice President twf@@l Prepaid Products at MasterCard
® Worldwide. Prior to joining MasterCafd , Mr. Galias Senior Vice President and General ManagEirsf Data Prepaid Solutions.

Mr. Galit was a founding board member of the NetwBranded Prepaid Card Association (“NBPCA”) andrently serves on the NBPCA
Advisory Board.

On January 28, 2008, Mr. David W. Leedom, age S appointed Senior Vice President and Secretagastrer, and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company. Additionally, Mreedom became a member of the Executive Commifteeboth the Company and
MetaBank. Mr. Leedom brings over 23 years of eigmee in the banking and financial services indutirthe company. Since January, 2007,
Mr. Leedom served as Senior Vice President of BlistCredit and Business Analytics at MetaBank. pteviously served as a Senior and as
an Executive Vice President for BankFirst for 1angeprior to joining Meta in January 2007; his eigrece at BankFirst included his positions
as EVP of Accounting and Finance and Credit Padfelanagement. Mr. Leedom received a BachelorusdiBess Administration in
Accounting degree from the University of lowa.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

Factors that, individually or in the aggregate,thiak could cause our actual results to differ rmathy from expected and historical
results include those described below as well lasratsks and factors identified from time to timeour SEC filings. The Company’s business
could be harmed by any of the risks noted beloWwe ffading price of the Compasytommon stock could decline due to any of theses rian
you may lose all or part of your investment. Inessing these risks, you should also refer to therdhformation contained in this annual re|
on Form 10-K, including the Company’s financialtetaents and related notes.

Risks Related to the Banking Industry

Changes in economic and political conditions cowdversely affect the Company’s earnings, as the @amy’s borrowers’ ability to repay
loans and the value of the collateral securing t®mpany’s loans decline.

The Company’s success depends, to a certain exaom, economic and political conditions, local aiational, as well as
governmental monetary policies. Conditions sucnfigtion, recession, unemployment, changes irr@sderates, money supply and other
factors beyond the Company’s control may adveratct the Company’s asset quality, deposit leaels loan demand and, therefore, the
Company’s earnings. Because the Company has disggrtiamount of real estate loans, decreasesirestate values could adversely affect
the value of property used as collateral. Amorigeothings, adverse
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changes in the economy, including but not limitedhie current economic downturn, may also havegathnee effect on the ability of the
Company’s borrowers to make timely repayments eirloans, which would have an adverse impact erGbmpany’s earnings. In addition,
the vast majority of the Company’s loans are tdviddials and businesses in the Company’s market aBonsequently, any economic decline
in the Company’s market area could have an adwerngact on the Company’s earnings.

Recessionary environment may adversely impact tioenPanys earnings and new governmental initiatives maytrpyove effective.

Recently, there seems to be widespread agreenanhthU.S., and perhaps the world economy in génleais entered a period of
recession. As described above, a recession maydraadverse impact on the Company’s revenuesanche, both in the banking and MPS
segments. Further, passage of the Emergency EdorBiabilization Act of 2008 and the implementatibereof by the US Treasury and the
federal banking agencies may not prove effectivaigh to blunt the effect of the downturn in theremmy. See “Regulation” herein.

Changes in interest rates could adversely affea tbompany’s results of operations and financial attion.

The Company’s earnings depend substantially ofCtdrapany’s interest rate spread, which is the diffee between (i) the rates we
earn on loans, securities and other earning asselgji) the interest rates we pay on depositsahdr borrowings. These rates are highly
sensitive to many factors beyond the Company’srogrincluding general economic conditions andbécies of various governmental and
regulatory authorities. As market interest rates,rwe will have competitive pressures to increahsaates we pay on deposits, which may
result in a decrease of the Company’s net inténesine. Conversely, if interest rates fall, yietasloans and investments may fall. Because a
significant portion of the Company’s deposit politias in noninterest bearing accounts, such a change in radafidikely result in a decrea
in the Company’s net interest income. For add@ionformation, see Iltem 7A, herein.

The Company operates in a highly regulated enviroamh, and changes in laws and regulations to whick are subject may adversely affect
the Company'’s results of operations.

MetaBank and the Company operate in a highly regdlanvironment and are subject to extensive régalasupervision and
examination by the Office of Thrift Supervision (TG”) and the Federal Deposit Insurance CorpordtiBPIC"). See “Business —
Regulation” herein. Applicable laws and regulasonay change, and there is no assurance that baolyes will not adversely affect the
Company’s business. Such regulation and supernvigiwern the activities in which an institution menygage including the activities of
MetaBank’s Meta Payment Systems Division, and mended primarily for the protection of MetaBanlklaheir depositors. Regulatory
authorities have extensive discretion in connect¥ith their supervisory and enforcement activitiesjuding but not limited to the imposition
of restrictions on the operation of an institutitine classification of assets by the institutiod #me adequacy of an institution’s allowance for
loan losses. Any change in such regulation andsiy&t, whether in the form of restrictions on eittés, regulatory policy, regulations, or
legislation, including but not limited to changeghe regulations governing savings banks, coule lmamaterial impact on MetaBank and the
Company’s operations.
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Changes in technology could be costly.

The banking industry is undergoing technologicabivation at a fast pace. To keep up with its cditipe, the Company needs to
stay abreast of innovations and evaluate thosetdapies that will enable it to compete on a cdieative basis. This is especially true with
respect to MetaBank’s Meta Payment Systems Divisibime cost of such technology, including personcesh be high in both absolute and
relative terms. There can be no assurance, gheefast pace of change and innovation, that thepg2oyis technology, either purchased or
developed internally, will meet or continue to méet needs of the Company.

Risks Related to the Company’s Business
The Company operates in an extremely competitivekeg and the Company’s business will suffer ifi unable to compete effectively.

In the Company’s market area, MetaBank encountgnificant competition from other commercial bangayings and loan
associations, credit unions, mortgage banking ficnasumer finance companies, securities brokdiags, insurance companies, money
market mutual funds and other financial intermeadi&r Many of MetaBanks’ competitors have subssdgtgreater resources and lending
limits and may offer services that MetaBank doesan@annot provide. The Company’s profitabilitgpgnds upon the Company’s continued
ability to compete successfully in the Company'skatarea. The Meta Payment Systems Division ¢eer@n a national scale against
competitors with substantially greater resourceslamited barriers to entry. The Divisiagnhsuccess depends upon its ability to competedh
an environment.

The loss of key members of the Company’s senior agement team could adversely affect the Companyisitbess.

We believe that the Company’s success dependdyavgahe efforts and abilities of the Company’asise management. Their
experience and industry contacts significantly liiems. The competition for qualified personnetliire financial services industry is intense,
and the loss of any of the Company’s key persoaneah inability to continue to attract, retain andtivate key personnel could adversely
affect the Company’s business.

The Company’s loan portfolio includes loans withhagher risk of loss.

MetaBank originates commercial mortgage loans, cersial loans, consumer loans, agricultural mortgages, agricultural loans

and residential mortgage loans primarily within @@mpany’s market areasCommercial mortgage, commercial, and consumer losns

expose a lender to greater credit risk than loanared by residential real estate because tha@allasecuring these loans may not be sold as
easily as residential real estate. These loanshalge greater credit risk than residential retdtedor the following reasons:

+ Commercial Mortgage LoanRepayment is dependent upon income being gendratedounts sufficient to cover operating expel
and debt service.

e Commercial LoanRepayment is dependent upon the successful opeiEttibe borrower’s business.

e Consumer Loangonsumer loans (such as personal lines of creditt@lateralized, if at all, with assets that nmay provide an
adequate source of payment of the loan due to digpien, damage, or loss.
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e Agricultural LoansRepayment is dependent upon the successful opeiatibe business, which is greatly dependent omyntisings
outside the control of either the Bank or the baers. These factors include weather, commodityegriend interest rates, among
others.

« MPS Program Loans MPS originates consumer loans, in some casateceto anticipated tax refunds that are fundgutépaid
cards. For certain of these loans, repaymentdsdan the customer filing a tax return and therivél Revenue Service funding the
tax refund. If either or both do not occur, lossesld result. MPS has loss protection agreemanitace with certain business
partners in which they will absorb some or all o€ls losses in the event they were to occur.

If the Compan''s actual loan losses exceed the Company’s allowafar loan losses, the Company’s net income wiltdsase.

The Company makes various assumptions and judgrabotg the collectibility of the Company’s loan ffolio, including the
creditworthiness of the Company’s borrowers andvidiae of the real estate and other assets seagigllateral for the repayment of the
Company’s loans. Despite the Company’s undervgritind monitoring practices, the Company’s loanamsts may not repay their loans
according to their terms, and the collateral segutihe payment of these loans may be insufficiematy any remaining loan balance. The
Company may experience significant loan losseschvbould have a material adverse effect on itsaijpey results. Because the Company
must use assumptions regarding individual loanstl@dconomy, the current allowance for loan lossag not be sufficient to cover actual
loan losses, and increases in the allowance magbessary. The Company may need to significantsease the Company’s provision for
losses on loans if one or more of the Companytgelaloans or credit relationships becomes delingaeii we continue to expand the
Company’s commercial real estate and commercidlitgn In addition, federal and state regulatonsogiécally review the Company’s
allowance for loan losses and may require the Compaincrease the Company’s provision for loarséssor recognize loan charge-offs.
Material additions to the Company’s allowance wauldterially decrease the Company’s net income. ddmpany cannot assure you that its
monitoring procedures and policies will reduce aartending risks or that the Company’s allowarmeléan losses will be adequate to cover
actual losses.

If the Company forecloses on and takes ownershipged! estate collateral property, it may be subjezthe increased costs associated v
the ownership of real property, resulting in redugeevenues.

The Company may have to foreclose on collatergbgnty to protect its investment and may thereaften and operate such property.
In such case, the Company will be exposed to #kes iinherent in the ownership of real estate. aeunt that the Company, as a mortgagee,
may realize after a default is dependent upon faaatside of the Company’s control, including, bat limited to: (i) general or local
economic conditions; (ii) neighborhood values) (iiterest rates; (iv) real estate tax rates; fpgrating expenses of the mortgaged properties;
(vi) supply of and demand for rental units or pntigs; (vii) ability to obtain and maintain adegai@iccupancy of the properties; (viii) zoning
laws; (ix) governmental rules, regulations anddiqmlicies; and (x) acts of God. Certain expamnéi$ associated with the ownership of real
estate, principally real estate taxes and maintmaaosts, may adversely affect the income fromréhkestate. Therefore, the cost of operating
a real property may exceed the rental income edroedsuch property, and the Company may have varak funds in order to protect the
Company’s investment, or may be required to dispdske real property at a loss. The foregoingeexiitures and costs could adversely affect
the Company'’s ability to generate revenues, rexgyiti reduced levels of profitability.
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Environmental liability associated with commerci@nding could have a material adverse effect on thempan'’s business, financial
condition and results of operations.

In the course of the Company'’s business, it mayiaegthrough foreclosure, commercial propertiesisag loans that are in default.
There is a risk that hazardous substances coutiisbevered on those properties. In this eventCibepany could be required to remove the
substances from and remediate the properties aitscost and expense. The cost of removal andamaental remediation could be
substantial. The Company may not have adequatediesiagainst the owners of the properties or aggonsible parties and could find it
difficult or impossible to sell the affected profies. These events could have a material advéfieset en the Company’s business, financial
condition and operating results.

If the Company fails to maintain an effective systeof internal control over financial reporting, itmay not be able to accurately report t
Company'’s financial results or prevent fraud, ands a result, investors and depositors could losefw®nce in the Company’s financial
reporting, which could adversely affect the Compaspusiness, the trading price of the Company’sat@nd the Company’s ability to
attract additional deposits.

Beginning with this annual report on Form 10-K, @@mpany has to include in its annual reports filétth the SEC a report of the
Company’s management regarding internal control imancial reporting. As a result, we began {gsir to document and evaluate the
Company'’s internal control over financial reportingorder to satisfy the requirements of SectioA dbthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (or
SOA) and SEC rules and regulations, which requirarsmnual management report on the Company’s inteamrol over financial reporting,
including, among other matters, management’s aseaaof the effectiveness of internal control ofieancial reporting. The SOA also
requires an attestation report by the Company’speddent auditors addressing these assessmemscainiclusion of our 2009 fiscal year on
September 30, 2009. Accordingly, management hasesl outside consultants to assist the Compalfiy assessing and documenting the
adequacy of the Company'’s internal control oveatiicial reporting, (ii) improving control processeere appropriate, and (iii) verifying
through material weaknesses or testing that cangn@ functioning as documented. If the Compaity fa identify and correct any significant
deficiencies in the design or operating effectivesnef the Company’s internal control over financegdorting or fails to prevent fraud, current
and potential stockholders and depositors could tmsmfidence in the Company’s financial reportiwgich could adversely affect the
Company'’s business, financial condition and resafligperations, the trading price of the Compamsytek, and the Comparsyability to attrac
additional deposits.

The previously reported two material weaknessésternal controls from fiscal year 2007 have beemerted and eliminated. No
other material weaknesses have been identifiedrnnection with the Company’s fiscal year 2008 autfimaterial weaknesses are identified
in the future, such weaknesses could have a matapact on the profitability and performance oé tBompany.

The Company’s duties under the Sarbanes-Oxley Aic2@02 have been increasing and are anticipatednorease further in fiscal 2009.

As indicated in a preceding risk fact, pursuartherequirements of Section 404 of the SOA Act,gigg with this annual report the
Company is required to provide an annual manageassgssment of the effectiveness of our internarals over financial reporting.
Beginning with our next annual report for the fisgaar ending September 30, 2009, Section 404e8A will also require a report by our
independent auditors addressing our managemesesaments. These reporting and other obligatiams placed, and will increasingly
continue to place, significant demands on our mament, administrative, operational, internal audit,and accounting resources. We are
implementing additional
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financial and management controls, reporting systand procedures and an internal audit functionaaeadiring additional accounting,
internal audit and finance staff. If we are unablaccomplish these objectives in a timely andetife fashion, our ability to comply with our
financial reporting requirements and other ruled #pply to public companies could be impaired.

A breach of information security or compliance brel by one of the Compar's agents or vendors could negatively affect thenGmany’s
reputation and business.

MetaBank, including the Meta Payment Systems Divisif MetaBank, depends on data processing, contation and information
exchange on a variety of computing platforms artdvaeks and over the internet. The Company caneatdstain all of its systems are entirely
free from vulnerability to attack, despite safegisait has installed. Additionally, the Companyigglon and does business with a variety of
third-party service providers, agents and vendatis kgspect to the Company’s business, data andmorications needs. If information
security is breached, or one of the Company’s aganvendors breaches compliance procedures, iateymcould be lost or misappropriated,
resulting in financial loss or costs to the Compangamages to others. These costs or losses owmiktially exceed the Compasyamount ¢
insurance coverage, if any, which would adversécathe Company’s business.

Risks Related to the Company’s Stock
The price of the Company’s common stock may be titdawhich may result in losses for investors.

The market price for shares of the Company’s comatook has been volatile in the past, and sevacabifs could cause the price to
fluctuate substantially in the future. These fegiaclude:

« announcements of developments related to the Coyrgbusiness,

e fluctuations in the Company'’s results of operatjons

« sales of substantial amounts of the Company’s g@&siinto the marketplace,

« general conditions in the Company’s banking nichthe worldwide economy,

« ashortfall in revenues or earnings compared targiees analysts’ expectations,

« lack of an active trading market for the commorckto

» changes in analysts’ recommendations or projectiang

«  The Company’s announcement of new acquisitionghmergrojects.

The market price of the Company’s common stock fhutuate significantly in the future, and thesectliations may be unrelated to

the Company’s performance. General market priciirdes or market volatility in the future could atgely affect the price of the Company’s
common stock, and the current market price maypaandicative of future market prices.

The Company’s common stock is thinly traded, andishyour ability to sell shares or purchase additadrshares of the Company’s common
stock will be limited, and the market price at atigne may not reflect true value

Your ability to sell shares of the Company’s comnstock or purchase additional shares largely depapdn the existence of an
active market for the common stock. The Compangtamon stock is quoted on NASDAQ Stock Market,thetvolume of trades on any
given day is light, and you may be
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unable to find a buyer for shares you wish to @el seller of additional shares you wish to pusehaln addition, a fair valuation of the
purchase or sales price of a share of common stigckdepends upon active trading, and thus the yda receive for a thinly traded stock,
such as the Company’s common stock, may not refetitue value.

Future sales or additional issuances of the Compangapital stock may depress prices of shares & @ompany’s common stock or
otherwise dilute the book value of shares then datsling.

Sales of a substantial amount of the Company’salagtiock in the public market or the issuance sigaificant number of shares
could adversely affect the market price for shafdhe Company’s common stock. As of Septembe2808, the Company was authorized to
issue up to 5,200,000 shares of common stock, afhw?601,103 shares were outstanding, and 35&B8&s were held as treasury stock.
Company was also authorized to issue up to 800s8afes of preferred stock, none of which is outitanor reserved for issuance.
Accordingly, without further stockholder approvildle Company may issue up to 2,598,897 additioreleshof common stock. This factor n
affect the market price for shares of the Compangtamon stock.

Federal regulations may inhibit a takeover, prevemtransaction you may favor or limit the Companygsowth opportunities, which could
cause the market price of the Company’s common kttmcdecline.

Certain provisions of the Company’s charter docusiand federal regulations could have the effech@aking it more difficult for a
third party to acquire, or of discouraging a thatty from attempting to acquire, control of thengany. In addition, the Company must ob
approval from regulatory authorities before it @mguire control of any other company.

The Company may not be able to pay dividends inftitare in accordance with past practice.

The Company pays a quarterly dividend to stockhsld@he payment of dividends is subject to legal Bgulatory restrictions. Any
payment of dividends in the future will dependlarge part, on MetaBan&'earnings, capital requirements, financial coadiind other factol
considered relevant by the Company’s Board of Dinec
Risks Related to Meta Payment Systenfs , a divisimi MetaBank
MPS’ products and services are highly regulated findakproducts subject to extensive supervision ardulation.

The products and services offered by MPS are higggulated by federal banking agencies, state bgragencies, and other federal
and state regulators. Some of the laws and retatpdations affecting its operations include cansuprotection laws, escheat laws, privacy
laws, and data protection laws. Compliance withréllevant legal paradigm in which the division rapes is costly and requires significant
personnel resources, as well as extensive contatttoutside lawyers and consultants hired by M®Stay abreast of the applicable regulatory
schemes.
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While some proposed legislation would benefit MRSs possible that new legislation could restridPS’s current operations or change the
regulatory environment in which the division’s custners operate.

Although it is possible that some newly enactedslagon could have either a positived® minimismpact on its operations and
profitability it is just as likely that any new lestation affecting the operations of MPS or itstonsers, some of which are also regulated
entities, would have a negative impact on the cohdfithe relevant business. There is no way #ntjfy the impact that such changes could
have on the profitability or operations of MPSHisttime given the unpredictable nature of the.risk

In addition to the relevant legal paradigm setH@tbove, it should also be noted that there has beecern within the bank regulatory
environment over the use of credit and, in paréicybrepaid cards as a means by which to illedgallpder and move money. Should the
regulatory scheme change in any fashion as tothiéecurrent environment by which such productsserdices may be offered, this could h
a significant impact upon MPS'’s operations as @aglthe operations of its customers.

MPS, through MetaBank, owns or is seeking a numhsrpatents, trademarks and other forms of intelleat property with respect to th
operation of its business and the protection of buntellectual property may in the future require aterial expenditures.

In its operations, MPS, through MetaBank, is segkirotection for various forms of intellectual pesty. No assurance can be given
that such protection will be granted. In addititme competitive market environment of its busind4B8S must be vigilant in ensuring that its
patents and other intellectual property are prettand not exploited by unlicensed third parties.

MPS must also protect itself and defend againstledtual property challenges initiated by thirdtjgs making various claims against
MPS. With respect to these claims, regardlesshafther we are pursuing our claims against perceinfeidgers or defending our intellectual
property from third parties asserting various ckiofiinfringement, it is possible that significg@rsonnel time and monetary resources could
be used to pursue or defend such claims.

It should also be noted that intellectual propeigis extend to foreign countries whose protectiofsuch property are not as
extensive as those in the United States. As SMBY§ may need to spend additional sums to ensurddhiatellectual property protections are
maximized globally. Moreover, should there be damal, improper use of MPS’ intellectual propertyis could have an impact on the
division’s operations.

Contracts with third-parties may not be renewed, yrize renegotiated on terms that are not as favoeatd MPS or may not be fulfilled.

MPS has entered into numerous contracts with fhérties with respect to the operations of its besén In some instances, the third
parties provide services to MPS; in other instan®H3S provides products and services to such partles. Were such agreements not to be
renewed by the third party or were such agreentertie renewed on terms less favorable to MPS, aatitbns could have a material impact on
the division’s profitability.

Similarly, were one of these parties unable to ntiegt obligations to us for any reason (including not limited to bankruptcy,
computer or other technological interruptions dufas, personnel loss or Acts of God), we may reeskek alternative service providers and
the terms with such alternate providers may nastavorable as those currently in place. In @mditvere such failures to
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cause a material disruption in our ability to seevdur customers, it is possible that our custdmse would shrink. Moreover, were the
disruptions in our ability to provide services sfgrant, this could negatively affect the perceptif our business in the card industry.

International expansion presents unique opporturdd and challenge.

The international use of cards, both credit angaice continues to grow. Such growth presents MRIS opportunities to acquire
market share where its presence has been eithenabiar nonexistent. Investments must be madébydivision to pursue such opportunities,
however, and the return on such investments magrelte slow to mature or may fail to materializenptetely. In addition, the pursuit of
additional foreign opportunities may prevent theigslon from focusing on its current domestic busime

Existing insurance policies may not adequately prot MPS.

Business interruption and property insurance pagi@re in place with respect to the operations®SMShould any event triggering
such policies occur, however, it is possible thatmolicies would not fully reimburse us for thesses we could sustain.

Costs of conforming products and services to they@nt Card Industry Data Security Standards (theCPDSS”) are costly and could
continue to affect the operations of MPS.

The PCI DSS is a multifaceted standard that indwtia security management, policies and procedaseasell as other protective
measures, that was created by the largest crediassociations in the world in an effort to protie nonpublic personal information of all
types of cardholders, including prepaid cardhol@ded holders of network branded credit cards (sscBiscover, MasterCard, and Visa). The
PCI DSS mandates a prescribed technical foundédiathe collection, storage and transmission oflbatder data and also contains significant
provisions regarding the testing of security protexts by various entities in the payment card ingusncluding MPS. Compliance with the
PCI DSS is costly and changes to the standards ¢t@we an equal, or greater, effect on profitgbditthe relevant business division.

The potential for fraud in the card payment industis significant.

Issuers of prepaid and credit cards have suffaggdfisant losses in recent years with respechttheft of cardholder data that has
been illegally exploited for personal gain. Theftof such information is regularly reported affiéets not only individuals but businesses as
well (albeit to a lesser degree). Many types eflitrcard fraud exist, including the counterfeitfgcards and “skimming.” “Skimming” is the
term for a specialized type of credit card inforimatheft whereby, typically, an employee of a neat will copy the cardholdes’number an
security code (either by handwriting the informatianto a piece of paper, entering such informaitiém a keypad or other device, or using a
handheld device which “reads” and then stores #neé mformation embedded in the magnetic striphc®a credit card number and security
code has been skimmed, the skimmer can use summiation for purchases until the unauthorized sstetected either by the cardholder or
the card issuer.

Losses from skimming have been substantial foagedard industry participants. Although skimmhmas not had a material impact
on the profitability of MPS, it is possible thatcsuactivity could impact this division at some timehe future.
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Part of our business depends on sales agents whaatell our products exclusive.

Our business model, to some degree, depends upars¢hof sales agents who are not our employeesseTagents sell the products
and services of many different processors to metshend other parties in need of a card servi€adlure to maintain good relations with such
sales agents could have a negative impact on Gimdss.

Products and services offered by MPS involve mangihess parties and the possibility of collusionsxs.

As described above, the theft of cardholder dagasignificant threat in the industry in which MBferates. This threat also includes
the possibility that there is collusion betweenaierparticipants in the card system to act illggalAlthough MPS is not aware of any instan
to date, it is possible that such activities coaddur in the future, thereby impacting its opemratmd profitability.

Competition in the card industry is significant.nlorder to maintain an edge to its products anderfhgs, MPS must invest significantly in
technology and research and development.

The heavy emphasis upon technology in the prodaradsservices offered by MPS requires significameexitures with respect to
research and development both to exploit technotgains and to develop new products and serticaset customers’ needs. As is
common with most research and development, whiteesefforts may yield substantial benefits for tihasion, others will not, thereby
resulting in expenditures for which profits will toe realized. MPS is not able to predict with degree of certainty as to the level of research
and development that will be required in the fuftm@v much those efforts will cost, or how profilsuch developments will be for the
division once undertaken.

Discover, MasterCard, and Visa, as well as othezattonic funds networks in which MPS operates, cduhange their rules

Pursuant to the agreements between MPS and DisddeasterCard, Visa and other card networks, thieiseé parties typically have
retained the right to prescribe certain busineastjmes and procedures with respect to parties asdiPS. Such prescribed terms include, but
are not limited to, a contracting party’s leveloapital as well as other business requirements.

Discover, MasterCard, and Visa also retain thetriiglheir agreements with industry participantstsas MPS to unilaterally change
the rules under which such transactions are predesgh little or no advance warning. This poweelides the power to prevent MPS from
accessing their networks in order to process tctimses. Should any third party choose to invoks tight unilaterally, such changes could
materially impact the operations of the MPS divisio

Our business is heavily dependent upon the Interaatl any negative disruptions to its operation cduiegatively impact our business.

Much of our business depends upon transactiong lpeotessed through the Internet. Like nearlptiler commercial enterprises,
rely upon others to provide the Internet so thabm®rce can be conducted. Were there to be addiluhe operation of the Internet or a
significant impairment in our ability to move infaation on the Internet or our ability to do so az@rdance with customer safeguard protoc
the MPS division would develop alternative procssdering which time profitability may be somewhawer.
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Our ability to process transactions requires funating communication and electricity lines.

The nature of the credit card and debit card ingiustthat it must be operational every day ofweek every hour of the week. Any
disruption in the utilities utilized by MPS couldVe a negative effect on our operations and extertisruptions could materially affect our
operations.

Data encryption technology has not been perfected aigilance in Meta Payments Syste’ information technology systems is costly.

MPS holds sensitive business and personal infoomatith respect to the products and services érsff This information, which is
generally digitally encrypted, is passed alongaasitechnology channels, including the Interneithdugh MPS encrypts its customer and
other sensitive information and expends signifidar@ncial and personnel resources to maintainrttegrity of its technology networks and |
confidentiality of nonpublic customer informatidmecause such information may travel on public tetdgy and other nosecure channels, t
confidential information is susceptible to hackaryd other illegal intrusions. Were such a secumigach to occur, the provision of products
and services to Meta Payment System'’s customerfvbelimpaired and the division could incur sigrafit fines from the electronic funds
associations involved, significant regulatory fimeposed by federal and/or state regulators anergtfohibitions, as well as extensive
litigation from commercial parties and consumefe@&gd by such breach.

Unclaimed funds represented by unused value on ¢heds presents compliance and other risks.

The notion of escheatment involves property thabandoned and its rightful owner cannot be redddgted and/or identified. In the
context of prepaid cards, the funds representeslioh cards can sometimes be “abandoned” or unoselef relevant period of time set forth
in each applicable stakeabandoned property laws. Although MPS utilizégemated programs to ensure its operations are l@mhvith suct
applicable laws and regulations, there appears t fmovement among some state regulators to ietadpfinitions in those statutes and
regulations in a manner that is different from dd industry interpretations. Should such staggilators choose to do so, they may initiate
enforcement or other litigation action against pidard issuers such as Meta Payments Systems.

MPS operates in a highly competitive environmentdatie ability to attract and retain qualified peraael may be difficult.

MPS competes in a highly competitive environmerhwither larger and better capitalized financiédimediaries. In addition, the
field of professionals involved in the design amdduction of products and services offered by M&Bighly skilled and actively sought after
by financial institutions, electronic card netwodsd other commercial entities. As such, MPS rapshd significant sums to attract emplo
and executives and must monitor compensation amet employment trends to ensure that compensatiokages both foster the necessary
creative environment and appropriately compensath mdividuals in order to retain them.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not Applicable.
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Item 2. Properties

The Company conducts its business at its maineéiud branch office in Storm Lake, lowa. The Comypaperates six offices in
metro Des Moines, lowa. The Company also ope@iesffice in Brookings, South Dakota and foura#8 in Sioux Falls, South Dakota. In
addition, the Company leases space at anotheitydnilSioux Falls, South Dakota, which houses gaheorporate and MPS functions, leases
space in Omaha, Nebraska, which houses certainfitiREons and operates a non-retail service briméhemphis, Tennessee.

The Company owns all of its offices, except for tinanch offices located in Storm Lake Plaza, Stbake, lowa, on Westown
Parkway, West Des Moines, lowa, on North Minnegotanue, Sioux Falls, South Dakota, on South Westemmue, Sioux Falls, South
Dakota, on West 12th Street, Sioux Falls, Southdbmkhe administrative and MPS offices locatedomadband Lane in Sioux Falls, Omaha
and the non-retail service branch in Memphis, Tesee. In regard to the South Western and Wet3t2eet locations in Sioux Falls, South
Dakota, the land on which the buildings were carcded is leased. The total net book value of tam@any’s premises and equipment
(including land, building and leasehold improvensesrid furniture, fixtures and equipment) at Septm3B, 2008 was $22.0 million. See N
7 to the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statesiawhich is included in Part Il, ltem 8 “Financi@tatements and Supplementary Data” of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K/A.

The Company is experiencing rapid growth, partidulas a result of growth of MPS. While currentifties are adequate to meet its
present needs, the Company may add additionalidmsain the future, and may be required to expamhcity for administrative support
functions.

MetaBank maintains an on-line data base with aicetwreau, whose primary business is providingy sgevices to financial
institutions. The net book value of the data psso®y and computer equipment utilized by the Compdrseptember 30, 2008 was
approximately $2.6 million.

ltem 3. Legal Proceedings

MetaBank (“the Bank”) was namedé@veral lawsuits relating to certain borrowershef Bank, known as the Dan Nelson
companies. All of these lawsuits have now beealves.

The case @hris Dengler, et al, v. Nelson Automotive Group. | et alwas recently resolved when the South Dakota Supfeooet
dismissed the plaintiffs’ appeal of the lower cidismissal of the Bank. In the Circuit Court of South Dakota, County of Mehaha, (Civ.
No. 0€-1106) a lawsuit was filed by a number of plairgtiffho had purchased vehicles from the Dan Nelsoipeaies. This suit named the
Bank and J. Tyler Haahr, together with a numbeatbér defendants. The Bank, in conjunction witfr@up of participating banks, had
provided a series of loans and lines of credit &am Dlelson Auto Group (“DNAG”) and South Dakota Agta:mce Corporation (“SDAC").
Plaintiffs allege that the defendants, including Bank, “participated in the fraudulent schemeVbjue of providing these lines of credit and
loans despite being aware of the predatory conspnaetices of the Nelson companies, and that MetkBaofited by receiving undisclosed
“special benefits” for providing these loans. DNAEDAC and Dan Nelson have since filed for bankeyptPlaintiffs also allege that
MetaBank did not vigorously pursue claims againsh Delson and fellow DNAG executive Chris Tapkethigir respective personal
bankruptcies in order to allow these individualgitoerge with control over assets of their formanpanies. After the Bank filed a Motion to
Dismiss, the claims against J. Tyler Haahr perdprald MetaBank were dismissed with prejudice amuday 4, 2008. Plaintiffs appealed a:
the dismissal of MetaBank only, to the South Dakadareme Court. The South Dakota Supreme Courtisgd the plaintiff's appeal.
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First Midwest Bank-Deerfield Brarsh et al, v. MetaBankJ.S. District Court for the District of South DakotSouthern Division
(4:06-cv-4114). During the three months ended Be&006 or shortly thereafter three banks fiedduits against MetaBank. An additional
bank, North American Banking Company, joined thibsee bank plaintiffs in one consolidated fedeaslduit. These four Plaintiffs were
participating lenders with MetaBank on a seriekahs made to the Dan Nelson companies, includiNg® and SDAC. Plaintiffs alleged
that they suffered damages as a result of MetaBgplkcement and administration of the loans thaewe subject of the loan participation
agreements. The complaints alleged breach of @atntnegligence, gross negligence, negligent miesgmtation, fraud in the inducement,
unjust enrichment and breach of fiduciary dutyl dilthese four cases have now been resolved thrmegiations which took place in July ¢
August, 2008. Settlement agreements have beentexk@nd the cases have been dismissed. The @gia@surance carrier has agreed to
cover virtually all of the settlement amounts ireth cases and paid for counsel to defend all fotiwres through discovery.

Home Federal Bank v. J. Tyler Hadbaniel A. Nelson and MetaBa(Riv. No. 06-2230). On June 26, 2006, Home Fedgaalk
filed suit against MetaBank and two individualsTyler Haahr and Daniel A. Nelson, in South Dakstaecond Judicial Circuit Court,
Minnehaha County. The complaint alleged that Hémderal, a participating lender with MetaBank mseges of loans made to DNAG and
SDAC, suffered damages exceeding $3.8 million eesalt of failure to make disclosures regardingraestigation of Dan Nelson, DNAG and
SDAC by the lowa Attorney General at the time Hdreeleral agreed to an extension of the loan paaticip agreements. After discovery was
complete and a trial date scheduled, this casesuazessfully mediated and settled in Sioux Fall®otober 2, 2008. A settlement agreement
was signed on that date, and the case has nowdiseissed. As a result of the Home Federal se#tienon a pro rated basis net of previously
established reserves and insurance proceeds akelédyted, the net effect on the Registrant isarge of $1.0 million. As a result of all these
Dan Nelson settlements, the Company recorded bdiraage of approximately $2.1 million ($1.3 mili@fter taxes), including legal expenses
and after insurance claims and reserves are acnémt

In an unrelated siHiyst Federal Bank Littlefield Texas ssb, formethown as, First Federal Savings and Loan Assodiatio
Littlefield, Texas v. MetaBank, formerly known astederal Savings Bank of the Midwest, filedhia 154" Judicial District Court of Lamb
County(Cause No. 17435)The Frost National Bank v. MetaBank and Meta Finah@roup, Inc., filed in the United States Districourt for
the Northern District of Texa&ause No. 3:08-CV-625-M). On April 3, 2008, FiFgtderal Bank filed suit against MetaBank in TeQtaste
Court in Lubbock seeking recovery of a purporteddBank certificate of deposit (CD) that it claimpurchased. On April 11, 2008, Frost
National Bank filed suit against MetaBank in theitdd States District Court for the District of Texseeking a similar recovery. On June
2008, an action was filed in the 95  Judicial Dist€ourt for Dallas County, Texas entitlbtethodist Hospitals of Dallas v MetaBank and
Meta Financial Grougseeking recovery of a purported MetaBank CD puretiés May, 2001. Additionally, on July 14, 2008;lass action
complaint was filed in the United States Districtu® for the District of New Hampshire entiti&@lardian Angel Credit Union v MetaBank
(Cause No. 08-CV-261-PB) and was filed on behaltbo&rdian Angel Credit Union and all other CD pasérs similarly situated, to recover
funds in connection with purported MetaBank CDgitier, on November 18, 2008, Coreplus Federal Ckénion (Cause No. 3.08 cv 1763
AVC) filed a civil action in the Superior Court ftdlew London County in the state of Connecticut segkecovery of funds connected to a
purported MetaBank CD. Earlier, MetaBank had bemmtacted by another institution, but could findraoord of the CD it had allegedly
purchased, and commenced an investigation. Asudt ifghat investigation, it now appears that axfer MetaBank employee had been selling
fraudulent CDs, using MetaBank’s name and stanfiard of CD, to various financial institutions thiglu an independent broker and
instructing purchasers to wire the purchase mon&yane of a number of false accounts she hadedtedtMetaBank. The Bank continues to
receive a number of demands from purchasers oé thhasdulent CDs in addition to the
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lawsuits listed above. All evidence currently agble indicates that the former employee ran tlgdrfor her own benefit and regularly took
money from the MetaBank accounts to which the paselmonies had been wired. As a result of theerinption of this fraud, there are some
$4.2 million of bogus CDs still outstanding to vars financial institutions. As the former employess apparently using the funds of new
victims to pay off the previous victims of her sofes it does not appear at this time that she stoyeBank money as part of this fraud.
MetaBank therefore does not appear at this tinfexte suffered any direct loss as a result of thedy but it may suffer a loss to the extent it is
exposed to liability for claims such as theseherE are unresolved questions as whether, unddrtird@y and to what degree the Bank might
be liable for the former employee’s actions. Astlime, MetaBank’s insurer has agreed to providefense to the two litigations in Texas
under a reservation of rights.

Other than the matters set fortbvab there are no other material pending legalgedings to which the Company or its subsidiaries
is a party other than ordinary routine litigatiantheir respective businesses.

ltem 4. Submission of Matters ta Vote of Security Holders

No matter was submitted to a vote of security hadarough the solicitation of proxies or othemyiduring the quarter ended
September 30, 2008.

PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Shareholder Matters andssuer Purchases of Securities

Meta Financial Group’s common sttekles on the NASDAQ Global Market under the sghtiGASH.” Quarterly dividends for
2008 and 2007 were $0.13. The price range ofthewon stock, as reported on the NASDAQ System,agdsllows:

Fiscal Year 2008 Fiscal Year 2007

Low High Low High
First Quartel $ 38.8: % 41.9t $ 24.1F $ 29.8(
Second Quarte 17.3¢ 40.7¢ 27.3: 35.5(
Third Quartel 16.0C 27.0( 31.0¢ 38.22
Fourth Quarte 16.8¢ 27.5¢ 37.5( 42.0(

Prices disclose inter-dealer quotations withouwditehark-up, mark-down or commissions, and do remessarily represent actual
transactions.

Dividend payment decisions are made with consideraif a variety of factors including earnings dirtial condition, market
considerations, and regulatory restrictions.

As of September 30, 2008, Meta Financial Group2)&883,655 shares of common stock outstanding, whiee held by 249
shareholders of record, and 311,328 shares subjectstanding options. The shareholders of renardber does not reflect approximately
500 persons or entities that hold their stock imimze or “street” name.
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The transfer agent for the Company’s common stedékegistrar & Transfer Company, 10 Commerce D@ranford, New Jersey,
07016.

There have been no purchases by the Company dhenguarter ended September 30, 2008 of equityritiesuthat are registered by
the Company pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchamge

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(As Restated)

SELECTED FINANCIAL CONDITION DATA
(Dollars in Thousands

Total asset $ 756,40 $ 686,08( $ 740,92 $ 77583¢ $ 780,79
Loans receivable, n 427,92t 355,61: 368,95¢ 415,56¢ 381,40t
Securities available for sa 203,83: 158,70: 172,44 213,24! 290,18t
Goodwill and intangible asse 2,20¢ 1,50¢ 1,50¢ 1,50¢ 1,50¢
Deposits 545,97 522,97¢ 538,16¢ 510,25¢ 433,92¢
Total borrowings 147,68: 78,53¢ 114,78¢ 176,85 241,35:
Shareholdel equity 45,73: 48,09¢ 45,09¢ 42,95¢ 47,27¢
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

(As Restated)
SELECTED OPERATIONS DATA
(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share D

Total interest incom $ 37,418 $ 37,77¢  $ 38,11 $ 38,36¢ $ 33,43
Total interest expens 13,41¢ 16,967 19,61! 20,30¢ 16,89«
Net interest income 24,00: 20,80 18,50! 18,06: 16,53¢
Provision for loan losse 2,71¢ 3,16¢ 31C 4,718 473
Net interest income after provision for loan los 21,28¢ 17,63¢ 18,19! 13,35( 16,06¢
Total nor-interest incom 37,69¢ 21,85¢ 13,49 3,50z 3,29¢
Total non-interest expense 61,82( 36,95¢ 26,64 17,99¢ 13,79
Income (loss) from continuing operations befor@me
tax expense (benefi (2,836 2,53¢ 5,04¢ (1,149 5,56¢
Income tax expense (benefit) (1,007) 1,227 1,66€ (497) 1,90z
Income (loss) from continuing operatic (1,839 1,312 3,37¢ (652 3,66z
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, netgf 811 (147 30¢ (272 32¢
Net income (loss (1,029 1,171 3,68¢ (929) 3,98
Basic earnings (loss) per common sh
Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ (0.77) $ 05z $ 13€¢ $ 0.27) $ 1.4¢
Income (loss) from discontinued operations 0.31 (0.06) 0.12 (0.1 0.12
Net income (loss $ (0.40 $ 04¢ $ 148 $ 0.39) $ 1.61
Diluted earnings (loss) per common shi
Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ (0.69 $ 05C $ 134 $ 0279 $ 1.4¢€
Income (loss) from discontinued operati 0.31 (0.0%) 0.12 (0.1)) 0.1:
Net income (loss) $ (0.35) $ 04t $ 14€ $ (0.38) $ 1.5¢
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YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(As Restated)

SELECTED FINANCIAL RATIOS AND OTHER

DATA
PERFORMANCE RATIOS
Return on average ass -0.14% 0.17% 0.4% -0.12% 0.51%
Return on average ass-continuing operation -0.24% 0.19% 0.45% -0.0€% 0.47%
Return on average equi -2.27% 2.6% 8.55% -2.04% 8.65%
Return on average equ-continuing operation -4.07% 3.01% 7.8% -1.44% 7.98%
Net interest marg-continuing operation 3.51% 3.3% 2.85% 2.5% 2.44%
Operating expense to average assets-continuing
operations 8.25% 5.2% 3.55% 2.2% 1.7&%
QUALITY RATIOS-Continuing Operation
Non-performing assets to total assets at end of 0.9%% 0.3¢% 0.72% 0.84% 0.0%%
Allowance for loan losses to n-performing loan: 76% 19€% 121% 373% 70€%
CAPITAL RATIOS
Shareholde’ equity to total assets at end of per 6.05% 7.01% 6.0<% 5.54% 6.05%
Average shareholde equity to average ass¢ 6.01% 6.2(% 5.7¢% 5.71% 5.91%
OTHER DATA
Book value per common share outstanc $ 1757 $ 1857 $ 17.7¢  $ 17.1¢ $ 18.9¢
Dividends declared per she 0.52 0.52 0.52 0.52 0.52
Number of ful-service offices 13 17 19 17 16
Item 7. Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

This section should be read in conjunction withfdibbwing parts on this Form 10-K/A: Part Il, Iteéh“Consolidated Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data,” Part I, It&m"Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Abdiarket Risk,” and Part I, Item 1
“Description of Business.”

General

Meta Financial Group, In€.  (the “Company”) is atary savings and loan holding company whose prjnsabsidiary is MetaBank
(the “Bank”). The Company focuses on two core besses, its regional retail banking business amatianal payments business, conducted
through its Meta Payment Systefhs  (“MPS”) divisidrhe Company’s retail bank business is focusedstablishing and maintaining long-
term relationships with customers, and is committesierving the financial service needs of the comities in its market area. The retail
bank’s primary market area includes the followimgisties: Buena Vista, Dallas and Polk located imtre¢ and northwestern lowa, and
Brookings, Lincoln, and Minnehaha located in easttial South Dakota. The traditional retail baagraent attracts retail deposits from the
general public and uses those deposits, togethierothier borrowed funds, to originate and purchias&lential and commercial mortgage
loans, and to originate consumer, agricultural @iheér commercial loans.

MPS, a division of the Bank, is an industry leaitethe issuance of prepaid debit cards and isalsmvider of a wide range of
payment-related products and services, includiegaid debit cards such as those related to giftetiunds, rebate, travel and payroll, ATMs,
and consumer credit products. MPS pursues a gyrafevorking with industry-leading companies inaxiety of businesses to help them
introduce new payment products to their customérsaddition, MPS partners with emerging compatiedevelop and introduce new payment
products. MPS earns revenues from fees as wektiag a significant provider of low- and no-costrdend deposits related to its prepaid card

business.

60




Table of Contents
Overview of Corporate Developments

The MPS division continued to demonstrate signifta@rowth on a year-over-year basis. Fiscal 2008Melated card fee income
grew 125% as all product lines were higher thafisital 2007. MPS has expanded its tax-relatednegsi and rebate business lines. During
fiscal 2008 the Bank participated in a test progfantax refund anticipation loans with a major tzeparation firm. The Company took steps
to manage the funding and credit risks and realitseeixpected return on the program. In additMRS provided a prepaid debit card for
refunds with another major tax preparation companiye division also continued to exhibit produataémation as fifteen additional patents
were filed during the fiscal 2008. The iAdvancemilending product, which is a program designegrtvide a line of credit on prepaid cat
is experiencing increasing consumer acceptancearidrmance and has thus far validated managemexpisctations. Expansion
opportunities are currently being considered fig finoduct.

The traditional bank segment is continuing to bitdccustomer base from its previous expansiohéngrowing metropolitan areas of
Sioux Falls, South Dakota and Des Moines, lowae Bank has added seven branches in approximaeelyast seven years in these markets.
The Bank focuses primarily on establishing lending deposit relationships with commercial business®l commercial real estate developers
in these communities. During the second quartéisoél 2008, the Company sold its commercial bagldubsidiary, MetaBank WC, which
included three branches in rural West-Central lowhe transaction closed March 28, 2008. The Cammnow a unitary savings and loan
holding company, not a bank holding company, arsliigect to the jurisdiction of the OTS. This Baation allows the Company to increas
focus on higher growth markets and business lifé® Bank now operates 13 retail banking brandneBrookings (1) and Sioux Falls (4),
South Dakota, in Des Moines (6) and Storm Lakel(®ya and a non-retail service branch in Memphenrfessee.

The Company’s stock trades on the NASDAQ Globalkéaunder the symbol “CASH.”
Financial Condition

The following discussion of the Company’s consdkdifinancial condition should be read in conjunictwith the Selected
Consolidated Financial Information and Consoliddathncial Statements and the related notes indlidéhis Annual Report.

As of September 30, 2008, the Company’s assets lgye$v0.3 million, or 10.3%, to $756.4 million coarpd to $686.1 million at
September 30, 2007, including the sale of approtéin&35.8 million of assets as part of the MetdB®/'C sale during the second quarter of
fiscal 2008. See Note 2 to the “Notes to Constdiddinancial Statements,” which is included intPaitem 8 “Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data” of this Annual Report on FofrKLfor further discussion on discontinued openagio The increase in assets was
reflected primarily in increases in the Compangsigities, loan portfolios and other assets offsgiart by decreases in the Company’s cash,
federal funds sold and assets related to discoedimperations.

Total cash and cash equivalents and federal funidsrgere $8.2 million at September 30, 2008, aekse of $78.2 million, or 90.6%,
from $86.3 million at September 30, 2007. The dase primarily was the result of the Company’s lgiaowth and decision to purchase
mortgage-backed securities during fiscal 2008gdneral, the Company maintains its cash investmermserest-bearing overnight deposits
with various correspondent banks. Federal funtitsdeposits may be maintained at various commebeiaks, including, but not limited to the
following: CitiBank, JP Morgan Chase, LaSalle Ball&l Bank, BNP Paribas, Bank of America, and Bank&ank, with assets in excess of
$1.0 billion. At September 30, 2008 the Companid 8&.2 million of federal funds sold.

61




Table of Contents

Investment securities available for sale, includimgrtgage-backed securities, increased $45.1 mjlbo 28.4%, to $203.8 million at
September 30, 2008, as investment purchases extesde=d maturities, sales, and principal paydowitse Company’s portfolio of
investment securities available for sale consigtagrily of mortgage-backed securities with ballaoaturities, which have relatively short
expected lives and limited maturity extension rig€kuring fiscal year 2008, the Company purchasé®?$ million of mortgage-backed
securities with average lives of three to four gearstated finals of approximately eleven yearess and sold mortgage-backed securities in
the amount of $17.0 million. See Note 4 to the td¢oto Consolidated Financial Statements,” whidhékided in Part II, ltem 8 “Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data” of this AnnegldR on Form 10-K/A.

The Company’s portfolio of net loans receivable@ased by $72.3 million, or 20.3%, to $427.9 millat September 30, 2008 from
$355.6 million at September 30, 2007. The Compaloan growth primarily relates to strong demandcfammercial real estate and
agricultural real estate loans. All categoriesoahs experienced growth except for commercialagritultural business loans, both of which
decreased. See Note 5 to the “Notes to Consotidateancial Statements,” which is included in Rardtem 8 “Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data” of this Annual Report on FOBrKIA.

The Company owns stock in the Federal Home Loark B&HLB”) of Des Moines due to its membership gratticipation in this
banking system. The Company’s investment in stmtksncreased $4.1 million, or 101.5%, to $8.1liomil at September 30, 2008 from $4.0
million at September 30, 2007. The increase wastdan increase in the level of borrowings from FHLB, which require a calculated level
of stock investment based on a formula determinethé FHLB.

Bond insurance receivable increased $6.1 millioBegitember 30, 2008 due to the Company recordiegeivable during fiscal 2008
from our insurance company related to an anticipateovery of certificate of deposit fraud andytiion settlement of DNAG.

Assets related to discontinued operations, helddée, decreased 100.0% or $35.8 million from évels at September 30, 2007 du
the sale of MetaBank WC on March 28, 2008. Seedb the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statgsewhich is included in Part I,
Item 8 “Financial Statements and Supplementary 'Datthis Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for furthdiscussion on discontinued
operations.

MPS Accounts Receivable increased $48.3 millio$50.0 million at September 30, 2008 from $1.7 willat September 30, 2007.
The increase was primarily related to an increaggépaid card funding in transit items at MPS.

Total deposits increased by $23.0 million, or 4.484546.0 million at September 30, 2008 from $B28illion at September 30,
2007. The majority of this increase related taremease in non-interest-bearing checking depositsrepaid cards due to growth at MPS,
although non-MPS deposits grew as well. The Coiygateposit mix continues to shift away from higleesting certificates of deposit and
money market deposits toward low- and no-cost dngatteposits. Total checking deposits increasefid®;3 million, or 34.7%, to $370.0
million at September 30, 2008 from $274.7 millidrSaptember 30, 2007. Total savings and certdicaf deposit declined $34.1 million, or
20.4%, to $132.9 million at September 30, 2008 f&#f7.0 million at September 30, 2007. Money miaakeount balances also decreased
during fiscal year 2008, decreasing $38.3 million47.1%, to $43.0 million at September 30, 20@81i$81.3 million at September 30, 2007.

The Company’s total borrowings increased $69.liomjlor 88.0%, much of which is due to a short-téwmrowing need at the end of
the quarter, to $147.7 million at September 30,8200m $78.5 million at September 30, 2007. Setehld, 10, and 11 to the “Notes to
Consolidated Financial
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Statements,” which is included in Part Il, ItemRrfancial Statements and Supplementary Data” efAlninual Report on Form 10-K/A.

The Company'’s contingent liability for potentiablbon certificates of deposit fraud increased #4lgon for fiscal 2008 as compared
to the prior year. This liability is offset by tladove referenced bond insurance receivable redahaiéng the first quarter of fiscal 2008.

Liabilities related to discontinued operations,dhfer sale, decreased 100.0% or $30.9 million ftbenlevels at September 30, 2007
due to the sale of MetaBank WC on March 28, 2088e Note 2 to the “Notes to Consolidated Finar&tatements,” which is included in
Part 11, Item 8 “Financial Statements and SuppletagrData” of this Annual Report on Form 10-K/A fiurther discussion on discontinued
operations.

At September 30, 2008, the Company’s sharehol@epsity totaled $45.7 million, down $2.4 million fro$48.1 million at
September 30, 2007. The decrease was relatedunfavorable change in the accumulated other congmisive loss on the Company’s
available for sale portfolio and payment of dividsron the Company’s common stock. The above wdsibaoffset by an increase to
additional paid in capital as a result of stock pemsation payments for fiscal 2008. At SeptemBef808, MetaBank continues to meet
regulatory requirements for classification as alwapitalized institution. See Note 15 to the “B®to Consolidated Financial Statements,”
which is included in Part Il, Item 8 “Financial &ments and Supplementary Data” of this Annual Remo Form 10-K/A.

Results of Operations

The following discussion of the Company’s Resuft®©perations should be read in conjunction with $lséected Consolidated
Financial Information and Consolidated Financiat&ments and the related notes included in thisuAhReport.

The Company’s Results of Operations are dependengbinterest income, non-interest income, noer@dt expense, and income tax
expense. Net interest income is the differencepoead, between the average yield on interesirgpassets and the average rate paid on
interest-bearing liabilities. The interest rateesul is affected by regulatory, economic, and cditiye factors that influence interest rates, loan
demand, and deposit flows. The Company, like diin@encial institutions, is subject to interesteraisk to the extent that its interest-earning
assets mature or reprice at different times, oa different basis, than its interest-bearing liéibs. In fiscal 2008, the Company'’s net interest
income after provision for loan losses and its imdarest income improved significantly from leveidiscal 2007. Non-interest expense also
increased in proportion to net interest income r@o-interest income. However, other non-intergpease increased more dramatically from
2007 primarily due to litigation settlement expengemore detailed explanation of the factors resiae for results of operations of the
Company is presented below.

The Company'’s non-interest income is derived prilpétom prepaid card and ATM fees attributableM®S and fees charged on
loans and transaction accounts. This income &etffn part, by expenses, such as compensatiooca@ugancy expenses associated with
additional personnel and office locations as weltard processing expenses attributable to MP&a [€sser extent, non-interest income is
derived from gains or losses on the sale of sdesrévailable for sale as well as the Company’dingk of bank owned life insurance.
Additionally, non-interest income has been derifreth the activities of Meta Trust Compafiy (“Meteust”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Meta Financial Group, which provides a variety offpssional trust services. Non-interest expessdso impacted by occupancy and
equipment expenses and legal and consulting expeigee Company'’s fiscal year 2007 non-interesbiime was impacted by a gain on sale of
four branches in the amount of $3.3 million.
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Comparison of Operating Results for the Years Ended
September 30, 2008 and September 30, 2007

General. The Company'’s loss from continuing operations $B8 million, or $0.69 per diluted share, for yfear ended September 30, 2008
compared to income of $1.3 million, or $0.50 pdutéd share, for the year ended September 30, 2b@fuding discontinued operations, the
Company recorded net loss of $1.0 million, or $(&8diluted share, for the year ended Septemhe2(BIB compared to $1.2 million, or $0
per diluted share, for the year ended Septembe2®I¥,. Net earnings in fiscal 2008 were impacted pre-tax gain of $2.3 million resulting
from the sale of the Company’s commercial bankimgs&liary, MetaBank WC. See Note 2 of the “Note€onsolidated Financial
Statements,” which is included in Part I, temRriancial Statements and Supplementary Data” efAinual Report on Form 10-K/A for
further information on discontinued operationsscal year 2008 income was reduced by the settleexgeinse for the Dan Nelson-related
lawsuits as well as an increase in provision expeekted to one borrowarapparently fraudulent actions against the Bandl (sher banks) i
obtaining several commercial real estate and comialeperating loans. Additionally, earnings wpusitively impacted by increased income
from card fees from all of MPS’ programs and segsjdoan growth and higher net interest incomepalticular, MPS-related card fees for the
fiscal 2008 grew by 125.3% over the prior fiscahyeOffsetting these factors, in part, were highgerating expenses as MPS continued to
build its supporting infrastructure, operationalability, and product development capacity. BEagsiin fiscal year 2007 were impacted by a
large provision for loan losses related primandyan impairment on a commercial loan relationshi$50 million related to fraud by the
borrower and a gain on the sale of four branchemithwest lowa of $3.3 million.

Net Interest Income Net interest income from continuing operationsfigcal 2008 increased by $3.2 million, or 15.4%$24.0 million fromr
$20.8 million for the prior fiscal year. The ines® in net interest income reflects a higher rtetést margin and a larger average earning asse
base. Net interest margin increased 13 basisptwr.51% in fiscal year 2008 from 3.38% in fisgahr 2007. The improvement also resulted
from the continued shift in the Company’s fundintx mttributable to growth in non-interest-bearirgpdsits and decreases in higher costing
certificates and public funds deposits.

The Company’s average earning assets increase? $fllion, or 10.9%, to $683.5 million during fidogear 2008 from $616.3
million during fiscal year 2007. The increase iigrarily the result of the increase in the loantfmio and mortgage-backed securities. The
Company'’s yield on earning assets declined 66 Ipasigs to 5.47% during fiscal year 2008 from 6.18@ting fiscal year 2007. The decrease
is the result primarily of decreasing yields on @@mpany’s loan portfolio and other investments.

The Company’s average total deposits and interestifng liabilities increased $76.3 million, or 1%h4to $693.0 million during fiscal
year 2008 from $616.7 million during fiscal yeai0Z0 The increase resulted mainly from an incré@asiee Compan’s non-interest-bearing
deposits and wholesale borrowings. The Compargss af total deposits and interest-bearing liaksitdeclined 81 basis points to 1.94%
during fiscal year 2008 from 2.75% during fiscahy007.
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Average Balances, Interest Rates, and Yields

The following table presents, for the periods iadkd, the total dollar amount of interest inconmrfraverage interest-earning assets
and the resulting yields, as well as the interepease on average interest-bearing liabilitiesyesged both in dollars and rates. No tax
equivalent adjustments have been made. Non-Aagioens have been included in the table as loamgicg a zero yield. Balances related to
discontinued operations have been reclassifiedmeinterest earning assets and non-interest bebainitjties for all periods presented.

2008 2007 2006
Average Interest Average Interest Average Interest
Year Ended September 30 Outstanding Earned / Yield / Outstanding Earned / Yield / Outstanding Earned / Yield /
(Dollars in Thousands) Balance Paid Rate Balance Paid Rate Balance Paid Rate
Interest-earning assets:
Loans receivabl $ 413,86t $ 25,90¢ 6.26% $ 354,46! $ 25,58¢ 7.22% $ 390,00 $ 27,94¢ 7.17%
Mortgage-backed securitie 194,78! 8,48¢ 4.36% 135,00° 5,50( 4.07% 163,03: 6,18t 3.7<%
Other investments 74,80¢ 3,02¢ 4.04% 126,85: 6,69( 5.21% 96,41¢ 3,97¢ 4.12%
Total interest-earning assets 683,46( $ 37,41¢ 5.47% 616,32 $ 37,77¢ 6.15% 649,45( $ 38,11: 5.87%
Non-interest-earning assets 65,53¢ 86,50 99,96(
Total assets $ 748,99¢ $ 702,82 $ 749,41
Norn-interest bearing depos $ 34162: $ — 0.0(% $ 230,93( $ — 0.0(% $ 147,52( $ — 0.0(%
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Interes-bearing checkin 15,07¢ 104 0.6% 22,00« 53¢ 2.45% 21,85: 78¢ 3.61%
Savings 10,07: 10k 1.04% 17,58¢ 471 2.6&% 46,82: 1,38¢ 2.9€%
Money market: 61,59: 1,47¢ 2.4(% 67,081 2,301 3.4% 83,48¢ 2,35¢ 2.82%
Time deposit: 139,86¢ 6,071 4.3/% 183,50! 8,35¢ 4.55% 215,81! 8,22f 3.81%
FHLB advance: 103,76t 3,96( 3.82% 77,43 4,091 5.2¢% 115,10: 5,48¢ 4.77%
Other borrowings 20,96¢ 1,697 8.0¢% 18,17: 1,211 6.6€% 26,84¢ 1,367 5.0S%
Total interest-bearing liabilities 351,34( 13,41t 3.82% 385,78 16,967 4.4(% 509,92 19,611 3.85%
Total deposits and interest-
bearing liabilities 692,96: $ 13,41t 1.9/% 616,71 $ 16,967 2.7%% 657,44. $ 19,611 2.96%
Other non-interest bearing
liabilities 11,00( 42,557 48,83
Total liabilities 703,96¢ 659,27- 706,27:
Shareholders’ equity 45,03: 43,55! 43,13¢
Total liabilities and
shareholders’ equity $  748,99¢ $ 702,82 $ 749,41
Net interest income and n
interest rate spread including
nor-interest bearing depos $  24,00¢ 3.5% $ 20,807 3.3t% $ 18,501 2.8%
Net interest margin 3.51% 3.3¢% 2.85%
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Rate / Volume Analysis

The following schedule presents the dollar amotichanges in interest income and interest expesrsaéjor components of interest-
earning assets and interest-bearing liabilitieglistinguishes between the increase related toehigutstanding balances and that due to the
levels and volatility of interest rates. For eaaltegory of interest-earning assets and interesirigeliabilities, information is provided on
changes attributable to (i) changes in volume ¢hanges in volume multiplied by old rate) and¢hanges in rate (i.e. changes in rate
multiplied by old volume). For purposes of thibleg changes attributable to both rate and volumedannot be segregated have been allo
proportionately to the change due to volume anctti@nge due to rate.

Rate / Volume

2008 vs. 2007 2007 vs. 2006
Increase / Increase / Total Increase / Increase / Total

Year Ended September 30, (Decrease) (Decrease) Increase / (Decrease) (Decrease) Increase /
(Dollars in Thousands) Due to Volume Due to Rate (Decrease) Due to Volume Due to Rate (Decrease)
Interest-earning asset:

Loans receivabl $ 157 % (1,249 $ 328 $ (2,567 $ 202 $ (2,369

Mortgagebacked securitie 2,57( 414 2,98¢ (1,209 51& (685)

Other investment (2,33€) (1,329 (3,665) 1,444 1,267 2,711
Total interest-earning assets $ 1,80¢ $ (2,164 $ (356) $ (2,320 $ 1,98¢ $ (33€)
Interest-bearing liabilities

Interes-bearing checkin $ (132) $ (302) $ (4349 $ 6 $ (257 $ (251)

Savings (150 (21€) (36€) (794 (223 (917)

Money market: (17€) (647) (823) 521 (574) (53

Time deposit: (1,919 (371 (2,289 (433 563 13C

FHLB advance: (701 57C (131 (2,08¢) 68¢ (1,399

Other borrowings 20z 288 48€ (3,510 3,35¢4 (156
Total interest-bearing liabilities $ (2,870 $ (682 $ (3,652 $ (6,290 $ 3,65: $ (2,649
Net effect on net interest incomt $ 4,67¢ $ (1,487 $ 3,19¢ $ 397C $ (1,669 $ 2,30¢

Provision for Loan Losses In fiscal 2008, the Company recorded a provismroan losses of $2.7 million, compared to $3iftiom for

fiscal 2007. Due to delinquency trends in the Canys loan portfolio, the Company was able to naimthe level of loan loss allowance
considered to be acceptable by the Company’s mamagian the current year. The provision recoraethe prior fiscal year was directly
related to a $5.0 million provision on a purchapadicipation loan relationship. See “Non-perfanmiAssets and Allowance for Loan Losses”
herein.

As disclosed in the Registrant’s 10-Q for the pgeading June 30, 2008, the Company had learn¢a tharrower of the Bank had
likely participated in a fraud on the Bank and othanks. On October 8, 2008, the Bank’s investigadf the fraud, loans and advances to the
borrower, the collateral underlying the loan, amslirance coverage lead it to conclude that it Bariate to establish a reserve for loan losses
at September 30, 2008 of $1.8 million (approximagd.1 million after taxes).

Management closely monitors economic developmentts tegionally and nationwide, and considers tliasers when assessing the
adequacy of its allowance for loan losses. Whiee@ompany has no direct exposure to sub-prime Joaasagement is concerned that
developments over the past 18 months in the subepmortgage market may have a ripple effect omeesial real estate prices. In addition,
the current recessionary environment may straitiitaacial condition of some borrowers. Managentbatefore believes that future losses in
the residential portfolio may be somewhat highanthistorical experience. Over the past six ydass, rates in the commercial and multi-
family real estate market have remained modenrsli@nagement recognizes that low charge-off rates theepast several
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years reflect the formerly strong economic envirentrand are not indicative of likely losses ovéulhbusiness cycle. This observation,

well as the aforementioned concerns regarding ¢ba@nic slowdown, has led management to the coioclubat future losses in this portfolio
may be somewhat higher than recent historical éxpee, excluding loan losses related to fraud bydweers. On the other hand, current tre
in agricultural markets remain reasonable. Higlenmodity prices as well as higher yields havetegtpositive economic conditions for m
farmers. Nonetheless, management still expectduhae losses in this portfolio, which have beeny low, could be higher than recent
historical experience. Management believes thaatbrementioned recession may also negatively shgmansumers’ repayment capacities.
Additionally, a sizable portion of the Compasyonsumer loan portfolio is secured by residential estate, as discussed above, is an are:
closely monitored by management in view of itseddatoncerns.

Management believes that, based on a detailedwefi¢he loan portfolio, historic loan losses, @ntreconomic conditions, the size
the loan portfolio, and other factors, the curiemel of the allowance for loan losses at Septer80e2008 reflects an adequate allowance
against probable losses from the loan portfolithough the Company maintains its allowance farldosses at a level that it considers to be
adequate, investors and others are cautionedhbis tan be no assurance that future losses wilhxueed estimated amounts, or that
additional provisions for loan losses will not legjuired in future periods. In addition, the Compamletermination of the allowance for loan
losses is subject to review by its regulatory agesjavhich can require the establishment of aduitigeneral or specific allowances.

Non-interest Income. Non-interest income increased by $15.8 million7215%, to $37.7 million for fiscal 2008 from $2fllion for fiscal
2007. Fees earned on prepaid debit cards and mdlyerent systems products and services were $3#iémfor fiscal 2008 as compared to
$15.4 million for fiscal 2007.

Noninterest income in the prior year was impactga Ipre-tax gain of $3.3 million resulting from tbale of four branches in
northwest lowa. Management performed an evaluatiovhether the sale of the branches constitutedoditinued operations, and concluded
that the operations and cash flows of the bransbkeswere not discontinued operations. Revenuesapdnses of the entity, including the g
on sale, are, therefore, included in the appropifatome statement line items for all periods prees

Non-interest Expense Non-interest expense increased by $24.8 millior§703%, to $61.8 million for fiscal 2008 from $87million for the
same period in fiscal year 2007.

Compensation expense totaled $25.7 million forali008 as compared to $18.2 million for fiscal 200’ he increase represents the
addition of management, client relations, prodtaiopment, compliance and operations support witiin MPS, as well as software
developers, Information Technology (“IT”) supporaff, and other administrative support within thengpany. Many of the new employees at
MPS and in IT are focused on developing and supmprtew product lines and increasing market petietraf our payments systems prodt
and services. Management expects that payrols eafitcontinue to increase as MPS issues morescaind offers new and expanded products
and services.

Costs associated with the operational support @f-oelated products at MPS also increased. Cardassing expenses totaled $15.6
million for fiscal 2008 as compared to $6.4 millitor fiscal 2007. These expenses primarily stesmfprepaid card programs managed by
MPS. Other card processing expense increasestabeitable to settlement functions for value loagicard sales and
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anticipated growth of existing products. Managetexpects that these costs will continue to inaeesMPS issues more cards and offers
and expanded products and services.

The Companys occupancy and equipment expense also rose digoad year 2008 as compared to fiscal 2007, prigndriven by the
addition of administrative office space in Siouxl§;aSD, and Omaha, NE, and a new branch/admitiigtraffice in downtown Des Moines,
IA, as well as investment in computer hardware softivare, primarily to support growth at MPS. Qgancy and equipment expense for fis
2008 was $6.6 million compared to $4.0 million fiscal 2007. Management expects that occupancyegoibment costs will continue to
increase as MPS issues more cards and offers mtenganded products and services.

Income Tax Expense Income tax benefit from continuing operationsffecal 2008 was $1.0 million, or an effective taxe of 35.3%,
compared to a tax expense of $1.2 million, or &ectife tax rate of 48.3%, in fiscal 2007. Thempea is due primarily to the decrease in net
income before income tax expense (benefit). Tha@mys recorded income tax benefit was also impactedaily by permanent differenc
between book and taxable income.

Discontinued Operations Income (loss) from discontinued operations wasimmne of $811,000 for fiscal 2008 compared to a tdskl41,000
for fiscal 2007. The increase was primarily redatie the gain on sale of MetaBank WC. See Noteth@fNotes to Consolidated Financial
Statements,” which is included in Part Il, ItemRrfancial Statements and Supplementary Data” efAhinual Report on Form 10-K/A for
further discussion on discontinued operations.

Comparison of Operating Results for the Years Ended
September 30, 2007 and September 30, 2006

General. The Company’s income from continuing operatio@s 1.3 million, or $0.50 per diluted share, far ylear ended September 30,
2007 compared to $3.4 million, or $1.34 per diluskdre, for the year ended September 30, 2006inbl@ne was $1.2 million, or $0.45 per
diluted share, for the year ended September 3@, 26fpared to $3.7 million, or $1.46 per dilutedrgh for the year ended September 30,
2006. Earnings in fiscal year 2007 were impacted karge provision for loan losses related prityad an impairment on a commercial loan
relationship of $5.0 million related to fraud byethorrower and a gain on the sale of four branghasrthwest lowa of $3.3 million. Earnings
in fiscal year 2006 were impacted by non-recurfegincome of $2.6 million associated with a pditfef purchased prepaid debit cards.

Net Interest Income Net interest income from continuing operationstfe year ended September 30, 2007 increased.By$ltion, or

12.5%, to $20.8 million from $18.5 million for tlyear ended September 30, 2006. The increase inteetst income reflects a higher net
interest margin, offset in part by a smaller averagrning asset base. Net interest margin inaleg®éasis points to 3.38% in fiscal year 2007
from 2.85% in fiscal year 2006. The improvemesuited primarily from the shift in the Company’sifling mix attributable to growth in non-
interest-bearing deposits and decreases in higisting certificates, public funds deposits, and lebale borrowings.

The Company’s average earning assets decreased@Bldon, or 5.1%, to $616.3 million during fiscaéar 2007 from $649.5 million
during fiscal year 2006. The decrease is primahig/result of the decrease in the loan portfolibe Company’s yield on earning assets rose
26 basis points to 6.13% during fiscal year 200mfi5.87% during fiscal year 2006. The increaghesesult primarily of increasing yields on
the Company'’s other investments.
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The Company’s average total deposits and interestifng liabilities decreased $40.7 million, or 6,2%$616.7 million during fiscal
year 2007 from $657.4 million during fiscal yeai0BO The decrease resulted mainly from a decreatfeiCompar’s interest-bearing
deposits and wholesale borrowings. Decreaseslilicgunds deposits were more than offset by growthon-interest bearing checking
accounts. The Company’s cost of total depositsilatedestbearing liabilities decreased 23 basis points dufiscal year 2007 to 2.75% duril
fiscal year 2007 from 2.98% during fiscal year 20@&spite an increasing interest rate environrireR007, which drove the costs of
certificates and money market deposits higherCihiapany was able to limit the increase in its oNest of funds by shifting its portfolio m
away from higher costing certificates, public fur#posits, and wholesale borrowings, into lowetingsdemand deposits.

Provision for Loan Losses In fiscal year 2007, the Company recorded a roxifor loan losses of $3.2 million, compared 34 $,000 for
fiscal year 2006. The reduction in the provisior2006 relates in part to the Compangettlement agreement with one of several paatitgir
an auto-dealership related lending relationshipdifionally, shrinkage in the Company'’s loan pditf@uring the year reduced the level of
required loan loss allowances on the portfolio.e Télatively large provision in fiscal year 200%he primary reason that net interest income
after provision for loan losses decreased by $%8) ,Hom $18.2 million in fiscal 2006 to $17.6 rok in fiscal year 2007. For fiscal year
2007, the Company'’s provision for loan losses o2%$8illion consisted of the impairment of a comni@rtending relationship due to fraud by
the borrower partially offset by a decrease in fgandecrease in impaired loans and a $500,000eBcof a fidelity bond claim payment by
the Company’s insurance carrier.

Management closely monitors economic developmenifs tegionally and nationwide, and considers thHas®rs when assessing the
adequacy of its allowance for loan losses. Whike@ompany has no direct exposure to sub-prime Joaasagement is concerned that recent
developments in the sub-prime mortgage market nasg ka ripple effect on residential real estategsricln addition, the potential for an
economic slowdown and recent increase in energggprinay strain the financial condition of some taers. Management therefore believes
that future losses in the residential portfolio nb@ysomewhat higher than historical experienceer@he past six years, loss rates in the
commercial and multi-family real estate market hearmained moderate. Management recognizes thathangeeff rates over the past seve
years reflect the strong economic environment aadat indicative of likely losses over a full busss cycle. This observation, as well as
aforementioned concerns regarding an economic sleavgdhas led management to the conclusion thatdutisses in this portfolio may be
somewhat higher than recent historical experieexeluding loan losses related to fraud by borrow@s the other hand, current trends in
agricultural markets are very favorable. Highemowodity prices as well as higher yields have ceatsitive economic conditions for most
farmers. Nonetheless, management still expectduhae losses in this portfolio, which have beeny low, could be higher than recent
historical experience. Management believes thmathrementioned possibility for a slowdown in emmic growth during the next fiscal year
may also negatively impact consumers’ repaymenadiiips. Additionally, a sizable portion of ther@pany’s consumer loan portfolio is
secured by residential real estate, as discussmaeals an area to be closely monitored by manageme/iew of its stated concerns.

Management believes that, based on a detailedwefi¢he loan portfolio, historic loan losses, @mnteconomic conditions, the size
the loan portfolio, and other factors, the curdemel of the allowance for loan losses at Septer80e2007 reflects an adequate allowance
against probable losses from the loan portfolithough the Company maintains its allowance farldosses at a level that it considers to be
adequate, investors and others are cautionedhiia tan be no assurance that future losses wigxueed estimated amounts, or that
additional provisions for loan losses will not legjuired in future periods. In addition, the Companmletermination of the allowance for loan
losses is subject to
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review by its regulatory agencies, which can regjtlie establishment of additional general or speaifowances.

Non-interest Income. Non-interest income increased by $8.4 million62r0%, to $21.9 million for the fiscal year 200@rfr $13.5 million for
fiscal year 2006. Nommterest income in fiscal year 2007 was impactea Iggin on the sale of four branches in northwastlof $3.3 million.
Nor-interest income in the 2006 period was impacteddiy-recurring pre-tax fee income of $2.6 milli@hated to a purchased portfolio of
prepaid debit cards. Adjusting for these non-rengritems, norinterest income for fiscal year 2007 rose $7.6iamll or 69.4%, over the sar
period in the prior fiscal year primarily due to iacrease in card fee income. The majority of grswth is related to higher fee income earned
on prepaid debit cards and other products andcedffered by MPS.

Management performed an evaluation of whetherdhedf the branches constituted discontinued ojaistand concluded that the
operations and cash flows of the branches sold netreiscontinued operations. Revenue and expeishe entity, including the gain on s¢
are, therefore, included in the appropriate incetagement line items for all periods presented.

Non-interest Expense Non-interest expense increased by $10.4 millior387%, to $37.0 million for fiscal year 2007 fr&86.6 million for
fiscal year 2006. Several factors contributechts increase. Compensation expense rose $5.4midliring the year, from $12.8 million in
fiscal year 2006 to $18.2 million in fiscal yeait®Z0 The increase represents the addition of ekeclgvel management, client relations,
compliance and operations support staff within M&Swell as software developers, Information Tetdmo(“IT”) support staff, and other
administrative support within the Company. Manyhef new employees at MPS and in IT will be focusedieveloping new product lines &
increasing market penetration of our payments sysfgroducts and services.

Costs associated with the processing of card-etfateducts at MPS also increased during fiscal 2887. Card processing expense
rose $3.4 million from $3.0 million in fiscal yeab06 to $6.4 million in fiscal year 2007 as a resiikhe significant growth in the division’s
product lines. These expenses stem primarily f®8’ Simplexus® prepaid card product and other prepaid card progmaanaged by MP¢
Other card processing expense increases are #hlbuo settlement functions for value loadingdcsales and anticipated growth of existing
products. Management expects that these costsamitinue to increase as MPS issues more cards\rewit is anticipated that overall costs
will increase less than revenues associated witbeticards.

The Company’s occupancy and equipment expense@saduring fiscal year 2007, driven primarily b addition of administrative
office space in Sioux Falls and Omaha, as welhasstment in computer hardware and software, pifyniar support growth at MPS.
Occupancy and equipment expense for fiscal year 23 $4.0 million compared to $2.9 million in isgear 2006.

Income Tax Expense Income tax expense from continuing operationdigmal year 2007 was $1.2 million, or an effectia® rate of 48.3%,
compared to $1.7 million, or an effective tax rat83.0%, in fiscal year 2006. The change is dumarily to the decrease in net income be
income tax expense. The Company’s recorded indarmexpense was also impacted primarily by permidifierences between book and
taxable income.

Discontinued Operations Income (loss) from discontinued operations whssa of $141,000 for fiscal year 2007 comparechtmime of
$309,000 for fiscal year 2006. The decrease wiasapity related to an increase in provision forrdasses in the amount of $703,000 as
compared to the prior fiscal year. See Note héo*‘Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsjttvis included in Part Il, Item 8
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“Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” isfAmnual Report on Form 10-K/A for further discizgson discontinued operations.
Critical Accounting Policies

The Company’s financial statements are prepareddordance with GAAP. The financial informatiomtained within these
statements is, to a significant extent, financiébtimation that is based on approximate measurésedinancial effects of transactions and
events that have already occurred. Based oniitsideration of accounting policies that involve thest complex and subjective decisions and
assessments, management has identified its mtsticeiccounting policies to be those related ®dtowance for loan losses and asset
impairment judgments including the recoverabilifygoodwill.

The Company'’s allowance for loan loss methodologypiporates a variety of risk considerations, lptantitative and qualitative, in
establishing an allowance for loan loss that mamee believes is appropriate at each reporting. d@tgantitative factors include the
Company’s historical loss experience, delinquemay eharge-off trends, collateral values, changewitperforming loans, and other factors.
Quantitative factors also incorporate known infotimraabout individual loans, including borrowershsitivity to interest rate movements.
Qualitative factors include the general economidremment in the Compang’markets, including economic conditions throughbatMidwes
and, in particular, the state of certain industri8&ze and complexity of individual credits inagbn to loan structure, existing loan policiesy
pace of portfolio growth are other qualitative fastthat are considered in the methodology. Aibepany adds new products and increases
the complexity of its loan portfolio, it will enhaa its methodology accordingly. Management mayehaported a materially different amount
for the provision for loan losses in the statentdrdperations to change the allowance for loandsskits assessment of the above factors were
different. This discussion and analysis shoulddael in conjunction with the Company’s financiatements and the accompanying notes
presented in Part Il, Item 8 “Financial Statememtd Supplementary Data” of this Annual Report om&0K/A, as well as the portion of th
Management’s Discussion and Analysis section edtitAsset Quality.” Although management believeslevels of the allowance as of both
September 30, 2008 and September 30, 2007 wereagean absorb probable losses inherent in thegostfolio, a decline in local economic
conditions or other factors could result in incingdosses. See Notes 1 and 5 to the “Notes ts@olated Financial Statements,” which is
included in Part Il, Item 8 “Financial Statementsl Supplementary Data” of this Annual Report onnfrd0-K/A.

Goodwill represents the excess of acquisition cogts the fair value of the net assets acquireparchase acquisition. Goodwill is
tested annually for impairment.
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Net Portfolio Value.The Company uses a net portfolio value (“NPV”) aggmh to the quantification of interest rate riskisTapproach
calculates the difference between the present \dlegpected cash flows from assets and the preséun of expected cash flows from
liabilities, as well as cash flows from any off-bate sheet contracts. Management of the Compasg&tsaand liabilities is performed within
the context of the marketplace, but also withintinestablished by the Board of Directors on theant of change in NPV that is acceptable
given certain interest rate changes.

Presented below, as of September 30, 2008 and #0817 analysis of the Company’s interest rate askneasured by changes in NPV
for an instantaneous and sustained parallel shifie yield curve, in 100 basis point incremenpsand down 200 basis points. As illustrated in
the table below, at September 30, 2008, the Compasymore exposed to a decline in market valuerisirzg interest rate environment
compared to September 30, 2007.

Change in Interest Rate Board Limit At September 30, 2008 At September 30, 2007
(Basis Points) % Change $ Change % Change $ Change % Change
(Dollars in Thousands)
+200 by (200% $ (10,03 149% $ 60€ (1)%
+100 by (10) (4,739 7) (222) (1)
0 — — I — _
-100 by (10) 2,447 4 (54E) (1)
-200 by (20) 66€ 1 (3,226) (4)

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the methaghalysis presented in the table. For example, afth@ertain assets and liabilities
may have similar maturities or periods to repricitigey may react in different degrees to changesdrket interest rates. Also, the interest r
on certain types of assets and liabilities maytélate in advance of changes in market interess rateile interest rates on other types may lag
behind changes in market rates. Additionally, deré&sets, such as adjustable rate mortgage Ibaws features that restrict changes in interest
rates on a short-term basis and over the life @&fset. Furthermore, although management hasa¢stimhanges in the levels of prepayments
and early withdrawal in these rate environmentshdeavels would likely deviate from those assunreddlculating the table. Finally, the abil
of some borrowers to service their debt may deergathe event of an interest rate increase.

In addition to the NPV approach, the Company aéstierws gap reports, which measure the differentassets and liabilities
repricing in given time periods, and net incomeugations to assess its interest rate risk profilanagement reviews its interest rate risk
profile on a quarterly basis.

Asset Quality

It is management’s belief, based on informationilabte at fiscal year end, that the Company’s auresset quality is satisfactory. At
September 30, 2008, nonperforming assets, corgistiimpaired/non-accruing loans, accruing loari;xdaent 90 days or more, restructured
loans, foreclosed real estate, and repossessedruengroperty, totaled $7.5 million, or 0.99% dfdassets, compared to $2.6 million, or
0.38% of total assets, at September 30, 2007. iftisase primarily relates to one commercial ofegdoan of $4.6 million for which the
Bank has set aside a $1.0 million reserve.

Impaired/non-accruing and restructured loans ate®eiper 30, 2008 totaled $7.5 million. There werdareclosed real estate and
repossessed assets at September 30, 2008.

The Company maintains an allowance for loan lobsesuse of the potential that some loans may ncegdzed in full. See Note 1 to
the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsittvis

72




Table of Contents

included in Part Il, Item 8 “Financial Statementsl Supplementary Data” of this Annual Report onnrd0-K/A. At September 30, 2008, the
Company had an allowance for loan losses in theuatmaf $5.7 million as compared to $4.5 millionSsptember 30, 2007. Management's
periodic review of the adequacy of the allowanaddan losses is based on various subjective ajattive factors including the Company’s
past loss experience, known and inherent risksarportfolio, adverse situations that may affeetlitbrrower’s ability to repay, the estimated
value of any underlying collateral, and currentremic conditions. While management may allocatdigas of the allowance for specifically
identified problem loan situations, the majoritytoé allowance is based on judgmental factorseeltd the overall loan portfolio and is
available for any loan charge-offs that may océwrstated previously, there can be no assurantéutioae losses will not exceed estimated
amounts, or that additional provisions for loarskswill not be required in future periods. In diddi, the Company’s bank is subject to review
by the OTS, which has the authority to require nganaent to make changes to the allowance for lossek

In determining the allowance for loan losses, thenBany specifically identifies loans that it cores&lto have potential collectibility
problems. Based on criteria established by Stateofdfinancial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 1deime of these loans are considered to
be “impaired” while others are not considered torbpaired, but possess weaknesses that the Contyediryes merit additional analysis in
establishing the allowance for loan losses. Alkotloans are evaluated by applying estimated ktssrto various pools of loans. The
Company then analyzes other factors (such as edoraamditions) in determining the aggregate amadithe allowance needed.

At September 30, 2008, $3.5 million of the allowariar loan losses was allocated to impaired logemesenting 22.2% of the related
loan balances. See Note 5 of the “Notes to Corst@dlFinancial Statements,” which is included int Raltem 8 “Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data” of this Form 10-K/A. $113,00@he allowance was allocated to other identifiedqbem loan situations, representing
1.4% of the related loan balances, and $2.1 milliepresenting 0.5% of the related loan balancas,allocated to the remaining overall loan
portfolio based on historical loss experience agigegal economic conditions. At September 30, 28074 million of the allowance for loan
losses was allocated to impaired loans, reprege6Bnl% of the related loan balances. $639,000a@sated to other identified problem loan
situations, and $2.4 million was allocated againsses from the overall loan portfolio based ondnisal loss experience and general economic
conditions.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company’s primary sources of funds are depdsiisowings, principal and interest payments @aniand mortgage-backed
securities, and maturing investment securities.l®\8gheduled loan repayments and maturing invegsvaea relatively predictable, deposit
flows and early loan repayments are influencedhieyi¢vel of interest rates, general economic candit and competition.

The Company relies on advertising, quality custosgevice, convenient locations, and competitiveipg to attract and retain its
deposits and only solicits these deposits frorprithiary market area. Based on its experience, tmapany believes that its consumer
checking, savings, and money market accounts &tviedy stable sources of deposits. The Compsuaility to attract and retain time depo
has been, and will continue to be, affected by macknditions. However, the Company does not faesy significant funding issues
resulting from the sensitivity of time depositsstech market factors.

The Company is aware that, due to higher levetoatentration risk, the low- and no-cost checkiegasbits generated through MPS
may carry a greater degree of liquidity risk theaditional consumer checking deposits. As a rethdtCompany closely monitors balances in
these accounts, and
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maintains a portfolio of highly liquid assets tmélupotential deposit outflows. To date, the Complaay not experienced any inordinate or
unusual outflows related to MPS, though no ass@aaa be given that this will continue to be thgeca

MetaBank is required by regulation to maintain gight liquidity to assure its safe and sound opena In the opinion of
management, MetaBank is in compliance with thisiegment.

Liquidity management is both a daily and long-tdéamction of the Company’s management strategy. Cbpany adjusts its
investments in liquid assets based upon managesnesgessment of (i) expected loan demand, (iptbiected availability of purchased loan
products, (iii) expected deposit flows, (iv) yielagailable on interest-bearing deposits, and @)abjectives of its asset/liability management
program. Excess liquidity is generally investedhiterest-earning overnight deposits and other steont government agency obligations. If the
Company requires funds beyond its ability to geteettaem internally, it has additional borrowing aejty with the FHLB and other wholesale
funding sources. The Company is not aware of agwifstant trends in the Company’s liquidity or @bility to borrow additional funds if
needed.

The primary investing activities of the Company tire origination and purchase of loans and thehase of securities. During the
years ended September 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006 ati@any originated loans totaling $726.2 millio878.5 million, and $306.6 millior
respectively. Purchases of loans totaled $55.3anjl$44.9 million, and $58.9 million during theays ended September 30, 2008, 2007 and
2006, respectively. During the years ended SepteBe2008, 2007 and 2006, the Company purchasetjaye-backed securities and other
securities available for sale in the amount of $&0gillion, $13.2 million and $109,000, respectiuel

At September 30, 2008, the Company had unfundeddoenmitments of $57.4 million. See Note 16 to‘tNetes to Consolidated
Financial Statements,” which is included in Parttém 8 “Financial Statements and Supplementarng’Daf this Annual Report on Form 10-
K /A . Certificates of deposit scheduled to maturene year or less from September 30, 2008 wtd84.5 million. Based on its historical
experience, management believes that a signifipamion of such deposits will remain with the Compahowever, there can be no assurance
that the Company can retain all such deposits. gament believes that loan repayment and other eswfcfunds will be adequate to meet the
Company'’s foreseeable short- and long-term liquidéeds.

The following table summarizes the Company’s sigaiit contractual obligations at September 30, J0@8lars in Thousands):

Contractual Obligations Total Less than 1 year 1to 3 years 3to 5 years More than 5 years
Time deposit $ 123,49. $ 81,48: $ 34,487 $ 752C $ —
Long-term debt 137,37 96,37: 30,00( 2,50(C 8,50(
Operating lease 12,03¢ 1,642 3,06¢ 2,73¢ 4,59%
Subordinate debentur

Issued to capital tru: 10,31( — — — 10,31(
Data processing servic 1,342 61C 732 — —

Total $ 284,55¢ $ 180,10¢ $ 68,287 $ 12,75F % 23,40:

During July 2001, the Company’s unconsolidatedttsubsidiary, First Midwest Financial Capital Triissold $10.0 million in
floating rate cumulative preferred securities. Remts from the sale were used to purchase subadidabentures of Meta Financial Group,
which mature in the year 2031, and are redeemalaleyetime after five years. The capital securities required to be redeemed on July 25,
2031; however, the Company has the option to shahte maturity date to a date not earlier than July
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25, 2007. The Company used the proceeds for gepemaorate purposes. See Note 11 to the “Notedts@idated Financial Statements,”
which is included in Part II, Item 8 “Financial &ments and Supplementary Data” of this Annual RepoForm 10-K /A .

The Company and its banking subsidiary, MetaBars¢, iegulatory requirements for classification a8l e&pitalized institutions. See
Note 15 to th¢‘Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,” whécimcluded in Part 1l, Iltem 8 “Financial Staterteeand Supplementary
Data” of this Annual Report on Form 10-K /A . Ther@pany does not anticipate any significant chamgés capital structure.

On August 23, 2004, the Company announced thaBdiaed of Directors had authorized the Company’s ES®purchase up to
40,000 shares of the Company’s stock through opemkeh and privately negotiated transactions. ThOEStock purchase was completed on
April 18, 2005 at a total cost of $897,000. At epber 30, 2008, the ESOP held no unallocated share

The payment of dividends and repurchase of shareshte effect of reducing stockholders’ equityoPtd authorizing such
transactions, the Board of Directors considerseffect the dividend or repurchase of shares woalcton liquidity and regulatory capital
ratios.

Off-Balance Sheet Financing Arrangements

For discussion of the Company'’s off-balance shieanting arrangements, see Note 16 of “Notes tcsGladated Financial
Statements,” which is included in Part Il, temRriancial Statements and Supplementary Data” efAinual Report on Form 10-K /A .
Depending on the extent to which the commitmentsootingencies described in Note 16 occur, thecefia the Company’s capital and net
income could be significant.

Other Matters

The Company utilizes various third parties for, aguother things, its processing needs, both wiheet to standard bank operations and with
respect to its MPS division. MPS was notified inrif@008 by one of the processors that the progéssomputer system had been breached,
which led to the unauthorized load and spendinfyiods from Bank-issued cards. The Bank believesitheunt in question to

be approximately $2.0 million and the processorrw@gied its insurer. The processor and programagar both have agreements with the
Bank to indemnify it for any losses as a resulsudh unauthorized activity, and have additionatifified the Bank that they are sufficiently
insured for such events. In addition, the Bankdiasn notice to its own insurer. As a result, trenB does not presently anticipate any loss
with respect to this event. As of the date of fhiisg, the Bank has been advised that the insweartaims filed by its third parties are still
pending. The Company has made demand for paymdriasfiled a demand for arbitration to recoveruthauthorized loading and spending
amounts and certain damages.

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The Consolidated Financial Statements and Notesttheresented in this Annual Report have beengpegehbin accordance with
GAAP, which require the measurement of financiaifjon and operating results in terms of historallars without considering the change
the relative purchasing power of money over time tuinflation. The primary impact of inflationisflected in the increased cost of the
Company’s operations. Unlike most industrial comesyvirtually all the assets and liabilities oftGompany are monetary in nature. As a
result, interest rates generally have a more saamf impact on a financial institution’s perforncarthan do the effects of general levels of
inflation. Interest rates do not necessarily mavehe same direction, or to the same extent, apribes of goods and
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services.
Impact of New Accounting Standards

In June 2006 the FASB issued FASB Interpretation48y (“FIN No. 48”),Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxas,
Interpretation of Statement No. 108;counting for Income TaxdsIN No. 48 prescribes a recognition threshold aréisnrement attribute for
the financial statement recognition and measuremiatax position taken or expected to be takemtiax return. FIN No. 48 was effective for
the Company on October 1, 2007. As a result oattaption and implementation of FIN No. 48, the @amy determined that no liability for
unrecognized tax benefits existed at October 1720here have been no changes to this amountglfisical 2008.

At its September 2006 meeting, the Emerging Is3as& Force (“EITF”) reached a final consensus snésNo. 06-04Accounting fo
Deferred Compensation and Postretirement Benefiedis of Endorsement S-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangementshe consensus
stipulates that an agreement by an employer teshaortion of the proceeds of a life insurancécgakith an employee during the
postretirement period is a postretirement beneférmyement required to be accounted for under iB&ieNo. 106 (“SFAS No. 106”) or
Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 1@mnibus Opinion - 1967The consensus concludes that the purchase ¢it-aaitar
life insurance policy does not constitute a setdetrunder SFAS No. 106 and, therefore, a liabibtythe postretirement obligation must be
recognized under SFAS No. 106 if the benefit ieietl under an arrangement that constitutes a plander APB No. 12 if it is not part of a
plan. Issue No. 06-04 is effective for the Comphaginning October 1, 2008 and will not have an ictjpen the Company’s financial position,
results of operation or cash flows.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement Nf.(1SFAS No. 157”)Fair Value MeasurementsSFAS No. 157 defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring falue, and expands disclosures about fair value ineaents. It clarifies that fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset @ fwetransfer a liability in an orderly transactibetween market participants in the market in
which the reporting entity transacts. SFAS No. @6&s not require any new fair value measuremeuntgakher, it provides enhanced guidance
to other pronouncements that require or permittassdiabilities to be measured at fair value. SHR0. 157 is effective for the Company
beginning October 1, 2008 and adoption of SFASTG. will not have a material impact on the Comparfiriancial position, results of
operation or cash flows.

In February 2007, the FASB issued FASB Statementll§8,The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fiogal Liabilities —
Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No (“SFAS No. 159").SFAS No. 159 permits companies to choose to measang financia
instruments and certain other items at fair vahag &re not currently required to be measurediatddue. The objective of SFAS No. 159 is to
provide opportunities to mitigate volatility in refed earnings caused by measuring related assetgailities differently without having to
apply hedge accounting principles. SFAS No. 158 algablishes presentation and disclosure requitendesigned to facilitate comparisons
between companies that choose different measuregtteibutes for similar types of assets and li¢iesi. SFAS No. 159 is effective for the
Company beginning October 1, 2008 and adoptionFé&SSNo. 159 will not have a material impact on @mmpanys financial position, resul
of operation or cash flows.

At its March 2007 meeting, the EITF reached a fowmisensus on Issue No. 06-A@counting for Collateral Assignment Split-Dollar
Life Insurance Arrangemen. A consensus was reached that an employer shectdjnize a liability for the postretirement bensdiated to a
collateral assignment split-dollar life insuranceaagement in accordance with either FASB StaterNentL06 or APB Opinion
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No. 12, as appropriate, if the employer has agteedaintain a life insurance policy during the eayge's retirement or provide the employee
with a death benefit based on the substantive awrewith the employee. A consensus also was redtiae an employer should recognize

and measure an asset based on the nature andnsgbstdhe collateral assignment split-dollar iifsurance arrangement. The consensuses ar

effective for the Company beginning October 1, 2008uding interim periods within those fiscal yeawith early application permitted. Issue
No. 0€-10 will not have an impact on the Company’s finahposition, results of operation or cash flows.

In December 2007, the FASB issued FASB Statementl¥bR ,Business Combinatior(sSFAS No. 141R"). SFAS No. 141R
improves reporting by creating greater consisténdfie accounting and financial reporting of bussieombinations, resulting in more
complete, comparable, and relevant informatiorirfeestors and other users of financial statem@&RaS No. 141R is effective October 1,
2009. The Company is currently evaluating the ichpiaat the Statement will have on its consoliddieancial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued FASB StatementlB@,Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financ&ktements—an
amendment of ARB No. 85FAS No. 160”) which is effective for the Compabgginning October 1, 2009. SFAS 160 improves the
relevance, comparability, and transparency of fife@rinformation provided to investors by requiriall entities to report noncontrolling
(minority) interest in subsidiaries in the same waas equity in the consolidated financial statemerte. Company does not currently have
noncontrolling interest in the consolidated finahsitatements.

In March 2008, the FASB issued FASB Statement M@, Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedghativities
(“SFAS No. 161"). SFAS No. 161 is intended to noye financial reporting about derivative instrurteeand hedging activities by requiring
enhanced disclosures to enable investors to hettiarstand their effects on an entity’s financi@difion, financial performance, and cash
flows. The Company will adopt SFAS 161 effectivadary 1, 2009. Management has reviewed SFAS Nbah@l does not expect the
adoption of this statement to have a material impadhe Company’s consolidated financial conditi@sults of operations or cash flow.

In May 2008, the FASB issued FASB Statement No, Ié2 Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Bipfes
(“SFAS No. 162"). SFAS No. 162 makes the hierareRplicitly and directly applicable to preparerdfiofancial statements, a step that
recognizes preparers’ responsibilities for selectire accounting principles for their financialtstaents. SFAS No. 162 provides for slight
modifications to the current hierarchy in placeaolling FASB Staff Positions, Statement No. 133 empntation Issues and EITF D-Topics to
it. The Company will adopt SFAS No. 162 effectivevémber 15, 2008.
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Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Dislosure About Market Risk

As stated above, the Company derives a portiotsaficome from the excess of interest collected overest paid. The rates of
interest the Company earns on assets and payalhilitis generally are established contractuallyd period of time. Market interest rates
change over time. Accordingly, the Compansesults of operations, like those of most finahicistitutions, are impacted by changes in inte
rates and the interest rate sensitivity of its tssaed liabilities. The risk associated with chanigpeinterest rates and the Company’s ability to
adapt to these changes is known as interest sit@mid is the Company’s only significant “markegkr

The Company monitors and measures its exposuteatages in interest rates in order to comply witpligpble government
regulations and risk policies established by tharBf Directors, and in order to preserve shadgrolalue. In monitoring interest rate risk,
Company analyzes assets and liabilities based amacteristics including size, coupon rate, repgdimequency, maturity date, and likelihooc
prepayment.

If the Company’s assets mature or reprice moredhajir to a greater extent than its liabilitiesgihnet portfolio value and net interest
income would tend to increase during periods ofgisates and decrease during periods of fallingréest rates. Conversely, if the Company’s
assets mature or reprice more slowly or to a lemsent than its liabilities, then net portfoliolya and net interest income would tend to
decrease during periods of rising interest rateksimecrease during periods of falling interest rates

The Company currently focuses lending efforts taln@niginating and purchasing competitively priceljuatable-rate and fixed-rate
loan products with short to intermediate terms #durity, generally 5 years or less. This theordliicalows the Company to maintain a
portfolio of loans that will have relatively littlgensitivity to changes in the level of interesesawhile providing a reasonable spread to the
of liabilities used to fund the loans.

The Company’s primary objective for its investmpattfolio is to provide a source of liquidity fdne Company. In addition, the
investment portfolio may be used in the manageroktite Company’s interest rate risk profile. Thedstment policy generally calls for funds
to be invested among various categories of sectyfigs and maturities based upon the Company’s foediquidity, desire to achieve a proper
balance between minimizing risk while maximizinglg, the need to provide collateral for borrowingsd to fulfill the Company’s
asset/liability management goals.

The Company’s cost of funds responds to changesdrest rates due to the relatively short-ternureadf its deposit portfolio, and
due to the relatively short-term nature of its bared funds. The Company’s growing portfolio of loar-no-cost deposits provides a stable and
profitable funding vehicle, but also subjects tr@rpany to greater risk in a falling interest ratginment than it would otherwise have
without this portfolio. This risk is due to the fabat, while asset yields may decrease in a fallierest rate environment, the Company ca
significantly reduce interest costs associated thidse deposits, which thereby compresses the QGuoiigoaet interest margin. As a result of
Company’s new interest rate risk exposure in thigrd, the Company has elected not to enter ingt;meaw longer term wholesale borrowings,
and generally has not emphasized longer term tepesit products.

The Board of Directors and relevant government lggns establish limits on the level of acceptdbterest rate risk at the Compa
to which management adheres. There can be no assyut@mwever, that, in the event of an adversegghaninterest rates, the Company’s
efforts to limit interest rate risk will be succésds
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KPMG LLP

2500 Ruan Center
666 Grand Avenue
Des Moines, |IA 50309

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

Audit Committee
Meta Financial Group, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidatednseateof financial condition of Meta Financial Groupc. and subsidiaries as of Septen
30, 2008, and the related consolidated statemémisavations, comprehensive income (loss), chaimgselsareholders’ equity, and cash flows
for the year then ended. These consolidated fimhstatements are the responsibility of the Comjzsamanagement. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated finastiééments based on our audit. The accompanyirgptidated financial statements of Meta
Financial Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of Septr80, 2007, were audited by other auditors whegert thereon dated January 7, 2008,
expressed an unqualified opinion on those statesment

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedgdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightq&@nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbteasonable assurance about whether the finestatements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managemeniglhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our auditigges a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the 2008 consolidated financiatestaents referred to above present fairly, in alierial respects, the financial position of Meta
Financial Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of Sep&r80, 2008, and the results of its operationsianthsh flows for the year then ended in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounfnigciples.

As discussed in note 22 to the consolidated firdstatements, the consolidated financial statesnebf and for the year ended Septembe
2008 have been restated.

P LUP

December 12, 2008
Except for note 22
which is as of July 6, 2009

KPMG LLP, a U.S. limited liability partnership, iee U.S.
member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss coopiemt

80




Table of Contents

McGladrey & Pullen

Certified Public Accountants

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm on the Consolidated Financial Statements

To the Board of Directors
Meta Financial Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Storm Lake, lowa

We have audited the consolidated statements afdiahcondition of Meta Financial Group, Inc. andsidiaries as of September 30, 2007,
the related consolidated statements of operat@mmprehensive income (loss), changes in sharel®leguity and cash flows for each of the
two years in the period ended September 30, 200&sd financial statements are the responsibilith@Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesaritial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamiqUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finatataiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aHasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managemeniglhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaeaferred to above present fairly, in all matenrggpects, the financial position of Meta

Financial Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of Sep&80, 2007, and the results of their operatiomstheir cash flows for each of the two ye
in the period ended September 30, 2007, in contgrwith U.S. generally accepted accounting prirespl

/écM S faln, , 2o

Des Moines, lowa
January 7, 2008

McGladrey & Pullen, LLP is a member firm of RSM énhational —
an affiliation of separate and independent legtties.
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META FINANCIAL GROUP, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
(Dollars in Thousands, Except Share and Per Shat&) D

ASSETS September 30, 200: September 30, 200°
(As Restated)
Cash and due from ban $ 2,96: $ 1,21(
Interes-bearing deposits in other financial institutic — 10,11(
Total cash and cash equivalent 2,96: 11,32(
Federal funds sol 5,18¢ 75,00(
Investment securities available for s 19,71 25,96(
Mortgage-backed securities available for s 184,12: 132,74:
Loans receivable - net of allowance for loan losse®b,732 at September 30, 2008
$4,493 at September 30, 2C 427,92¢ 355,61:
Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at c 8,092 4,01
Accrued interest receivab 4,49 4,18¢
Bond insurance receivat 6,09¢ —
Premises, furniture, and equipment, 21,99: 19,70"
Bank-owned life insuranc 12,75¢ 12,26:
Assets related to discontinued operations, helddite — 35,77(
Goodwill and intangible asse 2,20¢ 1,50¢
MPS accounts receivak 50,04¢ 1,74¢
Other asset 10,80z 6,24¢
Total assets $ 756,40 $ 686,08(

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY

LIABILITIES
Nor-interes-bearing checkin $ 355,02( $ 260,09¢
Interes-bearing checkin 15,02¢ 14,60(
Savings deposil 9,39 10,26
Money market deposi 43,03¢ 81,29:
Time certificates of depos 123,49: 156,72:
Total deposits 545,97 522,97¢
Advances from Federal Home Loan B¢ 132,02! 68,00(
Securities sold under agreements to repurc 5,34¢ 224
Subordinated debentur 10,31( 10,31(
Accrued interest payab 57¢ 84z
Contingent liability 4,29: —
Liabilities related to discontinued operations dhigr sale — 30,94¢
Accrued expenses and other liabilit 12,14t 4,67¢
Total liabilities 710,67 637,98:

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Preferred stock, 800,000 shares authorized, n@slssued or outstandil — —
Common stock, $.01 par value; 5,200,000 share®dnéu, 2,957,999 shares issu

2,601,103 and 2,589,717 shares outstanding at@bpte30, 2008 and September

2007, respectivel 30 30
Additional paic-in capital 23,05¢ 21,95¢
Retained earninc- substantially restricte 34,44: 36,80¢
Accumulated other comprehensive (lo (5,027) (3,345
Unearned Employee Stock Ownership Plan st — (377)
Treasury stock, 356,896 and 368,282 common shatresst, at September 30, 2008

and September 30, 2007, respecti\ (6,77%) (6,979

Total shareholders equity 45,73 48,09¢
Total liabilities and shareholders equity $ 756,40 $ 686,08

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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META FINANCIAL GROUP, INC
AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Dollars in Thousands, Except Share and Per Shat&) D

Interest and dividend incom
Loans receivable, including fe
Mortgagebacked securitie
Other investment

Interest expenst
Deposits
FHLB advances and other borrowir

Net interest income
Provision for loan losse
Net interest income after provision for loan losse
Non-interest income
Card fees
Gain on sale of branch offic
Deposit fee:
Loan fees
Gain on sale of securities available for sale,
Gain on sale of membership equity interests
Bank-owned life insurance incon
Other income

Non-interest expenst
Compensation and benef
Card processing expen
Occupancy and equipment expe
Legal and consulting expen
Marketing
Data processing expen
Other expens

Income (loss) from continuing operations before ineme tax expense (benefi
Income tax expense (benefit) from continuing openai

Income (loss) from continuing operations
Gain on sale from discontinued operations befored
Income (loss) from discontinued operations befares$
Income tax expense (benefit) from discontinued afens
Income (loss) from discontinued operation:

Net income (loss,

Basic earnings (loss) per common sh
Income (loss) from continuing operatic
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic
Net income (loss

Diluted earnings (loss) per common shi
Income (loss) from continuing operatic

Income (loss) from discontinued operatic
Net income (loss

Dividends declared per common shz
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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For the Years Ended September 3(

2008 2007 2006

(As Restated)
$ 2590¢ % 25,58: % 27,94¢
8,48¢ 5,50( 6,18¢
3,02¢ 6,69( 3,97¢
37,41¢ 37,77¢ 38,11:
7,75¢ 11,66¢ 12,75¢
5,657 5,30¢ 6,85¢
13,41° 16,96 19,61
24,00: 20,80 18,50:
2,71¢ 3,16¢ 311
21,28¢ 17,63¢ 18,19(
34,63¢ 15,37¢ 10,82
— 3,331 —
8332 88t 852
777 58C 44¢
24 49¢ —
542 — —
49¢ 43€ 55E
387 755 821
37,69¢ 21,85¢ 13,49¢
25,731 18,24¢ 12,79¢
15,63( 6,371 2,98¢
6,61¢ 4,00: 2,932
3,38¢ 2,96t 3,021
1,25(C 797 71z
1,24¢ 911 62¢
7,95¢€ 3,657 3,567
61,82( 36,95¢ 26,64(
(2,836 2,53¢ 5,04¢
(1,007) 1,22i 1,66€
(1,839 1,31z 3,37¢
2,30¢ — —
76 (394 45¢
1,57¢ (259) 14¢
811 (142) 30¢
$ (1,029 $ 1,171  $ 3,68¢
$ (0.7 $ 05z $ 1.3€
0.31 (0.0¢6) 0.12
$ (0.40 $ 0.4€ $ 1.4¢
$ (069 $ 05 $ 1.34
0.31 (0.0%) 0.1Z
$ (0.35) $ 04 $ 1.4€
$ 05z $ 05z $ 0.52
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META FINANCIAL GROUP, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Es)
(Dollars in Thousands)

Year Ended
September 30,
2008 2007 2006
(As Restated)
Net income (loss $ (1,029 $ 1,171 3,68¢
Other comprehensive income (los
Change in net unrealized gains (losses) on segsidtiailable for sal (2,69 1,42 (2,18¢)
Gains realized in net incon 24 49¢ —
(2,679 1,91¢ (2,18¢)
Deferred income tax effe (997) 71E (819
Total other comprehensive income (loss) (1,677) 1,20¢ (1,369
Total comprehensive income (los $ (2,700 $ 2,374 2,321

See Notes to Condensed Consolidated FinancialnSeats.
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META FINANCIAL GROUP, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholdersguity
For the Years Ended September 30, 2006, 2007, and03
(Dollars in Thousands, Except Share and Per Shatr&) D

Accumulated

other Unearned
Comprehensive Employee Total
Additional Stock Shareholders’
Common Paid-in Retained (Loss), Ownership Treasury
Stock Capital Earnings Net of Tax Plan Shares Stock Equity
Balance, September 30, 20 $ 30 % 20,647 % 34557 % (318) $ 828 % (8,269 $ 42,95¢
Cash dividends declared on common stock ($.52 e} — — (1,299 — — — (1,292
Issuance of 18,712 common shares from treasurk shoe to
exercise of stock optior — (15€) — — — 42¢ 213
Issuance of 3,667 common shares from treasury stoeko
issuance of nonvested sha — (44) — — — 44 —
Stock compensatic — 481 — — — — 481
14,500 common shares committed to be released tinel&SOF — 41 — — EilE — 357
Change in net unrealized losses on securitiesahleifor sale, ne — — — (1,367) — — (1,367)
Net income for year ended September 30, 2006 — — 3,68¢ — — — 3,68¢
Balance, September 30, 20C $ 30 $ 20,96¢ $ 36,95: $ (4549 $ (509 $ (7,79 $ 45,09¢
Balance, September 30, 20 $ 30 $ 20,96¢ $ 36,95: % (4549 $ (509 $ (7,79¢)  $ 45,09¢
Cash dividends declared on common stock ($.52 e} — — (1,319 — — — (1,319
Issuance of 55,350 common shares from treasurk shoe to
exercise of stock optior — (230) — — — 823 692
Stock compensatic — 1,117 — — — — 1,117
5,750 common shares committed to be released tinel&SOF — 2 — — 132 — 134
Change in net unrealized losses on securitiesahleifor sale, ne — — — 1,20z — — 1,20:
Net income for year ended September 30, 2007 — — 1,171 — — — 1,171
Balance, September 30, 20C $ 30 % 21,95¢ $ 36,80 $ (3345) % 877 $ 6,979 $ 48,09¢
Balance, September 30, 20 $ 30 $ 21,95¢  $ 36,80 $ (3,345 % @377 % 6,979 $ 48,09¢
Cash dividends declared on common stock ($.52 e} — — (1,340 — — — (1,340
Issuance of 11,386 common shares from treasurk shoe to
exercise of stock optior — 1 — — — 198 19¢
Stock compensatic — 901 — — — — 901
16,562 common shares committed to be released tinel&SOF — 19¢ — — 377 — 57
Change in net unrealized losses on securitiesahleifor sale, ne — — — (1,677) — — (1,677)
Net loss for year ended September 30, 2@@8Restated) — — (1,029) — — — (1,029)
Balance, September 30, 2008 (As Restate $ 30 $ 23,05¢ $ 3444: $ (5,02) $ - 3 6,779 $ 45,73!

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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META FINANCIAL GROUP, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Dollars in Thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net casbdus) provided by operatir

activities:

Effect of contribution to employee stock ownerspian
Depreciation, amortization and accretion,

Provision for loan losse

(Gain) on sale of branch:

(Gain) on sale of investments available for sads
(Gain) on sale of membership equity interests
(Gain) on sale of othe

Net change in accrued interest receivi

Net change in other assi

Net change in accrued interest pay:

Net change in accrued expenses and other liabilitie

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activ-continuing operation
Net cash provided by operating activities-discauntith operations

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activitie

Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchase of securities available for ¢
Net change in federal funds sc
Proceeds from sales of securities available fa
Net change in securities purchased under agrecmessell

Proceeds from maturities and principal repaymehsecourities available for sa

Loans purchase

Net change in loans receival

Proceeds from sales of foreclosed real e:
Cash transferred to buyer on sale of bre

Net change in FHLB stoc

Proceeds from the sale of premises and equip
Purchase of premises and equiprr

Other, net

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activ-continuing operation
Net cash provided by investing activities-disconéid operations

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activitie

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net change in checking, savings, and money margbslts
Net change in time depos
Net change in advances from Federal Home Loan |
Net change in securities sold under agreementptarchas:
Cash dividends pai
Stock compensatic
Proceeds from exercise of stock options

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activ-continuing operation

Net cash (used in) financing activities-discontitiaperations
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activitie

Net change in cash and cash equivalen

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe
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For the Years Ended September 3(

2008 2007 2006
(As Restated)

$ (1,029 $ 1171 $ 3,68¢
57¢ 134 357
3,20¢ 2,58( 3,02t
2,71¢ 3,16¢ 311
— (3,33)) —
(24) (496) —
(542) — —
(81) (70) (64)
(308) (127) (176€)
(24,149 (2,410 (2,269
(264) (53) 31
(19,190 64¢ 3,29¢
(39,08¢) 1,214 8,20¢
6,02¢ 453 1,111
(33,059 1,667 9,31¢
(102,790 (13,216 (109)
69,81: (75,000 =
16,99( 1,09¢ —
— 5,891 31,62:
37,35t 27,08¢ 38,26:
(55,290 (44,919 (58,929
(19,96) 52,83( 107,70°
59€ 31€& 4,281
— (33,66¢) —
(4,077) 1,03¢ 2,41¢
10t 18 —
(5,19 (4,75%) (3,762)
1,28 — —
(61,172 (83,269 121,49:.
17,59¢ 11,66¢ 5,921
(43,579 (71,609 127,41
56,22¢ 37,56: 77,64
(33,239 (15,882 (49,73)
64,02¢ (21,300) (57,250
5,12¢ (14,95%) (5,329
(1,340 (1,319 (1,297)
901 1,115 481
19¢ 54C 187
91,90: (14,23) (35,290
(33,210 (4,275 (6,45
58,69: (18,513 (41,749
(17,940 (88,45() 94,98
20,90: 109,35: 14,37(
$ 2,96 $ 20,90: $ 109,35:
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META FINANCIAL GROUP, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Con't.)
(Dollars in Thousands)

For the Years Ended September 3(
2008 2007 2006
(As Restated)

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informatior
Cash paid during the period f

Interest $ 14,277 $ 18,31¢ $ 20,91:
Income taxe: 47C 57C 1,68¢
Supplemental schedule of nc-cash investing and financing activities
Loans transferred to foreclosed real es $ 27¢  $ 31 $ 50
Cash received on sale of commercial b 8,22¢ — —

Sale of Branche:
Assets disposed ¢

Loans $ — 3 (2,229 $ —

Accrued interest receivab — (14) —

Premises and equipme — (230 —
Liabilities assumed by buye

Non-interest bearing demand, NOW, savings and moneliehdeposit: — 11,141 —

Time deposit: — 28,03( —

Other liabilities — 192 —
(Gain) on sale of branches, 1 — (3,33)) —
Cash paid upon sale of branches $ — 3 33,66 $ —

See Notes to Condensed Consolidated FinancialrSeats.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include to®ants of Meta Financial Group, Inc. (the “Compang unitary savings and loan
holding company located in Storm Lake, lowa, asdiholly owned subsidiaries which include MetaB#thie “Bank”), a federally chartered
savings bank whose primary federal regulator iSQffece of Thrift Supervision, First Services Firtéal Limited and Brookings Service
Corporation, which offer noninsured investment picid, and Meta Trust Compafiy , which offers varimust services. The Company also
owns 100% of First Midwest Financial Capital Trughe “Trust”), which was formed in July 2001 fitre purpose of issuing trust preferred
securities. The Trust is not included in the cdidated financial statements of the Company. Ajhgicant intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated. The resuliéscbntinued operations have been reported sepanatde consolidated financial statements
and the previously reported financial statement®teen reclassified.

NATURE OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY SEGMENT INFORMATION

The primary source of income for the Company isnest from the purchase or origination of consurm@mmercial, agricultural,
commercial real estate, and residential real ekiates. Additionally, a significant source of imee for the Company relates to payment
processing services for prepaid debit cards, ATBhsprship, and other money transfer systems anitesr The Company accepts deposits
from customers in the normal course of businesaanily in northwest and central lowa and easteratis®akota and on a national basis for
the MPS division. The Company operates in the imgnikdustry, which accounts for the majority &f ievenues and assets. The Company
uses the “management approach” for reporting in&tion about segments in annual and interim findrstéements. The management
approach is based on the way the chief operatinigida-maker organizes segments within a companyngking operating decisions and
assessing performance. Reportable segments ae baproducts and services, geography, legaltateijananagement structure and any
other manner in which management disaggregatempamy. Based on the management approach modélotinpany has determined that its
business is comprised of two reporting segments.

Assets held in trust or fiduciary capacity are asgets of the Company and, accordingly, are natded in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

USE OF ESTIMATES IN PREPARING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith GAAP requires management to make estimamesassumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities andassire of contingent assets and liabilities atdag of the financial statements and the rept
amounts of revenue and expenses during the repgréiriod. Actual results could differ from thosgimates. Certain significant estimates
include the allowance for loan losses, the valuatibgoodwill and the fair values of securities atkder financial instruments. These estimates
are reviewed by management regularly; however, #neyparticularly susceptible to significant changethe future.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND FEDERAL FUNDS SOLD

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and egslvalents is defined to include the Company&haan hand and due from
financial institutions and short-term interest-tiegrdeposits in other financial institutions. T@empany reports cash flows net for customer
loan transactions, securities purchased under agmeto resell, deposit transactions, securitiéd woder agreements to repurchase, and
Federal Home Loan Bank of Des Moines (“FHLBvances with terms less than 90 days. The Bamgisired to maintain reserve balance
cash or on deposit with the Federal Reserve Baaded
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on a percentage of deposits. The total of thoserve balances was $1.1 million and $0 at SepteBthe2008 and 2007, respectively. The
Company at times maintains balances in excesssaféd limits at various financial institutions inding the FHLB, the Federal Reserve Bank,
and other private institutions. At September 3M&the Company had no interest bearing depodisatehe FHLB. At September 30, 2008
the Company had $5.2 million of federal funds saldeveral private institutions. The Company dasdelieve these carry a significant risk
loss, but cannot provide assurances that no lassgd occur if these institutions were to beconsoivent.

SECURITIES PURCHASED UNDER AGREEMENT TO RESELL
Securities purchased under agreement to reseltglgnmature or reprice within one week and areiedrat cost.
SECURITIES

The Company classifies all securities as avail&drisale. Available for sale securities are thileeCompany may decide to sell if
needed for liquidity, asset-liability managemenbtiter reasons. Available for sale securitiesreperted at fair value, with net unrealized
gains and losses reported as other comprehensiom@or loss as a separate component of shareboddgiity, net of tax.

Gains and losses on the sale of securities arentietsd using the specific identification methoddzhasn amortized cost and are
reflected in results of operations at the timeadé s Interest and dividend income, adjusted byréimation of purchase premium or discount
over the estimated life of the security using #eel yield method, is included in income as earned.

Declines in the fair value of individual securitieslow their amortized cost that are deemed totherdghan-temporary are reflected in
earnings as realized losses. In estimating otham-temporary impairment losses, management cassidg the length of time and the extent
to which the fair value has been less than coyth@financial condition and near-term prospetthe issuer, and (3) the intent and ability of
the Company to retain its investment in the is$aea period of time sufficient to allow for anytampated recovery in fair value.

LOANS RECEIVABLE

Loans receivable that management has the intendfaifity to hold for the foreseeable future or untaturity or payeff are reported :
their outstanding principal balances reduced byatltavance for loan losses and any deferred feessts on originated loans.

Interest income on loans is accrued over the tdrtheoloans based upon the amount of principaltanting except when serious
doubt exists as to the collectibility of a loanwhich case the accrual of interest is discontinuatierest income is subsequently recognized
only to the extent that cash payments are receinét] in management’s judgment, the borrower hasability to make contractual interest and
principal payments, in which case the loan is retdrto accrual status.

Loan fees and certain direct loan origination cas¢ésdeferred, and the net fee or cost is recodragean adjustment to interest income
using the interest method.

MORTGAGE SERVICING AND TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSET S
MetaBank regularly sells residential mortgage lo@nsthers on a non-recourse basis. Sold loansariecluded in the consolidated
financial statements. MetaBank generally retdiesright to service the sold loans for a fee. &pt®&mber 30, 2008 and 2007, MetaBank was

servicing loans for others with aggregate unpaidgipal balances of $28.7 million and $29.6 millisaspectively.
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ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

Because some loans may not be repaid in full, lawahce for loan losses is recorded. The allowdoctan losses is increased by a
provision for loan losses charged to expense aorkdsed by charge-offs (net of recoveries). Estigdhe risk of loss and the amount of loss
on any loan is necessarily subjective. Managem@at'®dic evaluation of the adequacy of the allogeais based on the Company’s past loan
loss experience, known and inherent risks in thtf@m, adverse situations that may affect therbaer’s ability to repay, the estimated value
of any underlying collateral, and current econooanditions. While management may periodically atecportions of the allowance for
specific problem loan situations, the entire alloeais available for any loan charge-offs that occu

Loans are considered impaired if full principalimerest payments are not anticipated in accordwiittethe contractual loan terms.
Impaired loans are carried at the present valexpécted future cash flows discounted at the loaffiéstive interest rate or at the fair value of
the collateral if the loan is collateral dependeftportion of the allowance for loan losses iedited to impaired loans if the value of such
loans is deemed to be less than the unpaid baldhtieese allocations cause the allowance for logases to require an increase, such increase
is reported as a component of the provision fon logses.

The allowance consists of specific, general, arallocated components. The specific componenteglat loans that are classified
either as doubtful, substandard, or special mentkor such loans that are also classified as iragaan allowance is established when the
discounted cash flows (or collateral value or oballe market price) of the impaired loan is lowsart the carrying value of that loan. The
general component covers loans not considered regbaind is based on historical loss experiencestatjufor qualitative factors. An
unallocated component is maintained to cover uaogies that could affect management’s estimaggralbable losses. The unallocated
component of the allowance reflects the margimgdriecision inherent in the underlying assumptioseduin the methodologies for estimating
specific and general losses in the portfolio.

Smaller-balance homogeneous loans are evaluatéhfpairment in total. Such loans include residarftist mortgage loans secured
by one-to-four family residences, residential cougton loans, and automobile, manufactured hoimasie equity and second mortgage loans.
Commercial and agricultural loans and mortgagedaatured by other properties are evaluated ingéligl for impairment. When analysis of
borrower operating results and financial condifiedticates that underlying cash flows of the borrdg/business are not adequate to meet its
debt service requirements, the loan is evaluatethfpairment. Often this is associated with a delashortfall in payments of 90 days or
more. Non-Accrual loans are often also considergmhired. Impaired loans, or portions thereof, @rarged off when deemed uncollectible.

FORECLOSED REAL ESTATE AND REPOSSESSED ASSETS

Real estate properties and repossessed assetseddtudugh, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure ariafly recorded at the lower of cost
or fair value less selling costs at the date oédtorsure, establishing a new cost basis. Any iauto fair value from the carrying value of the
related loan at the time of acquisition is accodrite as a loan loss and charged against the atlogvéor loan losses. Valuations are
periodically performed by management and valuatitowances are increased through a charge to inéonreductions in fair value or
increases in estimated selling costs.

INCOME TAXES
The Company records income tax expense based @mtbent of taxes due on its tax return plus defeta@es computed based on
expected future tax consequences of temporaryrdiftes between the carrying amounts and tax bésssets and liabilities, using enactec

rates. Deferred tax assets
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are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in fiieion of management, it is more likely than naittiome portion or all of the deferred tax
assets will not be realized.

MetaBank adopted Financial Accounting Standards®b@erpretation No. 48\ccounting for Uncertainty in Income Tax&sN 48),
as of October 1, 2007. The Company recognizes pdsition as a benefit only if it is more likelyan not that the tax position would be
sustained in a tax examination, with a tax exanonabeing presumed to occur. The amount recogng#te largest amount of tax benefit that
is greater than 50% likely of being realized upgareination. For tax positions not meeting the niialy than not test, no tax benefit is
recorded. The Company recognizes interest aneéfoalfies related to income tax matters in incomeetgense.

PREMISES, FURNITURE, AND EQUIPMENT

Land is carried at cost. Buildings, furniture tfires, leasehold improvements and equipment aredat cost, less accumulated
depreciation and amortization computed principbihyusing the straight-line method over the estihatgeful lives of the assets, which range
from 15 to 39 years for buildings, 5 to 20 yeansléasehold improvements and 3 to 7 years for furej fixtures and equipment. These assets
are reviewed for impairment when events indicageddrrying amount may not be recoverable.

TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Transfers of financial assets are accounted feakes when control over the assets has been sareghdControl over transferred
assets is deemed to be surrendered when (1) tbes &sve been isolated from the Company, (2) dresferee obtains the right (free of
conditions that constrain it from taking advanta@éhat right) to pledge or exchange the transteagsets, and (3) the Company does not
maintain effective control over the transferredetsshrough an agreement to repurchase them biékirenaturity.

BANK-OWNED LIFE INSURANCE

Bank-owned life insurance represents the cashmterevalue of investments in life insurance confra&arnings on the contracts are
based on the earnings on the cash surrender Vessanortality costs.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP PLAN

The Company accounts for its employee stock owtiggdan (ESOP) in accordance with AICPA Statemdmasition (SOP) 93-6.
Under SOP 93, the cost of shares issued to the ESOP, butetatlipcated to participants, are presented ircéimsolidated balance sheets i
reduction of shareholderstuity. Compensation expense is recorded basduaeoaverage market price of the shares as theyoammitted to b
released for allocation to participant accounts diiiference between the market price and theafostares committed to be released is
recorded as an adjustment to additional paid-iitalpividends on allocated ESOP shares are recbas a reduction of retained earnings.
Dividends on unallocated shares are used to retthecaccrued interest and principal amount of th®E'S loan payable to the Company.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK

The Company, in the normal course of business, meimmitments to make loans which are not reflertéde consolidated
financial statements.

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill and intangible assets are not amortizeidabel subject to an impairment test at least afyoaimore often if conditions
indicate a possible impairment.
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RELATED TO DISCONTINUED OPER ATIONS

Assets and liabilities related to discontinued afiens are carried at the lower of cost or estichatarket value in the aggregate.
SECURITIES SOLD UNDER AGREEMENTS TO REPURCHASE

The Company enters into sales of securities ungieements to repurchase with primary dealers avilych provide for the
repurchase of the same security. Securities suléragreements to repurchase identical secusiteesollateralized by assets which are he
safekeeping in the name of the Bank or by the dealbo arranged the transaction. Securities soiituagreements to repurchase are treated
as financings, and the obligations to repurchash sacurities are reflected as a liability. Theusities underlying the agreements remain ir
asset accounts of the Company.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Interest revenue from loans and investments isgr@zed on the accrual basis of accounting as teedst is earned according to the
terms of the particular loan or investment. Incdroen service and other customer charges is recedras earned. Card fee revenue within the
MPS division is recognized as services are perfdrarel service charges are earned in accordanceheitierms of the various programs.

EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE (EPS)

Basic EPS is based on the net income divided bw#ighted average number of common shares outstgualdiring the period.
Allocated ESOP shares are considered outstandimgafaings per common share calculations, as tteegammitted to be released;
unallocated ESOP shares are not considered ouitstanDiluted EPS shows the dilutive effect of ditdial potential common shares issuable
under stock option plans. EPS, both basic andedi|thave been computed on a continuing and diseeed operations basis.

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Comprehensive income consists of net income anel @atmprehensive income. Other comprehensive indantudes the net change
in net unrealized gains and losses on securitieiadle for sale, net of reclassification adjusttseand tax effects, and is recognized as a
separate component of shareholders’ equity.

STOCK COMPENSATION

Effective October 1, 2005, the Company adoptece8tant of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) N23(R),Share-Based
Paymen, using a modified prospective application. Pt@that date, the Company accounted for stock ngieards under APB Opinion
No. 25,Accounting for Stock Issued to Employeds accordance with SFAS No. 123(R), compensatikpense for share based awards is
recorded over the vesting period at the fair vaiihe award at the time of grant. The recordihguzh compensation expense began on
October 1, 2005 for shares not yet vested as ofiite and for all new grants subsequent to that darior years’ results have not been
restated. The exercise price of options or faiu@®f nonvested shares granted under the Comparggative plans is equal to the fair market
value of the underlying stock at the grant datee Tompany assumes no projected forfeitures @idtk based compensation, since actual
historical forfeiture rates on its stock based imise@ awards has been negligible.

RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain reclassifications have been made to peoiofs’ consolidated financial statements to pretteem on a basis comparable
within the current period’s consolidated finanatdtements.
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NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In June 2006 the FASB issued FASB Interpretation48 (“FIN No. 48”),Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxas,
Interpretation of Statement No. 108counting for Income TaxesFIN No. 48 prescribes a recognition threshold mwdsurement attribute -
the financial statement recognition and measurewieatax position taken or expected to be takemtizx return. FIN No. 48 was effective for
the Company on October 1, 2007. As a result oattaption and implementation of FIN No. 48, the @amy determined that no liability for
unrecognized tax benefits existed at October 1720there have been no changes to this amountgifisical 2008.

At its September 2006 meeting, the Emerging IsSias& Force (“EITF”) reached a final consensus sadsaNo. 06-04Accounting fo
Deferred Compensation and Postretirement Benefiedis of Endorsement S-Dollar Life Insurance ArrangementsThe consensus
stipulates that an agreement by an employer teshaortion of the proceeds of a life insurancécgakith an employee during the
postretirement period is a postretirement benefdrgement required to be accounted for under i@ieNo. 106 (“SFAS No. 106”) or
Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 1@mnibus Opinion - 1967The consensus concludes that the purchase ¢it-aaiar
life insurance policy does not constitute a setdetunder SFAS No. 106 and, therefore, a liabibitythe postretirement obligation must be
recognized under SFAS No. 106 if the benefit iei@fl under an arrangement that constitutes a plandzr APB No. 12 if it is not part of a
plan. Issue No. 06-04 is effective for the Comphaginning October 1, 2008 and will not have andotmn the Company’s financial position,
results of operation or cash flows.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement Nf.(1SFAS No. 157”)Fair Value Measurements SFAS No. 157 defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring falue, and expands disclosures about fair value uneaents. It clarifies that fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset @ fgetransfer a liability in an orderly transactibetween market participants in the market in
which the reporting entity transacts. SFAS No. @i6&s not require any new fair value measurembuatgather, it provides enhanced guida
to other pronouncements that require or permittagsdiabilities to be measured at fair value. ASRNo. 157 is effective for the Company
beginning October 1, 2008 and adoption of SFASTJ. will not have a material impact on the Comparfiiancial position, results of
operation or cash flows.

In February 2007, the FASB issued FASB Statementll§8,The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Ficgal Liabilities —
Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No (“SFAS No. 159”).SFAS No. 159 permits companies to choose to measany financia
instruments and certain other items at fair vaha are not currently required to be measurediavddue. The objective of SFAS No. 159 is to
provide opportunities to mitigate volatility in refed earnings caused by measuring related assetgailities differently without having to
apply hedge accounting principles. SFAS No. 158 afgablishes presentation and disclosure requitesngesigned to facilitate comparisons
between companies that choose different measuresteibutes for similar types of assets and lisiesi. SFAS No. 159 is effective for the
Company beginning October 1, 2008 and adoptionF@fSSNo. 159 will not have a material impact on @@mpanys financial position, resul
of operation or cash flows.

At its March 2007 meeting, the EITF reached a fowmisensus on Issue No. 06-A@counting for Collateral Assignment Split-Dollar
Life Insurance Arrangemen. A consensus was reached that an employer shecddnize a liability for the postretirement behediated to a
collateral assignment split-dollar life insuranceaagement in accordance with either FASB StaterNentL06 or APB Opinion No. 12, as
appropriate, if the employer has agreed to mairgdife insurance policy during the employee’sretient or provide the employee with a
death benefit based on the substantive agreeménthvei employee. A consensus also was reachedrtenployer should recognize and
measure an
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asset based on the nature and substance of theéecallassignment splitellar life insurance arrangement. The consensaigesffective for th
Company beginning October 1, 2008, including imtepieriods within those fiscal years, with early laggtion permitted. Issue No. 06-10 will
not have an impact on the Company’s financial pasitresults of operation or cash flows.

In December 2007, the FASB issued FASB Statementl¥bR ,Business Combinatiof(sSFAS No. 141R"). SFAS No. 141R
improves reporting by creating greater consisténdiie accounting and financial reporting of busseombinations, resulting in more
complete, comparable, and relevant informatiorirfeestors and other users of financial stateme8fAS No. 141R is effective October 1,
2009. The Company is currently evaluating the ichpiaat the Statement will have on its consoliddieancial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued FASB StatementlB@,Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financ&ktements—an
amendment of ARB No. 8BFAS No. 160") which is effective for the Compabgginning October 1, 2009. SFAS 160 improves the
relevance, comparability, and transparency of farinformation provided to investors by requirial entities to report noncontrolling
(minority) interest in subsidiaries in the same was equity in the consolidated financial statemeiitse Company does not currently have
any noncontrolling interest in the consolidatedfinial statements.

In March 2008, the FASB issued FASB Statement M@, Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedghativities
(“SFAS No. 161"). SFAS No. 161 is intended to itoye financial reporting about derivative instrungeand hedging activities by requiring
enhanced disclosures to enable investors to hettrstand their effects on an entity’s financiipon, financial performance, and cash
flows. The Company will adopt SFAS 161 effectiemdary 1, 2009. Management has reviewed SFAS Blbathd does not expect the
adoption of this statement to have a material ihpadche Company’s consolidated financial conditi@sults of operations or cash flow.

In May 2008, the FASB issued FASB Statement No, T62 Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Biptes
(“SFAS No. 162"). SFAS No. 162 makes the hierarekglicitly and directly applicable to preparerdfiofincial statements, a step that
recognizes preparers’ responsibilities for selectire accounting principles for their financialtstaents. SFAS No. 162 provides for slight
modifications to the current hierarchy in placeddyling FASB Staff Positions, Statement No. 133 énmntation Issues and EITF D-Topics to
it. The Company will adopt SFAS No. 162 effectiveMémber 15, 2008.

NOTE 2. DISCONTINUED BANK OPERATIONS
Sale of MetaBank West Central

On November 29, 2007, the Company entered int@asemment to sell MetaBank WC. MetaBank WC hasetiwranch offices in
Stuart, Casey, and Menlo, lowa. MetaBank WC iateshartered commercial bank whose primary fédegalator is the Federal Reserve
Bank of Chicago. On March 28, 2008 the Companysuoommated the sale of MetaBank WC to Anita Bancaiam (lowa). The transaction
involved the sale of the stock of MetaBank WC fpprximately $8.2 million and generated a far-gain on sale of $2.3 million. The activ
related to Meta Bank WC is accounted for as disnart operations.

Activities related to discontinued bank operatibase been recorded separately with current and peisod amounts reclassified as
assets and liabilities related to discontinued afi@ns on the consolidated statements of finamaatlition and as discontinued operations on
the consolidated
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statements of operations and consolidated stateofieash flows. The notes to the consolidated fiiedrstatements have also been adjusted to
eliminate the effect of discontinued bank operagion

Presented below are condensed financial staterfertdetaBank WC.

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION - DISCO NTINUED OPERATIONS

September 30, 2008 2007
(Dollars in Thousands)

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalel $ — 3 9,58:

Investments and mortge-backed securities, available for s — 11,65¢

Loans receivable, ni — 9,59¢

Other assets — 4,93(
Total assets related to discontinued operatior $ — 3 35,77(

LIABILITIES

LIABILITIES

Deposits $ — 3 24,61(

Other borrowingt — 6,30(C

Other liabilities — 39
Total liabilities related to discontinued operatiors $ — 3 30,94¢

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS FOR DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

March 28, 2008 September 30, 2007 September 30, 2006
(As Restated) (Dollars in Thousands)
Interest incom: $ 77€ $ 2221 $ 2,46¢
Interest expense 51F 1,30t 1,331
Net interest income 261 91€ 1,13¢
Provision for loan losses (57) 627 (76)
Net interest income after provision for loan losse 31¢ 28¢ 1,211
Noninterest incom 2,441 21€ 233
Noninterest expens 374 89¢ 98¢
Net income (loss) before income tax expen 2,38¢ (394) 45¢
Income tax expense (benel 1,57¢ (259 14¢
Net income (loss) from discontinued operation $ 811 $ (141 $ 30¢
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NOTE 3. EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE (EPS)

A reconciliation of the income (loss) and commarcktshare amounts used in the computation of asldiluted EPS for the fiscal
years ended September 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006ssred below

2008 2007 2006
(Dollars in Thousands, Except Share and Per Sharedia)
(As Restated)

Earnings (Loss)

Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ (1,839 $ 1312 % 3,37¢

Discontinued operations, net of t 811 (141) 30¢

Net income (loss $ (1,029 $ 1,171 $ 3,68¢
Basic EPS

Weighted average common shares outstan 2,595,58 2,550,19: 2,511,75.

Less weighted average unallocated ESOP and nouveistee: (6,667 (25,217) (27,949

Weighted average common shares outstanding 2,588,92 2,524,98! 2,483,80!
Earnings (Loss) Per Common Shari

Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ 0.77) $ 05z $ 1.3€

Discontinued operations, net of tax 0.31 (0.06) 0.12

Net income (loss) $ (040 $ 04¢ $ 1.4¢
Diluted EPS

Weighted average common shares outstanding foc kashings per common

share 2,588,92! 2,524,98 2,483,80!

Add dilutive effect of assumed exercises of stoptiams, net of tax benefi 57,20« 92,91¢ 38,05

Weighted average common and dilutive potential comshares outstanding 2,646,13I 2,617,89 2,521,85
Earnings (Loss) Per Common Shari

Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ (0.69) $ 05C $ 1.34

Discontinued operations, net of t 0.31 (0.05) 0.12

Net income (loss $ (0.3¢) $ 04t $ 1.4€

Stock options totaling 127,907, 26,682, and 99)86F not considered in computing diluted earningrsgpmmon share for the years
ended September 30, 2008, 2007, and 2006, resplgctdecause they were not dilutive.
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NOTE 4. SECURITIES

Year end securities available for sale were asvdl

GROSS GROSS
AMORTIZED UNREALIZED UNREALIZED FAIR
2008 COST GAINS (LOSSES) VALUE
(Dollars in Thousands)
Debt securitie:
Trust preferred and corporate securi $ 25,79 $ 25 3 (7,646 $ 18,17
Obligations of states and political subdivisic 1,53¢ 17 ()] 1,53
Mortgagebacked securitie 184,51! 47¢€ (870) 184,12;
Total debt securities $ 211,84« $ 52C $ (8,530) $ 203,83«
GROSS GROSS
AMORTIZED UNREALIZED UNREALIZED FAIR
2007 COST GAINS (LOSSES) VALUE
(Dollars in Thousands)
Debt securitie:
Trust preferred and corporate securi $ 26,78: $ 17z $ (2,54¢) $ 24,41(
Obligations of states and political subdivisic 1,53¢ 17 (D) 1,55(C
Mortgage-backed securities 135,43. 76 (2,767 132,74:
Total debt securitie $ 163,75( $ 265 $ (5,319 $ 158,70:

Gross unrealized losses and fair value, aggredsténvestment category and length of time thatvittlial securities have been in
continuous unrealized loss position at Septembg2@08 and 2007 are as follows:

LESS THAN 12 MONTHS OVER 12 MONTHS TOTAL
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
2008 Value (Losses) Value (Losses) Value (Losses)
(Dollars in Thousands)
Debt securitie:
Trust preferred and corporate
securities $ 42t $ (75 $ 17,22:  $ (7,57) $ 17,64¢ $ (7,64¢)
Obligations of states and politice
subdivisions 41¢ 249 — — 41¢ (19
Mortgagebacked securitie 115,22! (870) 26 — 115,25: (870)
Total debt securities $ 116,06¢ $ (959) $ 17,25 $ (7,57) $ 133,31¢ $ (8,530
LESS THAN 12 MONTHS OVER 12 MONTHS TOTAL
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
2007 Value (Losses) Value (Losses) Value (Losses)
(Dollars in Thousands)
Debt securitie:
Trust preferred and corpore
securities $ — 3 — 3 22,23t $ (2,546 $ 22,23t  $ (2,54¢)
Obligations of states and politice
subdivisions 432 Q) — — 432 @
Mortgage-backed securities 4,08: (33 121,10: (2,739 125,18: (2,769
Total debt securitie $ 451¢ $ (34 $ 143,34 $ (5,280 $ 147,85: $ (5,319

As of September 30, 2008, the investment portfioldduded 6 securities with current unrealized Igsskich have existed for longer
than one year. All of these securities are comsitléo be acceptable credit risks. Because thindsdn fair value were due to changes in
market interest rates, not in estimated cash floaegther-than-temporary impairment was recordegeatember 30, 2008. In addition, the
Company has the intent and ability to hold thesestment securities for a period of time sufficienallow for an anticipated recovery.

The amortized cost and fair value of debt securitie contractual maturity are shown below. Cersaicurities have call features
which allow the issuer to call the security priombaturity. Expected maturities may differ froomtactual maturities in mortgage-backed
securities because borrowers may have the rigtdlt@r prepay obligations with or without call prepayment penalties. Therefore,
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mortgage-backed securities are not included imthgurity categories in the following maturity summa

AMORTIZED FAIR

September 30, 200: COST VALUE

(Dollars in Thousands)

Due in one year or le: $ — 3 —
Due after one year through five ye. 644 65¢
Due after five years through ten ye 89C 87¢
Due after ten years 25,79¢ 18,17«
27,32¢ 19,71:
Mortgage-backed securities 184,51! 184,12:
Total debt securitie $ 211,84 $ 203,83:

Activities related to the sale of securities avaiafor sale are summarized below.

2008 2007 2006

(Dollars in Thousands)
Proceeds from salt $ 16,99C $ 1,09 $ —
Gross gains on sal 24 49¢€ —

NOTE 5. LOANS RECEIVABLE, NET

Year end loans receivable were as follows:

September 30, 2008 2007
(Dollars in Thousands)

One to four family residential mortgage loz $ 56,36: $ 45,407
Commercial and mu-family real estate loar 222,65: 169,87
Agricultural real estate loar 30,04¢ 16,58:
Consumer loan 49,32¢ 36,76:
Commercial business loa 44,97: 58,70¢
Agricultural business loar 31,15 33,14
Total Loans Receivable 434,511 360,47
Less:

Allowance for loan losse (5,737 (4,499

Undisbursed portion of loans in proct (6993 (2549)

Net deferred loan origination fe (160) (119
Total Loans Receivable, Net $ 427,92¢ $ 355,61:
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Annual activity in the allowance for loan lossessves follows:

Year ended September 30, 2008 2007 2006
(Dollars in Thousands)

Beginning balanc $ 4,49: % 6,391 $ 6,79:

Provision for loan losse 2,71¢ 3,16¢ 311

Recoveries 73 54¢ 32¢

Charge offs (1,54¢9) (5,615 (1,042)

Ending balanc $ 573: $ 449: $ 6,391

Virtually all of the Company’s originated loans @oelowa- and South Dakota-based individuals am@ueizations. The Company’s
purchased loans totaled $38.6 million at SepterBbeP008, which were secured by properties located, percentage of total loans, as
follows: 4% in lowa, 2% in Washington, 1% each iol&@@ado, Florida, and Oregon, and the remainingri@even other states.

The Company originates and purchases commerciagsegte loans. These loans are considered bygearent to be of somewhat
greater risk of uncollectibility due to the dependg on income production. The Company’s commereial estate loans include $16.3 million
of loans secured by hotel properties and $44.2anibf multi-family properties at September 30, 800rhe Company’s commercial real estate
loans include $19.4 million of loans secured byehptoperties and $21.8 million of multi-family grerties at September 30, 2007. The
remainder of the commercial real estate portfdidiversified by industry. The Company’s policy fequiring collateral and guarantees varies
with the creditworthiness of each borrower.

Impaired loans, which include non-accrual loangenaes follows:

Year ended September 30, 2008 2007
(Dollars in Thousands)
Yeal-end impaired loans with no allowance for loan Igsséocatec $ — 3 —
Year-end impaired loans with allowance for loan losdexated 15,90¢ 2,27(
Amount of the allowance allocated to impaired lo 3,54( 1,47¢
Average of impaired loans during the y: 6,512 4,53¢

Interest income and cash interest collected onimgdoans was not material during the years er@kguatember 30, 2008 and 2007.

Non-Accruing loans were $2.8 million and $2.1 noifliat September 30, 2008 and 2007, respectivetgrutng loans delinquent 90
days or more were $4.6 million at September 30820lhere were no accruing loans delinquent 90 daysore at September 30, 2007.
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NOTE 6. LOAN SERVICING

Loans serviced for others are not reported assas3éte unpaid principal balances of these loagsat end were as follows:

2008 2007
(Dollars in Thousands)

Mortgage loan portfolios serviced for FNN $ 18,66¢ $ 20,42
Other 10,02¢ 9,197
$ 28,69t $ 29,61«

NOTE 7. PREMISES, FURNITURE, AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Year end premises and equipment were as follows:

September 30, 2008 2007
(Dollars in Thousands)

Land $ 2,68¢ $ 2,751
Buildings 14,17 14,38¢
Furniture, fixtures, and equipme 16,02t 10,92¢
32,88¢ 28,06:
Less accumulated depreciati (10,896 (8,35€)
$ 21,99. $ 19,70"

Depreciation expense of premises, furniture, andpagent included in occupancy and equipment expeaseapproximately $2.8
million, $1.8 million, and $1.2 million for the yemended September 30, 2008, 2007, and 2006, tesdgc

NOTE 8. TIME CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSITS

Time certificates of deposits in denominations Dd@&,000 or more were approximately $26.7 milliod &35.7 million at
September 30, 2008, and 2007, respectively.

At September 30, 2008, the scheduled maturitigbre certificates of deposits were as follows fog years ending:

September 30,

(Dollars in Thousands)

2009 $ 81,48¢
2010 26,32
2011 8,16/
2012 4,02¢
2013 3,49:
Total Certificates $ 123,49
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NOTE 9. ADVANCES FROM THE FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK

At September 30, 2008, the Compagtdvances from the FHLB had fixed rates rangiomf2.19% to 7.02% with a weighted avet
rate of 3.67%. The scheduled maturities of FHLBaates were as follows for the years ending:

September 30

(Dollars in Thousands)

2009 $ 71,00(
2010 19,00(
2011 11,00(
2012 —
2013 2,50(
Thereafter 8,50(
Total FHLB Advance: $ 112,00(

The Company had one advance in the amount of $Bidmmwith a weighted average fixed rate of 6.19€arrying a quarterly call
provision, whereby the FHLB can elect to acceletladdematurity of this borrowing. This advanceli®wn in the above table at its stated
maturity date, which is 2009. The Company also$@2@l0 million in overnight federal funds purcha$exn the FHLB at a rate of 1.66%.

As of September 30, 2007, the Company’s advanoes fine FHLB totaled $68.0 million and carried agveged average rate of
5.43%.

The Bank has executed blanket pledge agreementelshthe Bank assigns, transfers, and pledge®t6th B and grants to the
FHLB a security interest in all mortgage collateaatl securities collateral. The Bank has the fighise, commingle, and dispose of the
collateral it has assigned to the FHLB. Underageement, the Bank must maintain “eligible cotiatethat has a “lending value” at least
equal to the “required collateral amount,” all &fided by the agreement.

At year end 2008, and 2007, the Bank pledged sexsimith fair values of approximately $82.1 miliand $46.6 million,
respectively, against specific FHLB advances. dditon, qualifying mortgage loans of approximat&§3.3 million, and $31.8 million were
pledged as collateral at September 30, 2008 and, 288pectively.

NOTE 10. SECURITIES SOLD UNDER AGREEMENTS TO REPURCHASE

Securities sold under agreements to repurchadedaiaproximately $5.3 million and $224,000 at agier 30, 2008 and 2007,
respectively.

An analysis of securities sold under agreementsgarchase follows:

September 30, 2008 2007

(Dollars in Thousands)
Highest mont-end balanc: $ 51,43¢ $ 15,47(
Average balanc 9,79¢ 6,46
Weighted average interest rate for the y 3.0(% 3.3%
Weighted average interest rate at yeat 1.22% 5.1%
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The Company pledged securities with fair valueapgroximately $18.6 million at September 30, 2G@8collateral for securities sold
under agreements to repurchase. There were ndtgecpledged as collateral for securities soldamagreements to repurchase at
September 30, 2007.

NOTE 11. SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES AND TRUST PREFERRED SECURITIES

Subordinated debentures are due to First Midwenstrigial Capital Trust I, a 100%-owned nonconsoéidaubsidiary of the
Company. The debentures were issued in 2001 jjueation with the Trust’s issuance of 10,000 sharfesrust Preferred Securities. The
debentures bear the same interest rate and terths &sist preferred securities. The debenturesnatuded on the balance sheet as liabilities.

The Company issued all of the 10,000 authorizedeshaf trust preferred securities of First Midwestancial Capital Trust | holding
solely subordinated debt securities. Distributiares paid semi-annually. Cumulative cash distiilmg are calculated at a variable rate of
LIBOR (as defined) plus 3.75% (7.73% at SeptemBe2B08 and 9.06% at September 30, 2007), notdeezk12.5%. The Company may, at
one or more times, defer interest payments ondpéal securities for up to 10 consecutive semisahperiods, but not beyond July 25, 2031.
At the end of any deferral period, all accumulaged unpaid distributions are required to be pdide capital securities are required to be
redeemed on July 25, 2031; however, the Companyhleagption to shorten the maturity date to a dateearlier than July 25, 2007. The
redemption price is $1,000 per capital securitysny accrued and unpaid distributions to the dftedemption plus, if redeemed prior to
July 25, 2011, a redemption premium as definetiénlhdenture agreement.

Holders of the capital securities have no votiggt$, are unsecured and rank junior in prioritpayment to all of the Company’s
indebtedness and senior to the Company’s commaR.sto

Although the securities issued by the trusts aténutuded as a component of shareholders’ eqthigysecurities are treated as capital
for regulatory purposes, subject to certain liniitas.

NOTE 12. EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP AND PROFIT SHARI NG PLANS

The Company maintains an Employee Stock Ownerdhaip (ESOP) for eligible employees who have 1,000rf@f employment wit
the Bank, have worked one year at the Bank andhalve attained age 21. The ESOP has borrowed nimmaythe Company to purchase
shares of the Company’s common stock. Shares asechby the ESOP are held in suspense for allocatisong participants as the loan is
repaid. ESOP expense of $375,000, $134,000 and ®3% was recorded for the years ended Septemb@088, 2007 and 2006, respective
Contributions of $376,000, $132,000 and $316,006:weade to the ESOP during the years ended Sept&®b2008, 2007 and 20086,
respectively. During the year ended Septembe2B08 the ESOP made its final principal paymenht&o@ompany.

Contributions to the ESOP and shares releasedstmpense in an amount proportional to the repayofahe ESOP loan are
allocated among ESOP participants on the basisrapensation in the year of allocation. Benefitsegally become 100% vested after seven
years of credited service. Prior to the completibseven years of credited service, a participdmd terminates employment for reasons o
than death or disability receives a reduced bebaBtd on the ESOP’s vesting schedule. Forfeianeseallocated among remaining
participating employees in the same proportioncdributions. Benefits are payable in the fornstfck upon termination of employment.
The Company’s contributions to the ESOP are nxeifj so benefits payable under the ESOP cannattheated.
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For the years ended September 30, 2008, 2007 &6 26,562 shares, 5,750 shares and 14,500 shihes fair value of $17.00,
$39.85 and $24.60 per share, respectively, weeasell. Also for the years ended September 30, 2008 and 2006, allocated shares and
total ESOP shares reflect 47,336 shares, 26,44@shend 11,332 shares, respectively, withdrawm fite ESOP by participants who are no
longer with the Company or by participants divefisi§) their holdings and 1,265 shares, 3,521 share$ 5,358 shares, respectively, purchased
for dividend reinvestment.

Year-end ESOP shares are as follows:

September 30 2008 2007 2006
(Dollars in Thousands)

Allocated share 191,77- 221,28 238,45

Unearned share — 16,56: 22,312

Total ESOP shares 191,77- 237,84! 260,76t

Fair value of unearned shares $ —  $ 66C $ 54¢

The Company also has a profit sharing plan covesudgstantially all full-time employees. Contrilartiexpense to the profit sharing
plan, included in compensation and benefits, fentbars ended September 30, 2008, 2007, and 20063%8,000, $311,000, and $322,000,
respectively.

NOTE 13. SHARE BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

The Company maintains the 2002 Omnibus Incentia@ Rihich, among other things, provides for the alvar of stock options and
nonvested (restricted) shares to certain officatsdirectors of the Company. Awards are grantethbyStock Option Committee of the Board
of Directors based on the performance of the awetipients or other relevant factors.

The following table shows the effect to income, ofeiax benefits, of share-based expense recordgtkiyears ended September 30,
2008, 2007 and 2006.

Year Ended September 30, 2008 2007 2006
(Dollars in Thousands)

Total employee sto-based compensation expense recognized in incornef tex
effects of $191, $191 and $163, respecti $ 920¢ $ 92¢ $ 31¢

As of September 30, 2008, stock based compensatjpense not yet recognized in income totaled $4007yhich is expected to be
recognized over a weighted average remaining pefiddo4 years.
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At grant date, the fair value of options awardedetipients is estimated using a Black-Scholesataln model. The exercise price of
stock options equals the fair market value of theeulying stock at the date of grant. The follogvtable shows the key valuation assumptions
used for options granted during the years endete8dger 30, 2008, 2007, and 2006, and other infoaomatOptions are issued for 10 year
periods with 100% vesting generally occurring eithiegrant date or over a four year period.

Year Ended September 30 2008 2007 2006
(Dollars in Thousands, Except Share and Per Sharedba)

Risk-free interest rat 3.37%- 4.36% 4.46%- 5.14% 4.40%- 5.09%
Expected annual standard deviat

Range 19.36%- 33.46% 19.52%- 19.72% 19.46%- 20.60%

Weighted averag 32.80% 19.62% 19.93%
Expected life (years 7 7 7
Expected dividend yiel

Range 1.34%- 3.25% 1.25%- 1.77% 2.13%- 2.55%

Weighted averag 3.18% 1.40% 2.32%
Weighted average fair value of options grantedmiuperiod $ 455 $ 10.2¢ $ 5.51
Intrinsic value of options exercised during per $ 98 $ 1,48¢ $ 218

Although authorized under the Company’s 2002 Ommilbgentive Plan, the Company had not, prior tcaliyear 2006, awarded
nonvested (restricted) shares to employees ortdiec The Company did award nonvested sharesglithinfiscal years ended 2008 and 20
Shares vest immediately up to a period of four yedihe following table shows the weighted aveffagrevalue of nonvested shares awarded
and the total fair value of nonvested shares whésdied during the fiscal years ended 2008 and 200@.fair value is determined based on the
fair market value of the Company’s stock on thengdate.

Year Ended September 30, 2008 2007 2006
(Dollars in Thousands, Except Share and Per Sharedba)

Weighted average fair value of nonvested sharegepgaduring perior  $ 38.5¢ $ 39.8¢ $ 24.4%

Total fair value of nonvested shares vested dysiripd $ 41 $ 16z $ aC

In addition to the Company'’s active 2002 Omnibusehtive Plan, the Company also maintains the 1986kSDption and Incentive
Plan. No new options were, or could have beenrdsdaunder the 1995 plan during the year endece8dgmr 30, 2008; however, previously
awarded but unexercised options were outstandidgnthis plan during the year.
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The following tables shows the activity of opticared nonvested shares granted, exercised, or fdfaitder all of the Company’s
option and incentive plans during the years endsgate3nber 30, 2008 and 2007.

Options outstanding, September 30, 2
Granted

Exercisec

Forfeited or expirel

Options outstanding, September 30, 2008

Options exercisable end of year

Options outstanding, September 30, 2
Granted

Exercisec

Forfeited or expires

Options outstanding, September 30, 2007

Options exercisable end of year
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Weighted
Weighted Average
Number Average Remaining Aggregate
of Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Price Term (Yrs) Value

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Share and Per Sharedia)

424.26¢ $ 25.81 771 $ 5,971
121,49: 16.6¢
(14,989 20.7¢
(16,450 27.4(
514,32t $ 23.8¢ 75 % 32¢
397,97( $ 22.2] 747 $ 31E
Weighted
Weighted Average
Number Average Remaining Aggregate
of Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Price Term (Yrs) Value

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Share and Per Sharedia)

386,42! $ 19.7¢ 6.65 $ 1,79:
128,16 37.6:
(88,82 16.7¢
(1,500) 23.2¢
42426¢ $ 25.8] 771§ 5,971
266,81¢ $ 24.07 714 $ 4,207
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Number of Weighted Average
Shares Fair Value At Grant
(Dollars in Thousands, Except Share and Per Sharedba)

Nonvested shares outstanding, September 30, 6,666 $ 24.4:
Granted 10,00( 38.5¢
Vested (1,666€) 24.4:
Forfeited or expire (2,500 38.5¢
Nonvested shares outstanding, September 30, 12,50C $ 32.9¢
Number of Weighted Average
Shares Fair Value At Grant

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Share and Per Sharedba)

Nonvested shares outstanding, September 30, 8,33 $ 24.4:
Granted 2,40( 39.8¢
Vested (4,067) 33.52
Forfeited or expired — —
Nonvested shares outstanding, September 30, 6,66 $ 24.4%

NOTE 14. INCOME TAXES
The Company and its subsidiaries file a consoldiéeeral income tax return on a fiscal year basis.

The provision for income taxes from continuing @iems consists of:

Years ended September 30, 2008 2007 2006
(Dollars in Thousands)
Federal:
Current $ (329 $ 408 $ 1,347
Deferred (588) 644 20
(917) 1,04¢ 1,367
State:
Current (53 78 293
Deferred (32 10C 6
(85) 17¢ 29¢
Income tax expense (benefii $ (1,007 $ 1,227 $ 1,66¢€
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Total income tax expense (benefit) differs from sketutory federal income tax rate as follows:

Years ended September 30, 2008 2007 2006
(Dollars in Thousands)
Income tax expense (benefit) at 35% federal ta $ (999 $ 88¢ $ 1,76¢€
Increase (decrease) resulting frc
State income taxes net of federal ber (55) 89 162
Nontaxable buildup in cash surrender ve (174 (153 (1949
Incentive stock option expen 203 191 61
Tax exempt incom (21 (5) (97)
Nondeductible expens: 69 12t 25
Other, ne (31) 91 (58)
Total income tax expense (benefil $ (1,009 $ 1,227 $ 1,66¢

Year-end deferred tax assets and liabilities inetLith other assets consist of:

September 30, 2008 2007
(Dollars in Thousands)

Deferred tax asset

Bad debt: $ 2,132 % 1,68¢
Stock based compensati 39C 25¢
Net unrealized losses on securities availabledts 2,98¢ 1,88:
Other, net 34C 101
5,852 3,92¢

Deferred tax liabilities
FHLB stock dividenc (444 (452)
Premises and equipme (789) (58¢)
Deferred loan fees (128) (11¢)
(1,362 (1,15¢)
Net deferred tax asset: $ 4491 $ 2,767

Federal income tax laws provided savings banks adtfitional bad debt deductions through SeptemBet 387 totaling $6.7 million
for the Bank. Accounting standards do not reqaideferred tax liability to be recorded on this amtpwhich liability otherwise would total
approximately $2.3 million at September 30, 2008] 2007. If the Bank were to be liquidated or otfise cease to be a bank, or if tax laws
were to change, the $2.3 million would be recorde@xpense.

The Company adopted the provisions of FASB Intégtien No. 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Tax@$N 48), on
October 1, 2007. FIN 48 addresses the determimafitlow tax benefits claimed or expected to bereda on a tax return should be recorded
in the consolidated financial statements. Undér 48, the Company recognizes the tax benefits fmarancertain tax position only when it is
more likely than not, based on the technical meffitthe position, that the tax position will be &ised upon examination, including the
resolution of any related appeals or litigatiorheTax benefits recognized in the consolidatedhfifed statements from such a position are
measured as the largest benefit that has a gteatefifty percent likelihood of being realized upoltimate resolution.
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In addition, the Company is required to establishtingency reserves for material, known tax expesuThe Company'’s tax reserves
reflect management’s judgment as to the resoluwfdhe issues involved if subject to judicial revie While the Company believes that its
reserves are adequate to cover reasonably expasteidks, there can be no assurance that, imsthinces, an issue raised by a tax authority
will be resolved at a financial cost that doeseateed its related reserve. With respect to theserves, the Company’s income tax expense
would include (i) any changes in tax reserves gisiom material changes during the period in #ets and circumstances surrounding a tax
issue, and (ii) any difference from the Compangis position as recorded in the financial statemantsthe final resolution of a tax issue
during the period

Income tax returns for fiscal years 2005 thru 2@0ith few exceptions, remain open to examinatioridaeral and state taxing
authorities. As a result of the implementatior-tfl 48, the Company determined that no additiomdlility for unrecognized tax benefits and
associated accrued interest and penalties exis@dtaber 1, 2007. There have been no changésstarmnmount during fiscal 2008.

NOTE 15. CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS ON RETAINED EARNINGS

MetaBank is the Company’s primary subsidiary. NBetak is subject to various regulatory capital regments. Failure to meet
minimum capital requirements can initiate certagnahatory or discretionary actions by regulators, fiandertaken, could have a direct
material effect on the financial statements. Uradgrital adequacy guidelines and the regulatompésaiork for prompt corrective action,
MetaBank must meet specific quantitative capitatiglines using their assets, liabilities and certaff-balance sheet items as calculated under
regulatory accounting practices. The requiremargsalso subject to qualitative judgments by tlgeilegors about components, risk weightings
and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulati@msure capital adequacy require MetaBank to maimtémimum amounts and ratios
(set forth in the table below) of total risk-basmgbital and Tier | capital (as defined in the rediohs) to riskweighted assets (as defined), at
leverage ratio consisting of Tier | capital (asidedl) to average assets (as defined). As of SdmeB0, 2008, MetaBank met all capital
adequacy requirements.
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MetaBank and MetaBank West Central’s actual andired capital amounts and ratios are presenteueifidilowing table.

Minimum Requirement To Be

Minimum Requirement For Well Capitalized Under Prompt
Actual Capital Adequacy Purposes Corrective Action Provisions
(Dollars in Thousands) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
September 30, 200!
MetaBank
Tangible capital (to tangible asse $ 56,17 7.35% $ 11,46¢ 1.5(% n/e n/e
Tier 1 (core) capital (to adjusted total ass 56,17¢ 7.3t 30,58: 40C $ 38,22¢ 5.0(%
Tier 1 (core) capital (to ri-weighted asset: 56,17¢ 9.8¢ 22,74¢ 4.0C 34,11¢ 6.0C
Total risk based capital (to risk weighted ass 61,90° 10.8¢ 45,49; 8.0C 56,86¢ 10.0¢
September 30, 200
MetaBank
Tangible capital (to tangible asse $ 49,47 75% $ 9,77¢ 1.5(% n/e nle
Tier 1 (core) capital (to adjusted total ass 49,47" 7.5¢ 26,06: 40C $ 32,571 5.0(%
Tier 1 (core) capital (to risweighted asset: 49,47" 11.32 17,46¢ 4.0C 26,19¢ 6.0C
Total risk based capital (to risk weighted ass 52,77( 12.0¢ 34,93 8.0C 43,66: 10.0¢
MetaBank West Centri
Tier 1 capital (to average asse 3,93( 10.22 1,53¢ 4.0C 1,92t 5.0C
Tier 1 risk based capital (to risk weighted ass 3,93( 19.1¢ 82C 4.0C 1,23( 6.0C
Total risk based capital (to risk weighted ass 4,077 19.8¢ 1,641 8.0C 2,051 10.0¢

Regulations limit the amount of dividends and ottegpital distributions that may be paid by a finahimstitution without prior
approval of its primary regulator. The regulatoegtriction is based on a three-tiered system iighgrreatest flexibility being afforded to well-
capitalized (Tier 1) institutions. MetaBank is antly a Tier 1 institution. Accordingly, MetaBan&rc make, without prior regulatory approval,
distributions during a calendar year up to 1009%hefr retained net income for the calendar yeaddt® plus retained net income for the
previous two calendar years (less any dividendgigusly paid) as long as they remain well-capittizas defined in prompt corrective action
regulations, following the proposed distributiorccrdingly, at September 30, 2008, approximateB53300 of MetaBank's retained earnings
were potentially available for distribution to tGempany.

NOTE 16. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the normal course of business, the Bank makesuscommitments to extend credit which are nfiected in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

At September 30, 2008 and 2007, unfunded loan comenits approximated $57.4 million and $50.3 milliespectively, excluding
undisbursed portions of loans in process. Unfuidad commitments at September 30, 2008 and 200& praicipally for variable rate loans.
Commitments, which are disbursed subject to cefiaitations, extend over various periods of tifdenerally, unused commitments are
canceled upon expiration of the commitment terrawgBned in each individual contract.

The exposure to credit loss in the event of nomuerénce by other parties to financial instrumeatscbmmitments to extend credit is
represented by the contractual amount of thoseuim&nts. The same credit policies and collateigirements are used in making
commitments and conditional obligations as are fisedn-balance-sheet instruments.
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Since certain commitments to make loans and to fmed of credit and loans in process expire witHming used, the amount does
not necessarily represent future cash commitménteddition, commitments used to extend creditaayeements to lend to a customer as long
as there is no violation of any condition estaldisin the contract.

Securities with fair values of approximately $7.8lion and $24.1 million at September 30, 2008 2007, respectively, were pledg
as collateral for public funds on deposit. Secesitvith fair values of approximately $6.5 millionda$1.9 million at September 30, 2008 and
2007, respectively, were pledged as collaterairfdividual, trust and estate deposits.

Under employment agreements with certain execuiifieers, certain events leading to separation ftbenCompany could result in
cash payments totaling approximately $3.4 millisroASeptember 30, 2008.

Legal Proceedings

MetaBank (“the Bank”) was named in several lawsrgtating to certain borrowers of the Bank, knowrttze Dan Nelson companies.
All of these lawsuits have now been resolved.

The case o€hris Dengler, et al, v. Nelson Automotive Group,. | et alwas recently resolved when the South Dakota Supfeouet
dismissed the plaintiffs’ appeal of the lower cidismissal of the Bank. In the Circuit Court afush Dakota, County of Minnehaha, (Civ.
No. 0€-1106) a lawsuit was filed by a number of plaistiffho had purchased vehicles from the Dan Nelsarpeaies. This suit named the
Bank and J. Tyler Haahr, together with a numbestbér defendants. The Bank, in conjunction withr@ug of participating banks, had
provided a series of loans and lines of credit &am Dlelson Auto Group (“DNAG”) and South Dakota Agta:mce Corporation (“SDAC").
Plaintiffs allege that the defendants, including Bank, “participated in the fraudulent schemebjue of providing these lines of credit and
loans despite being aware of the predatory conspnaetices of the Nelson companies, and that MetkBaofited by receiving undisclosed
“special benefits’for providing these loans. DNAG, SDAC and Dan Nalbave since filed for bankruptcy. Plaintiffs altege that MetaBar
did not vigorously pursue claims against Dan Nelsod fellow DNAG executive Chris Tapken in theispective personal bankruptcies in
order to allow these individuals to emerge withteolover assets of their former companies. After Bank filed a Motion to Dismiss, the
claims against J. Tyler Haahr personally and MetdBaere dismissed with prejudice on January 4, 2604ntiffs appealed as to the dismis
of MetaBank only, to the South Dakota Supreme Cduré South Dakota Supreme Court dismissed thatjjfa appeal.

First Midwest Bank-Deerfield Branches, et al, v.tdgank.U.S. District Court for the District of South DakotSouthern Division
(4:06-cv-4114). During the three months ended B&006 or shortly thereafter three banks filedslaits against MetaBank. An additional
bank, North American Banking Company, joined thiasee bank plaintiffs in one consolidated fedeamiduit. These four Plaintiffs were
participating lenders with MetaBank on a seriekahs made to the Dan Nelson companies, includiNg® and SDAC. Plaintiffs alleged tF
they suffered damages as a result of MetaBanktsept@nt and administration of the loans that wesestibject of the loan participation
agreements. The complaints alleged breach of adntragligence, gross negligence, negligent missagrtation, fraud in the inducement,
unjust enrichment and breach of fiduciary duty. dflthese four cases have now been resolved thnmégtations which took place in July and
August, 2008. Settlement agreements have beentexk@nd the cases have been dismissed. The Cotajresyrance carrier has agreed to
cover virtually all of the settlement amounts ireth cases and paid for counsel to defend all fotiwres through discovery.
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Home Federal Bank v. J. Tyler Haahr, Daniel A. Malsand MetaBankCiv. No. 06-2230). On June 26, 2006, Home Fedgaalk
filed suit against MetaBank and two individualsTyler Haahr and Daniel A. Nelson, in South Dakst&&cond Judicial Circuit Court,
Minnehaha County. The complaint alleged that Homéeal, a participating lender with MetaBank orges of loans made to DNAG and
SDAC, suffered damages exceeding $3.8 million eesalt of failure to make disclosures regardingraestigation of Dan Nelson, DNAG and
SDAC by the lowa Attorney General at the time Hdreeleral agreed to an extension of the loan paaticip agreements. After discovery was
complete and a trial date scheduled, this casesueasessfully mediated and settled in Sioux Fall®otober 2, 2008. A settlement agreement
was signed on that date, and the case has nowdisraissed. As a result of the Home Federal setthénom a pro rated basis net of previously
established reserves and insurance proceeds akelégted, the net effect on the Registrant irarge of $1.0 million. As a result of all these
Dan Nelson settlements, the Company recorded bdiraage of approximately $2.1 million ($1.3 mili@fter taxes), including legal expenses
and after insurance claims and reserves are acbimt

In an unrelated suiEirst Federal Bank Littlefield Texas ssh, formdghown as, First Federal Savings and Loan Assoaiatio
Littlefield, Texas v. MetaBank, formerly known astFederal Savings Bank of the Midwest, filedhia 154" Judicial District Court of Lamb
County(Cause No. 17435} he Frost National Bank v. MetaBank and Meta FinahGroup, Inc., filed in the United States DistriCourt for
the Northern District of Texa&ause No. 3:08-CV-625-M). On April 3, 2008, FiFsderal Bank filed suit against MetaBank in Textges
Court in Lubbock seeking recovery of a purporteddBank certificate of deposit (CD) that it claingurchased. On April 11, 2008, Frost
National Bank filed suit against MetaBank in theitdd States District Court for the District of Texseeking a similar recovery. On June
2008, an action was filed in the 95 Judicial Dist€ourt for Dallas County, Texas entitlbtethodist Hospitals of Dallas v MetaBank and
Meta Financial Grougseeking recovery of a purported MetaBank CD puretiais May, 2001. Additionally, on July 14, 2008&;lass action
complaint was filed in the United States Districtu® for the District of New Hampshire entiti&@lardian Angel Credit Union v MetaBank
(Cause No. 08-CV-261-PB) and was filed on behaltbo&rdian Angel Credit Union and all other CD pasérs similarly situated, to recover
funds in connection with purported MetaBank CDgitier, on November 18, 2008, Coreplus Federal €Ctémion (Cause No. 3.08 cv 1763
AVC) filed a civil action in the Superior Court ftdlew London County in the state of Connecticut segkecovery of funds connected to a
purported MetaBank CD. Earlier, MetaBank had bemtacted by another institution, but could findraoord of the CD it had allegedly
purchased, and commenced an investigation. Asudt ifghat investigation, it now appears that axfer MetaBank employee had been selling
fraudulent CDs, using MetaBank’s name and stanfiard of CD, to various financial institutions thiglu an independent broker and
instructing purchasers to wire the purchase mongyane of a number of false accounts she hadettedtMetaBank. The Bank continues to
receive a number of demands from purchasers oé thhasdulent CDs in addition to the lawsuits listdmbve. All evidence currently available
indicates that the former employee ran this fraarcher own benefit and regularly took money frora MetaBank accounts to which the
purchase monies had been wired. As a result ahtheruption of this fraud, there are some $4.4iarilof bogus CDs still outstanding to
various financial institutions. As the former emye was apparently using the funds of new victiongay off the previous victims of her
scheme, it does not appear at this time that sthe ahy Bank money as part of this fraud. MetaBiuekefore does not appear at this time to
have suffered any direct loss as a result of thedr but it may suffer a loss to the extent ibigased to liability for claims such as these. There
are unresolved questions as whether, under whatytlaed to what degree the Bank might be liableHerformer employee’s actions. At this
time, MetaBank’s insurer has agreed to providefarde to the two litigations in Texas under a nestgon of rights.

Other than the matters set forth above, there @aehrer material pending legal proceedings to witiehCompany or its subsidiaries
a party other than ordinary routine litigation beir respective businesses.
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NOTE 17. LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Company has leased property under various noetable operating lease agreements which expiraretus times through 2024,
and require annual rentals ranging from $6,00B&1$000 plus the payment of the property taxeapabmaintenance, and insurance on
certain property.

The following table shows the total minimum rerdaimmitment at September 30, 2008, under the leases.

September 30
(Dollars in Thousands)

2009 $ 1,64z
2010 1,574
2011 1,49¢
2012 1,491
2013 1,23¢
Thereafter 4,59:
Total Leases Commitmen $ 12,03¢

NOTE 18. SEGMENT REPORTING

An operating segment is generally defined as a compt of a business for which discrete financitdrimation is available and whose
results are reviewed by the chief operating desisi@aker. Operating segments are aggregated intotedype segments if certain criteria are
met. The Company has determined that it has twortaple segments. The first reportable segmendtifioaal Banking, is part of its banking
subsidiary, MetaBank. MetaBank operates as a toadit community bank providing deposit, loan anideotrelated products to individuals and
small businesses, primarily in the communities \ehbeir offices are located. The second reportsdidgnent, Meta Payment Systetns
(“MPS"), is a division of MetaBank. MPS providesiamber of products and services, to financial ingtins and other businesses. These
products and services include issuance of prepehit dards, sponsorship of ATMs into the debit rerks, credit programs, ACH origination
services, gift card programs, rebate programsetnaograms, and tax related programs. Other progiaxe in the process of development. The
remaining grouping under the caption “All Othershsists of the operations of Meta Financial Grdop, and Meta Trust Compaffy and
inter-segment eliminations. MetaBank WC is accodfite as discontinued bank operations. It was presly reported as part of the traditional
banking segment, and has been separately classifidtbw the effect of continuing operations.

Fiscal year 2006 results for net interest incon reon-interest expenses have been restated toniséestant with the fiscal year 2007
adoption of new deposit valuation and expense atiiloec methodologies between the Traditional Bani8egment, the Holding Company, and
MPS. The primary result of this change in allocatieas to increase the earnings credit paid by #im or deposits originated within the MPS
division and also to allocate a higher portion xgfenses to MPS based on growth in departments vph@hde administration support to MPS.

Transactions between affiliates, the resulting neres of which are shown in the intersegment reveategory, are conducted at
market prices, meaning prices that would be paiddafcompanies were not affiliates.
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Year Ended September 30, 2008 (As Restate
Net interest income (los
Provision for loan losse
Nor-interest incom
Nor-interest expens

Income (loss) from continuing operations before
Income tax expense (bengfit)

Income (loss) from continuing operations

Inter-segment revenue (expen:
Total asset
Total deposit:

Discontinued Operations-Traditional Banking
Net interest incom
Provision for loan losse
Nor+-interest incom
Non-interest expense

Income from discontinued operations before
Income tax expense

Income from discontinued operatic

Inter-segment revent
Total asset
Total deposit:

Year Ended September 30, 200
Net interest income (los
Provision for loan losse
Non-interest income
Non-interest expense
Income (loss) from continuing operations before
Income tax expense (benefit)
Income (loss) from continuing operatic

Inter-segment revenue (expen:
Total asset
Total deposit:

Discontinued Operation«-Traditional Banking
Net interest incom
Provision for loan losse
Nor-interest incom
Non-interest expense

(Loss) from discontinued operations before
Income tax (benefit)

(Loss) from discontinued operatio

Inter-segment revenue (expen:
Total asset
Total deposit:
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Traditional

Meta Payment

Banking Systems® All Others Total
(Dollars in Thousands)
$ 13170 $ 11,52¢ $ (709 $ 24,00:
2,71¢ — — 2,71¢
2,72 34,82: 152 37,69¢
19,97¢ 41,38, 45¢ 61,82(
(6,790 4,96 (1,009 (2,836
(2,557) 1,707 (152) (1,002)
$ (423) $ 3,25¢ $ (857) $ (1,839
$ 6,122 $ (6,129 $ — $ —
405,04« 349,31: 2,04¢ 756,40
216,22 330,97 (1,229 545,97;
$ 261
(57)
2,441
374
2,38t
1,574
$ 811
$ 17¢%
Traditional Meta Payment
Banking Systems® All Others Total
(Dollars in Thousands)
$ 10,967 $ 10,74¢ % (908) $ 20,80
3,16¢ — — 3,16¢
5,95¢ 15,57¢ 32€ 21,85¢
15,47¢ 21,12¢ 354 36,95¢
(1,72]) 5,19¢ (936) 2,53¢
(512 1,862 (129 1,22i
$ (1,209 $ 333, $ (813 $ 1,312
$ 6,11¢ $ 6,119 $ —  $ —
391,41¢ 254,64 4,251 650,31(
280,07¢ 242 ,90: — 522,97¢
$ 91€
627
21€
89¢
(394)
(259)
$ (141
$ -
35,77(
24,61(




Table of Contents

Year Ended September 30, 200
Net interest income (los
Provision for loan losse
Nor-interest incom
Nor-interest expens
Income (loss) from continuing operations before
Income tax expense (bengfit)
Income (loss) from continuing operations

Inter-segment revenue (expen:
Total asset
Total deposit:

Discontinued Operations-Traditional Banking
Net interest incom
Provision for loan losse
Nor+-interest incom
Non-interest expense

Income from discontinued operations before
Income tax expense

Income from discontinued operatic

Inter-segment revenue (expen:
Total asset
Total deposit:
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Traditional

Meta Payment

Banking Systems® All Others Total
(Dollars in Thousands)
$ 13,08: $ 567: $ (254 $ 18,50:
311 — — 311
2,32¢ 11,06¢ 103 13,49¢
15,06¢ 11,23¢ 33¢€ 26,64(
29 5,50¢ (48¢) 5,04¢
(175) 1,95¢ (117) 1,66¢
$ 204 $ 3541 $ (372 $ 3,37¢
$ 3,406 $ (3,406 $ — 3 —
530,64¢ 166,88: 3,091 700,62:
375,37 162,79: — 538,16¢
$ 1,13¢
(76)
23%
98€
45¢
14¢
$ 30¢
$ -
40,29¢
27,22(
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NOTE 19. PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Presented below are condensed financial staterfartse parent company, Meta Financial Group, Inc.

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

September 30, 2008 2007
(Dollars in Thousands)
(As Restated)
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalel
Securities available for sa
Investment in subsidiarie
Loan receivable from ESC
Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY

LIABILITIES
Loan payable to subsidiari
Subordinated debentur
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

SHAREHOLDERS'’ EQUITY
Common stocl
Additional paic-in capital
Retained earning
Accumulated other comprehensive (lo
Unearned Employee Stock Ownership Plan st
Treasury stock, at cost
Total shareholders equity
Total liabilities and shareholders equity

115

$ 2,09¢ $ 2,211
95¢ 1,17¢

53,62 53,62:

— 37€

47¢ 2,221

$ 57,14 $ 59,60
$ 50C $ 71C
10,31( 10,31(

601 48¢

$ 11,41 $ 11,50¢
30 30

23,05¢ 21,95¢
34,44; 36,80¢
(5,027) (3,345)

— (377)

(6,775 (6,979

$ 4573 $ 48,00
$ 57,14 $ 59,60
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CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years ended September 30, 2008 2007 2006
(Dollars in Thousands)
(As Restated)
Dividend income from subsidiarit — % 1,25C $ 3,70(
Gain on sale of securities available for ¢ — 22t —
Gain on sale of commercial bank subsidi 2,30¢ — —
Other income 15€ 12t 191
Total income 2,46t 1,60( 3,891
Interest expens 841 1,03¢ 93¢
Other expens 27€ 14€ 1,95¢
Total expense 1,115 1,17¢ 2,897
Income (loss) before income taxes and equity in uigdributed net income of
subsidiaries 1,34¢ 421 99¢
Income tax (benefit 1,41F (87) (83%)
Income before equity in undistributed net income (@ss) of subsidiarie: (67) 50¢ 1,83¢
Equity in undistributed net income (loss) of sulmies (95€) 662 1,85¢
Net income (1,027 $ 1,171 $ 3,68¢
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended September 30, 2008 2007 2006
(Dollars in Thousands)
(As Restated)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ (1,029 $ 1,171 $ 3,68¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigea by operating activite
Equity in undistributed net (income) loss of sulmmigs 95€ (663) (1,855
(Gain) on sale of securities available for ¢ — (225) —
Change in other asse 1,751 (1,60%) 574
Change in other liabilitie (225) 1,764 244
Other, ne 57E — —
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,03¢ 442 2,652
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITES
Investment in subsidiat (2,29 (100 (75)
Maturity of securities available for se — — 50C
Proceeds from the sale of securities availabledde — 727 —
Repayments on loan receivable from ES 37€ 13z 31€
Other, ne 223 — —
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activite (1,699 76C 741
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net change in loan payable to subsidia (210 — (490
Cash dividends pai (1,340 (1,319 (2,292
Proceeds from exercise of stock optir 19¢ 47¢ 187
Other, net 901 — —
Net cash (used in) financing activitie: (450) (840) (1,595
Net change in cash and cash equivaler $ (115 $ 36z $ 1,79¢
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Beginning of yea $ 2211 $ 184¢ $ 51
End of year 2,09¢ 2,211 1,84¢
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The extent to which the Company may pay cash didddo shareholders will depend on the cash cuyraaailable at the Company,
as well as the ability of the Bank to pay dividetashe Company.

NOTE 20. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDI TED)

QUARTER ENDED
December 3: March 31 June 30 September 3(
(Dollars in Thousands)
(As Restated)

Fiscal Year 200¢&

Interest incom: $ 8,89¢ $ 9,89t $ 9,171 $ 9,45:
Interest expens 3,62¢ 3,67¢ 3,18( 2,931
Net interest incom 5,27¢ 6,21¢€ 5,991 6,52
Provision for loan losse (230 20C 12t 2,52(
Net income (loss) from continuing operatic (790 1,20: (410 (1,83%)
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic 50 761 0 0
Net income (loss (740) 1,96¢ (410 (1,837%)
Earnings (loss) per common and common equivalere- basic
Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ 03) $ 047 $ (0.1¢) $ (0.7
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic 0.0z 0.2¢ — —
Net income (loss (0.29) 0.7¢ (0.16) (0.7))
Earnings (loss) per common and common equivalere- diluted
Income (loss) from continuing operatic (0.3)) 0.4€ (0.16) (0.6¢)
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic 0.0z 0.2¢ — —
Net income (loss (0.29) 0.7t (0.1¢) (0.77)
Dividend declared per sha 0.1z 0.1z 0.1z 0.1z
Fiscal Year 2007
Interest income $ 9,78 $ 9,72 $ 893t $ 9,33¢
Interest expens 4,79z 4,271 4,05¢ 3,84(
Net interest incom 4,991 5,44: 4,87¢ 5,49¢
Provision for loan losse 4,06:% (225) (500) a70)
Net income (loss) from continuing operatic (2,29¢) 62C 2,23¢ 754
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic (40¢) 11F 33C a7¢)
Net income (loss (2,709 73t 2,56¢ 57€
Earnings (loss) per common and common equivalere- basic
Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ 0929 % 0.2t $ 08t $ 0.2¢
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic (0.1¢) 0.04 0.1: (0.07)
Net income (loss (1.08) 0.2¢ 1.01 0.2z
Earnings (loss) per common and common equivalenre- diluted
Income (loss) from continuing operatic (0.92) 0.24 0.8¢ 0.2¢
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic (0.16) 0.04 0.12 (0.07)
Net income (loss (1.0¢) 0.2¢ 0.9¢ 0.21
Dividend declared per sha 0.1z 0.1z 0.1: 0.1z
Fiscal Year 200€
Interest incom $ 955 $ 956¢ $ 943¢ $ 9,55¢
Interest expens 5,11¢ 4,87: 4,85¢ 4,764
Net interest incom 4,43¢ 4,69¢ 4,581 4,79(
Provision for loan losse 58 (345) 28 57C
Net income from continuing operatio 401 19¢ 2,13t 65C
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic 114 68 34¢ (221
Net income 51t 261 2,48: 42¢
Earnings (loss) per common and common equivalere- basic
Income from continuing operatiol $ 0.1€¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 08¢ $ 0.2¢
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic 0.0t 0.0 0.1¢ (0.09)
Net income 0.21 0.1C 1.0C 0.17
Earnings (loss) per common and common equivalere- diluted
Income from continuing operatio 0.1¢ 0.07 0.8¢ 0.2¢
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic 0.0t 0.0 0.1¢ (0.09)
Net income 0.21 0.1C 0.9¢ 0.17
Dividend declared per sha 0.1z 0.1z 0.1z 0.1z
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NOTE 21. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following table discloses the Company’s esteddtir value amounts of its financial instrumenitsis management’s belief that
the fair values presented below are reasonablellmsthe valuation techniques and data availableeadCompany as of September 30, 2008
and 2007, as more fully described below. The djmra of the Company are managed from a going congasis and not a liquidation basis.
As a result, the ultimate value realized for thmficial instruments presented could be substantdferent when actually recognized over t
through the normal course of operations. Additiigna substantial portion of the Company’s inhereslue is the Banks’ capitalization and
franchise value. Neither of these components baes given consideration in the presentation offaiues below.

The following presents the carrying amount andestied fair value of the financial instruments hgjdhe Company at September
2008 and 2007. The information presented is stibjechange over time based on a variety of factors

2008 2007
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
September 30, Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
(Dollars in Thousands)

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivale $ 2,96 $ 2,96 $ 11,32C $ 11,32
Federal funds sol 5,18¢ 5,18¢ 75,00( 75,00(
Securities available for sa 203,83 203,83 158,70: 158,70:
Loans receivable, ni 427,92¢ 426,52 355,61. 354,48
FHLB stock 8,09: 8,09z 4,01t 4,01t
Accrued interest receivab 4,49 4,49 4,18¢ 4,18¢
Financial liabilities

Noninterest bearing demand depo 355,02( 355,02( 260,09¢ 260,09¢
Interest bearindemand deposits, savings, and money ma 67,46 67,46 106,15 106,15
Certificates of deposit 123,49: 124,80¢ 156,72: 156,98(

Total deposit: 545,97 547,28 522,97¢ 523,23!
Advances from FHLE 132,02! 134,55t 68,00( 69,87
Securities sold under agreements to repurc 5,34¢ 5,34¢ 224 224
Subordinated debentur 10,31( 17,83¢ 10,31( 12,57
Accrued interest payab 57¢ 57¢ 84z 84z

Off-balanc-sheet instruments, loan commitme — — — —

The following sets forth the methods and assumptiged in determining the fair value estimatesHferCompany’s financial
instruments at September 30, 2008 and 2007.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The carrying amount of cash and short-term investais assumed to approximate the fair value.
SECURITIES PURCHASED UNDER AGREEMENT TO RESELL

The carrying amount of securities purchased ungegeanent to resell is assumed to approximate thedhe.
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SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE

To the extent available, quoted market prices atetequotes were used to determine the fair valisecurities available for sale. For
those securities which are thinly traded, or forahitmarket data was not available, management atihfair value using other available data.
The amount of securities for which quoted marketgs were not available is not material to thefptict as a whole.

LOANS RECEIVABLE, NET

The fair value of loans was estimated by discougntire future cash flows using the current rategrath similar loans would be made
to borrowers with similar credit ratings and fomdar remaining maturities. When using the discingtnethod to determine fair value, loans
were gathered by homogeneous groups with simitergend conditions and discounted at a targetatasghich similar loans would be made
borrowers as of September 30, 2008 and 2007. litiaddwvhen computing the estimated fair valuedtiioans, allowances for loan losses
have been subtracted from the calculated fair vidueonsideration of credit quality.

FHLB STOCK

The fair value of such stock is assumed to appratérbook value since the Company is generally @biedeem this stock at par
value.

ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLE

The carrying amount of accrued interest receivabéssumed to approximate the fair value.
DEPOSITS

The carrying values of non-interest bearing chegkiaposits, interest bearing checking depositingayand money markets is
assumed to approximate fair value, since such dspare immediately withdrawable without penalti€eTfair value of time certificates of
deposit was estimated by discounting expecteddutash flows by the current rates offered on é¢eatiés of deposit with similar remaining

maturities.

In accordance with SFAS No. 107, no value has lassigned to the Company’s long-term relationshiipls its deposit customers
(core value of deposits intangible) since suchnigifale is not a financial instrument as definedem@FAS No. 107.

ADVANCES FROM FHLB

The fair value of such advances was estimated spodinting the expected future cash flows usingetitiinterest rates as of
September 30, 2008 and 2007 for advances withain@ims and remaining maturities.

SECURITIES SOLD UNDER AGREEMENTS TO REPURCHASE AND SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES

The fair value of these instruments was estimagediscounting the expected future cash flows usiegved interest rates
approximating market as of September 30, 2008 &0d Dver the contractual maturity of such borrowing

ACCRUED INTEREST PAYABLE
The carrying amount of accrued interest payabéssimed to approximate the fair value.
LOAN COMMITMENTS

The commitments to originate and purchase loans tewns that are consistent with current marketseAccordingly, the Company
estimates that the fair values of these commitmamsot significant.
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LIMITATIONS

It must be noted that fair value estimates are na@especific point in time, based on relevantkaginformation about the financial
instrument. Additionally, fair value estimates besed on existing on- and off-balance sheet fimdircstruments without attempting to
estimate the value of anticipated future businesstomer relationships and the value of assetdiabitities that are not considered financial
instruments. These estimates do not reflect anyipira or discount that could result from offering tBompanys entire holdings of a particu
financial instrument for sale at one time. Furthere) since no market exists for certain of the Canys financial instruments, fair value
estimates may be based on judgments regardingefatyrected loss experience, current economic dongijtrisk characteristics of various
financial instruments and other factors. Thesered#s are subjective in nature and involve uncgei&s and matters of significant judgment
and therefore cannot be determined with a highl lefvprecision. Changes in assumptions as weldagonsiderations could significantly aff
the estimates. Accordingly, based on the limitatidascribed above, the aggregate fair value estgvaae not intended to represent the
underlying value of the Company, on either a ga@iagcern or a liquidation basis.

NOTE 22. RESTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

On June 22, 2009, the Company reported that thét Mainmittee of its Board of Directors had deteredrto restate its earnings
results for the fiscal year ended September 308,288d the fiscal quarters ended December 31, @388viarch 31, 2009. The restatements,
which result in an earnings decrease for fiscat 2888 and a corresponding change to sharehokpugy at September 30, 2008 and the first
and second quarters of fiscal year 2009, are thdtref an error in estimating income tax experssoeiated with the Company's March 28,
2008 sale of its subsidiary, MetaBank West Centrafotal, fiscal year ended September 30, 2008-feedate net income decreased by $I.1
million, or $0.41 per diluted share, from income$dfl,000, or $0.03 per diluted share, to a loskldd million, or $0.38 per diluted share.

Summary of restatement items for the fiscal yeaedrSeptember 30, 2008:

Adjustments
Net income as originally reportt $ 51
Error in income tax expen: (1,079
Net loss as adjuste $ 1,02¢

During the course of preparation for filing its Bf@deral income tax return, the Company in coasiolh with an outsourced third
party public accounting firm determined that aroein income tax expense was reported on the Coy'péinancial statements in connection
with the Company’s March 28, 2008 sale of its sdiasy, MetaBank West Central. Cost basis and &attnent of the subsidiary sale was
incorrect resulting in a greater reported gainale sf the subsidiary for tax purposes. As a tesfuthe error, the Company’s accrued income
tax expense was understated as originally repaneldncreased by $1.1 million after the correction

The following tables summarize the impact of thetag=ments on the Company's consolidated statesh&ntaincial condition,
consolidated statement of operations, consolidstizte ment of shareholders' equity and consolidstegdment of cash flows as of and for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2008. These restats should be read in conjunction with the cddatgd financial statements and notes
thereto included in this Annual Report on Form 1@:-Kor the year ended September 30, 2008.

As Previously

Consolidated Statement of Financial Condidition Reported As Restated
Other asset $ 11,65« $ 10,80:
Total asset 757,25t 756,40¢
Accrued expenses and other liabilit 11,92: 12,14¢
Total liabilities 710,44¢ 710,67:
Retained earning 35,51¢ 34,44
Total shareholde’ equity 46,801 45,73
Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity 757,25t 756,40¢
As Previously
Consolidated Statement of Operation: Reported As Restated
Income tax expense from discontinued operat $ 50C $ 1,574
Income from discontinued operatic 1,88¢ 811
Net income (loss 51 (1,023
Earnings per shai
Income from discontinued operatic- basic $ 0.7 $ 0.31
Income from discontinued operatic- diluted $ 07z $ 0.31
As Previously
Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Equity Reported As Restated
Net income (loss $ 51 $ (2,029
Retained Earning 35,51¢ 34,44:
As Previously
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow Reported As Restated

Net income (loss $ 51 $ (1,029



Net change in other assi (25,00)) (24,149
Net change in accrued expenses and other liabi (19,417 (29,190

The restatement had no effect on the net cash filaws operating, investing and financing activities
The restatement also affects Notes 2, 3, 18, 128nd
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Iltem 9. Changes In and Disagreements With Accountants on &Aounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.

Item 9A(T). Controls and Procedures

(@) Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, with the participatiothefCompany’s Chief Executive Officer and Chiafdficial Officer, has
evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s “d®ale controls and procedures”, as such term isetefn Rules 13a—15(e) and 15d-15(e) of
the Exchange Act as of the end of the period cal/byethis report. Based upon that evaluation, thiefExecutive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosuretimds and procedures were not effective in timégrtang them to the material information
relating to the Company required to be includethexCompany’s periodic SEC filings due to the mateveakness described below in
Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Ovi@ancial Reporting (Item 9A(T)(b)). Other thamstated in such Management'’s
Annual Report on Internal Control Over FinanciapBeing, there were no significant changes madbenCompany’s internal controls during
the period covered by this report or, to the Comyfsaknowledge, in other factors that could sigrafitly affect these controls subsequent to the
date of their evaluation.

(b) Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control dvieancial Reporting.

The Company’s management is responsible for estabyj and maintaining adequate internal controt émancial reporting. The
Company'’s internal control over financial reportisga process designed to provide reasonable agsuragarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetsméor external purposes in accordance with GAAB. iBternal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and proceduras(thpertain to the maintenance of records tinateasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of theetssof the Company; (i) provide reasonable asserthat transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statei:in accordance with GAAP, and that receiptsexpénditures of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations ofrmanagement and directors; and (iii) provide realslenassurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, usedisposition of the Company assets that coule lzamaterial effect on the financial
statements.
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Internal control over financial reporting, no mattew well designed, has inherent limitations. Bessaof such inherent limitations,
internal control over financial reporting may neépent or detect misstatements. Also, projectidremg evaluation of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the risk that controls megome inadequate because of changes in conditiotizat the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Cgmapaternal control over financial reporting asSdptember 30, 2008, based on
the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsgrganizations of the Treadway Commission inétnal Control-Integrated Framework.”
Based on Management’'s assessment, a material wssalas identified in the Company’s internal contnedr financial reporting.

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or boration of control deficiencies, that results inn@than a remote likelihood that a
material misstatement of the annual or interimrizial statements will not be prevented or detecdsdha result of its assessment, the Company
has identified a material weakness in internal mdmtver financial reporting as of September 3@M&€elated to accounting for income taxes.
Specifically, the Company had not employed an adegnumber of skilled personnel in its accountiagattment to discover an error by the
Company’s third party tax advisor at the time tfasaction to which such error was related wasraily reported in the Company’s second
fiscal quarter of 2008. Since that time, the Conyplaas hired sufficient skilled personnel to monttee preparation of income tax returns.

Because of the material weakness described abamggament concluded that the Company’s interndtaoover financial reporting
was not effective as of September 30, 2008.

This annual report does not include an attestagport of the Company’s registered public accountirm regarding internal control
over financial reporting. Management’s report wassubject to attestation by the Company’s regestgrublic accounting firm pursuant to
temporary rules of the SEC that permit us to prexadly management’s report in this annual report.

Item 9B. Other Information
None.
PART Il
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governace
Directors

Information concerning directors of the Companinorporated herein by reference from the Compadgfmitive Proxy Statement
for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be heldénuary 2009, a copy of which will be filed ratelr than 120 days after September 30,
2008 (the “2008 Proxy Statement”).

Executive Officers

Information concerning the executive officers af thompany is incorporated herein by reference flenCompany’s 2008 Proxy
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholdetsetdield in January 2009 and from the informatigtferth under the caption “Executive
Officers of the Company Who Are Not Directors” caimed in Part |, Item 1 “Description of Busines$'tlis Annual Report on Form 10-K/A.

Compliance with Section 16(a)

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires the Gomis directors and executive officers, and persams own more than 10% of a
registered class of the Company’s equity securite§le with the SEC reports of ownership andaie of changes in ownership of common
stock and other equity securities of the Comparific€s, directors and greater than 10% sharehslder required by SEC regulation to
furnish the Company with copies of all Section }6¢ams they file.

To the Company’s knowledge, based solely on a wewiethe copies of such reports furnished to thenGany and written
representations that no other reports were reqdineicig the fiscal year ended
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September 30, 2008, all Section 16(a) filing regmients applicable to its officers, directors arehtgr than 10 percent beneficial owners were
complied with.

Audit Committee Financial Expert

Information regarding the audit committee of thex@any’s Board of Directors, including informaticegarding Jeanne Partlow, the
audit committee financial expert serving on theiooimmittee for fiscal 2008 is presented underttbadings “Meetings and Committees”,
“Audit Committee Matters” and under “Election ofrB¢tors” which contains Ms. Partlow’s biographytlie Companys 2008 Proxy Stateme
for the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to leé&dlon January 26, 2009, and is incorporated hérneirference.
Code of Ethics

We have adopted a written code of ethics withinntleaning of Item 406 of SEC RegulatioriKShat applies to our principal executi
officer and senior financial officers, a copy ofialhis available free of charge by contacting lBsader, our Investor Relations Officer, at
800.792.6815 or from our internet website (www.rnatd.com).

Iltem 11. Executive Compensation

Information concerning executive compensation ¢®@iporated herein by reference from the Compan@@82roxy Statement for the
Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held in Jan@a0n9.

ltem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andMlanagement and Related Stockholder Matters

€) Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners

The information required by this item under thetises captioned “Voting Rights; Vote Required”, “Nftg of Proxies; Revocability
of Proxies: Proxy Solicitation Costs” and Stock @nship” of the 2008 Proxy Statement is incorpordteckin by reference.

(b) Security Ownership of Management

The information required by this item under thetiseccaptioned “Stock Ownership” of the 2008 Pr@tatement is incorporated
herein by reference.

(©) Changes in Control

Management of the Company knows of no arrangemizrdsiding any pledge by any persons of securifethe Company, the
operation of which may, at a subsequent date;tresalchange in control of the Registrant.

(d) Equity Compensation Plan Information

The Company maintains the 2002 Omnibus Incentiae Rir purposes of issuing stock based compensttiemployees and
directors. An amendment to this plan, authorizingdditional 750,000 shares to be issued undepthis was approved by the Board of
Directors on November 30, 2007, and
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by the shareholders at the annual meeting heldugepd 2, 2008. The Company also has unexerciséonspbutstanding under a previous
stock option plan. The following table providesamhation about the Company’s common stock that beaigsued under the Company’s
omnibus incentive plans.

Number of securities
remaining available for

Number of securities to Weighted-average future issuance under
be issued upon exercise exercise price of equity compensation plan
of outstanding options, outstanding options, (excluding securities
Plan Category warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in (a))
Equity compensation plans approved by
shareholder 514,32¢ $ 23.81 667,93¢
Equity Compensation plans not approved
shareholder 0 $ 0.0cC 0
ltem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactionsand Director Independence

Information concerning certain relationships arhsactions is incorporated herein by reference tf@Company’s 2008 Proxy
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholdetsetdeld in January 2009.

ltem 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Information concerning the fees for professionavises rendered by the Company’s principal accautritaincorporated herein by
reference from the discussion under the headingdefpendent Public Accountants” in the Company’s 2Bfisy Statement for the Annual
Meeting of Shareholders to be held in January 2009.

Information concerning the pre-approval policied anocedures of the Company’s Audit Committee @@rporated by reference from
the discussion under the heading “Independent @élgicountants” of the Company’s 2008 Proxy Statetrfanthe Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be held in January 2009.
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PART IV

Iltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

The following is a list of documents filed as parof this report:
€)) Financial Statements:

The following financial statements are included eméart 11, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Forfi 1

K/A:
1. Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfimg.
2. Consolidated Statements of Financial Conditionfeé8eptember 30, 2008 and 2007.
3. Consolidated Statements of Operations for the YEaded September 30, 2008, 2007, and 2006.
4. Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive IncomssilLfor the Years ended September 30,
2008, 2007, and 2006.
5. Consolidated Statements of Changes in ShareholBqtsty for the Years Ended September 30,
2008, 2007, and 2006.
6. Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YEeaded September 30, 2008, 2007, and 2006.
7. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
(b) Exhibits :
See Index of Exhibits .
(c) Financial Statement Schedules:

All financial statement schedules have been omégethe information is not required under the eslat
instructions or is inapplicable.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyigthas duly caused this Report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersignedeti@o duly authorized.

META FINANCIAL GROUP, INC.

Date:  July 6, 2009 By: /s/J. Tyler Haah
J. Tyler Haah
(Duly Authorized Representativ

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this Report has been signed bbipothe following persons on
behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities@nthe dates indicated.

By: /s/ J. Tyler Haah Date: July 6, 2009
J. Tyler Haahr, Preside
and Chief Executive Office
(Principal Executive Officel

By: /s/ James S. Haa Date: July 6, 2009
James S. Haahr, Chairman of the Bc

By: /s/ E. Wayne Coole Date: July 6, 2009
E. Wayne Cooley, Directc

By: /s/ E. Thurman Gaski Date: July 6, 200¢
E. Thurman Gaskill, Directc

By: /s/ Brad Hansol Date: July 6, 200¢
Bradley C. Hanson, Directt

By: /s/ Frederick V. Moori Date: July 6, 2009
Frederick V. Moore, Directc

By: /s/ Rodney G. Muilenbur Date: July 6, 2009
Rodney G. Muilenburg, Directc

By: /s/ Jeanne Partlo Date: July 6, 200¢
Jeanne Partlow, Direct

By: /s/ David W. Leedon Date: July 6, 2009
David W. Leedom, Senior Vic
President and Chief Financial Offic
(Principal Financial and Accounting Office
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit

Number Description

3() Registrant’s Articles of Incorporation as curreritiyeffect, filed on June 17, 1993 as an exhibthi Registrant’s registration
statement on Form-1 (Commission File No. -64654), is incorporated herein by referer

3(ii) Registrant’s Bylaws, as amended and restated, lideewith as Exhibit 3(ii) to the Registrant’s Retpan Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2008 (Commission Fileéd-22140).

4 Registrant’'s Specimen Stock Certificate, filed anel17, 1993 as an exhibit to the Registrant’ssteggion statement on Form S-1
(Commission File No. -64654), is incorporated herein by referer

10.1 Registrant’s 1995 Stock Option and Incentive Pléed as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Report onmdr0-KSB for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 1996 (Commission File I-22140), is incorporated herein by referer

10.2 Registrar’s 1993 Stock Option and Incentive Plan, filed omeJi7, 1993 as an exhibit to the Regis’s registration statement
Form &1 (Commission File No. -64654), is incorporated herein by referer

10.3 Registrar’s Recognition and Retention Plan, filed on Junel®®3 as an exhibit to the RegistI's registration statement
Form ¢-1 (Commission File No. -64654), is incorporated herein by referer

10.4 Employment agreement between MetaBank and J. Hdahr, filed as an exhibit to Registr's Report on Form -K for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 1997 (Commission Filé-22140), is incorporated herein by reference. Rinsendment to such
agreement is filed herewit

10.5 Registrant’s Supplemental Employees’ Investmen Fled as an exhibit to Registrant’s Report omrd.0-KSB for the fiscal ye:
ended September 30, 1994 (Commission File No. @@R1s incorporated herein by reference. Firstrasingent to such agreement
is filed herewith

10.6 Employment agreement between MetaBank and Jantésdbir filed on June 17, 1993 as an exhibit to the Regyie' s registratior
statement on Form S-1 (Commission File No. 33-63684ncorporated herein by reference. First ameamt to such agreement is
filed herewith.

10.7 Registrant’'s Executive Officer Compensation Progriled as Exhibit 10.6 to Registrant’s Report @i 10-K for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 1998 (Commission File -22140), is incorporated herein by referer

10.8 Registrant’'s Executive Officer Incentive Stock @ptiPlan for Mergers and Acquisitions, filed as Bxh10.7 to Registrant’ Repor

on Form 1-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1998 (@msion File No. -22140), is incorporated herein by referer
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10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

11

21

23.1

23.2

Registrar’s 2002 Omnibus Incentive Plan, filed as Exhibioltd. Registrar's Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ende
September 30, 2003 (Commission File N-22140), is incorporated herein by referer

Employment agreement between MetaBank and Bradléja@son, filed as an exhibit to Regist’s Report on Form -K for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2005 (CommissienN&. 0-22140), is incorporated herein by refeeerirst amendment to such
agreement is filed herewit

Employment agreement between MetaBank and Troy Mubbrfiled as an exhibit to Registrant’s Repontieorm 10-K for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2005 (CommissienNg. 0-22140), is incorporated herein by refeeetiirst amendment to such
agreement is filed herewit

The First Amendment to Registr’s 2002 Omnibus Incentive Plan, adopted by the Regison August 28, 2006, and filed
December 19, 2006 as Exhibit A to Registrant’s S8ale14A (DEF 14A) Proxy Statement (Commission N 0-22140), is
incorporated by referenc

Settlement Agreement by and between First IndiaanakBN.A. and MetaBank dated March 13, 2006, fadedExhibit 10.12 to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for dglo@rter ended March 31, 2006 (Commission File Ne2D40), is incorporated
herein by referenci

The Second Amendment to Regist’s 2002 Omnibus Incentive Plan, adopted by the Ragison November 30, 2007, and fil
on January 3, 2008 as Exhibit A to Registrant’seSicie 14A (DEF 14A) Proxy Statement (Commissioe Nb. 0-22140), is
incorporated by referenc

Agreement for Purchase of Selected Assets and Astiomof Certain Liabilities of the Laurens Offioé MetaBank by and betwe
MetaBank and lowa Trust and Savings Bank datedalsil, 2007, filed as Exhibit 10.13 to the Registis Annual Report on
Form 1(-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007 (@Gmsion File No. -22140).

Agreement for Purchase of Selected Assets and Astsomof Certain Liabilities of the Sac City, Oddtand Lake View Offices ¢
MetaBank by and between MetaBank and lowa Staté& Bated January 31, 2007, filed as Exhibit 10.1th&Registrant’s Annual
Report on Form 1-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007 (@msion File No. -22140).

Stock Purchase Agreement by and among Anita Bancatipn, Meta Financial Group, Inc. and MetaBankst\@entral date
November 27, 2007, filed as Exhibit 10.15 to thgiRean’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal yeaded September 30,
2007 (Commission File No-22140).

Employment agreement between MetaBank and Davidé&dom, dated October 27, 2008 (filed herew

Amended and Restated Contract for Deferred Compiendaetween MetaBank and James S. Haahr, datedi8ber 27, 2005 and
the first amendment thereto are filed herew

Statement re: computation of per share earnings K&ee 3 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Staets,” which is included in
Part 11, Item & Financial Statements and Supplementary " of this Annual Report on Form -K).

Subsidiaries of the Registrant is filed herew
Consent of KPMG, LLP is filed herewit

Consent of McGladrey & Pullen, LLP is filed herelwi
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31.2

32.1

32.2

Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursudo Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002 is filed herewitt
Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursutato Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002 is filed herewitt
Certification of the CEO pursuant to Section 906haf Sarban«-Oxley Act of 2002 is filed herewitt
Certification of the CFO pursuant to Section 90éhef Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002 is filed herewitt
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META FINANCIAL GROUP, INC.
AMENDED AND RESTATED BY-LAWS AS OF DECEMBER 27, 2007
ARTICLE |
STOCKHOLDERS

Section 1. Annual Meeting

An annual meeting of the stockholders, for the te&dacof directors to succeed those whose termgexpid for the transaction of such
other business as may properly come before theimgeshall be held at such place, on such dateagiedch time as the Board of Directors
shall each year fix, which date shall be withirrtgen (13) months subsequent to the later of the afancorporation or the last annual meeting
of stockholders.

Section 2. Special Meetings

Subject to the rights of the holders of any classesies of preferred stock of the Corporationc&deneetings of stockholders of the
Corporation may be called only by the Board of Dlioes pursuant to a resolution adopted by a mgjofithe total number of directors which
the Corporation would have if there were no vagsoin the Board of Directors (hereinafter the “VénBbard”).

Section 3. Notice of Meetings

Written notice of the place, date and time of adlatings of the stockholders shall be given, na tean ten (10) nor more than sixty
(60) days before the date on which the meeting Betheld, to each stockholder entitled to voteuah meeting, except as otherwise provided
herein or required by law (meaning, here and haftn as required from time to time, by the Deleev@eneral Corporation Law or the
Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation).

When a meeting is adjourned to another place,afdiene, written notice need not be given of thppathed meeting if the place, date
and time thereof are announced at the meeting twthe adjournment is taken; provided, howeveat ththe date of any adjourned meetin
more than thirty (30) days after the date for witoh meeting was originally noticed, or if a newawrl date is fixed for the adjourned meeting,
written notice of the place, date and time of tparned meeting shall be given in conformity hetbwAt any adjourned meeting, any
business may be transacted which might have bessacted at the original meeting.

Section 4. Quorum.

At any meeting of the stockholders, the holderatdéast one-third of all of the shares of the Istentitled to vote at the meeting,
present in person or by proxy, shall constituteiargm for all purposes, unless or except to thergxhat the preserve of a larger number may
be required by law.

If a quorum shall fail to attend any meeting, thaicman of the meeting or the holders of a majaftthe shares of stock entitled to
vote who are present, in person or by proxy, mgguad the meeting to another place, date or time.
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If a notice of any adjourned special meeting o€kbmlders is sent to all stockholders entitled dtevthereat, stating that it will be held
with those present constituting a quorum, then ptxas otherwise required by law, those presenict adjourned meeting shall constitute a
quorum, and all matters shall be determined by janityaof the votes cast at such meeting.

Section 5. Organization

Such person as the Board of Directors may havgudatgd or, in the absence of such a person, ther@daof the Board of the
Corporation or, in his or her absence, such peasamay be chosen by the holders of a majority @ktrares entitled to vote who are present, in
person or by proxy, shall call to order any meetihthe stockholders and act as chairman of theimgeln the absence of the Secretary of the
Corporation, the secretary of the meeting shaiuigh person as the chairman appoints.

Section 6. Conduct of Business

a) The chairman of any meeting of stockholders stetitanine the order of business and the proceduheaheeting, includin
such regulation of the manner of voting and thedooh of discussion as seem to him or her in ordére polls for each matter upon which the
stockholders will vote at the meeting will be opered closed in accordance with law.

b) At any annual meeting of the stockholders, onlyhdogsiness shall be conducted as shall have beeglrbefore the
meeting (i) by or at the direction of the BoardDifectors or (ii) by any stockholder of the Corptima who is entitled to vote with respect
thereto and who complies with the notice procedaetgorth in this Section 6(b). For businessegloperly brought before an annual mee
by a stockholder, the stockholder must have giiraely notice thereof in writing to the Secretarytioé Corporation. To be timely, a
stockholder’s notice must be delivered or mailednd received at the principal executive officethef Corporation not less than sixty (60)
days prior to the anniversary of the preceding 'gesmnual meetingprovided, howevethat in the event that the date of the annual mgesi
advanced by more than twenty (20) days, or del@yetiore than fifty (50) days from such anniversaaye, notice by the stockholder to be
timely must be so delivered not later than theelofSbusiness on the later of the sixtieth dayrpgocsuch annual meeting or the tenth day
following the day on which notice of the date of tmnual meeting was mailed or public announcewiethie date of such meeting is first
made. A stockholdes’'notice to the Secretary shall set forth as th eaatter such stockholder proposes to bring bef@ennual meeting, (i
brief description of the business desired to beiind before the annual meeting and the reasoreofatucting such business at the annual
meeting, (ii) the name and address, as they ampetiie Corporation’s books, of the stockholder whaposed such business, (iii) the class and
number of shares of the Corporation’s capital stbek are beneficially owned by such stockholdet @v) any material interest of such
stockholder in such business. Notwithstanding lingtin these By-laws to the contrary, no busirgesl be brought before or conducted at an
annual meeting except in accordance with the pimvisof this Section 6(b). The officer of the Cargtion or other person presiding over the
annual meeting shall, if the facts so warrant, iheitrge and declare to the meeting that businessnebproperly brought before the meeting in
accordance with the provisions of this Section &, if he should so determine, he shall so ded¢tathe meeting and any such business so
determined to be not properly brought before theting shall not be transacted.

At any special meeting of the stockholders, onlghsbusiness shall be conducted as shall have bieeglit before the meeting by or
at the direction of the Board of Directors.




c) Only persons who are nominated in accordance Wwélptocedures set forth in these By-laws shallligéoke for election as
directors. Nominations of persons for electiotht® Board of Directors of the Corporation may beleat a meeting of stockholders at which
directors are to be elected only (i) by or at tirealion of the Board of Directors or (ii) by angpekholder of the Corporation entitled to vote
the election of directors at the meeting who coagplvith the notice procedures set forth in thisti8ed(c). Such nominations, other than
those made by or at the direction of the Board ioé&ors, shall be made by timely notice in writtegthe Secretary of the Corporation. To be
timely, a stockholdes notice shall be delivered or mailed to and reseiat the principal executive offices of the Cogtiem not less than thir
(30) days prior to the date of the meeting; progiideowever, that in the event that less than ) days’notice or prior disclosure of the di
of the meeting is given or made to stockholderbetdimely, notice by the stockholder must be seired not later than the close of business
on the 10th day following the day on which suchicebf the date of the meeting was mailed or sudflip disclosure was made. Such
stockholder’s notice shall set forth (i) as to epehson whom such stockholder proposes to nomfoatgdection or re-election as a director, all
information relating to such person that is reqait@ be disclosed in solicitations of proxies ftaotion of directors, or is otherwise required, in
each case pursuant to Regulation 14A under therfiestExchange Act of 1934, as amended (includinch person’s written consent to being
named in the proxy statement as a nominee andmgeas a director if elected); and (ii) as to sheckholder giving the notice, (x) the name
and address, as they appear on the Corporationlksbof such stockholder, and (y) the class andosurof shares of the Corporation’s capital
stock that are beneficially owned by such stockboldAt the request of the Board of Directors, payson nominated by the Board of Directors
for election as a director shall furnish to thergtary of the Corporation that information requitede set forth in a stockholder’s notice of
nomination which pertains to the nominee. No pestall be eligible for election as a directortod Corporation unless nominated in
accordance with the provisions of this Section .6{Ehe officer of the Corporation or other persoesiding at the meeting shall, if the facts so
warrant, determine that a nomination was not madecordance with such provisions and, if he ors$toaild so determine, he or she shall so
declare to the meeting and the defective nominatiail be disregarded.

Section 7. Proxies and Voting

At all meetings of stockholders, every stockholeietitied to vote may vote in person or by proxyaed in writing (or as otherwise
permitted under applicable law) by the stockholateis duly authorized attorney-in-fact in accordamvith the procedures established for the
meeting. Proxies solicited on behalf of the managy@ shall be voted as directed by the stockhaldein the absence of such direction, as
determined by a majority of the Board of Directoiéo proxy shall be valid after eleven months fribra date of its execution except for a
proxy coupled with an interest.

Each stockholder shall have one (1) vote for egb@gre of stock entitled to vote which is registdredis or her name on the record
date for the meeting, except as otherwise provigegdin or in the Certificate of Incorporation oétBorporation or as required by law.

All voting, including the election of directors bexcepting where otherwise required by law, majpya voice vote; provided,
however, that the Board of Directors, in its disione, or the officer of the Corporation presidinglee meeting of stockholders, in his discret
may require that any votes cast at such meetinijlshaast pursuant to a roll call. Every voteetalby ballot shall be counted by an inspector
or inspectors appointed by the Board of Directaradvance of the meeting of stockholders and sugeictor or inspectors shall act at the
meeting or any adjournment thereof and make aemriteport thereof, in accordance with law.
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All elections shall be determined by a pluralitytioé votes cast, and except as otherwise requirékedlaw or as provided in the
Certificate of Incorporation, all other matters lkba determined by a majority of the votes cast.

Section 8. Stock List.

The officer who has charge of the stock transfeikismf the Corporation shall prepare and makehértime and manner required by
applicable law, a list of stockholders entitledstie and shall make such list available for suatppses, at such places, at such times and to
such persons as required by law. The stock trabsigks shall be the only evidence as to the itenfithe stockholders entitled to examine
stock transfer books or to vote in person or byxpmat any meeting of stockholders.

Section 9. Consent of Stockholders in Lieu of Meeting

Subject to the rights of the holders of any classevies of preferred stock of the Corporation, actyon required or permitted to be
taken by the stockholders of the Corporation mestffected at a duly called annual or special mgeadf stockholders of the Corporation and
may not be effected by any consent in writing bghsstockholders.

Section 10. Inspectors of Election

The Board of Directors shall, in advance of any timgeof stockholders, appoint one or more pers@nisspectors of election to act at
the meeting or any adjournment thereof and makettew report thereof in accordance with law.

ARTICLE Il
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. General Powers, Number and Term of Office

The business and affairs of the Corporation shathlanaged by or under the direction of the Boardicgctors. The number of
directors shall be set as provided for in the @eatie of Incorporation. The number of directodsoashall constitute the Whole Board shall be
such number as the Board of Directors shall franetto time have designated except that in the @lesefrany such designation, such number
shall be eight (8). The Board of Directors shalhaally elect a Chairman of the Board and a Presifilem among its members and shall
designate, when present, either the Chairman dBttaed or the President to preside at its meetings.

The directors, other than those who may be eldnyatie holders of any class or series of prefestedk, shall be divided into three
classes, as nearly equal in number as reasonadybybe with the term of office of the first classexpire at the conclusion of the first annual
meeting of stockholders, the term of office of seeond class to expire at the conclusion of the@meeting of stockholders one year
thereafter and the term of office of the third sl&s expire at the conclusion of the annual measfrgfockholders two years thereafter, with
each director to hold office until his or her sugs@r shall have been duly elected and qualifiedeash annual meeting of stockholders,
commencing with the first annual meeting, directlected to succeed those directors whose ternieeestmall be elected for a term of office to
expire at the conclusion of the third succeedinguahmeeting of stockholders after their electigith each director to hold office until his or
her successor shall have been duly elected andigdal




Section 2. Vacancies and Newly Created Directorships

Subject to the rights of the holders of any classenies of preferred stock then outstanding, ariéss the Board of Directors
otherwise determines, newly created directorshepslting from any increase in the authorized nunabelirectors or any vacancies in the
Board of Directors resulting from death, resignaticetirement, disqualification, removal from offior other cause maybe filled only by a
majority vote of the directors then in office, tlgbuless than a quorum, and each director so chaig@hhold office for a term expiring at the
annual meeting of stockholders at which the terroffi€e of the class to which he or she has beectedl expires, and until such director’s
successor shall have been duly elected and quhlifieo decrease in the number of authorized direatonstituting the Board shall shorten the
term of any incumbent director.

Section 3. Regular Meetings

Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shalhekl at such place or places, on such date osdabel at such time or times as s
have been established by the Board of Directorspaiticized among all directors. A notice of eaebular meeting shall not be required.

Section 4. Special Meetings

Special meetings of the Board of Directors may dlked by one-third (1/3) of the directors then ffiag (rounded up to the nearest
whole number) or by the Chairman of the Board dradl $©e held at such place, on such date, andcattime as they or he or she shall fix.
Notice of the place, date, and time of each suelsiabmeeting shall be given to each director bypmtit is not waived by mailing writte
notice not less than five (5) days before the meeati by telegraphing or telexing or by facsimitentsmission of the same not less than twenty-
four (24) hours before the meeting. Unless othesvimdicated in the notice thereof, any and alli®ss may be transacted at a special mee

Section 5. Quorum.

At any meeting of the Board of Directors, a majodf the authorized number of directors then caoutstig the Board shall constitute a
qguorum for all purposes. If a quorum shall faibttend any meeting, a majority of those present atgourn the meeting to another place, ¢
or time, without further notice or waiver thereddotwithstanding the above, at any adjourned mgaifrthe Board of Directors, at least one-
third of the authorized number of directors thenstiduting the Board shall constitute a quorumdibipurposes.

Section 6. Participation in Meetings By Conference Telephone

Members of the Board of Directors, or of any contegitthereof, may participate in a meeting of suobrB or committee by means of
conference telephone or similar communicationspgent by means of which all persons participatinthe meeting can hear each other and
such participation shall constitute presence is@eit such meeting.

Section 7. Conduct of Business

At any meeting of the Board of Directors, businglsall be transacted in such order and manner é&8aae may from time to time
determine, and all matters shall be determinedhbybte of a majority of the directors presentept@s otherwise provided herein or required
by law. Action may be




taken by the Board of Directors without a meetingllimembers thereof consent thereto in writingg ¢ghe writing or writings are filed with the
minutes of proceedings of the Board of Directors.

Section 8. Powers.

The Board of Directors may, except as otherwiseired by law, exercise all such powers and dowdhsacts and things as may be
exercised or done by the Corporation, includinghwat limiting the generality of the foregoing, thequalified power:

1) To declare dividends from time to time in accordandth law;
2) To purchase or otherwise acquire any propertytsigh privileges on such terms as it shall deteemin
3) To authorize the creation, making or issuanceyahdorm as it may determine, of written obligasasf every kind,

negotiable or non-negotiable, secured or unsecaretlifo do all things necessary in connection thighe

4) To remove any officer of the Corporation with ottlvaut cause, and from time to time to devolve tbegrs and duties of
any officer upon any other person for the time gein

5) To confer upon any officer of the Corporation tloever to appoint, remove and suspend subordinaiteeo$f employees and
agents;

6) To adopt from time to time such stock, option, ktparchase, bonus or other compensation plansifectdrs, officers,
employees and agents of the Corporation and itsidiabies as it may determine;

7) To adopt from time to time such insurance, retinetnand other benefit plans for directors, officenmployees and agents of
the Corporation and its subsidiaries as it mayrdstes; and,

8) To adopt from time to time regulations, not incatesnt with these By-laws, for the management oQbgporation’s
business and affairs.

Section 9. Compensation of Directors

Directors, as such, may receive, pursuant to résalof the Board of Directors, fixed fees and otbempensation for their services as
directors, including without limitation, their séces as members of committees of the Board of Birsc

Section 10. Quialifications.

Any member of the Board of directors shall, in ertbequalify as such, be domiciled in or have hisier primary place of business
located in any county, a portion of which is witleiryO mile radius of any office of any subsidianahcial institution of the Company.
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ARTICLE lll
COMMITTEES

Section 1. Committees of the Board of Directars

The Board of Directors, by a vote of a majoritytleé Whole Board of Directors, may from time to tidesignate committees of the
Board, with such lawfully delegable powers and elifis it thereby confers, to serve at the pleadutee Board and shall, for those committees
and any others provided for herein, elect a direatalirectors to serve as the member or membegsgdating, if it desires, other directors as
alternate members who may replace any absentqualifed member at any meeting of the committday committee so designated may
exercise the power and authority of the Board séElbrs to declare a dividend, to authorize theasse of stock or to adopt a certificate of
ownership and merger pursuant to Section 253 ob#daware General Corporation Law if the resolutidrich designated the committee or a
supplemental resolution of the Board of Directdrallsso provide. In the absence or disqualificatsd any member of any committee and any
alternate member in his or her place, the membarernbers of the committee present at the meetidghandisqualified from voting, whether
or not he or she or they constitute a quorum, nyayrianimous vote appoint another member of the o&bDirectors to act at the meeting in
the place of the absent or disqualified member.

Section 2. Conduct of Business

Each committee may determine the procedural r@lemeeting and conducting its business and shaihaccordance therewith,
except as otherwise provided herein or requirethtyy Adequate provision shall be made for not@wenembers of all meetings; ottgrd (1/3)
of the members shall constitute a quorum unlessdhamittee shall consist of one (1) or two (2) mernsbin which event one (1) member shall
constitute a quorum; and all matters shall be d&tezd by a majority vote of the members presentdtioh may be taken by any committee
without a meeting if all members thereof conseatéto in writing and the writing or writings ardefil with the minutes of the proceedings of
such committee.

Section 3. Nominating Committee

The Board of Directors shall appoint a Nominatimgh@nittee of the Board, consisting of not less tthaee (3) members, one of wh
shall be the Chairman of the Board. The Nomina@egnmittee shall have authority (a) to review anyimations for election to the Board of
Directors made by a stockholder of the Corporagiorsuant to Section 6(c)(ii) of Article | of theBg-laws in order to determine compliance
with such By-law, and (b) to recommend to the WHaderd nominees for election to the Board of Divesto replace those directors whose
terms expire at the annual meeting of stockholders ensuing.

ARTICLE IV
OFFICERS
Section 1. Generally.
a) As soon as may be practicable after the annualingeet stockholders, the Board of Directors shalbase a Chairman of the

Board, a President, one or more Vice Presidergcaetary and a Chief Financial Officer and frometito time may choose such other officers
as it may deem proper.




The Chairman of the Board and the President skeathosen from among the directors. Any numbeffafes may be held by the same per

b) The term of office of all officers shall be untile next annual election of officers and until theBpective successors are
chosen, but any officer may be removed from oféitany time by the affirmative vote of a majorifytioe authorized number of directors then
constituting the Board of Directors.

c) All officers chosen by the Board of Directors stedkch have such powers and duties as generalbipéottheir respective
offices, subject to the specific provisions of tAsicle IV. Such officers shall also have suclwgos and duties as from time to time may be
conferred by the Board of Directors or by any cotteei thereof.

Section 2. Chairman of the Board of Directors.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Cogpion shall have general responsibilities for¢baduct of meetings of the Board
of Directors, subject to the direction of the BoafMirectors, Section 3 herein and to Article ¢c8on 6.

Section 3. President

The President shall be the chief executive offaret, subject to the control of the Board of Direstghall have general power over the
management and oversight of the administrationcgredation of the Corporation’s business and gersena¢rvisory power and authority over
its policies and affairs. He shall see that allevs and resolutions of the Board of Directors afnany committee thereof are carried into effect.

Each meeting of the stockholders and of the Bo&iirectors shall be presided over by the Chairmofitie Board, or, in his absence,
the President, or, in his absence, by such offisdras been designated by the Board of Directpis bis absence, by such officer or other
person as is chosen at the meeting. The Secatairy his absence, the General Counsel of the @ation or such officer as has been
designated by the Board of Directors or, in hisealbg, such officer or other person as is chosehdyperson presiding, shall act as secreta
each such meeting.

Section 4. Vice President

The Vice President or Vice Presidents, if any, Igbedform the duties of the President in his abeasaduring his disability to act. In
addition, the Vice Presidents shall perform théetuand exercise the powers usually incident to thepective offices and/or such other duties
and powers as may be properly assigned to themtiroeto time by the Board of Directors, the Chamof the Board or the President.
Section 5. Secretary

The Secretary or an Assistant Secretary shall isstiees of meetings, shall keep their minutesl| $taave charge of the seal and the
corporate books, shall perform such other dutiesexrcise such other powers as are usually inttdesuch offices and/or such other duties

and powers as are properly assigned thereto bgdhed of Directors, the Chairman of the Board @ Bhiesident.
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Section 6. Chief Financial Officer

The Chief Financial Officer shall have charge dfhabnies and securities of the Corporation, othantmonies and securities of any
division of the Corporation which has a treasurdirancial officer appointed by the Board of Ditexs, and shall keep regular books of
account. The funds of the Corporation shall beodited in the name of the Corporation of the Chiefincial Officer with such banks or trust
companies as the Board of Directors from timertetshall designate. He or she shall sign or cosigte such instruments as require his or her
signature, shall perform all such duties and hdiveuah powers as are usually incident to suckceffand/or such other duties and powers as
are properly assigned to him or her by the Boariodctors, the Chairman of the Board or the Pegsidand maybe required to give bond for
the faithful performance of his or her duties ielssum and with such surety as may be requiretidBoard of Directors.

Section 7. Assistant Secretaries and Other Officers

The Board of Directors may appoint one or moreséast secretaries and one or more assistants ©hile¢ Financial Officer, or one
appointee to both such positions, which officemlidave such powers and shall perform such dasegre provided in these Bgws or as ma
be assigned to them by the Board of DirectorsCthairman of the Board or the President.

Section 8. Action with Respect to Securities of Other Corpioras .

Unless otherwise directed by the Board of Directtive President or any officer of the Corporatiatharized by the President shall
have power to vote and otherwise act on behali@Qorporation, in person or by proxy, at any nmgetif stockholders of or with respect to
any action of stockholders of any other corporatiowhich this Corporation may hold securities aticerwise to exercise any and all rights
and powers which this Corporation may possess &gore of its ownership of securities in such otleepaeration.

ARTICLE V
STOCK

Section 1. Certificates of Stock

Each stockholder, except for those who have chtsatilize uncertificated securities pursuant tirect registration system, shall be
entitled to a certificate signed by, or in the nawhéhe Corporation by, the President or a VicesRient, and by the Secretary or an Assistant
Secretary, or the Chief Financial Officer or anigtast to the Chief Financial Officer, certifyiniget number of shares owned by him or her.
Any or all of the signatures on the certificate nayby facsimile.

Section 2. Transfers of Stock

Transfers of stock shall be made only upon thestearbooks of the Corporation kept at an officéhaf Corporation or by transfer
agents designated to transfer shares of the sfable &orporation. Except where a certificates®iied in accordance with Section 4 of
Article V of these By-laws, an outstanding certfie for the number of shares involved shall beesulered for cancellation before a new
certificate is issued therefore.




Section 3. Record Date

In order that the Corporation may determine theldtolders entitled to notice of or to vote at angeting of stockholders, or to
receive payment of any dividend or other distribator allotment of any rights or to exercise amts in respect of any change, conversion or
exchange of stock or for the purpose of any otheful action, the Board of Directors may fix a regtdate, which record date shall not prec
the date on which the resolution fixing the recdatie is adopted and which record date shall noadre than sixty (60) nor less than ten
(10) days before the date of any meeting of stoltldre, nor more than sixty (60) days prior to tingetfor such other action as hereinbefore
described; provided, however, that if no recoradaffixed by the Board of Directors, the recortedar determining the Board of Directors,
the record date for determining stockholders esttitb notice of or to vote at a meeting of stocklba shall be at the close of business on the
day next preceding the day on which notice is giwenf notice is waived, at the close of businesghe day next preceding the day on which
the meeting is held, and, for determining stockbddentitled to receive payment of any dividendtber distribution or allotment of rights or
to exercise any rights of change, conversion ohamge of stock or for any other purpose, the redatd shall be at the close of business o
day on which the Board of Directors adopts a regmiurelating thereto.

A determination of stockholders of record entittedhotice of or to vote at a meeting of stockhoddgnall apply to any adjournment of
the meeting; provided, however, that the Board ioé@ors may fix a new record date for the adjodrmeseting.

Section 4. Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Certificates

In the event of the loss, theft or destructionrof aertificate of stock, another maybe issuedsplace pursuant to such regulations as
the Board of Directors may establish concerningpod such loss, theft or destruction and concegitive giving of a satisfactory bond or bo
of indemnity.

Section 5. Regulations

The issue, transfer, conversion and registratioredificates of stock shall be governed by sutteptegulations as the Board of
Directors may establish.

ARTICLE VI
NOTICES
Section 1. Notices.

Except as otherwise specifically provided hereimeguuired bylaw, all notices required to be givemny stockholder, director, officer,
employee or agent shall be in writing and may iaerginstance be given effectively by hand delivieryhe recipient thereof, by depositing s
notice in the mail, postage paid, by sending suwatite by prepaid telegram or mailgram or by sendinch notice by facsimile machine or
other electronic transmission. Any such noticdldfeaddressed to such stockholder, directorceffiemployee or agent at his or her last
known address as the same appears on the bodks Gbtporation. The time when such notice is rekiif hand delivered, or dispatched, if
delivered through the mail, by telegram or mailgmamtoy facsimile machine or other electronic traission, shall be the time of the giving of
the notice.
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Section 2. Waivers.

A written waiver of any notice, signhed by a stocklew, director, officer, employee or agent, whethefore or after the time of the
event for which notice is to be given, shall berded equivalent to the notice required to be givesuch stockholder, director, officer,
employee or agent. Neither the business nor theoge of any meeting need be specified in suchigewa

ARTICLE VII
MISCELLANEOQOUS

Section 1. Facsimile Signatures

In addition to the provisions for use of facsinsignatures elsewhere specifically authorized is¢h®y-laws, facsimile signatures of
any officer or officers of the Corporation may ts=d whenever and as authorized by the Board otire or a committee thereof.

Section 2. Corporate Seal

The Board of Directors may provide a suitable seahtaining the name of the Corporation, which séall be in the charge of the
Secretary. If and when so directed by the Boarditgéctors or a committee thereof, duplicates efdbal may be kept and used by the Chief
Financial Officer or by an Assistant Secretary miaasistant to the Chief Financial Officer.

Section 3. Reliance upon Books, Reports and Records

Each director, each member of any committee degdrtay the Board of Directors, and each officethef Corporation shall, in the
performance of his or her duties, be fully protddterelying in good faith upon the books of accoonother records of the Corporation and
upon such information, opinions, reports or statesipresented to the Corporation by any of itscefi or employees, or committees of the
Board of Directors so designated, or by any otlees@n as to matters which such director or committember reasonably believes are within
such other persons professional or expert competand who has been selected with reasonable caredyybehalf of the Corporation.

Section 4. Fiscal Year.

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall begin atdder 1 of each year.
Section 5. Time Periods

In applying any provision of these By-laws whiclgqu&es that an act be done or not be done a spécifimber of days prior to an
event or that an act be done during a period peaified number of days prior to an event, calemtdgs shall be used, the day of the doing of

the act shall be excluded and the day of the esteait be included.
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ARTICLE VIII
AMENDMENTS

The By-laws of the Corporation maybe adopted, aredrmt repealed as provided in Article SEVENTH & @ertificate of
Incorporation of the Corporation.
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EXHIBIT 10.4

FIRST AMENDMENT
TO THE
METABANK EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
WITH
J. TYLER HAAHR




THIS AMENDMENT (the “Amendment”) is entered into on the date sethfon the signature page hereof by and between
MetaBank (the “Company”) and. Tyler Haahr (the “Employee”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS , the Company and the Employee previously enteredan employment agreement dated January 27, (11987
“Employment Agreement”);

WHEREAS , the Company and the Employee desire to amenBrtipoyment Agreement to comply with Section 409Ahef
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the€’Goand

WHEREAS , pursuant to Section 13 of the Employment Agreentbe Employment Agreement may be amended byemritt
agreement of the parties thereto;

NOW, THEREFORE , the parties hereby agree to amend the Employfgmtement, generally effective January 1, 2008pbews:
Section 2(b) is amended to read as follows:

(b) Discretionary BonusesThe Employee shall be entitled to participatannequitable manner with all other executive eificof th
Bank in discretionary bonuses as authorized anthatby the Board of Directors of the Bank toekgcutive employees. Any such
discretionary bonus shall be payable to the Em@atehe time bonuses are paid to executive offiteaccordance with the Bank’s policies
and practicegprovided, however, that any such bonus shall be paid o thin March 15 of the year following the yeawinich the bonus is
earned and vested. No other compensation pro¥add this Agreement shall be deemed a substftutéhe Employee’s right to participate in
such bonuses when and as declared by the Boaritexftars.

Section 2(c) is amended to read as follows:

(c) Expenses During the term of his employment hereunder,BEh®loyee shall be entitled to receive prompt reirsbment for all
reasonable expenses he incurs (in accordance wlitigs and procedures at least as favorable t&thployee as those presently applicable to
the senior executive officers of the Bank) in parfing services hereundgmovidedthat the Employee properly accounts for such exgeirs
accordance with Bank policy. Such expense reingaests shall be paid no later than the end of thpl&yee’s taxable year following the
taxable year in which the Employee incurs the egpen The amount of expenses eligible for reimbnese during a taxable year may not
affect the expenses eligible for reimbursementiy @ather taxable year, and the Employee’s rigtart@xpense reimbursement may not be
liquidated or exchanged for another benefit.

Section 6(a) is amended so the first paragraph theof reads as follows:

(a) The Board of Directors may terminate the Empiyg employment at any time, but any terminationthgyBank’s Board of
Directors, other than termination for cause, shatlprejudice the Employee’s right to compensatioother benefits under the Agreement. If
the employment of the Employee is involuntarilyn@rated, other than for “cause” as provided in 8ggtion 6(a) or pursuant to any of
Sections 6(d) through 6(g), or by reason of deattisability as provided in Sections 6(c) or 7, Braployee shall be entitled to receive:

(i) his then-applicable salary for the then-renrainierm of the Agreement as calculated in accomavith Section 4 hereof,
payable in installments not less frequently thamelgkly, in




accordance with the Bank’s regular payroll practiaad procedures, subject to the customary witliingldx and other employee taxes as
required with respect to compensation paid by pamtion to an employeprovidedthat if the Employee is a “specified employee” gash
term is defined in Code Section 409A and the reagria or other guidance in effect thereunder) attitme of his employment termination and
his employment terminates under circumstanceséugtire a distribution delay under Code SectionA@Be commencement of biweekly
installments of the Employee’s continued salarympagts shall be delayed for six months and thelingats that otherwise would have been
paid during that six-month period shall be paiéilmmp sum on the six-month anniversary of the Bxyg®’'s employment termination date (or,
if earlier, as soon as administratively feasibkerlis death); and

(i) health insurance benefits as maintained byBhek for the benefit of its senior executive enyples or its employees
generally over the then-remaining term of the Agreet as calculated in accordance with Section ddigrrovidedthat if the duration of such
health insurance benefits extends beyond the etiteadpplicable continuation coverage period utigetConsolidated Omnibus Budget
Reconciliation Act (COBRA), (A) the amount of beitgefrovided during one calendar year shall nactfthe amount of benefits provided
during a subsequent calendar year (except witrecddp health plan maximums), (B) the benefits matybe exchanged or substituted for of
forms of compensation to the Employee, and (C)raimbursement or payment under the benefit arraegémill be paid in accordance with
applicable plan terms and no later than the lagtodighe Employee’s taxable year following the tabeayear in which he incurred the expense
giving rise to such reimbursement or payment.

Section 6(h) is amended to read as follows:

(h)In the event the Bank purports to terminateBEhgployee for cause, but it is determined by a coficompetent jurisdiction or by an
arbitrator pursuant to Section 17 that cause dtcerist for such termination, or if in any evenisitdetermined by any such court or arbitrator
that the Bank has failed to make timely paymerdrof amounts owed to the Employee under this Agreerttee Employee shall be entitled to
reimbursement for all reasonable costs, includitgrieeys’ fees, incurred in challenging such temtion or collecting such amoungsovided,
however, that (i) the Employee shall have no rightost reimbursements until the court or arbitrataters a final and binding opinion that
cause did not exist for the Employee’s terminatiothat the Bank has failed to pay amounts dua@éd=mployee under this Agreement, and
(ii) cost reimbursements will be paid no later tidarch 15 of the year following the year in whittetcourt or arbitrator enters its final and
binding opinion. Such reimbursement shall be iditioh to all rights to which the Employee is otivése entitled under this Agreement.

Section 9(c) is amended so the last sentence thdreads as follows:

In the event that the Advisory Firm, based on adliig precedent or other substantial authorityed®ines that an Underpayment has
occurred, any such Underpayment shall be promgtig by the Bank to or for the benefit of the Em@eytogether with interest at the
applicable federal rate provided for in SectionZ18){2) of the Codeprovidedthat such Underpayment and interest shall be paidter than
two and a half months after the date on which tHgigory Firm informs the Bank of its determinatidyat an Underpayment has occurred.

A new Section 18 is added to the Employment Agreemieto read as follows:
18. Code Section 409A 1t is intended that any income or payments &éEmployee provided under this Agreement will neshibjec

to the additional tax and interest under Code 8B@D9A (the “Section 409A Tax”). The provisiorfdire Agreement will be construed in
favor of complying with any




applicable requirements of Code Section 409A asssany to prevent the imposition of a Section 4084 The Bank and the Employee a¢
to amend the Agreement (retroactively, if necegsargomply with Code Section 409A, including ameraht to enable the Employee to
prevent the imposition of, or to reduce the amaipany Section 409A Tax. The Bank and the Emptosieall reasonably cooperate to give
full effect to this provision and the consent ty @amendment described in the preceding sentendensh&e unreasonably withheld by either
party. The parties agree that neither party hpar(abligation to bring any potential Section 40B&x to the attention of the other party or
(b) any liability for any Section 409A Tax or angher reporting or withholding obligation to the etiparty.

In all other respects, the Employment Agreement sHeremain unchanged and in full force and effect.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF , this Amendment has been executed and deliveredebgarties hereto this 28th day of January, 2008.
METABANK
/sl E. Wayne Coole

E. Wayne Coole'
Chairman, Compensation Committ

EMPLOYEE

/sl J. Tyler Haah
J. Tyler Haah




EXHIBIT 10.5

FIRST AMENDMENT
TO THE
FIRST FEDERAL SAVINGS BANK OF THE MIDWEST
SUPPLEMENTAL EMPLOYEES’ INVESTMENT PLAN FOR SALARIE D EMPLOYEES




THIS AMENDMENT (the “Amendment”) to the First Federal Savings Bahkhe Midwest Supplemental Employees’ Investment
Plan for Salaried Employees (the “Plan”) is heraligpted on the 29th day of January, 2007 by MetkBfanmerly known as First Federal
Savings Bank of the Midwest).

RECITALS

WHEREAS , First Federal Savings Bank of the Midwest adopiedPlan effective October 1, 1993 for the berwd#fa select group of
senior management personnel;

WHEREAS , First Federal Savings Bank of the Midwest subsatijy became known as MetaBank (the “Company”);
WHEREAS , Section 7.1 of the Plan authorizes the Comparayrtend the Plan by action of its Board of Directarsl

WHEREAS , the Company now desires to amend the Plan to lyowih final regulations issued under Section 408Ahe Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”);

NOW, THEREFORE , the Company hereby amends the Plan, generadigtefé January 1, 2008, as follows:
Section 5.1 is amended to read as follows:

5.1 Distribution. All amounts credited to a ParticipaBupplemental Account, including gains and lossedited in accordance wi
Section 4.1 of the Plan, shall be distributed tavibh respect to the Participant upon the Partitijseseparation from service (as defined in
Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A-1(h)) with treany and all affiliates thereof for any reasariuding death. Such amounts shall be
distributed in a lump sum cash payment within ni(@0) days after the date of the Participant’sasation from serviceprovided, however,
that if the Participant is a “specified employea$ Such term is defined in Code Section 409A aedefulations or other guidance in effect
thereunder) on the date of his or her separatmm Bervice, the amounts in the Participant's Supplgal Account shall be paid in a lump sum
on the six-month anniversary of the date of hikerseparation from service (or, if earlier, asnsas administratively feasible after his or her
death).

If a Participant dies before the full amount of bisher Supplemental Account has been distribiteyg,remaining amount shall be
distributed in a lump sum cash payment as soonmingstratively feasible following the Participasitiate of death to the beneficiary
designated by the Participant in a writing delivkte the Company prior to his or her death. lfatieipant has not designated a beneficiary or
if no designated beneficiary is living on the detelistribution, such remaining amount shall bardisted to the Participant’s estate.

Section 7.1 is amended so the first sentence thefeeads as follows:
The Company intends the Plan to be permanent batves the right to amend or terminate the Plamwinethe sole opinion of the

Company, such amendment or termination is advisgbleided, however, that any Plan termination shall compithwhe requirements of
Code Section 409A.




Section 7.2 is amended so the second sentence tbéreads as follows:

Upon termination of the Plan, distribution of amtauim the Supplemental Account shall be made td#micipant or his or her
beneficiary in a lump sum cash payment within threeframe required under Code Section 409A.

Section 8.2 is amended so the first sentence thefeeads as follows:

Except as otherwise expressly provided herein @hipited by Code Section 409A or the regulationstber guidance in effect
thereunder, all terms and conditions of the Quedifflan applicable to a Qualified Plan Contributiather than provisions governing the time
and form of payment, will also apply to a Suppletaé@ontribution to be made hereunder.

A new Section 8.11 is added to the Plan to read &slows:

8.11 Code Section 409Alt is intended that any benefit provided undhés Plan will not be subject to the additional &ad interest
under Code Section 409A (the “Section 409A TaxThe Plan provisions will be construed in favor ofrplying with any applicable
requirements of Code Section 409A as necessamet@pt the imposition of a Section 409A Tax. Trarpany will amend the Plan
(retroactively, if necessary) to comply with Codecion 409A, including amendment to enable thei€pants to prevent the imposition of, or
to reduce the amount of, any Section 409A Tax.théeithe Company nor any Participant has (a) aigatddn to bring any potential
Section 409A Tax to the attention of the otheryart(b) any liability for any Section 409A Tax any other reporting or withholding
obligation to the other party.

In all other respects, the Plan shall remain unchaged and in full force and effect.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF , this Amendment has been executed and deliverd¢deodate first set forth above.
METABANK
/s| E. Wayne Coole

E. Wayne Coole
Chairman, Compensation Commit




EXHIBIT 10.6

FIRST AMENDMENT
TO THE
METABANK EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
WITH
JAMES S. HAAHR




THIS AMENDMENT (the “Amendment”) is entered into on the date sethfon the signature page hereof by and between
MetaBank (the “Company”) andames S. Haahi(the “Employee”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS , the Company and the Employee previously entertedan employment agreement dated September 23, (1189
“Employment Agreement”);

WHEREAS , the Company and the Employee desire to amenBrtipoyment Agreement to comply with Section 409Ahef
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the€’Goand

WHEREAS , pursuant to Section 13 of the Employment Agreentbe Employment Agreement may be amended byemritt
agreement of the parties thereto;

NOW, THEREFORE , the parties hereby agree to amend the Employfgmtement, generally effective January 1, 2008pkews:
Section 2(b) is amended to read as follows:

(b) Discretionary BonusesThe Employee shall be entitled to participatannequitable manner with all other executive eificof th
Bank in discretionary bonuses as authorized anthatby the Board of Directors of the Bank toekgcutive employees. Any such
discretionary bonus shall be payable to the Em@atehe time bonuses are paid to executive offiteaccordance with the Bank’s policies
and practicegprovided, however, that any such bonus shall be paid o thin March 15 of the year following the yeawinich the bonus is
earned and vested. No other compensation pro¥add this Agreement shall be deemed a substftutéhe Employee’s right to participate in
such bonuses when and as declared by the Boaritexftars.

Section 2(c) is amended to read as follows:

(c) Expenses During the term of his employment hereunder,BEh®loyee shall be entitled to receive prompt reirsbment for all
reasonable expenses he incurs (in accordance wlitigs and procedures at least as favorable t&thployee as those presently applicable to
the senior executive officers of the Bank) in parfing services hereundgmovidedthat the Employee properly accounts for such exgeirs
accordance with Bank policy. Such expense reingaests shall be paid no later than the end of thpl&yee’s taxable year following the
taxable year in which the Employee incurs the egpen The amount of expenses eligible for reimbnese during a taxable year may not
affect the expenses eligible for reimbursementiy @ather taxable year, and the Employee’s rigtart@xpense reimbursement may not be
liquidated or exchanged for another benefit.

Section 6(a) is amended so the first paragraph theof reads as follows:

(a) The Board of Directors may terminate the Empiyg employment at any time, but any terminationthgyBank’s Board of
Directors, other than termination for cause, shatlprejudice the Employee’s right to compensatioother benefits under the Agreement. If
the employment of the Employee is involuntarilyn@rated, other than for “cause” as provided in 8ggtion 6(a) or pursuant to any of
Sections 6(d) through 6(g), or by reason of deattisability as provided in Sections 6(c) or 7, Braployee shall be entitled to receive:

(i) his then-applicable salary for the then-renrainierm of the Agreement as calculated in accomavith Section 4 hereof,
payable in installments not less frequently thamelgkly, in




accordance with the Bank’s regular payroll practiaad procedures, subject to the customary witliingldx and other employee taxes as
required with respect to compensation paid by pamtion to an employeprovidedthat if the Employee is a “specified employee” gash
term is defined in Code Section 409A and the reagria or other guidance in effect thereunder) attitme of his employment termination and
his employment terminates under circumstanceséugtire a distribution delay under Code SectionA@Be commencement of biweekly
installments of the Employee’s continued salarympagts shall be delayed for six months and thelingats that otherwise would have been
paid during that six-month period shall be paiéilmmp sum on the six-month anniversary of the Bxyg®’'s employment termination date (or,
if earlier, as soon as administratively feasibkerlis death); and

(i) health insurance benefits as maintained byBhek for the benefit of its senior executive enyples or its employees
generally over the then-remaining term of the Agreet as calculated in accordance with Section ddigrrovidedthat if the duration of such
health insurance benefits extends beyond the etiteadpplicable continuation coverage period utigetConsolidated Omnibus Budget
Reconciliation Act (COBRA), (A) the amount of beitgefrovided during one calendar year shall nactfthe amount of benefits provided
during a subsequent calendar year (except witrecddp health plan maximums), (B) the benefits matybe exchanged or substituted for of
forms of compensation to the Employee, and (C)raimbursement or payment under the benefit arraegémill be paid in accordance with
applicable plan terms and no later than the lagtodighe Employee’s taxable year following the tabeayear in which he incurred the expense
giving rise to such reimbursement or payment.

Section 6(h) is amended to read as follows:

(h) In the event the Bank purports to terminateBEhgployee for cause, but it is determined by a ttouicompetent jurisdiction or by
an arbitrator pursuant to Section 17 that causadiaxist for such termination, or if in any evéris determined by any such court or arbitr
that the Bank has failed to make timely paymerdrof amounts owed to the Employee under this Agreerttee Employee shall be entitled to
reimbursement for all reasonable costs, includitgrieeys’ fees, incurred in challenging such temtion or collecting such amoungsovided,
however, that (i) the Employee shall have no rightost reimbursements until the court or arbitrataters a final and binding opinion that
cause did not exist for the Employee’s terminatiothat the Bank has failed to pay amounts dua@éd=mployee under this Agreement, and
(ii) cost reimbursements will be paid no later tidarch 15 of the year following the year in whittetcourt or arbitrator enters its final and
binding opinion. Such reimbursement shall be iditioh to all rights to which the Employee is otivése entitled under this Agreement.

Section 9(c) is amended so the last sentence thdreads as follows:

In the event that the Advisory Firm, based on adliig precedent or other substantial authorityed®ines that an Underpayment has
occurred, any such Underpayment shall be promgtig by the Bank to or for the benefit of the Em@eytogether with interest at the
applicable federal rate provided for in SectionZ18){2) of the Codeprovidedthat such Underpayment and interest shall be paidter than
two and a half months after the date on which tHgigory Firm informs the Bank of its determinatidyat an Underpayment has occurred.

A new Section 18 is added to the Employment Agreemieto read as follows:
18. Code Section 409A 1t is intended that any income or payments &éEmployee provided under this Agreement will neshibjec

to the additional tax and interest under Code 8B@D9A (the “Section 409A Tax”). The provisiorfdire Agreement will be construed in
favor of complying with any




applicable requirements of Code Section 409A asssany to prevent the imposition of a Section 4084 The Bank and the Employee a¢
to amend the Agreement (retroactively, if necegsargomply with Code Section 409A, including ameraht to enable the Employee to
prevent the imposition of, or to reduce the amaipany Section 409A Tax. The Bank and the Emptosieall reasonably cooperate to give
full effect to this provision and the consent ty @amendment described in the preceding sentendensh&e unreasonably withheld by either
party. The parties agree that neither party hpar(abligation to bring any potential Section 40B&x to the attention of the other party or
(b) any liability for any Section 409A Tax or angher reporting or withholding obligation to the etiparty.

In all other respects, the Employment Agreement sHeremain unchanged and in full force and effect.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF , this Amendment has been executed and deliveredebgarties hereto this 28th day of January, 2008.
METABANK
/sl E. Wayne Coole

E. Wayne Coole'
Chairman, Compensation Committ

EMPLOYEE

/s/ James S. Haa
James S. Haal




EXHIBIT 10.10

FIRST AMENDMENT
TO THE
METABANK EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
WITH
BRADLEY C. HANSON




THIS AMENDMENT (the “Amendment”) is entered into on the date sethfon the signature page hereof by and between
MetaBank (the “Company”) andradley C. Hanson(the “Employee”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS , the Company and the Employee previously enteredan employment agreement dated October 24, @685
“Employment Agreement”);

WHEREAS , the Company and the Employee desire to amenBrtipoyment Agreement to comply with Section 409Ahef
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the€’Goand

WHEREAS , pursuant to Section 13 of the Employment Agreentbe Employment Agreement may be amended byemritt
agreement of the parties thereto;

NOW, THEREFORE , the parties hereby agree to amend the Employfgmtement, generally effective January 1, 2008pbews:
Section 2(b) is amended to read as follows:

(b) Discretionary BonusesThe Employee shall be entitled to participatannequitable manner with all other executive eificof th
Bank in discretionary bonuses as authorized anthatby the Board of Directors of the Bank toekgcutive employees. Any such
discretionary bonus shall be payable to the Em@atehe time bonuses are paid to executive offiteaccordance with the Bank’s policies
and practicegprovided, however, that any such bonus shall be paid o thin March 15 of the year following the yeawinich the bonus is
earned and vested. No other compensation pro¥add this Agreement shall be deemed a substftutéhe Employee’s right to participate in
such bonuses when and as declared by the Boaritexftars.

Section 2(c) is amended to read as follows:

(c) Expenses During the term of his employment hereunder,BEh®loyee shall be entitled to receive prompt reirsbment for all
reasonable expenses he incurs (in accordance wlitigs and procedures at least as favorable t&thployee as those presently applicable to
the senior executive officers of the Bank) in parfing services hereundgmovidedthat the Employee properly accounts for such exgeirs
accordance with Bank policy. Such expense reingaests shall be paid no later than the end of thpl&yee’s taxable year following the
taxable year in which the Employee incurs the egpen The amount of expenses eligible for reimbnese during a taxable year may not
affect the expenses eligible for reimbursementiy @ather taxable year, and the Employee’s rigtart@xpense reimbursement may not be
liquidated or exchanged for another benefit.

Section 6(a) is amended so the first paragraph theof reads as follows:

(a) The Board of Directors may terminate the Empiyg employment at any time, but any terminationthgyBank’s Board of
Directors, other than termination for cause, shatlprejudice the Employee’s right to compensatioother benefits under the Agreement. If
the employment of the Employee is involuntarilyn@rated, other than for “cause” as provided in 8ggtion 6(a) or pursuant to any of
Sections 6(d) through 6(g), or by reason of deattisability as provided in Sections 6(c) or 7, Braployee shall be entitled to receive:

(i) his then-applicable salary for the then-renrainierm of the Agreement as calculated in accomavith Section 4 hereof,
payable in installments not less frequently thamelgkly, in




accordance with the Bank’s regular payroll practiaad procedures, subject to the customary witliingldx and other employee taxes as
required with respect to compensation paid by pamtion to an employeprovidedthat if the Employee is a “specified employee” gash
term is defined in Code Section 409A and the reagria or other guidance in effect thereunder) attitme of his employment termination and
his employment terminates under circumstanceséugtire a distribution delay under Code SectionA@Be commencement of biweekly
installments of the Employee’s continued salarympagts shall be delayed for six months and thelingats that otherwise would have been
paid during that six-month period shall be paiéilmmp sum on the six-month anniversary of the Bxyg®’'s employment termination date (or,
if earlier, as soon as administratively feasibkerlis death); and

(i) health insurance benefits as maintained byBhek for the benefit of its senior executive enyples or its employees
generally over the then-remaining term of the Agreet as calculated in accordance with Section ddigrrovidedthat if the duration of such
health insurance benefits extends beyond the etiteadpplicable continuation coverage period utigetConsolidated Omnibus Budget
Reconciliation Act (COBRA), (A) the amount of beitgefrovided during one calendar year shall nactfthe amount of benefits provided
during a subsequent calendar year (except witrecddp health plan maximums), (B) the benefits matybe exchanged or substituted for of
forms of compensation to the Employee, and (C)raimbursement or payment under the benefit arraegémill be paid in accordance with
applicable plan terms and no later than the lagtodighe Employee’s taxable year following the tabeayear in which he incurred the expense
giving rise to such reimbursement or payment.

Section 6(h) is amended to read as follows:

(h) In the event the Bank purports to terminateBEhgployee for cause, but it is determined by a ttouicompetent jurisdiction or by
an arbitrator pursuant to Section 17 that causadiaxist for such termination, or if in any evéris determined by any such court or arbitr
that the Bank has failed to make timely paymerdrof amounts owed to the Employee under this Agreerttee Employee shall be entitled to
reimbursement for all reasonable costs, includitgrieeys’ fees, incurred in challenging such temtion or collecting such amoungsovided,
however, that (i) the Employee shall have no rightost reimbursements until the court or arbitrataters a final and binding opinion that
cause did not exist for the Employee’s terminatiothat the Bank has failed to pay amounts dua@éd=mployee under this Agreement, and
(ii) cost reimbursements will be paid no later tidarch 15 of the year following the year in whittetcourt or arbitrator enters its final and
binding opinion. Such reimbursement shall be iditioh to all rights to which the Employee is otivése entitled under this Agreement.

Section 9(c) is amended so the last sentence thdreads as follows:

In the event that the Advisory Firm, based on adliig precedent or other substantial authorityed®ines that an Underpayment has
occurred, any such Underpayment shall be promgtig by the Bank to or for the benefit of the Em@eytogether with interest at the
applicable federal rate provided for in SectionZ18){2) of the Codeprovidedthat such Underpayment and interest shall be paidter than
two and a half months after the date on which tHgigory Firm informs the Bank of its determinatidyat an Underpayment has occurred.

A new Section 18 is added to the Employment Agreemieto read as follows:
18. Code Section 409A 1t is intended that any income or payments &éEmployee provided under this Agreement will neshibjec

to the additional tax and interest under Code 8B@D9A (the “Section 409A Tax”). The provisiorfdire Agreement will be construed in
favor of complying with any




applicable requirements of Code Section 409A asssany to prevent the imposition of a Section 4084 The Bank and the Employee a¢
to amend the Agreement (retroactively, if necegsargomply with Code Section 409A, including ameraht to enable the Employee to
prevent the imposition of, or to reduce the amaipany Section 409A Tax. The Bank and the Emptosieall reasonably cooperate to give
full effect to this provision and the consent ty @amendment described in the preceding sentendensh&e unreasonably withheld by either
party. The parties agree that neither party hpar(abligation to bring any potential Section 40B&x to the attention of the other party or
(b) any liability for any Section 409A Tax or angher reporting or withholding obligation to the etiparty.

In all other respects, the Employment Agreement sHeremain unchanged and in full force and effect.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF , this Amendment has been executed and deliveredebgarties hereto this 28th day of January, 2008.
METABANK
/sl E. Wayne Coole

E. Wayne Coole'
Chairman, Compensation Committ

EMPLOYEE

/s/ Bradley C. Hanso
Bradley C. Hanso




EXHIBIT 10.11

FIRST AMENDMENT
TO THE
METABANK EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
WITH
TROY MOORE, Il




THIS AMENDMENT (the “Amendment”) is entered into on the date sethfon the signature page hereof by and between
MetaBank (the “Company”) androy Moore, Il (the “Employee”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS , the Company and the Employee previously enteredan employment agreement dated October 24, @585
“Employment Agreement”);

WHEREAS , the Company and the Employee desire to amenBrtipoyment Agreement to comply with Section 409Ahef
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the€’Goand

WHEREAS , pursuant to Section 13 of the Employment Agreentbe Employment Agreement may be amended byemritt
agreement of the parties thereto;

NOW, THEREFORE , the parties hereby agree to amend the Employfgmtement, generally effective January 1, 2008pbews:
Section 2(b) is amended to read as follows:

(b) Discretionary BonusesThe Employee shall be entitled to participatannequitable manner with all other executive eificof th
Bank in discretionary bonuses as authorized anthatby the Board of Directors of the Bank toekgcutive employees. Any such
discretionary bonus shall be payable to the Em@atehe time bonuses are paid to executive offiteaccordance with the Bank’s policies
and practicegprovided, however, that any such bonus shall be paid o thin March 15 of the year following the yeawinich the bonus is
earned and vested. No other compensation pro¥add this Agreement shall be deemed a substftutéhe Employee’s right to participate in
such bonuses when and as declared by the Boaritexftars.

Section 2(c) is amended to read as follows:

(c) Expenses During the term of his employment hereunder,BEh®loyee shall be entitled to receive prompt reirsbment for all
reasonable expenses he incurs (in accordance wlitigs and procedures at least as favorable t&thployee as those presently applicable to
the senior executive officers of the Bank) in parfing services hereundgmovidedthat the Employee properly accounts for such exgeirs
accordance with Bank policy. Such expense reingaests shall be paid no later than the end of thpl&yee’s taxable year following the
taxable year in which the Employee incurs the egpen The amount of expenses eligible for reimbnese during a taxable year may not
affect the expenses eligible for reimbursementiy @ather taxable year, and the Employee’s rigtart@xpense reimbursement may not be
liquidated or exchanged for another benefit.

Section 6(a) is amended so the first paragraph theof reads as follows:

(a) The Board of Directors may terminate the Empiyg employment at any time, but any terminationthgyBank’s Board of
Directors, other than termination for cause, shatlprejudice the Employee’s right to compensatioother benefits under the Agreement. If
the employment of the Employee is involuntarilyn@rated, other than for “cause” as provided in 8ggtion 6(a) or pursuant to any of
Sections 6(d) through 6(g), or by reason of deattisability as provided in Sections 6(c) or 7, Braployee shall be entitled to receive:

(i) his then-applicable salary for the then-renrainierm of the Agreement as calculated in accomavith Section 4 hereof,
payable in installments not less frequently thamelgkly, in




accordance with the Bank’s regular payroll practiaad procedures, subject to the customary witliingldx and other employee taxes as
required with respect to compensation paid by pamtion to an employeprovidedthat if the Employee is a “specified employee” gash
term is defined in Code Section 409A and the reagria or other guidance in effect thereunder) attitme of his employment termination and
his employment terminates under circumstanceséugtire a distribution delay under Code SectionA@Be commencement of biweekly
installments of the Employee’s continued salarympagts shall be delayed for six months and thelingats that otherwise would have been
paid during that six-month period shall be paiéilmmp sum on the six-month anniversary of the Bxyg®’'s employment termination date (or,
if earlier, as soon as administratively feasibkerlis death); and

(i) health insurance benefits as maintained byBhek for the benefit of its senior executive enyples or its employees
generally over the then-remaining term of the Agreet as calculated in accordance with Section ddigrrovidedthat if the duration of such
health insurance benefits extends beyond the etiteadpplicable continuation coverage period utigetConsolidated Omnibus Budget
Reconciliation Act (COBRA), (A) the amount of beitgefrovided during one calendar year shall nactfthe amount of benefits provided
during a subsequent calendar year (except witrecddp health plan maximums), (B) the benefits matybe exchanged or substituted for of
forms of compensation to the Employee, and (C)raimbursement or payment under the benefit arraegémill be paid in accordance with
applicable plan terms and no later than the lagtodighe Employee’s taxable year following the tabeayear in which he incurred the expense
giving rise to such reimbursement or payment.

Section 6(h) is amended to read as follows:

(h) In the event the Bank purports to terminateBEhgployee for cause, but it is determined by a ttouicompetent jurisdiction or by
an arbitrator pursuant to Section 17 that causadiaxist for such termination, or if in any evéris determined by any such court or arbitr
that the Bank has failed to make timely paymerdrof amounts owed to the Employee under this Agreerttee Employee shall be entitled to
reimbursement for all reasonable costs, includitgrieeys’ fees, incurred in challenging such temtion or collecting such amoungsovided,
however, that (i) the Employee shall have no rightost reimbursements until the court or arbitrataters a final and binding opinion that
cause did not exist for the Employee’s terminatiothat the Bank has failed to pay amounts dua@éd=mployee under this Agreement, and
(ii) cost reimbursements will be paid no later tidarch 15 of the year following the year in whittetcourt or arbitrator enters its final and
binding opinion. Such reimbursement shall be iditioh to all rights to which the Employee is otivése entitled under this Agreement.

Section 9(c) is amended so the last sentence thdreads as follows:

In the event that the Advisory Firm, based on adliig precedent or other substantial authorityed®ines that an Underpayment has
occurred, any such Underpayment shall be promgtig by the Bank to or for the benefit of the Em@eytogether with interest at the
applicable federal rate provided for in SectionZ18){2) of the Codeprovidedthat such Underpayment and interest shall be paidter than
two and a half months after the date on which tHgigory Firm informs the Bank of its determinatidyat an Underpayment has occurred.

A new Section 18 is added to the Employment Agreemieto read as follows:
18. Code Section 409A 1t is intended that any income or payments &éEmployee provided under this Agreement will neshibjec

to the additional tax and interest under Code 8B@D9A (the “Section 409A Tax”). The provisiorfdire Agreement will be construed in
favor of complying with any




applicable requirements of Code Section 409A asssany to prevent the imposition of a Section 4084 The Bank and the Employee a¢
to amend the Agreement (retroactively, if necegsargomply with Code Section 409A, including ameraht to enable the Employee to
prevent the imposition of, or to reduce the amaipany Section 409A Tax. The Bank and the Emptosieall reasonably cooperate to give
full effect to this provision and the consent ty @amendment described in the preceding sentendensh&e unreasonably withheld by either
party. The parties agree that neither party hpar(abligation to bring any potential Section 40B&x to the attention of the other party or
(b) any liability for any Section 409A Tax or angher reporting or withholding obligation to the etiparty.

In all other respects, the Employment Agreement sHeremain unchanged and in full force and effect.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF , this Amendment has been executed and deliveredebgarties hereto this 28th day of January, 2008.
METABANK
/sl E.Wayne Coole

E. Wayne Coole'
Chairman, Compensation Committ

EMPLOYEE

/s/ Troy Moore, llI
Troy Moore, Il




EXHIBIT 10.18

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT




THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”)is made and entered into as of this 27th day oblat 2008, by and betwe
MetaBank , 121 E. 3" Street, Storm Lake, lowa 50588 (hefnaeferred to as the “Bank” whether in mutuaktyck form) andavid W.
Leedom (the “Employee”), who resides at 305 Spyglass Dr8ieux Falls, South Dakota 57105.

WHEREAS , the Employee is currently serving as Senior \Reesident and Chief Financial Officer; and
WHEREAS , the Bank is a publically held corporation asdhbsidiary of Meta Financial Group, Inc. (the “Hiolgl Company”) and

WHEREAS , the Board of Directors of the Bank recognizes, ths is the case with publicly held corporatioaeeyally, the
possibility of a change in control of the HoldingrBpany and/or the Bank may exist and that suchilgbss and the uncertainty and questions
which it may raise among management, may resuktdrdeparture or distraction of key managementopers to the detriment of the Bank, 1
Holding Company and its stockholders; and

WHEREAS , the Board of Directors of the Bank believes inishe best interests of the Bank to enter inie figreement with the
Employee in order to assure continuity of managerothe Bank and to reinforce and encourage tmdimoed attention and dedication of the
Employee to his assigned duties without distraciiotie face of potentially disruptive circumstasegising from the possibility of a change in
control of the Holding Company, although no suchrae is now contemplated; and

WHEREAS , the Board of Directors of the Bank has approvedl authorized the execution of this Agreement withEmployee to
take effect as stated in Section 4 hereof;

NOW, THEREFORE , in consideration of the foregoing and of the extiye covenants and agreements of the partiegnhere
contained, it is AGREED as follows:

1. Employment The Employee will be employed as Senior Vice g and Chief Financial Officer of the Bank. Asn®r Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer, Employeellsieamder administrative and management servicesasustomarily performed by persons
situated in similar executive capacities, and shalle other powers and duties as may from timarte be prescribed by the Board, provided
that such duties are consistent with the Employpesition as Senior Vice President and Chief Fir@dr@fficer. The Employee shall continue
to devote his best efforts and substantially althisiness time and attention to the businessfémdsaf the Bank and its subsidiaries and
affiliated companies.

2. Compensation

(a) _SalaryThe Bank agrees to pay the Employee during ttme ¢ this Agreement a salary established by ther8of
Directors. The salary hereunder as of the CommeeaneDate (as defined in Section 4 hereof) shalitdeast equal to the Employsesalary ir
effect immediately prior to the Commencement Datee salary provided for herein shall be payableless frequently than biweekly in
accordance with the practices of the Bank, provitieavever, that no such salary is required to e lpathe terms of this Agreement in resj
of any month or portion thereof subsequent to énmination of this Agreement and provided furthieat the amount of such salary shall be
reviewed by the Board of Directors not less ofteemtannually and may be increased (but not deate&®sen time to time in such amounts as
the Board of Directors in its discretion may decisigbject to the customary withholding tax and p#maployee taxes as required with respect
to compensation paid by a corporation to an emgoye




(b) Discretionary Bonuse§ he Employee shall be entitled to participatannequitable manner with all other executive ofioef
the Bank in discretionary bonuses as authorizeddactared by the Board of Directors of the Banks@xecutive employees. Any such
discretionary bonus shall be payable to the Em@atehe time bonuses are paid to executive offiteaccordance with the Bank’s policies
and practicegprovided, however, that any such bonus shall be paid o thin March 15 of the year following the yeawinich the bonus is
earned and vested. No other compensation prov¥aded this Agreement shall be deemed a substftutéhe Employee’s right to participate in
such bonuses when and as declared by the Boaritexftars.

(c) ExpensesDuring the term of his employment hereunder BEhgloyee shall be entitled to receive prompt reirmbment for a
reasonable expenses he incurs (in accordance uwlitigs and procedures at least as favorable t&thployee as those presently applicable to
the senior executive officers of the Bank) in perfing services hereundgmovidedthat the Employee properly accounts for such exgeirs
accordance with Bank policy. Such expense reindments shall be paid no later than the end of thpl&yee’s taxable year following the
taxable year in which the Employee incurs the egpen The amount of expenses eligible for reimes# during a taxable year may not
affect the expenses eligible for reimbursemenniy @ther taxable year, and the Employee’s rigtart@xpense reimbursement may not be
liquidated or exchanged for another benefit.

3. Benefits.

(a) _Participation in Retirement and Emploemefit Plans The Employee shall be entitled while employedehader to
participate in, and receive benefits under, alhpleelating to stock options, stock purchases,ipenthrift, profit-sharing, group life insurance,
medical coverage, education, cash or stock bonaséspther retirement or employee benefits or caatimns thereof, that are now or heres
maintained for the benefit of the Bank’s executweployees or for its employees generally.

(b) _Fringe BenefitsThe Employee shall be eligible while employedelueder to participate in, and receive benefits yratey
other fringe benefits which are or may become apple to the Bank’s executive employees or toritpleyees generally.

4. Term. The term of employment under this Agreementldieh period of three (3) years commencing ordtite of effective date
of this document (the “Commencement Date”) sutje&arlier termination as provided herein. Begigram the first anniversary of the
Commencement Date, and on each anniversary theretfe term of employment under this Agreementi sliesextended for a period of one
year unless either the Bank or the Employee givesrary written notice to the other not less th@rd@ys in advance of the date on which
term of employment under this Agreement would oth®s be extended, providdidat such term will not be automatically extendetkss,
prior thereto, such extension is approved by tharBof Directors following the Board’s review of@amal performance evaluation of the
Employee performed by the disinterested membetissoBoard of Directors of the Bank and reflectethiem minutes of the Board of Directors.
Reference herein to the term of employment undsrAgreement shall refer to both such initial texnd such extended terms.

5. Vacations The Employee shall be entitled, without loss & ,x0 absent himself voluntarily from the perfomoa of his
employment under this Agreement, all such voluntdogences to count as vacation time, provided that:

(a) the Employee shall be entitled to an ahwaeation of not less than five (5) weeks per year
(b) the timing of vacations shall be scheduted reasonable manner by the Employee; and
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(c) solely at the Employee’s request, the BadrDirectors shall be entitled to grant to thefioyee a leave or leaves of absence
with or without pay at such time or times and upach terms and conditions as the Board, in itseligm, may determine.

6. Termination of Employment; Death

(a) The Board of Directors may terminate the Eoype’s employment at any time, but any terminakigithe Bank’s Board of
Directors, other than termination for cause, shatlprejudice the Employee’s right to compensatioother benefits under the Agreement. If
the employment of the Employee is involuntarilynt@rated, other than for “cause” as provided in 8ggtion 6(a) or pursuant to any of
Sections 6(d) through 6(g), or by reason of deatlisability as provided in Sections 6(c) or 7, Eraployee shall be entitled to receive:

() his then-applicable salary for the then-remagnierm of the Agreement as calculated in accomrlavith Section 4 hereof,
payable in installments not less frequently thamelekly, in accordance with the Bank’s regular pdypactices and procedures, subject to the
customary withholding tax and other employee tasesequired with respect to compensation paid dgrporation to an employee, provided
that if the Employee is a “specified employee” ash term is defined in Code Section 409A and élgelations or other guidance in effect
thereunder) at the time of his employment termaratind his employment terminates under circumstatiea require a distribution delay
under Code Section 409A, the commencement of bilyéegtallments of the Employee’s continued salaayments shall be delayed for six
months and the installments that otherwise woulceHzeen paid during that six-month period shalpaiel in a lump sum on the six-month
anniversary of the Employee’s employment termimatiate (or, if earlier, as soon as administratifesible after his death); and

(i) health insurance benefits as maintained byBhaek for the benefit of its senior executive enygles or its employees
generally over the then-remaining term of the Agrert as calculated in accordance with Section ddigprovided that if the duration of such
health insurance benefits extends beyond the etiteadpplicable continuation coverage period utigetConsolidated Omnibus Budget
Reconciliation Act (COBRA), (A) the amount of beitefprovided during one calendar year shall naafthe amount of benefits provided
during a subsequent calendar year (except witrectgp health plan maximums), (B) the benefits matybe exchanged or substituted for of
forms of compensation to the Employee, and (C)raimpbursement or payment under the benefit arrargéwmill be paid in accordance with
applicable plan terms and no later than the lagiofléhe Employee’s taxable year following the tabeayear in which he incurred the expense
giving rise to such reimbursement or payment.

(b) The Employee’s employment may be voluhtddarminated by the Employee at any time upon &gsdwritten notice to the
Bank or upon such shorter period as may be agreed between the Employee and the Board of Direabtise Bank. In the event of such
voluntary termination, the Bank shall be obligatedontinue to pay the Employee his salary onlgtlgh the date of termination, at the time
such payments are due, and the Bank shall haverti@f obligation to the Employee under this Agream

(c) In the event of the death of the Emplogieeng the term of employment under this agreemedtprior to any termination
hereunder, the Employee’s estate, or such perstiredamployee may have previously designated itingri shall be entitled to receive from
the Bank the salary of the Employee through thiedag of the calendar month in which his deathldieate occurred, and the term of
employment under this Agreement shall end on sashday of the month.
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(d) If the Employee is suspended from offioe/ar temporarily prohibited from participatingtime conduct of the Ban&’affairs by
a notice served under Section 8(e) (3) or (g) {the Federal Deposit Insurance Act (“FDIA"), 123JC. § 1818 (e) (3); (g) (1), the Bank’s
obligations under this Agreement shall be suspeadanf the date of service, unless stayed by apipteproceedings. If the charges in the
notice are dismissed, the Bank may in its discrefippay the Employee all or part of the compeiosetvithheld while its obligations under tl
Agreement were suspended and (ii) reinstate in @bpoin part any of the obligations which were sumsfed.

(e) If the Employee is removed from office Aamgpermanently prohibited from participating iretbonduct of the Bank’s affairs by
an order issued under Section (8) (e) (4) or (ypfthe FDIA, 12 U.S.C. § 1818 (e) (4); (9) (1), @bligations of the Bank under this
Agreement shall terminate, as of the effective détie order, but vested rights of the partiedistw be affected.

(f) If the Bank becomes in default (as defime&ection 3 (x) (1) of the FDIA, 12 U.S.C. § 18%3 (1)), all obligations under this
Agreement shall terminate as of the date of defaultthis provision shall not affect any vestaghts of the parties.

(g) All obligations under this Agreement shal terminated, except to the extent determinetdcthvainuation of this Agreement is
necessary for the continued operation of the Béhky the Director of the Office of Thrift Supesion (“OTS") or his or her designee at the
time the Federal Deposit Insurance CorporatiomerResolution Trust Corporation enters into anemgent to provide assistance to or on
behalf of the Bank under the authority containe8égtion 13 (c) of the FDIA, 12 U.S.C. § 1823 (m){ii) by the Director of the OTS or his or
her designee at the time the Director of the OTBi®or her designee approves a supervisory mévgesolve problems related to operation of
the Bank or when the Bank is determined by theddareof the OTS to be in unsafe or unsound condlitidny rights of the parties that have
already vested, however, shall not be affectednlyysaich action.

(h)  Inthe event the Bank purports torni@ate the Employee for cause, but it is determimed court of competent jurisdiction
or by an arbitrator pursuant to Section 17 thasealid not exist for such termination, or if in aawent it is determined by any such court or
arbitrator that the Bank has failed to make tinpdyment of any amounts owed to the Employee umdegreement, the Employee shall be
entitled to reimbursement for all reasonable castduding attorneysfees, incurred in challenging such terminationatecting such amount
provided, however, that (i) the Employee shall hagegight to cost reimbursements until the courarnitrator enters a final and binding
opinion that cause did not exist for the Employeetmination or that the Bank has failed to pay ants due to the Employee under this
Agreement, and (ii) cost reimbursements will bedp® later than March 15 of the year following ylear in which the court or arbitrator ent
its final and binding opinion. Such reimbursem&mdll be in addition to all rights to which the Boyee is otherwise entitled under this
Agreement.

7. Disability. If during the term of employment hereunder theplayee shall become disabled or incapacitatede@xtent that he is
unable to perform the duties of the Senior Vicesklent and Chief Financial Officer, he shall batkd to receive disability benefits of the ty
provided for other executive employees of the Bank.

8. Change in Control

(a) Involuntary Terminationlf the Employee’s employment is involuntarilyn@nated (other than for cause or pursuant to any of
Sections 6 (c) through 6 (g) or Section 7 of thggement) in connection with or within 12 monthiea change in control which occurs at
time during the term of employment under this Agneet, in addition to any payments under Sectioa)®f the Agreement, the
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Bank shall pay to the Employee in a lump sum irhaaighin 25 business days after the Date of Tertiongas hereinafter defined) of
employment an amount equal to 299% of the Emplay#d®ise amount” of compensation as defined in 8@@B0G of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”).

(b) Definitions For purposes of Section 8, 9 and 11 of this Aguexat, “Date of Terminationfneans the earlier of (i) the date uj
which the Bank gives notice to the Employee oftdrenination of his employment with the Bank, o} {lie date upon which the Employee
ceases to serve as an Employee of the Bank; amahgehin control” is defined solely as any acqusitdf control (other than pursuant to the
Conversion or by a trustee or other fiduciary hafdéecurities under an employee benefit plan oHibleing Company or a subsidiary of the
Holding Company), as defined in 12 C.F.R. § 57dr4ny successor regulation, of the Bank or Holddognpany which would require the
filing of an application for acquisition of controf notice of change in control in a manner agagt in 12 C.F.R. § 574.3, or any successor
regulation.

9. Certain Reduction of Payments by the Bank

(a) Anything in this Agreement to the contrantwithstanding, in the event it shall be detemdithat any payment or distribution
by the Bank to or for the benefit of the Employesaéther paid or payable or distributed or distrtlé pursuant to the terms of this Agreen
or otherwise) (a “Paymentiyould be nondeductible (in whole or part) by thenBéor Federal income tax purposes because of e280G of
the Code, then the aggregate present value of aspagable or distributable to or for the benefithe Employee pursuant to this Agreement
(such amounts payable or distributable pursuatitisoAgreement are hereinafter referred to as “Agrent Payments”) shall be reduced to the
Reduced Amount. The “Reduced Amount” shall be apwar) not less than zero, expressed in presené vetich maximizes the aggregate
present value of Agreement Payments without causiygPayment to be nondeductible by the Bank becaluSection 280G of the Code. For
purposes of this Section 9, present value shalldbermined in accordance with Section 280G (dp{4he Code.

(b) All determinations required to be made undéx 8ection 9 shall be made by the Bank’s indepetaladitors, or at the election
of such auditors by such other firm or individuafgecognized expertise as such auditors may s@ach auditors or, if applicable, such other
firm or individual, are hereinafter referred tothe “Advisory Firm”). The Advisory Firm shall withiten business days of the Date of
Termination, or at such earlier time as is requkbiethe Bank, provide to both the Bank and the Bgge an opinion (and detailed supporting
calculations) that the Bank has substantial autyhtwideduct for federal income tax purposes ttieafmount of the Agreement Payments and
that the Employee has substantial authority no¢pmrt on his federal income tax return any extagamposed by Section 4999 of the Code
with respect to the Agreement Payments. Any sutéraénation and opinion by the Advisory Firm shadl binding upon the Bank and the
Employee. The Employee shall determine which and imich, if any, of the Agreement Payments shaklbeinated or reduced consistent
with the requirements of this Section 9, provideatif the Employee does not make such deternainatithin ten business days of the receipt
of the calculations made by the Advisory Firm, Bank shall elect which and how much, if any, of A&ggeement Payments shall be elimine
or reduced consistent with the requirements of$ieistion 9 and shall notify the Employee prompflguch election. Within five business days
of the earlier of (i) the Bank’s receipt of the Hoyee’s determination pursuant to the immediategcpding sentence of this Agreement or
(i) the Banks election in lieu of such determination, the Bahkll pay to or distribute to or for the benefittieé Employee such amounts as
then due the Employee under this Agreement. Thé& Bad the Employee shall cooperate fully with thavisory Firm, including without
limitation providing to the Advisory Firm all infanation and




materials reasonably requested by it, in connedtitimthe making of the determinations requiredemithis Section 9.

(c) As a result of uncertainty in application ofc8en 280G of the Code at the time of the initiatetmination by the Advisory Fir
hereunder, it is possible that Agreement Paymeilthiawe been made by the Bank which should noeHaaen made (“Overpayment”) or that
additional Agreement Payments will not have beedertsy the Bank which should have been made (“Uradengnt”), in each case, consistent
with the calculations required to be made hereuridghe event that the Advisory Firm, based ontiling precedent or other substantial
authority, determines that an Underpayment hasroegpuany such Underpayment shall be promptly pgithe Bank to or for the benefit of t
Employee together with interest at the applicabliefal rate provided for in Section 7872(f)(2)leé Codeprovidedthat such Underpayment
and interest shall be paid no later than two ahdlamonths after the date on which the AdvisomnFinforms the Bank of its determination
that an Underpayment has occurred

(d) The total of payments to the Employee in thentwf involuntary termination of employment un&arction 6(a) and Section 8
(a) shall not exceed three times his average ammmapensation from the Bank over the five mostmetaxable years (or, if employed by the
Bank for a shorter period, over the period of mgpoyment by the Bank).

(e) Any payments made to the Employee pursuathtiscAgreement, or otherwise, are subject to amditmned upon their
compliance with 12 U.S.C. 1828(k) and any regutatipromulgated thereunder.

10. Noncompetition

(a) Upon the expiration of the term of the Empldgesmployment hereunder or in the event the Emm®y/employment hereund
terminates prior thereto for any reason whatsoakerEmployee shall not, for a period of one (1gry&fter the occurrence of such event, for
himself, or as the agent of, on behalf of, or injoaction with, any person or entity, solicit otemhpt to solicit, whether directly or indirectly:
(i) any employee of the Bank to terminate such eygd’'s employment relationship with the Bank; grgny savings and loan, banking or
similar business from any person or entity thatrisvas a client, employee, or customer of the Bamk had dealt with the Employee or any
other employee of the Bank under the supervisiah@Employee.

(b) In the event Employee voluntarily resigns parsito section 6 (b) of this Agreement, or in therd the Employee’s
employment hereunder is terminated for cause, thel&ee shall not, for a period of one (1) yeanfrine date of termination, directly or
indirectly, own, manage, operate or control, otipgrate in the ownership, management, operatioroatrol of, or be employed by or
connected in any manner with; (i) any financiatitagion having an office located within fifty (5@hiles of any office of the Bank as of the ¢
of termination; or by (ii) any person or entity @ggd in any business or activity in the prepaidtdetrd, payments or similar industry, or
which relates in any way to the prepaid debit gaatlucts, payment services and other related ssrdtBank, anywhere within the United
States.

(c) The provisions of subsections (a) and (b) hfesball not prevent the Employee from purchasidgly for investment, not mo
than five percent (5%) of any financial instituti®stock or other securities which are traded onrational or regional securities exchange or
are actively traded in the over-the-counter maaket registered under Section 12 (g) of the Seesrkixchange Act of 1934.
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(d) The provisions of this Section shall survive tarmination of the Employee’s employment hereumdesther by expiration of
the term thereof or otherwise.

11. No Assignments

(a) This Agreement is personal to each of the @aliereto, and neither party may assign or deleggtef its rights or obligations
hereunder without first obtaining the written camisef the other party; provided, however, thatBamk will require any successor or assign
(whether direct or indirect, by purchase, mergensolidation or otherwise) to all or substantialllyof the business and/or assets of the Bank,
by an assumption agreement in form and substaticéastory to the Employee, to expressly assumeaande to perform this Agreement in
same manner and to the same extent that the BanlkiWwe required to perform it if no such successipassignment had taken place. Failure
of the Bank to obtain such an assumption agreepr@ntto the effectiveness of any such successi@ssignment shall be a breach of this
Agreement and shall entitle the Employee to comgémis from the Bank in the same amount and ondingesterms as the compensation
pursuant to Section 8 (a) hereof. For purposempfamenting the provisions of this Section 11 {{@§, date on which any such succession
becomes effective shall be deemed the Date of Tertion.

(b) This Agreement and all rights of the Employeeghinder shall inure to the benefit of and be eefable by the Employee’s
personal and legal representatives, executors,restnaitors, successors, heirs, distributees, deviaad legatees. If the Employee should die
while any amounts would still be payable to the Ewee hereunder if the Employee had continuedvim ll such amounts, unless otherwise
provided herein, shall be paid in accordance withterms of this Agreement to the- Employee’s dmisegatee or other designee or if there is
no such designee, to the Employee’s estate.

12. Notice. For the purposes of this Agreement, notices dratteer communications provided for in the Agreernghall be in
writing and shall be deemed to have been duly giveen personally delivered or sent by certifiedIpraturn receipt requested, postage
prepaid, addressed to the respective addresststbedn the first page of this Agreement (providkdt all notices to the Bank shall be direc
to the attention of the Board of Directors of thenB with a copy to the Secretary of the Bank)oosuch other address as either party may have
furnished to the other in writing in accordanceehéth.

13._Amendment®No amendments or additions to this Agreement sleabinding unless in writing and signed by bodhnties, exce|
as herein otherwise provided.

14. Paragraph Heading3he paragraph headings used in this Agreemernnelaed solely for convenience and shall notciffer be
used in connection with, the interpretation of thggeement.

15. Severability The provisions of this Agreement shall be deesmatrable and the invalidity or unenforceabilityaafy provision
shall not affect the validity or enforceability thfe other provisions hereof.

16. Governing Law This Agreement shall be governed by the law$efunited States to the extent applicable and wikerby the
laws of the State of lowa.

17. Arbitration. Any dispute or controversy arising under or immection with this Agreement shall be settled esiglely by
arbitration in accordance with the rules of the Aicen Arbitration Association then in effect. Judgmh may be entered on the arbitrator’s
award in any court having jurisdiction.




18. Code Section 409A 1t is intended that any income or payments &éHEmployee provided under this Agreement will n@shibjec
to the additional tax and interest under Code 8e@D9A (the “Section 409A Tax”). The provisiorfstee Agreement will be construed in
favor of complying with any applicable requiremeof<Code Section 409A as necessary to prevennipesition of a Section 409A Tax. The
Bank and the Employee agree to amend the Agreefretrdactively, if necessary) to comply with Codecon 409A, including amendment to
enable the Employee to prevent the imposition ofpaeduce the amount of, any Section 409A Talke Bank and the Employee shall
reasonably cooperate to give full effect to thisyision and the consent to any amendment desciibiie preceding sentence shall not be
unreasonably withheld by either party. The parigee that neither party has (a) an obligatidoritog any potential Section 409A Tax to the
attention of the other party or (b) any liabilityrfany Section 409A Tax or any other reporting @hlolding obligation to the other party.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the parties have executed this Agreement aseodidly and year first above written.

THIS AGREEMENT CONTAINS A BINDING ARBITRATION PROVI SION WHICH MAY BE ENFORCED BY THE PARTIES.

METABANK

/sl E. Wayne Coole
E. Wayne Coole'
Chairman, Compensation Committ

EMPLOYEE

/s/ David W Leedon
David W. Leedon
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
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EXHIBIT 10.19

AMENDED AND RESTATED CONTRACT FOR DEFERRED COMPENSA TION

AND THE

FIRST AMENDMENT




AMENDED AND RESTATED CONTRACT FOR DEFERRED COMPENSA TION

This Amended and Restated Contract for Deferred @amsation Contract is made this®®7 day of Septen@®05, by and between
MetaBank, Storm Lake, lowa, First Party, hereinaféderred to as the Company; and James S. Haimlurx Salls, South Dakota, Second Pa

It is acknowledged that the Second Party is thar@tzn of the Board of the Company, and that thistiget is made as an inducement
by the Company to retain his services as the Clairaf the Board and Chairman of the Executive Cdiesni

It is further acknowledged that the First Party #melSecond Party previously entered into that@e@ontract for Deferred
Compensation dated August 22, 1980, which is heasgnded and restated in its entirety for purpo$efarification and compliance with
Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 188@mended (the “Code”).

It is therefore agreed as follows:

(1) Second Party shall continue in the employhef€ompany upon the same terms as heretofore magsto such
adjustments as may be mutually agreed upon bettheeamployee and the Directors of the Companys dontemplated that Mr. James S.
Haahr shall remain as an employee of the Compatiyhenreaches the age of eighty (80) years. Thrpgse of this agreement is to provide
compensation for years of service in the eveni®fipath or retirement. It is therefore agreed:

(a) If Mr. Haahr dies before his retirement dageset forth above, the Company shall pay to his #i& sum of Two
Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) per annum for theggecbmmencing October 1, 1979, to date of deathlgayin such annual installments of
Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00).

(b) In the event of the death of his wife, the pemsation shall be paid to his children in equates$.
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(c) Inthe event James S. Haahr retires on or affe eighty (80) or severs his employment withGoenpany prior to
age eighty (80), the Company shall make lump supmpat of the accrued deferred compensation as a@administratively feasible.

(d) The deferred compensation herein contract@dasldition to all other benefits which James Saht may receive by
reason of his services to the Company as an emplogeeof.

(2) Neither Haahr nor his beneficiaries shall hamg right to commute, encumber, or dispose ofitji to receive paymen
hereunder, which payments and the right theret@gpeessly declared to be non-assignable and nfitnable.

(3) The Company shall not merge or consolidaté aity other corporation until such corporation esgty assumes the
duties of the Company herein set forth.

(4) This agreement shall be binding upon the eattiereto, their heirs, executors, administratorsuccessors. The
Company certifies that this contract has been aizid by resolution of its Board of Directors ahattthe Parties have been specifically
authorized to execute the agreement for and inlbehthe Company.

(5) The parties hereto agree to amend this agnetetm¢he extent necessary or appropriate to comvily Section 409A of
the Code and the regulations promulgated thereunder

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties have executed this agreement on teehdatinabove stated at Storm Lake, lowa.

METABANK, STORM LAKE, IOWA, James S. Haahr
FIRST PARTY SECOND PARTY
By: /s/ E. Wayne Coole /s/ James S. Haa
E. Wayne Cooley James S. Haahr, Chairman of the Bc

Compensation Committee Chairrr




THIS AMENDMENT (the “Amendment”) is entered into on the date séthfon the signature page hereof by and between
MetaBank (the “Company”) andames S. Haahi(the “Employee”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS , the Company and the Employee entered into thenied and Restated Contract for Deferred Compemsatio
September 27, 2005 (the “Contract”);

WHEREAS , the Company and the Employee desire to amen@ahéract to comply with final regulations issuedlanSection 409.
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amentied'Gode”); and

WHEREAS , pursuant to Section (5) of the Contract, the @mttmay be amended by written agreement of thigepahereto;
NOW, THEREFORE , the parties hereby agree to amend the Contracgrglly effective January 1, 2008, as follows:
Section 1(a) is amended to read as follows:

(a) For each year of Mr. Haahr's service to the Gany, commencing October 1, 1979 and ending up@eahliest of his retirement,
death or other severance from employment, Mr. Hahhll accrue a benefit of Two Thousand Dollars@82.00) (the “Accrued Deferred
Compensation”). If Mr. Haahr dies before his eatient date as set forth above, the Company shathgaAccrued Deferred Compensation to
his wife in installments of Two Thousand Dollar2 (#00.00) per annum beginning no later than theoéilde calendar year of Mr. Haahr’s
death and ending in the calendar year of his wideath.

Section 1(b) is amended to read as follows:

(b) If payments are being made under Section bhé),tin the event of the death of Mr. Haahr’s wifes remaining Accrued Deferred
Compensation, if any, shall be paid to Mr. Haalsurviving children in equal shares as soon asrasimatively feasible but no later than nin
(90) days following the Company'’s receipt of notafehe death of Mr. Haahr's wife.

Section 1(c) is amended to read as follows:

(c) In the event that Mr. Haahr retires on or aftge eighty (80) or severs his employment withGbenpany prior to age eighty (80),
the Company shall pay the Accrued Deferred Compimsen a lump sum as soon as administrativelyifdasut no later than ninety (90) de
following such retirement or employment severarnategrovided, however, that if Mr. Haahr is a “specified empey (as such term is
defined in Code Section 409A and the regulationstieer guidance in effect thereunder) at the tifl@i®retirement or employment severance
and his employment terminates under circumstari@sequire a distribution delay under Code Sedctio®A, the Accrued Deferred
Compensation shall be paid in a lump sum on themirth anniversary of Mr. Haahr's retirement or ésyment severance date (or, if earlier,
as soon as administratively feasible after histgeat

Section 1(d) is amended to read as follows:

(d) The Accrued Deferred Compensation is in additeall other benefits that Mr. Haahr may recdiyaeason of his services to the
Company as an employee. The Accrued Deferred Cosagpien




provided for in this agreement constitutes an udéghpromise by the Company to pay benefits in ter€, and any amounts set aside to cover
such benefits are subject to the general clainlBeoCompany’s creditors.

In all other respects, the Contract shall remain ushanged and in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF , this Amendment has been executed and deliver¢debgarties hereto this 27th day of September3200

METABANK

/sl E. Wayne Coole
E. Wayne Coole'
Chairman, Compensation Commit

/s/ James S. Haa
JAMES S. HAAHR
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EXHIBIT 21

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT




SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

State of
Percentage of Incorporation or

Parent Subsidiary Ownership QOrganization
Meta Financial Group, In MetaBank 10C% Federal
Meta Financial Group, Int First Midwest Financial Capital Trus 10C% Delaware
Meta Financial Group, In Meta Trust Compan 10C% South Dakott
MetaBank First Services Financial Limite 10C% lowa
First Services Financial Limite Brookings Service Corporatic 100% South Dakott

The financial statements of Meta Financial Gromg, hre consolidated with those of its subsidiaeasept First Midwest Financial
Capital Trust I.




EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF KPMG, LLP




Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

Audit Committee
Meta Financial Group, Inc.
Storm Lake, lowa

We consent to the incorporation by reference inMleéa Financial Group, Inc. Registration Statememnt§orm S-8 of Meta Financial Group,
Inc., pertaining to the Meta Financial Group In@9% Stock Option and Incentive Plan (No. 333-225#8) the Meta Financial Group, Inc.
2002 Omnibus Incentive Plan (No. 333-110200, N@-3831407, and No. 333-151604), of our report d&tedember 12, 2008, except as to
note 22, which is as of July 6, 2009 with respedht consolidated statement of financial conditbMeta Financial Group, Inc. as of
September 30, 2008, and the related consolidaaehsénts of operations, comprehensive income (losapges in shareholders’ equity, and

cash flows for the year then ended, which repapeaps in the September 30, 2008 Annual Report om B6-K/A of Meta Financial Group,
Inc. and subsidiaries.

/sl KPMG LLP

Des Moines, lowa
July 6, 2009




Exhibit 23.2

McGladrey & Pullen

Certified Public Accountants

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

To the Audit Committee
Meta Financial Group, Inc.
Storm Lake, lowa

We consent to the incorporation by reference inMle¢a Financial Group, Inc. Registration Statememnt§orm S-8 pertaining to the Meta
Financial Group, Inc.1995 Stock Option and Incenfilan (No. 333-22523) and the Meta Financial Gréup 2002 Omnibus Incentive Plan
(No. 333-110200, No. 333-141407 and No. 333-15166M9ur report dated January 7, 2008 relatinguoaudit of the consolidated statement
of financial condition as of September 30, 2007 tredrelated consolidated statements of operatammprehensive income (loss), changes in
shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each oftweyears in the period ended September 30, 200ich appear in the Annual Report on
Form 10-K/A of Meta Financial Group, Inc. as of dodthe year ended September 30, 2008.

/%&M S falln, , 2o

Des Moines, lowa
July 1, 2009

McGladrey & Pullen, LLP is a member firm of RSM énhational —
an affiliation of separate and independent legtties.




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, J. Tyler Haahr, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this amended Annual Report amF0-K/A of Meta Financial Group, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaior@ny untrue statement of a material fact or amgitate a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeker which such statements were made, not misigadth respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the Registrant as of, and for, thégds presented in this annual report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officers araté responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)jHerRegistrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoras designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consoligdhgibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepared

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentdsineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure and procedasesf the end of the period covered by this repased on such evaluation; and

c¢) Disclosed in this report any change in the Regig¢'s internal control over financial reportiftgat occurred during the Registrant
issuer’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Regissdourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annegbrt) that as materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The Registrans’ other certifying officers and | have disclosealsdéd on our most recent evaluation of internalrobover financial reporting
to the Registrant’s auditors and the audit committethe Registrant’s board of directors (or pessparforming the equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal costoskr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regidtsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the Registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: July 6, 200
/sl J. Tyler Haah
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, David W. Leedom, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this amended Annual ReportamFL0O-K/A of Meta Financial Group, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatemny untrue statement of a material fact ort@émstate a material fact necessary to n
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeler which such statements were made, not misigadth respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respe
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows Registrant as of, and for, the periogsgnted in this annual report;

4. The Registrarg’ other certifying officers and | are responsildiedstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (as defir
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)jHerRegistrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedotas designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consoligdhgribsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepared

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentdsineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure and procedasesf the end of the period covered by this repased on such evaluation; and

c¢) Disclosed in this report any change in the Regig's internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the Registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant’s fofigbal quarter in the case of an annual repod) #is materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Regisit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officers drithve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluafiinternal control over financial
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and thetazammittee of the Registrant’s board of direct@mspersons performing the equivalent
function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal costoskr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regidtsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the Registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: July 6, 200
/s/ David W. Leedon

Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Meta Finah&Group, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K/A ftire year ended September 30, 2008,
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commiseiothe date of this Certification (the “Report’;)). Tyler Haahr, the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 IC.SSection 1350, as adopted pursuant to Secti6roBthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

that:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934; and

2) the information contained in the Report fairly prets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand result of operatio
of the Company.

By: /s/ J. Tyler Haah
Name: J. Tyler Haat
Chief Executive Office
July 6, 200¢




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Meta Finah&Group, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K/A ftire year ended September 30, 2008,
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commiseinthe date of this Certification (the “Report;)Pavid W. Leedom, the Acting Chief
Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursutmtl8 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuad¢ttion 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002, that:
(1) the Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934; and

2) the information contained in the Report fairly prets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand result of operatio
of the Company.

By: /s/ David W. Leedon
Name: David W. Leedor
Chief Financial Office!
July 6, 200¢




